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Chairman’s Statement

GeneMedix has undergone a period of
rapid development during this financial
year. This has included three separate
rounds of fund raising, commencement
of trading on London’s OFEX (from

’ January to November), and most
recently a dual listing on the London Stock Exchange on
November 30th and the Singapore Stock Exchange (SGX) on
December 1st. GeneMedix is the first life science company to
list on the SGX, an event that has created considerable
interest in South-East Asia.

During the year, we have recruited a strong and experienced
team of senior managers, extended the Board of Directors,
negotiated the acquisition of a manufacturing company in
Shanghai, moved into new premises in Newmarket, Suffolk
and progressed the development of no fewer than 5 products.

Our results show that the cash burn has been in line with
expectations, and reflects the Company's ethos of utilising our
cash resources prudently.

At the time of the listing we set out a detailed business plan.
It involved commercial production of our first product, GM-
CSF, out of a facility in China by the end of the first half of
2001. This was to be followed by the manufacture of EPO and
Interferon-alpha 2b by the end of 2002, following the
construction or acquisition of additional manufacturing
capacity, and the upgrading of the Shanghai facility to
international pharmaceutical standards. Initial distribution of
these products was to be into China, ASEAN territories, India
and Eastern Europe.

Th{e stated longer-term strategy was to have all 7 products in
our portfolio manufactured to international pharmaceutical
standards and commercially available within a 5-6 year time
frame, to coincide with the loss of patent protection by the
branded products in the Western European markets. This
would allow GeneMedix to address these markets rapidly
thereafter, by commencing the process of regulatory

approvals and the establishment of marketing collaborations.

Though it is stili early days, we are well on course with the
implementation of our plan. We annocunced, in January 2001,
the aczquisition of 75% of the shares in Shanghai Dongxin
Biotechnology Company Limited (SDB) from ShenglongDa,
the commercialisation arm of the Shanghai Institute of
Biochemistry. The new equity subsidiary was named Shanghai
Genemedix Biotechnology Company Ltd (SGB). The total
purchase price was £5.3 million, with a further capital
contribution of £1.4 million to be made into the acquired
entity. The acquisition of this company provides us with a
modern high quality manufacturing facility, equipped with

and Epidermal Growth Factor (EGF) to Chinese GMP
standards. Planned additional investment will allow us to
upgrade the facility to meet with international pharmaceutical
standards, and provide an additional process stream for the
production of Interferon-alpha 2b.

Preparations for the GM-CSF launch in China are currently at
an advanced stage, as are those for the construction of a
second manufacturing plant. Positive progress has also been
made in the biocequivalence studies and product development
for EPO and Interferon-alpha 2b. The process development is
under way for the manufacture of Insulin and the programme
to develop EGF in China is also progressing well. We are also
confident that the coming year will see us establish marketing
agreements that will broaden our markets into India, the
ASEAN territories and Eastern Europe.

The Board was expanded during the year with the additions
of Mr. Paul Edwards as Chief Executive in December 1999,
Mr. Gordon Mylchreest as Non-Executive Director in January
2000, and Mr. Julian Attfield as Chief Financial Officer and Mr.
Fong Kwok Jen as Non-Executive Director (Singapare), both
in'October 2000.

A strong UK management team has also been assembled
during the year with broad industry experience. Tony Gasson
joined us early in the year as Technical Director and is now
resident in Shanghai. John Greenwood followed as Head of
Regulatory Affairs along with Richard Barker, as Head of
Development. In July they were joined by Jackie Turnbull as
Head of Business Development and Sue Buchanan as Director
of Marketing in December 2000.There are now 10 UK staff
with an additional 30 employees based at the Shanghai
manufacturing facility.

We view the year ahead with much optimism and excitement
as we begin to roll out our products into the market place
and progress our vision to create a high quality global
biopharmaceutical products company. We also feel very
privileged to be involved in a Company that not only has the
potential to create real value for our shareholders, but also
has the ability to bring affordable medicines to patient
populations that have, until now, remained untreated.

Dr Kim Tan

20th March 2001
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Company review

Company Profile

The business of the Company is the development and
manufacture of generic biopharmaceuticals, generic versions
of therapeutic proteins, which will be manufactured to the
highest international pharmaceutical standards for marketing
worldwide.

The Company is focusing on biotechnology drugs which are
acknowledged to be difficult to manufacture and where the
cost per dose is high. Currently these products are purchased
by devzloped countries and are largely unaffordable in many
other developing countries.

GeneWNedix will develop, manufacture and market
pharmaceuticals where there is a clear market opportunity -
ie. eithar where they are un-patented in certain geographical
areas, where the Directors believe there is significant market
potential, or where they are known to be coming off patent in
the next 5-10 years.

A key platform underpinning the Company’s ability to pursue
this market is its collaboration agreement with the world
famous Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry (SIB). SIB has
granted GeneMedix an unlimited, royalty free, exclusive -
worldwide (non-exclusive in China) licence to the technology
which will enable the Company to manufacture its first
products - seven cell tines, each of which produces a different
therapeutic protein.

Furthermore the Company believes that the technology it has
licensed from SIB will prove to be significantly more efficient
for protein production than current technologies. The strategy
of the Company is, therefore, to develop generic
biopharmaceuticals using this technology.

GeneMedix intends to further leverage its capabilities through
establishing global manufacturing facilities which will be
Jocated in jurisdictions where strong fiscal incentives exist. It is
the intention to operate all the Company’s manufacturing
facilities to the highest international GMP standards to enable
global supply of high quality products. To achieve this
strategy, the Company aims either to acquire and upgrade
existing biopharmaceuticals manufacturing facilities or to
commission new building.

Three manufacturing facilities are planned. The first - a joint
venture in China with ShenglongDa is on track to produce its
first preduct in 2001. The second, based in Europe, is under
negotiation and the third is in the planning stage. The focus
of each will be dedicated to one of bacterial cell, mammalian
cell or yeast cell fermentation processes and of a scale to
enable global delivery of the product.

Products will be marketed through partners selected for their
ability to access key geographic regions, initially in China,
India and Eastern Europe and with appropriate market focus.
Subsequently agreements with multi-national pharmaceutical
suppliers will be sought to access markets in Western Europe
and, ultimately, the USA.

In parallel with these activities the Company is seeking to
develop collaborative agreements with novel drug delivery
companies which the Company believes will maintain the
competitiveness of GeneMedix’ product portfolic longer
term.

Regulatory Environment v
The Company must obtain a product licence for each territory
in which it intends to market a product.

For generic products, the minimum clinical requirement for
product registration with the relevant regulatory authority will
be bioequivalence studies. This involves relatively small
studies which compare the GeneMedix products with
branded products that are already licensed for sale. It is likely
that larger clinical studies may have to be conducted in some
terfitories; particularly the EU and the US.

In China GeneMedix is in the final stages of approval for its
first product, GM-CSF. The Company is in the process of
compiling dossiers for GM-CSF for the next target territories.

Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry

The SIB was established in 1958 under the Chinese Academy
of Sciences. The SIB is viewed as a flagship of Chinese
biochemistry and gained international recognition in the
1960's as the first institution to perform the total synthesis of
crystalline bovine insulin. The main research effort of SiB is
focused on the structure-function relationship of biological
macro molecules (e.g. DNA, RNA), molecular genetics and
genetic engineering. SIB is funded by the Chinese
government, but also receives external grants from
organisations such as the Rockefeller Institute in the US and
the Max Planck Institute in Germany. The SIB is responsible
for implementing Chinese national policy to spearhead the
contribution of science and technology to the economic
construction of China.

GeneMedix has a close working relationship with the SiB and
intends to continue its collaboration on a long term basis.
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Company review (continued)

GeneMedix Products

Enythropoietin ("EPO")

EPO is the hormone produced by the kidreys that stimulates
red blood cell production. Red blood cells are the most
common cellular blood components and make up nearly half
of the blood’s volume. The red blood cells contain
haemoglobin that enables them to transport oxygen from the
lungs to all parts of the body. A lack of EPO results in the
clinical condition of anaemia, a condition where the number
of red blood cells is below normal. EPO is mainly used for the
treatment of anaemia associated with EPO deficiency in
chronic renal failure.

The first company to patent and produce a recombinant
human EPO was Amgen, an American biotechnology
company which has successfully gained approval for several
indications for EPO. It is among the world's best selling
protein drug products, with global annual sales in excess of
USD $3.9 billion.

Granulocyte macrophage-colony stimulating factor ("GM-CSF")
Neutropenia is a condition where neutrophils, a type of white
blood cell, the primary cellular defence against bacteria and
fungi, are at abnormally fow levels. The main clinical symptom
of the condition is frequent or unusual infections. GM-CSF is
a growth factor that stimulates the production of white blood
cells. It is used to treat neutropenia caused by chemotherapy,
the use of cytotoxic drugs for the treatment of cancer, and
aims to reduce the incidence of associated infections. It can
also be used to accelerate myeloid recovery following bone
marrow transplantation. Furthermore, it can be used to treat
neutropenia induced by some of the drugs used in the
treatment of patients with AIDS.

|

Schering Plough and Novartis are the two main companies
currently selling recombinant human GM-CSF. A recombinant
hurnan granulocyte-colony stimulating factor ("G-CSF") has
been developed by both Amgen and Chugai and are
available as filgrastim (Neupogen) and lenograstim
(Granocyte) respectively. Annual combined global sales of
GM-CSF and G-CSF are in excess of USD $2.1 billion.

Interferon alpha ("IFN-alpha")

The body's immune system attacks and eliminates not only
bacteria and other foreign substances but also cancer cells.
Cytokines are messengers and are secreted by the immune
system in response to an attack. IFN-alpha 2b is a cytokine
and has demonstrated its capability as an anti-tumour, as well
as an anti-viral, agent. There have been several forms of the
protein exploited commercially, including IFN-alpha 2b, IFN-
alpha 2a and IFN-alpha N1. The various forms of Interferon
have successfully gained approval for many indications,

L P IV PR R S £ S SR I . (-

The different forms of IFN-alpha are used as anti-tumour and
anti-viral agents. They have been approved for use in AIDS

_related Kaposi‘s sarcoma, hairy cell leukaemia, non-Hodgkin's

lymphoma, chronic myelogenous leukaemia, chronic active
hepatitis B, chronic hepatitis C and maintenance of remission
in multiple myeloma. The specific form IFN-alpha 2a is further
indicated for recurrent or metastatic renal cell carcinoma and
progressive cutaneous T-cell lymphoma. Global annual sales
of IFN- alpha are in excess of USD $1.5 billion.

Interferon Gamma ("IFN-gamma")

Like IFN-alpha, IFN-gamma is a cytokine and has actions as
an immune response modifier. This protein is licensed for use
in patients with chronic granulomatous disease ("CGD") to
reduce the frequency of serious infection. CGD is an
uncommon, primary immunodeficiency disease that is
inherited by several different modes. Boehringer Ingelheim,
the main supplier of the protein in Europe has a recombinant
human interferon gamma-1b {Immukin). Genentech has
developed a recombinant product (Actimmune) that is out-
licensed to InterMune Pharmaceuticals for sale in the US.
Annual global sales of IFN- gamma are more than USD $66

million.

Interleukin 2 (*IL-2")

The term interleukin refers to a class of cytokines that
influence a variety of cells. IL-2 has been a major commercial
success and is used as a cancer treatment. IL-2 is licensed for
use in patients with non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma, acute
myelogenous leukaemia, metastatic renal cell carcinoma and
malignant metastatic melanoma. Chiron is currently the main
supplier of the protein. It markets its product under two
brand names, Aldesleukin and Proleukin. Annual global sales
are estimated at USD $112 million.
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Comnpany review (continued) )

Human insulin

Diabetes mellitus is a disorder in which blood glucose levels
are abnormally high due to a fack of insulin Sr a state of
insulin resistance. Insulin is the primary substance responsible
for controlling blood sugar levels throughout the day and in
response to eating or drinking. Type | diabetes, or insulin
dependant diabetes, is caused by a lack of production of
insulin. This type of diabetes is usually diagnosed in
childhood and is treated by multiple daily injections of insulin.
Type |l diabetes, or non-insulin dependant diabetes, is
thought to be caused by a gradual development of cell
resistance to the actions of insulin. Type Il diabetes is
associated with obesity and advancing age. Most Type Il
diabetics will eventually require insulin. There are three types
of insulin products available, namely, short acting,
intermediate and fong acting. Recently, the market has seen
the introduction of a new insulin product that provides very
rapid increases in blood insulin levels.

Two companies dominate the worldwide market for insulin,
namely Novo Nordisk and Eli Lilly & Co. Both companies have
launched an insulin analogue. The market is globally
estimated to be worth USD $2.5 billion.

Epidermal growth factor (“EGF")

EGF is a protein normally present in the body which
promotes cell division in various parts of the body such as
skin, cornea and gastrointestinal tract. EGF is thought to play
an important part in normal cell growth and development and
wourd healing.

Phase | and Il clinical studies for topical application to wounds
has been completed in China. GeneMedix would be one of
the first companies to sell a product containing EGF and the
Company is pursuing the registration process in China.

Intellectual property

In addition to the core business of developing and
manufacturing generic biopharmaceuticals, the Company will
continue to work with SIB to obtain the right to technology
and know-how which, in the opinion of the Directors, will
provide opportunities to obtain patent protection and
potentially to enter into licensing arrangements with third
parties. To date, this has resulted in the filing of two
international patent applications by the Company, on behalf
of SIB, to which the Company has worldwide licences; one for
a potentially novel gene sequence for a monomeric insulin
and the other for triplex-forming oligonucleotides for use in
tumcur inhibition.

Shanghai GeneMedix Biotechnology Company Ltd (SGB)
SGB was acquired in December 2000 from ShenglongDa, the

commercialisation arm of SIB. It is situated in the Zhangjiang
Hi-tech Park, in the Pudong New Area district of Shanghai
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Board of Directors

Chairman Dr Kim Tan BSc, PhD, FRSM - Non-Executive

Dr Tan, aged 45, was appointed to the Board in April 1999 and is a founder of the Company. He is also the founder and an
executive Director of KS Biomedix Holdings Plc, a biotech company which was admitted to the Alternative Investment
Market of the London Stock Exchange (*AIM") in 1995 and to the UK Official List in 1998. He is Non-Executive chairman of
TranXenoGen Inc., which has developed transgenic technology to produce human proteins in chickens’ eggs, and was
admitted to AIM in July 2000. He is the author of over 45 scientific papers, the inventor of sheep monoclonal antibodies
and a Fellow of the Royal Society of Medicine.

Chief Executive Officer Mr Paul Edwards MBE BSc
Mr Edwards, aged 44, was appointed to the Board in December 1999. He was formerly Vice President and General

Manager of Genzyme Corporation's UK operation. A graduate in Chemistry from Surrey University, he spent 7 years with

. Beecham Pharmaceuticals involved in the manufacture of semi-synthetic penicillins, before movinqto Genzyme in 1986.

Most recently, he has worked in management consultancy at Ruston Poole international. Paul is the former chairman of the
Manufacturing Advisory Committee of the UK Biolndustry Association, and has worked with the UK Department of Trade
and Industry advising on issues relating to the manufacture of biopharmaceuticals. In 1997, he received an MBE for services
to biotechnology and in 1999, the Donald Medal for services to biochemical engineering.

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary Mr Julian Attfield BA, ACA

Mr Attfield, aged 38, was appointed to the Board in October 2000. He was formerly the Director of Finance and
Administration with Sigma-Genosys Ltd., a leading manufacturer of biomolecules for the life sciences industry, and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Sigma Aldrich Corporation. A graduate in Modern Languages from the University of Exeter, he joined
Arthur Andersen & Co. in 1989, whéré he qualified as an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales in 1993. He then joined Automotive Diagnostics UK Ltd. as Group Financial Controlier (1993-1996) before
moving to Sigma-Genosys Ltd.

Marketing Director (Asia) Dr Hong-Hoi Ting BSc, DPhil

Dr Ting, aged 44, was appointed to the Board in April 1999 and is a founder of the Company. He has a degree in
biochemistry from Bath University and a doctorate in enzymology from the University of Oxford. Between 1982 and 1986,
he was a senior university research staff and Group Leader in microbiology at Dyson Perrins Laboratory in Oxford. He
worked for Amersham International plc as a regional manager in charge of its Life Science business in the Far East and
South East Asia. He was also the Country Manager for Amersham International plc in China from 1989 to 1994 Since then,
Dr Ting has worked as a consultant in Asia for Amersham International plc, Westinghouse Electric Corporation and Johnson
and Johnson. He has also been involved in setting up several joint ventures for Westinghouse and a joint venture for

Shanghai Alpha Biotechnology Company Limited with SIB for the production of one-step tests for hepatitis.

Non-Executive Director Mr Gordon Mylchreest MCIM

Mr Mylchreest, aged 55, was appointed to the Board in January 2000. He was the Group Marketing Director of
Consolidated Group from 1984 to 1994 before it was acquired by GE Capital. He was also responsible for developing
Consolidated Group's insurance business in Europe. Since then, he has acted as a consultant to a number of insurance
companies advising on acquisitions and start-ups. He was also a consultant to and General Manager of CIGNA Direct

Marketing and Creditor Insurance Services.

Non-Executive Director , Singapore Mr Fong Kwok Jen

Mr Fong, aged 51, was appointed to the Board in October 2000. He is an advocate and solicitor in Singapore and is a
partner in the firm of Fong Partners & Associates. He was Senior State Counsel in Singapore as well as a member of the
Council of the Law Society of Singapore. He is a Non-Executive Director of several listed companies in Hong Kong and the

US involved in financial services and computer software.
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Senior Executives

Director of Development Mr Richard Barker BSc, MSc, MiBiol
Aged 47, he was formerly Director of Development with Axis Genetics plc. Prior to this, he held various senior positions
with Genzyme Corporation, including being a board member of the UK subsidiary. He is currently a member of the

Manufacturing Advisory Committee of the UK Biolndustry Association.

Director of Marketing Ms Sue Buchanan BA, MBA

Aged 42, Sue was formerly a Managing Consultant with the Life Sciences Practice of PA Consultiné Group selling and
managing consulting assignments for a range of pharmaceutical and medical device companies from small start-ups to
major global leaders. Prior to this she held several posts in international marketing witlj Ohmeda, the BCC Group's former

healthcare business supplying products for critical care.

General Manager SGB Mr Thomas Cheng
Aged 38,he joined the Company from Messer Donghai Co. Ltd., a joint venture company set up to provide food grade

CO2, where he held the position of General Manager. Thomas had previously held senior positions with Johnson and
Johnson (China) Ltd. '

Technical Director Mr Tony Gasson BSc, MSc, MA, MIBiol, FRSC

Aged 62, he held various senior positioﬁ;ét Wellcome Laboratories for 27 years. His other roles have included Head of”
Quality Management at Public Health Laboratory Servicey, Centre for Applied Microbiological Research ("CAMR") and
Industrial Specialist for Courtaulds Engineering. In recent years he has been involved in the construction and validation of

pharmaceutical facilities in international locations, including China, Poland, Egypt, India and the UK.

Director of Quality and Regulatory Affairs Mr John Greenwood, FIMLS MBIRA, DipRA

Aged 56, he joined GeneMedix having previously been the Pre-Clinical Development and Regulatory Affairs Manager with
Protherics plc. Prior to this he was Head of Regulatory Affairs at CAMR. He sat as a regional committee member for the
British Institute of Regulatory Affairs.

Director of Business Develépment Miss Jackie Turnbull MRPharm$S

Aged 35, she was formerly a Principal Consultant based in the Technology Consulting Practice of PA Consulting Group,
focusing on due diligence assignments. Prior to this she was an International Licensing Manager for Novo Nordisk, based in
Denmark, where she focused on alternative delivery systems for proteins and peptides. She is a member of the UK

Pharmaceutical Licensing Group.
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Financial review

There has been rapid financial development at the Company during the year.

In December 1999 arid January 2000 £1.12 million was raised by a private funding and our shares were
admitted to trading on OFEX, the off exchange market in London. This valued the Company at £11 million.
The ordinary shares of £1 each were sub-divided into 100 Ordinary Shares of 1p each, and we made a
bonus issue of 4.9 new shares for every existing share. We raised an additional £3.36 million from private
and institutional investors in July 2000 at which time we had a market capitalisation of £178 million. There was a small issue of
5.000 shares under the Company unapproved share option plan, before a further bonus issue of 2 new shares for every old
share took place in October 2000. )

In November 2000 we placed 14.4 million shares in London and 7.8 million in Singapore at £0.90, raising £20 million (£18.5
million after expenses) and achieving a full listing on the London Stock Exchange en 30th November and in Singapore on
December 1st 2000. The market capitalisation at admission was £261 million. We were one of the few companies to float
successfully at this time of adverse market conditions in the technology sectors. R

Results of Operations

A net loss for the year of £845,628 or 0.3p per share was in line with expectations. All expenditure incurred related to the
setting up of the infrastructure of our manufacturing and distribution strategy. Included in this loss is £345,234 relating to a
provision for employer’s National Insurance Contributions on the Company's'share option planin accordance with current
accounting practice. As long as it is material, the on-going effects on our results of the movement in this provision will continue

to be highlighted separately, as it is a direct result of our policy to motivate and retain key employees rather than being a direct
part of our manufacturing strategy.

In addition we spent £278,560 on the process development and clinical studies of EPO and Interferon- alpha 2b, which we-aim
to have in commercial production by the end of 2002. These costs are capitalised in line with Company policy.

Since its incorporation in November 1997 the Company has not generated any sales revenue. There had been no significant
expenses incurred in the period to 30th November 1999.

The Directors continue to be of the belief that, with the net proceeds from the Initial Public Offering, we have sufficient working
capital to implement the business plan as set out in our prospectus of 24th November 2000.

Treasury palicies and significant treasury transactions are reviewed and approved by the Board. The Company's aim is to secure
returns in line with prevailing market rates while minimising the risk of adverse foreign currency movements.

We were also pleased to appoint Mrs Sue Mason, a qualified Accountant and fluent Mandarin speaker, as Group Financial

Controller. She has already been a key figure in the development of a system of internal financial control in China.
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 30 November 2000

The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Company, together with the accounts and auditors' report, for the
year ended 30th November 2000. i

Principal activities .
The principal activities of the Company are the development, manufacture and distribution of generic biopharmaceuticals, which
are a generic version of high value therapeutic proteins.

Business review

A review of the business and future developments is set out in the Chairman’s statement and company review on pages 1 to 4.

Genemedix conducts its research and development through its collaboration with the celebrated Shanghai Institute of
Biochamistry {SIB). This applies to the seven products in the Company's portfolio and to a number of further opportunities to
exploit commercially the world-class science at the Institute. The Company has incurred process development costs of £278,540.
The Directors regard investment in process and patent development as a prerequisite for increasing the value of our intellectual
property portfolio and to achieve the earliest possible implementation of our business plan.

\
Details of significant events since the balance sheet date and further details of the Company's performance during the year and
expected future developments are contained in the chairman's statement and the financial review.

Results and dividends
The audited accounts for the year ended 30th November 2000 are set out on pages 17 to 29. The loss for the year, after
taxation, was £845,628 (1999 - £ 13,418) .

The Directors are unable to recommend any dividend for the year (1999 - £Nil).

Directors
Biographical details of current Directors are given on page 5. The Directors who served during the year were as follows:

Executive: Non-Executive:

Paul Edwards Dr Kim Tan

{appointed 10th December 1999}

Or Hong—Hoi Ting Gordon Mylchreest
{appointed 13th January 2000)

Julian Attfield Mr Fong Kwok Jen

(appointed 16th October 2000} {(appointed 23rd November 2000)

{
Supplier payment policy
The Company’s policy is to settle terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction, ensure that
suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment and abide by the terms of payment. Trade creditors of the Company at 30th
November 2000 were equivalent to 18 (1999: Nil) days’ purchases.

Substantial shareholdings
Cin 20th March 2001, the Company had been notified, in accordance with sections 198 to 208 of the Companies Act 1985, of
the following interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company.

Mame of holder Number Percentage held
Dr Kim Tan 156,309,111 54.0%
Dr HH Ting 18,566,820 6.4%
Mr G Mylchreest 9,427,410 3.3%
Shanghai institute of Biochemistry V 31,401,434 10.8%
C C Toh 11,695,500 4.0%

Cheapside Nominees 9,439,410 3.3%

The mid-market price of the shares at 30 November 2000 was £0.90 and during the year the price varied between £0.56 and £1.22.




GeneMedix plc Annual Report 2000

Directors report (continued)

Disabled employees ]

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant
concerned. in the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the
company continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the company that the training, career
development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical with that of other employees.

Empioyee consultation

The company places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed on
matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the company. This is achieved
through formal and informal meetings. Employee representatives are consulted regularly on a wide range of matters affecting
their current and future interests. The employee share option scheme has been running successfully since its inception in 1999. It
is open to all employees and details are provided in notes 13 to the accounts.

Auditors \
The Directors will place a resolution before the annual general meeting to re-appoint Arthur Andersen as auditors for the
ensuing year.

By order of the Board,

Julian Attfield
Chief Financial Officer

20th March 2001
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Corporate governance statements

The Directors have set out below the means by which they seek to apply current best practice corporate governance
procedures, and the extent to which the Group has complied with the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority relating to
the principles of Good Governance and Code of Best Practice (the ‘Combined Code) as published in 1998. This code combines
the Cadbury Code on corporate governance, the Greenbury Code on directors’ remuneration and requirements arising from
the findings of the Hampe! Committee.

The Directors believe that the Company currently complies with the provision of the Combined Code. The strengthening of the
Board and senior management team during the year, prior to the flotation at the end of the year, facilitated the application of
most of the principles of the Combined Code. The roles of the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman were split and a well
balanced and experienced team of three Executive and three Non-Executive Directors were appointed. A number of matters
such as the formal appointment of a senior independent director were only ratified at a Board meeting after the year end. In
addition, certain procedures of the remuneration and audit committees were set up but not called upon since the Company’s
flotation on the London Stock Exchange was on 30 November 2000.

Board of Directors

A board of Directors has been assembled during the year comprising three Executive, Mr Paul Edwards, Dr Ting and Mr Julian
Attfield, and three Non-Executive Directors, Dr Kim Tan, Mr Gordon Mylchreest and Mr Fong Kwok Jen, who bring considerable
knowledge and experience to bear on issues of strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct. The Board has
shown its commitment to dividing responsibilities for running the Board and running the Company’s business through the roles
of Dr Kim Tan as Non-Executive Chairman, and Mr Paul Edward as Chief Executive Officer . The Non-Executive Directors are not
invited to participate in the Company share option scheme and exercise strong independent judgement on all matters.

Although all Directors are equally accountabie legally, the Non-Executive Directors have a particular responsibility to ensure that
actions proposed by the executive Directors are critically examined and:thoroughly discussed. The Board considers that all of
the Non-Executive Directors are independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which could
materially interfere with the exercise of independent judgement. Non- Executive Directors' may, at the Company's expense, seek
independent legal advice on any matter relating to.the discharge of their duties.

In accordance with the provisions of the Combined Code, the Board has identified Mr Gordon Mylchreest as the Senior

Indepandent Non-Executive Director to whom any relevant concerns can be addressed. This was formally ratified at a Board
meeting on 13th February 2001.

The Company holds a minimum of eight Board meetings per annum, at which a review takes place of the Company's financial
reports, annual budgets, major capital expenditure projects, risk management and treasury policies and internal controls. At
each meeting the Board monitors the Company’s progress towards the implementation of its business plan. The Chairman
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. Directors also have direct access to the
services and advice of a Company Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that relevant procedures, rules and regulations are
complied with. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is determined by the Beard as a whole.

The executive Directors have service contracts with notice period of 12 months from the Company. All Directors’ contracts are
reviewed by the Board and at the Company’s Annual General Meeting.

Principal Board Committees

The Eioard has established an Audit Committee consisting of Dr Kim Tan, Mr Gordon Mylchreest and Mr Fong Kwok Jen. It will
meet at least twice each year and is responsible for ensuring that the financial performance of the Group is properly monitored,
controlled and reported on and for meeting the auditors and reviewing reports from the auditors relating to accounts and
internal control systems. It will meet once a year with the auditors of the Company without executive Board members present.

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee consisting of Dr Kim Tan, Mr Gordon Mylchreest and Mr Fong Kwok Jen.
It reviews the performance of executive Directors and sets the scale and structure of their remuneration and the other terms of
their service agreements with due regard to the interests of shareholders. It is a rule of the Remuneration Committee that no
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Director can participate in discussions or decisions concerning his own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee sets the
performance criteria for the Share Option Plan and any other share option schemes established by the Company and also
approves the grant of options. o

The Board has established a Nomination Committee consisting of Dr Kim Tan (Chairman), Mr Gordon Mylchreest and Mr Fong
Kwok Jen. It meets when appropriate to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination of new Directors to the Board.
Its function is also to review Directors service contracts when they come up for renewal on an annual basis.

Communications with Shareholders .

The Directors seek to build on a mutual understanding of objectives between the Company and all its shareholders. The annual
report is sent to all shareholders and the quarterly interim reports are published in the London and Singapore Stock Exchanges.
The Company meets regularly with institutional shareholders and there is an opportunity for individual shareholders to question
the Chairman at the AGM. In addition the Company has established a web site (www.genemedix.com) to further aid global
communications to investors by providing background information and access to press releases issued by the Company.

Maintenance of a sound system of internal control

In applying the principle that the Board should maintain a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Company's assets, the Directors recognise that they have overall responsibility for ensuring that the
Company develops and maintains a system of internal control to provide them with reasonable assurance regarding effective
and efficient operations, internal financial control and compliance with laws and regulations. The Board accept and endorse this
principle and are concentrating on applying it to the new operations in Shanghai, and on extending the current scope to
embrace all aspects of risk management as set out in the Turnbull guidance. However, there are inherent limitations in any
system of internal control and accordingly even the most effective system can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. SN v

For this purpose the Directors rely on the following processes:
* Financial controls and procedures are in place which are regularly reviewed and updated where appropriate.

¢ Clearly defined transactions and activities have been reserved for approval by the Board. Limits of delegated responsibility are
identified for employees. In addition, the Company's organisational structure is designed, wherever possible, for the
appropriate segregation of tasks.

'gBusiness plans are formulated and evaluated and periodically approved by the Board. Detailed annual budgets, covering all
financial aspects of the Company’s business, are also approved by the Board. Actual resuits and cash flows are reported
acainst budget, forecasts and the previous year. Regular profit and cash flow forecasts are prepared and reviewed with key
risks identified and action plans prepared accordingly

* There are clearly defined evaluation and approval processes for capital expenditure and substantial revenue projects. These
include detailed appraisal and review procedures, along with escalating levels of authority.

» Treasury operations are conducted in accordance with detailed procedures and mandates that are reviewed and monitored by
the Board.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the financial controls and, though the Company is still considered at an early
stage of development, are satisfied that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Combined Code. The Company
has adopted the transitional approach to disclosure as set out in the letter from the Stock Exchange on 27th September 1999,
anc| the Directors expect to meet full Turnbull compliance by August 2001.
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Corporate governance statements (continued)

Accounts, including adoption of going concern basis -
Company law requires the Directors to prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in

operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
accounts.

in preparing the accounts, the Directors are required to: select suitable accounting policies and then apply-them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts. The Directors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable
them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Rernuneration Report

As well as complying with the Provisions of the Code as disclosed in the Company's corporate governance statements, the Board
has zpplied the Principles of Good Governance and the principles of the Listing Rules relating to Directors’ remuneration as
described below. The Remuneration Comrhittee comprises Dr Kim Tan, Mr Gordon Mylchreest and Mr Fong Kwok Jen.

Procadures for developing policy and fixing remuneration

Levels of remuneration are sufficient to attract and retain the Directors needed to run the Company successfully, but without
paying more than is necessary for this purpose. The Company will be seeking to establish a long-term bonus scheme, whereby
the performance related elements of remuneration form a significant proportion of the total remuneration package of executive
Directors. This should align their interests with those of the shareholders, and be designed to provided Directors with keen
incentives to perform at the highest levels. Share options are granted to Executive Directors and senior employees to attract
and retain key employees, taking into account industry practices.

Full details of service contracts, the remuneration packages of individual Directors and information on share options and pension
benefits are set out below. A

Directors contracts

The Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company as follows

Notice from Notice to Date of
Company Company Contract
Mr P Edwards 12 months 12 months 15 November 2000
Mr J Attfield 12 months 6 months 15 November 2000
Dr H H Ting 12 months 12 months 15 November 2000
The Non-executive Directors have no notice periods. - ‘
Directors' emoluments:
Name of : 2000 1999
Director Basic salary Fees Total Total
£ £ £ £
Executive '
P Edwards 33,572 - 33,572
DrHH Ting 3,000 - 3,000 -
J Attfield 7,727 . 7,727 '
on -Executive .
Dr K S Tan - 208 ’ 208
G Mylchreest - 208 208 -
FK Jen . - a7 417 -
44,299 833 45,132 -

Directors did not receive any taxable benefits or pensions from the Company during the year.

The aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in
the Company.
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Remuneration report (continued)

Share cptions over ordinary shares have been granted to Directors of GeneMedix plc as follows:

Gains on

1999 Granted Exercised ‘2000 Exercise Exercise Exercise

Number Number Number Number date price 2000

. ‘. c

P Edwards - 235,941 - 235,941 After 10/12/1999 4.24p -
before 10/12/2009 -

P Edwards - 2,123,469 - 2,123,469 After 10/12/2002 :1.24p -
before 10/12/2009 ' -

J Attfield - 37,500 - 37,500 After 16/10/2001 90p -
before 16/10/2010 -

J Attfield - 337,500 - 337,500 After 16/10/2003 90p -
before 16/10/2010 A -

2,734,410 - 2,734,410 -

Directors' interests in significant contracts:

The Company has an exclusive licence agreement with TranXenoGen Inc, under which TranXenoGen has been granted an

exclusive worldwide licence with the right to sublicense certain proprietary technologies relating to a pre-cursor gene used in

recombinant insulin production. TranXenoGen is required to make one time payments to the Company based on the region
where regulatory and marketing approvals are granted - $2 million for the United States, $2 million for Europe and $1 million for
Asia. Additional one time payments from $50,000 to $750,000 are due from TranXenoGen to the company upon development
milestones being achieved by TranXenoGen. Such milestones or approvals have yet to be achieved, and no revenue has been
recognised. Dr Kim Tan is a shareholder and Non-Executive Chairman of TranXenoGen Inc.
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Auditors’ report

To the Shareholders of GeneMedix Plc

We have audited the accounts on pages 17 to 29 which have been prepared under the historical cost convention and the
accouriting policies set out on pages 20 and 21. We have also examined the amounts disclosed relating to the emoluments,
share options and pension benefits of the Directors which form part of the Remuneration Repért on pages 13 to 14.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report including, as described on page 12, preparing the accounts in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. Our responsibilities, as independent auditors, are
established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority,
and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the accounts give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with
the Ccmpanies Act. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ report is not consistent with the accounts, if the
Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for
our audit, or if information specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding Directors’ remuneration and transactions with the
Company is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement on pages 10 to 12 reflects the Company's compliance with the seven

provisions of the Combined Code specified for our review by the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We
are not required to consider whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Company's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report, including the corporate governance statement, and consider
whether it is consistent with the audited accounts. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any

apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the accounts.

Basis of audit opinion

We cenducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the accounts and of whether the

accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the accounts are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the accounts.

Opinion
In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 30 November 2000 and of the

Company's loss and cash flows for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985.

Arthur Andersen
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Abbots House
Abbey Street
Reading
Berkshire

RG1 3BD

20th March 2001
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Profit & loss account

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administrative expenses

National insurance contributions payable on unapproved share options

Operating loss
Finance income

Loss on ordinary activities befare taxation

Tax on loss on ordinary activities
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation, being retained loss for the year
Loss per share - basic

Loss per share - diluted

Notes

2000 1999

£ £

{588,042 (13,923)

12 (345,234) .

(933,276) (13,923)

3 87,648 505

4 (845,628) (13,418)

5 . .
\

(845,628) (13,418)

7 {0.3p) (0.01p)

7 {0.3p) {0.01p)

There are no recognised gains or losses in the current or prior periods other than those included in the profit and loss account.

All of the resuits relate to continuing operations. A statement of movements on reserves is given in note 14.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated pfofit and loss account.
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Balance sheet 30 November 2000

Notes 2000

1999
£ £
Fixed assets
Intangible assets ’ 8 311,893 33,333
Tangikle assets 9 83,418 -
395,311 33,333
Current assets
Debtors 10 482,894 -
Cash at bank and in hand 22,201,546 492,088
22,684,440 492,088
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 1 (487,393) (405,506)
0
Net current assets 22,197,047 86,582
Total assets less current liabilities 22,592,358 119,915
Provisions for liabilities and charges 12 (345,234) -
Net assets 22,247,124 119,915
Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 13 2,896,603 133,333
Share premium account PR Ce 14 20,209,567 -
Profit and loss account : . 14 (859,046) (13,418)
Equity shareholders' funds 15 22,247 124 119,915

On behalf of the Board

Director
20th March 2001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet.
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Cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 November 2000

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Capital expenditure

Cash outflow before management of liquid resources and financing
Management of liquid resources
Financing

Increase in cash in the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this cash flow statement.

Notes

2000 1999

£ f

16 (1,006,492) (8,417)
17 83,526 505
17 (340,413) -
(1,263,379) (7,912)

17 (3,350,000) -
17 22,972,837 499,998
17 18,359,458 492,086
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Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the year and the
preceding year is set out below. -

a) Basis of accounting

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

b) Intangible fixed assets - research and development

Research expenditure is written off as incurred. Development expenditure is also written off, except where the Directors are
satisfied as to the technical, commercial and financial viability of individual projects. In such cases, the identifiable expenditure is
deferred and amortised in equal annual instalments over a period of 10 years starting from the period that the Company is
expectad to benefit following completion of the products. Provision is made for any impairment.

Patent costs comprising legal fees and other direct costs incurred in obtaining patents are written off in the year of expenditure.

c) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation is provided

at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight line basis at the foliowing annual
rates:

Fittings and Fixtures 10% per annum
Plantation and Machinery 20% per annum
Office Equipment 10% per annum
d) Taxzation R Lo

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the
tax ratas and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferrad taxation is provided using the liability method on all timing differences only to the extent that they are expected to
reverse in the future without being replaced, except that the deferred tax effects of timing differences arising from pensions and
other post-retirement benefits are always recognised in full.

e) Leages

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments are not made on
such a basis.

) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction or, if hedged, at the
forward contract rate. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported
at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date or, if appropriate, at the forward contract rate.

g) Derivative financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments comprise cash, liquid resources, and various items, such as trade debtors and trade
creditors, that arise directly from its operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Company's operations.

The Company does not enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes. It has been, throughout the year under
review, the Company’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken. The main risks arising from the
Comgany's financial instruments are interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised in note 20. These policies have remained unchanged during the year.

1
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

h) Basis of preparation

The directors have prepared cash flow projections for the company through to 30 November 2002. On the basis of these
projections, the directors consider that the company has sufficient funds to continue its operations for the foreseeable future
and have prepared these financial statements on the going concern basis. In reviewing these cash flow projections, the directors
have considered that the company will complete the necessary bioequivalence studies and other product development work
and that suitable manufacturing facilities will be available. However the directors are mindful that there are a number of
technical and regulatory hurdles to overcome to generate significant revenues. Unforeseen events may occur, which may delay
our entry into certain markets, and cause a major review of our investment strategy. There is always a risk that the company may
need to raise additional finance, if available, the terms of which would depend on the steps required to overcome these hurdles,
the anticipated revenue streams, and the results of future research and development activities.

2 Segment information
\

The Company has operated solely in the UK and has only one class of business and no turnover during the year.

3 Finance income

2000 1999
£ £
Bank interest receivable 87,648 505
4 Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging:
2000 1999
£ £
Auditors' remuneration
— audit services ‘ 5,000 1,500
- non-audit services 1,500 -
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets _ .
- owned ' 12,445 -
Property rentals under operating leases 4,446 -

in addition to the auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services, £105,000 (excluding non-recoverable VAT) was incurred in
relation to the joint listing in the UK and Singapore. This was charged to the share premium account.

5 Tax on loss on ordinary activities ‘
Tax losses available to be carried forward at 30 November 2000 are estimated at approximately £1,100,000 (1999: £30,000),

subject to the agreement of the Inland Revenue. As a result of these tax losses, the Company has a potential deferred tax asset
which has not been recognised.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

6 Staff costs

Particulars of employees (including Executive Directors) are shown below:
A table of director's emoluments is disclosed in the remuneration report on page 13.

The avarage monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was:

Their zggregate remuneration comprised:

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

7 Loss per share
The calculations of loss per share are based on the following losses and numbers of shares.

Loss for the financial year

Weighted average number of shares:

For basic loss per share
Exercise of share options

For diluted loss per share

Since the Company reported a net loss, diluted loss per share is equal to basic loss per share.

The 1999 comparatives have been restated to take account of the bonus issue in 2000.

2000 1999
Number Number
<y i
2000 1999

ﬁ £
174,652 -
18,624 -
193,276 -

Basic and diluted

2000 1999
£ £

845,628 13,418
2000 1999
Number of Number of
shares shares
261,647,898 235,999,410
3,513,590 -
265,161,488 235,999,410
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

8 Intangible fixed assets

Development

Know-how costs Total
£ f £
Cost
1 December 1999 33,333 - 33,333
Adcdlitions - 278,560 278,560
30 November 2000 33,333 278,560 311,893
Amortisation
1 December 1999 - - -
Charge for the year - - -
30 November 2000 - v - -
Net book value
30 November 1999 33,333 - 33,333
30 November 2000 33,333 278,560 311,893
9 Tangible fixed assets
Office - Fittings and Plant and
equipment fixtures machinery Total
£ £ ) £ £
Cost
1 December 1999 - - - -
Additions 54,263 13,014 28,586 . 95,863
30 November 2000 54,263 13,014 28,586 95,863
Depreciation
1 December 1999 - - - -
Charge for the year 5,426 1,301 5,717 12,445

30 November 2000 5,426 - 1,301 5,717 12,445

Net book value
3C November 1999 - R R .

30 November 2000 48,836 11,713 22,869 83,418
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10 Debtors
2000 1999
3 £
Prepayments 300,000 -
Other debtors 182,894 -
482,894 -
11 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2000 1999
£ £
Trade creditors 253,099, -
Accruals 219,039 405,506
Taxation and social security 15,255 -
487,393 405,506
12 Provisions for liabilities and charges
2000 1999
£ £
National insurance contributions payable on share opti'(;ﬁs 345,234 -
This provision arises under the requirements of UITF {Urgent Issues Task Force) 25.
13 Share capital
The authorised share capital of the Company and the called-up and fully-paid amounts were as follows:
2000 1999
Number £ Number £
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 1p each
(1999: 1,000,000 ordinary shares at £1 each) 600,000,000 6,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Called-up, issued and fully-paid
Ordirary shares of 1p each
(1999: 133,333 ordinary shares at £1 each) 289,660,252 2,896,603 133,333 133,333
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

13 Share capital (continued)

Number £

At beginning of year - 133,333 133,333
Bonus issues and share split o ' 265,604,791 2,509,291
Issued for cash consideration 23,922,128 253,979
At end of year 289,660,252 2,896,603
Number of

shares

At start of year - £1 ordinary shares ‘ 133,333
£1 ordinary shares issued in December 1999 ~ January 2000 at a premium of £74 for cash 14,906
\ —_

' 148,239

14 January 2000 100 1p for £1 share split 14,823,900
14 January 4.9 for 1 bonus issue 72,637,110
1,680,000 ordinary 1p shares issued July 2000 at a premium of £1.99 for cash 1,680,000
5,000 ordinary 1p shares from exercised options 5,000
89,146,010

16 October 2 for 1 bonus issue 178,292,020
3C November 22,222,222 1p ordinary shares issued on flotation at a premium of £0.89 for cash 22,222,222

Teotal 1p ordinary shares at end of year o 289,660,252
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

13 Share capital (continued)

Employvees have been granted options over shares in the Company as follows. Directors’ share options are disclosed on page 14.

Number of Number of Number of
1999 Options Options Options 2000 Exercise Exercise
Number lapsed granted exercised Number Price Date
Unapproved - - 44,250 - 44,250 4.24p 11.10.2000 to
share cptions 11.01.2010
scheme -
531,000 531,000 4.24p 13.01.2002 to
13.01.2010
Unapproved - - 132,750 - 132,750 4.24p 12.01.2000 to
share options A 13.01.2010
scheme
150,000 150,000 63.33p 14.05.2002 to
14.05.2010
Unapproved - 45,000 (15,000) 30,000 63.33p 14.08.2000 to
share options 14.05.2010
scheme
240,000 240,000 63.33p 14.05.2003 to
14.05.2010
Unapproved - - 84,000 - 84,000 63.33p 14.08.2000 to
share options 14.05.2010
scheme
336,000 336,000 63.33p 14.05.2003 to
14.05.2010
Unapproved - - 60,000 - 60,000 61.67pp 17.08.2000 to
share options 17.05.2010
schem:
240,000 240,000 61.67p 17.05.2003 to
17.05.2010
Unapproved - 7,500 - 7,500 110.0p 31.10.2000 to
share options 31.07.2010
schems
67,500 67,500 110.0p 31.07.2003 to
31.07.2010
Unapproved - - 37,500 - 37,500 90.0p 16.10.2001 to
share options 16.10.2010
scheme
337,500 337,500 90.0p 16.10.2003 to
16.10.2010
2,313,000 (15,000) 2,298,000
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

14 Reserves

The movements on reserves during the year were as follows:

As at 1 December 1999
Issue of shares

- (3ross

- Costs

- Bonus issues

Loss for the year

As at 30 November 2000

15 Movement on equity shareholders’ funds

Loss for the financial year
Proceeds of share issues
- Gross

- Costs

MNet increase in equity shareholders’ funds
Opening equity shareholders’ funds

Closing equity shareholders’ funds

16 Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash outfiow from operating activities

Operating loss
Depreciation
{Increase) in debtors
increase in creditors

Increase in provisions (NIC payable on share options)

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Share Profit and
premium loss
account account
£ £
- (13,418}
24;233,471 -
(1,514,613) -
(2,509,291) -
- (845,628)
20,209,567 (859,046)
2000 1999
£ £
(845,628) (13,418)
24,487,450 133,331
(1,514,613)
22,127,209 119,913
119,915 2
22,247,124 119,915
2000 1999
£ £
(933,276) (13,923)
12,445 .
(478,772) -
47,877 5,506
345,234 -
(1,006,492) (8,417)
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

17 Analysis of cash flows

Return on investments and servicing of financé

Interest received

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of intangible fixed assets
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Financing
Issue of ordinary share capital

Management of liquid resources

Movement in cash placed on term deposit

Analysis of net funds

Cash

Liquid resources *

Net funds

* Liquicl resources represent cash deposits placed on money market at weekly and monthly terms.

2000 1999
£ £
83,526 505
(244,550 -
(95,863) -
(340,413) -
.\
22,972,837 499,998
(3,350,000) -
1998 Cashflow 1999 Cashflow 2000
£ . £ £ £ £
2 492,086 492,088 18,359,458 18,851,546
- - - 3,350,000 3,350,000
2 492,086 492,088 21,709,458 22,201,546
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Notes to the accounts (continued)

18 Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

2000 1999

. . £ £

Iricrease in cash in the year ’ 18,359,458 492,086
Cash inflow from movement in liquid resources 3,350,000 -
Movement in net funds in the year 21,709,458 492,086
Net funds at start of year 492,088 2
Net funds at end of year 2é,201,546 492,088

19 Financial commitments
al Operating leases
Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Land and buildings

2000 1999

£ f

Expiring in less than one year 12,000 -
Expiring between two and five years » _ 6,287 -
18,287 -

20 Derivatives and other financial instruments
The notes to the financial review provide an explanation of the role that financial instruments have had during the year in
creating or changing the risks the Company faces in its activities. The explanation summarises the objectives and policies for

holding or issuing financial instruments and similar contracts, and the strategies for achieving those objectives that have been
followed during the year.

The numerical disclosures in this note deal with financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in Financial Reporting Standard
(FRS) 13: Derivatives and other financial instruments.

As permitted by FRS 13, short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the disclosures, other than the currency
disclosures. A

Interest rate profile
The Company has no financial assets other than sterling cash of £18,851,546 and sterling cash deposits of £3,350,000 (1999:
£nil). The sterling cash deposits comprise deposits placed on money market at weekly and monthly rates.

Currency exposures

There are no currency exposures from transactional sources. Such exposures would be the monetary assets and liabilities of the
Company that are not denominated in the operating currency of the operating unit.

21 Subsequent events

In January 2001 the Company acquired 75% of the shares of Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology Company Limited from
ShenglongDa, the commercial arm of the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry. The total purchase price was £5.3 million, with a
further capital contribution of £1.4 million to be made into the acquired entity.

22 Related party transactions
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Notice of Annual General Meeting Of GeneMedix plc

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 10.30 a.m. on Wednesday 2nd May
2001 at Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London EC1A 4DD for the following purposes:

1. To rezeive the audited accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 30 November 2000, the Directors’ report and the
auditors’ report on those accounts.

2. To approve the remuneration policy contained in the report on Directors' remuneration for the year ended 30 November 2000.

3. To reappoint Paul Edwards, who is retiring due to being appointed since the last Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offers himself for re-election.

4. To reappoint Dr Hong-Hoi Ting, who is retiring due to being appointed since the last Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-election. )

5. To reappoint Julian Attfield, who is retiring due to being appointed since the last Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offers himself for re-election. A

6. To reappoint Gordon Mylchreest, who is retiring due to being appointed since the last Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

7. To reappoint Mr Fong Kwok Jen, who is retiring due to being appointed since the last Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-election.

8. To reappoint Dr Kim Tan, retiring by rotation in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, as a Director of the
Company.

9. To reappoint Arthur Andersen as the auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the
conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company at which audited accounts are laid and to authorise the Directors to
fix their remuneration.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions of which reSoluition 10 will be proposed as an ordinary and

resolution 11 as a special resolution. '
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%0. That the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised, pursuant to Section 80 of the Companies
Act 1985 (the "Act"), to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities (as defined for the purposes of
Section 80(2) of the Act) up to an aggrzegate nominal amount of £939,607 provided that this authority shall expire on the date
being 15 months from the passing of this resolution or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company next following the passing of this resolution, save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or
agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot relevant
securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if this authority had not expired and provided further that this authority
shall supersede and revoke any other earlier such authority.

1. That in substitution for all existing authorities and subject to the passing of the resolution number 10 above, the Directors be
and they are hereby empowered pursuant to Section 95 of the Act to allot equity securities (as defined in Section 94(2) of the
Act) for cash pursuant to the general authority to allot relevant securities conferred by resolution 10 above as if the
provisions of Section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to any such allotment provided that this authority shall be limited to:

A
a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with a rights or other pre-emptive issue in favour of holders of ordinary shares
where the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of such shareholders on a fixed record date are
proportionate (as nearly as may be) to the respective numbers of shares held by them but subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with any legal or practical problems under the laws

of any overseas territory or the requirements of any regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory or fractional
entitlements; and

A

to the allotment of relevant shares (as defined in section 94 of the Act) in pursuance of a right already granted to subscribe
for, or to convert any securities into, relevant shares; and

¢) the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (a) above), of equity securities having, in the case of relevant shares, a
nominal amount or, in the case of other equity securities, giving the right to subscribe for or convert into relevant shares
having, a nominal sum not exceeding in aggregate the sum of £133,719.

and this authority shalf (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company) expire on the date being 15 months from the
passing of this resolution or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company next following the
passing of this resolution, save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might

require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or
agreement as if this power had not expired.

Dated 23rd March 2001

3y order of the Board
Julian Attfield

Secretary

Registered Office:
42-46 High Street
Esher

Surrey

KT10 9QY
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Notes
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be 2 member of the Company.

2. To be effective, the instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is executed {or a notarially certified copy
of such authority) must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding
the meeting. A form of proxy is enclosed with this notice. Completion and return of the form of proxy will net preclude

shareholders from attending and voting in person at the meeting.

~

3. Copies of all Directors' service contracts will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal
business hours on any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the meeting closes
and at the place of the Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to, and during, the meeting.

4. The register of Directors' interests maintained by the Company under Section 325 Companies Act 1985%shall be produced at
the commencement of the meeting and remain open and accessible during the continuance of the meeting to any person

attending the meeting.

5. For the purpose of enabling the Company to determine which persons are entitled to attend or vote at the meeting, and how
many votes such persons may cast, a person must be entered on the Company's register of members not less than 48 hours
before the time fixed for the meeting in order to have the right to attend or vote at the meeting.
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNIT for year ended 30 November 1999
Operating expenses

Operating loss

Interest income

Loss for the year before and after taxation,

being retained loss for the year

BALANCE SHEET as at 30 November 1999

Fixed Assets

fntangible assets

Current Assets

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within 1year
Unissued share capital

Accurals

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Profit and loss account
Equity sharehoiders' funds

e

AN]

£
(13,923)
(13,923)
505

(13,418)

33,333

492,088

{400,000)

(5,505)

{405,506)
86,582
119,915

133,333
(13,418)
119,915
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Quarter 3 Results for the nine months to 31 August 2003

GeneMedix plc {“GeneMedix” or “the Company”), the UK biopharmaceutical company with
operations in Europe and Asia and with joint London and Singapore Stock Exchange listings,
announces its interim results for the nine months to 31 August 2003. GeneMedix is involved in the

development and manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology and nove!
cell culture.

Key highlights for the period

B Collaborative Agreement signed with Penang Development Corporation of Malaysia to set
up a facility for the manufacture of human insulin. Milestone payment in excess of £2 million
expected.

£1.5 million fundraising round completed.
Cash balances at period end — £3.1 million

Post period

B Letter of intent signed for contract manufacturing of additional biopharmaceutical product in
the Irish facility

B Significant progress in the Erythropoietin (EPO) process development programme

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“GeneMedix has continued to develop its potential to make a major market impact in Europe and
beyond with its range of biopharmaceutical products.

“It clearly remains a primary focus of the Directors to secure sufficient funding to be able to develop
all our programmes at the desired rate. We are continuing to pursue a number of opportunities to
obtain revenues or investment from commercial or technology out-licensing collaborations. This is
coupled with other international initiatives to generate cash from under-utilised assets.

“The Board believes that the combination of our current portfolio of comparable proteins and

manufacturing capabilities offers significant potential for GeneMedix and we remain confident that
we shall be receiving cash in-flows in the very short term to cover our immediate cash requirements.”

26 November 2003

ENQU!

Genel e A e e Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul EC OL:)-:‘,.:\"\; P ,21}

Bankside Consultants Tel: 020 7444 4140

Michael Padley / Susan Scott



Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

GeneMedix has continued to develop its potential to make a major market impact in Europe and
beyond with a range of biopharmaceutical products.

We have made significant steps in our product development programme for EPO, which have
attracted the interest of a number of potential major commercial licensing partners. This progress has
been made against a background environment that has highlighted the complexity of the
technological issues surrounding the establishment of comparable pharmaceuticals in Western
Europe. However, we remain confident that our clinical programmes are well designed and will
enable us to demonstrate comparability with the marketed product. We have always relied on a
strong scientific basis for the design of our clinical strategy, and the scientific advice we recently
received from the CPMP, the scientific advisory body to the European Regulatory Agency, on the
regulatory pathway for the approval of our EPO, Epostim, has strengthened that belief.

We are also seeking to complete the validation of our Tullamore facility for the production of EPO at

the earliest opportunity, and to utilise to the full the strong development team we have built up at
the facility.

The programme for the development of our insulin technology has been accelerated, and this will
eventually be transferred into the facility we are expecting to be built in Penang, Malaysia. This
project requires a total investment of $34 million, which will be funded entirely by South-East Asian
investors and the National and Regional Government of Malaysia. We anticipate that the initial stage
of funding will be completed in the next few weeks, which will allow us to commence construction
of the facility early in the New Year. There is expected to be an upfront cash milestone to GeneMedix
in excess of £2 million once this initial stage of funding has been completed.

It clearly remains a primary focus of the Directors to secure sufficient funding to be able to develop
all our programmes at the desired rate and it is evident that we shall not be able to do this by relying
solely on funds being generated through the existing commercial operations. We are continuing to
pursue a number of opportunities to obtain revenues or investment from commercial or technology
out-licensing collaborations. This is coupled with other international initiatives to generate cash from
under-utilised assets. As part of one such initiative, we are pleased to announce that we have signed
a letter of intent to contract-manufacture an additional biopharmaceutical, which should bring us
revenues from outside Western Europe in 2005.

in the meantime, we have continued to exercise prudent cost control measures and are focusing
predominantly on our main development programmes to preserve cash balances. The investment in
our Chinese facility has been completed, and revalidation will commence shortly.

Financial review

Operating losses of £4.7 million and cash burn for the period were slightly above expectation as we
suffered badly from the strengthening of the euro and the weakness of the dollar on our assets and
liabilities in China and Ireland. We had accelerated depreciation on a number of items of industrial
plant, which were replaced as part of our upgrade programme in China, but all other costs were as
planned. There has been little additional capital expenditure during the period except on the plant
validation in China and Ireland. There were no revenues in the periocd.

Administration costs were mainly inflated by a foreign exchange loss of £430k, the accelerated
depreciation, and some anticipated increased costs of insurance and legal services.

The cash balances at the end of the period of £3.1 million were equally affected by the foreign
exchange losses. In the period we had a mini-fundraising round, which brought in £1.5 million from

“a number of existing investors in South-East Asia. Current operating cash burn, excluding foreign
- exchange effects on the retranslation of monetary items, is approximately £1.3 million a quarter. To

bolster finances, we are expecting to have additional cash funds from the insulin project in Penang
referred to above available to us very shortly.



Outlook

The Board believes that the combination of our current portfolio of comparable proteins and
manufacturing capabilities offer significant potential for GeneMedix. We are especially excited about
the advances we have made recently in the development of our EPO technology and our resulting
ability to bring in a significant commercial partner. Although it is clear that we are unable to fund all
our activities from existing commercial activities, we are confident that we shall be receiving cash in-
flows in the very short term to cover our immediate cash requirements.

As we said in our press release of 27 August 2003, we are in discussion with a number of parties
regarding various degrees of collaboration and we continue actively to progress a number of these.
We are also continuing to explore with our financial advisors, Nomura International, a broad range of
strategic options available to the Company to maximise value for shareholders from our extensive
portfolio of biopharmaceuticals.



Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
For the 9 months ended 31 August 2003
Notes

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Research and development
Exceptional research and development
Total research and development costs
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Interest receivable

interest payable

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on loss on ordinary activities

Loss on ordinary activities after taxation
Equity minority interests

Loss for the period
Loss per share — basic and diluted

All of the results relate to continuing operations.

Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

For the 9 months to 31 August 2003
Notes

Loss for the period
Exchange adjustments offset in reserves

Total gains and losses recognised for the period
Prior year adjustment

Total gains and losses recognised for the period

Unaudited Unaudited Audited
9 months to 9 months to 12 months to
31 August 31 August 30 November
2003 2002 2002

£ £ f

23,552 126,013 155,566
(9,607) (50,132) (91,719)
13,945 75,881 63,847
(3.315,263) (2,112,648) (3,509,446)
(1,452,688) (1,64%,113) (2,009,851)
- (3,250,000) (3,250,000)
(1,452,688) (4,899,113) (5,259,851)
(4,767,951) (7,011,761) (8,769,297)
(4,754,006) (6,935,880) (8,705,450)
63,332 299,787 229,641
(286,154) (62,646) (134,839)
(4,976,828) (6,698,739) (8,610,648)
(4,976,828) (6,698,739) (8,610,648)
126,892 111,168 138,003
(4,849,936) (6,587,571) (8,472,645)
(1.7p) (2.3p) (2.9p)
Unaudited Unaudited Audited
9 months to 9 months to 12 months to
31 August 31 August 30 November
2003 2002 2002

£ £ f
(4,849,936) (6,587,571) (8,472 ,645)
(22,080) (192,554) (177,398)
(4,872,016) (6,780,125) (8,650,043)
- (983,679) (983,679)
(4,872,016) (7,763,804) (9,633,722)




Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2003

Notes Unaudited Unaudited Audited
As at As at As at
31 August 31 August 30 November
2003 2002 2002
£ f £
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets 7,812,508 4,200,097 4,121,335
Tangible fixed assets 7,390,650 6,646,835 7,085,090
Investment 2 11,607 - -
15,214,765 ' 10,846,932 11,216,425
Current assets
Stock 99,251 140,491 146,402
Debtors ~ due within one year 1,223,810 1,209,248 788,695
Cash at bank and in hand 3,104,557 7,859,487 6,583,428
4,427,618 9,209,226 7,518,525
Creditors: amounts falling due (2,712,734) (1,722,813) (2,145,890)
within one year
Net current assets 1,714,884 7,486,413 5,372,635
Total assets less current liabilities 16,929,649 18,333,345 16,589,060
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (1,311,172) (1,385,416) (1,454,041)
Debentures - convertible loan notes (7,355,968) (3,250,000) (3,319,007)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (30,907) (33,701) (42,753)
Net assets 8,231,602 13,664,228 11,773,259
Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 2,989,858 2,901,028 2,901,028
Share premium account 21,599,685 20,223,904 20,223,904
Profit and loss account (16,729,701) (9,996,768) (11,857,685)
Equity shareholders’ funds 7,859,842 13,128,164 11,267,247
Equity minority interests 371,760 536,064 506,012
Total capital employed 8,231,602 13,664,228 11,773,259




Consolidated Cashflow Statement

For the 9 months ended 31 August 2003

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Capital expenditure

Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of liquid
resources and financing

Management of liquid resources

Financing

{Decrease)/Increase in cash in the period

Note to cash flow

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net cash Outflow from

Operating Activities

Operating loss

Depreciation charge

Amortisation

Increase in stock

increase in Debtors

(Decrease)/Increase in Creditors
(Decrease)/Increase in Provisions

Non-cash exceptional research and development
expenditure

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Unaudited Unaudited Audited
9 months to 9monthsto 12 months to
31 August 31 August 30 November
2003 2002 2002

£ £ f
(4,797,464) (4,078,347) (4,545,261)
(34,549) 316,698 169,846
(661,538) (3,098,392) (4,082,257)
(5,493,551) (6,860,041) (8.457,672)
3,503,293 4,884,995 6,287,145
1,811,033 1,884,658 2,206,907
(179,225) (90,388) 36,380
Unaudited Unaudited Audited
9 months to 9monthsto 12 months to
31 August 31 August 30 November
2003 2002 2002

£ f f
(4,754,006) (6,935,880) (8,705,450)
618,466 294,226 515,689
237,287 237,287 3,566,382
47,151 (67,984) (73,895)
(451,145) {1,020,709) (374,816}
(483,371) 287,086 640,150
(11,846) (122,373) (113,321)

- 3,250,000 -
(4,797,464) (4,078,347) (4,545,261)




NOTES

1.

Basis of preparation

The 9-month figures to 31 August 2003 and 31 August 2002 are unaudited. The
comparative figures for the year ended 30 November 2002 are not statutory accounts but
are extracted from the audited statutory accounts. The statutory accounts for the year
ended 30 November 2002 has been filed with the Registrar of Companies. They received an
unqgualified audit report which did not contain a statement under $S237(2) or $237(3) of the
Companies Act 1985. The interim report should be read in conjunction with the statutory
accounts for the year ended 30 November 2002.

The Directors estimate that cash and short term investments held at the date of approval of
the financial statements within the Group are not sufficient to continue funding the trading
activities of the Group for a further twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements. Accordingly, the Directors currently plan to secure additional funds, by raising
further finance or by entering into agreements, which the Directors expect would enable the
Group to continue its activities for the foreseeable future. There is uncertainty over the
amount of funds that would be obtained and whether they would be received within the
expected timescale. However, the Directors believe that the Company will be able to obtain
such additional funds and therefore that it is appropriate that these financial statements are
prepared on the going concern basis. This basis of preparation assurnes that the Company
and its subsidiaries will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, the
validity of which depends on GeneMedix plc being able to obtain adequate funds to
continue its activities and which the Directors expect will be concluded within a short period
of the date of the announcement of the interim results. The financial statements do not
include any adjustment that would result if the Company were unsuccessful in raising
adequate additional funds.

Investment
This represents GeneMedix investment in the 25:75 Joint Venture with Antibioticos.

We were unable to pay a dividend in the period.

Further copies are available from the Group’s head office — Rosalind Franklin House,
Fordham Road, Newmarket, Suffolk, CB8 7XN.



LI )

GVIX

GeneMedix press release

Interim Results for the six months to 31 May 2003

GeneMedix plc (“GeneMedix” or “the Company”), the UK biopharmaceutical company with
operations in Europe and Asia and with joint London and Singapore Stock Exchange listings,
announces its interim results for the six months to 31 May 2003. GeneMedix is involved in the

development and manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology and
novel cell culture.

Key highlights for the period
B (Collaborative Agreement signed with Antares Pharma to utilise injection devices for the
delivery of proteins

B Formation of a joint venture with Antibioticos Group and access to three major new
products

B Cash balances at period end - £3.4 million

B Cost of operation for Group in line with expectation as cost control measures remain in
force

Post period

B Collaborative Agreement signed with Penang Development Corporation of Malaysia to
set up facility for the manufacture of human insulin. Milestone payment in excess of £2
million expected.

& £1.5 million fundraising round completed

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“The Company has created a position where we have the opportunity to develop a
range of first and second generation biopharmaceutical products with the potential to
make a major market impact in Europe and USA.

However, as we commented last May, the Directors believe that we shall be unable to
fund all our ongoing and proposed new activities from existing financial resources. We
have therefore been actively progressing a number of major commercial and corporate

initiatives which we expect will strengthen our cash position in the short and medium
term.”

27 August 2003
ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer
Bankside Consultants Tel: 020 7444 4140

Michael Padley / Susan Scott



Chief Executive Officer's Statement

In the first six months of the financial year, GeneMedix has continued to make progress with its
infrastructure and product development programmes, and has broadened its product portfolio,
although we have continued to manage our cash situation tightly. The Company is now in a
position where we have the opportunity to develop a range of first and second generation
biopharmaceutical products, with the potential to make a major market impact in Europe and
USA. However, to pursue this strategy successfully, we will need to create a more substantial
infrastructure and have the ability to fund this growth. To this end, we are in detailed discussions
with a number of potential partners with the aim of gaining access to additional funding for our
existing programmes, as well as the new opportunities to develop novel formulations or
introduce new and complementary products into our infrastructure. Whilst these discussions are
advancing we are exercising prudent cost control measures, which ensure that we are
undertaking expenditure only on current development programmes.

Corporate activities

We were pleased to announce the signing of a Letter of Intent (“Lol”) under which GMX and
Penang Development Corporation (PDC) are working together to set up a company in Penang,
Malaysia for the development, manufacture and commercialisation of human insulin. Under the
Lol, GeneMedix has out-licensed its existing insulin know-how to a newly-formed Malaysian
company and will use its expertise in the development of biopharmaceuticals and in the design,
construction and operation of state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities to construct a facility built
to international quality standards. The total anticipated investment of US$34 million is to be
funded by a mixture of development loans, grants and an issue of equity in the newly formed
company to local investors. PDC has made land available, and has assisted in gaining access to
the development loans on attractive commercial terms and to grant funding.

GeneMedix will out-license its insulin know-how to the newly-formed company in return for an
up-front milestone payment and royalty fee payable on sales of bulk product. GeneMedix will
retain a majority shareholding in the new company, which will be separately financed, and will
complete the development of the full-scale industrial process and technology transfer into the
facility at its own expense. Target completion date for the facility is mid 2005.

We expect to announce the capitalisation of the new venture over the coming weeks,
completion of which will trigger a milestone payment to GeneMedix of a minimum of £2 million.

In February we completed an Agreement with Antibioticos SPA of Milan, Italy, under which we
gained exclusive access to three new cell lines for the production of Interferon-beta, G-CSF and
human growth hormone, which currently have a worldwide market of US$ 4 billion. In March we
announced a collaboration with Antares Pharma, Inc (Nasdaq: ANTR) through which Antares’
current and future injection devices will be used to support our introduction of generic proteins
into certain territories.

We also continued to work closely with our partners, SkyePharma (LSE: SKP; Nasdaq: SKYE), in
the development programme for a slow release version of interferon-alfa.

Programmes

The Company has continued to pursue a strategy of developing both “generic” versions of
biopharmaceuticals that are due to come off patent in the EU and other territories, and “second

generation” versions of these products by developing innovative formulations of our portfolio
products with collaboration partners.

To this end, we have continued with our development programmes for EPO and rhinsulin, as well
as successfully completing our Malaysian clinical programme for GM-CSF. Alsc we have been
engaged actively in dialogue with the CPMP regarding our programme for illustrating
comparability between our version of EPO (Epostim) and the innovater product. Our approach to
the registration of our products has been to rely on a strong scientific basis for the design of our

2
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clinical strategy, and having received scientific advice from the CPMP on the regulatory pathway
for the production of £postim, we are confident that our clinical programmes are weil designed
to enable comparability with the marketed product. However, when we take into account the
demands of exhibiting consistent comparability with the marketed product, the outstanding
patent issues and the time from submission of a dossier to receipt of final approvals, we believe it
will be extremely difficult for any company to launch a generic version of EPO prior to 2006. in
line with this conclusion, we have amended our launch forecasts for Epostim to late 2006.

With regard to second generation products, we have been progressing our collaboration with
SkyePharma, for the development of an extended release formulation of interferon alfa-2b, using
SkyePharma’s Depofoam™ injectable drug technology. OQur recent collaboration with
Antibioticos gives us access to G-CSF, Interferon-beta and human growth hormone, all of which
have the potential to be successfully formulated as extended release versions. The potential to
develop these “second generation”, improved formulations is becoming an increasingly
significant opportunity for the Company and forms the basis of a number of the discussions we
are having currently with corporate partners.

It is now evident that GM-CSF has not achieved a foothold in China and therefore does not
provide an attractive market for a generic version of this protein. As such, we do not anticipate
any significant sales of this product in China. We are currently evaluating a number of options to
bring in new products and the setting up of contract manufacturing or development and, to this
end, the facility has been shut for the past four months, whilst upgrades of some major items of
plant have occurred. This process is nearing completion and we anticipate that an announcement
regarding the future direction of the plant will be made over the coming months.

Financial review

Operating losses of £2.7 million and cash burn for the period were within expectations. There
was little capital expenditure during the pericd except on the plant upgrades in China.
Administration costs were up on Quarter 1 levels due to the high amount of corporate activity
that occurred in the period. We also had a substantial amount of product manufactured for our
collaboration with SKP, which caused an increase in our development costs on the previous
quarter. These costs will not be sustained in the second half of the year.

Cash balances at the end of the period were £3.4 million but we had a mini-fundraising round
immediately post the period end, which brought in £1.5 million from a number of existing
investors in South-East Asia. Current operating cash burn is approximately £1 million a quarter.

Outlook

Our twin strategy of developing both generic and second generation products offers significant
potential for GeneMedix and it is the Board's intention to continue to follow this direction.
However, as we commented last May, the Directors believe that we shall be unable to fund all
our ongoing and proposed new activities from existing commercial activities, and are therefore
looking to attract additional cash in-flows over the coming months to address the resulting
funding shortfall.

We have received interest from a number of parties regarding various degrees of collaboration
and we are actively progressing a number of these initiatives. In the light of these current
discussions, we have instructed our financial advisors, Nomura International, to examine a broad
range of strategic options available to the Company to maximise value for shareholders from our
extensive development portfolio.
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Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
For the 6 months ended 31 May 2003

Unaudited Unaudited Audited
Notes 6 monthsto 6 monthsto 12 months to
31 May 31 May 30 November
2003 2002 2002
(restated)*
£ £ f
Turnover 22,664 94,224 155,566
Cost of sales : (9,245) (32,176) (91,719)
Gross profit 13,419 62,048 63,847
Administrative expenses (1,783,348) (1,406,610) (3,509,446)
Research and development 1 (927,194) (1,177,389) (2,009,851)
Exceptional research and development 1 - - (3,250,000)
Total research and development costs (927,194) (1,177,389) (5,259,851)
Total operating expenses (2,710,542) (2,583,999) (8,769,297)
.Operating loss (2,697,123) (2,521,951) (8,705,450)
Interest receivable 37,522 217,306 229,641
Interest payable (184,597) (13,824) (134,839)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (2,844,198) (2,318,469) (8,610,648)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities - - -
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation (2,844,198) (2,318,469) (8,610,648)
Equity minority interests 61,620 83,707 138,003
Loss for the period (2,782,578) (2,234,762) (8,472,645)
Loss per share - basic and diluted (1.0p) (0.8p) (2.9p)
All of the results relate to continuing operations.
Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
For the 6 months to 31 May 2003
Unaudited Unaudited Audited
6 months to 6 months to 12 months to
31 May 31 May 30 November
2003 2002 2002
(restated)*
£ £ £
Loss for the period (2,782,578) (2,234,762) (8,472,645)
Exchange adjustments offset in reserves (81,020) (53,512) (177,398)
Total gains and losses recognised for the period (2,863,598) (2,288,274) (8,650,043)
Prior year adjustment 1 - (983,679) (983,679)
Total gains and losses recognised for the period (2,863,598) (3,271,953} (9,633,722)
* See Note 1
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 May 2003

Notes Unaudited Unaudited Audited
As at As at As at
31 May 31 May 30 November
2003 2002 2002
(restated)*
£ f f
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets 7.813,144 4,279,526 4,121,335
Tangible fixed assets 7,564,625 6,277,186 7,095,090
Investment 2 11,607 - -
15,389,376 10,556,712 11,216,425
Current assets
Stock 195,270 120,206 146,402
Debtors — due within one year 1,069,245 604,973 788,695
Cash at bank and in hand 3,416,430 9,391,373 6,583,428
4,680,945 10,116,552 7,518,525
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (2,330,096) (1,504,476) (2,145,890)
Net current assets 2,350,849 8,612,076 5,372,635
Total assets less current liabilities 17,740,225 19,168,788 16,589,060
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (1,600,993) (838,889) (1,454,041)
Debentures — convertible loan notes (7.276,193) - (3,319,007)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (42,005) (99,280) (42,753)
Net assets 8,821,034 18,230,619 11,773,259
Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 2,901,028 2,901,028 2,901,028
Share premium account 20,223,904 20,223,904 20,223,904
Profit and loss account 1 (14,721,283) (5,495,917) (11,857,685)
Equity shareholders’ funds 8,403,649 17,629,015 11,267,247
Equity minority interests 417,385 601,604 506,012
Total capital employed 8,821,034 18,230,619 11,773,259

* See Note 1




Consolidated Cashflow Statement

For the 6 months ended 31 May 2003

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Capital expenditure

Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of liquid
resources and financing

Management of liquid resources

Financing

Increase in cash in the period

* See Note 1

Note to cash flow

Unaudited Unaudited Audited
6 monthsto 6 monthsto 12 months to
31 May 31 May 30 November
2003 2002 2002
(restated)*
£ f £
(3,261,085) (1,195,038) (4,545,261)
(29,918) 287,347 169,846
(496,818) (2,505,080) (4,082,257)
(3.787,821) (3,412,771) (8,457,672)
3,465,769 3,541,754 6,287,145
344,770 (39,040) 2,206,907
22,718 89,943 36,380

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net cash Outflow from

Operating Activities

Operating loss

Depreciation charge
Amortisation

Increase in stock

Increase in Debtors
(Decrease)/Increase in Creditors

(Decrease)/increase in Provisions

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Unaudited Unaudited Audited
6 months to 6 months to 12 months to
31 May 31 May 30 November
2003 2002 2002
(restated)*
£ £ £
(2,697,123) (2,521,951) (8,705,450)
408,157 180,822 515,689
158,191 158,191 3,566,382
(48,868) (47,699) (73,895)
(296,580) (344.,685) (374,816)
(784,115) 1,437,078 640,150
(747) (56,794) (113,321)
(3,261,085) (1,195,038) (4,545,261)




NOTES

1.

Prior period adjustment

The accounts for the six months ended 30 May 2002 reflect a prior period adjustment in
relation to the accounting for development expenditure. On commencing business, the
accounting policy of the Company was to write such expenditure off, except where the
Directors were satisfied as to the technical, commercial and financial viability of individual
projects. The application of this policy resulted in £2,161,068 of capitalised development
costs in the balance sheet of the Company at 31 May 2002, to be amortised over the
relevant period of the commercial production. This policy is consistent with the requirement
of SSAP13 'Accounting for Research and Development'.

During the year ended 30 November 2002, management reviewed the policy relating to the
accounting for development expenditure, in accordance with FRS18 ‘Accounting Policies’, to
ensure that the policy remained appropriate to the Company's circumstances. The Board
reviewed the treatment of development costs by other similar companies and decided that
expensing development costs as they are incurred was the most appropriate treatment, and
the statutory accounts for the year ended 30 November 2002 were restated to reflect this
change in accounting policy. The comparative information presented for 6 months ended 31
May 2002 is therefore restated, and the change in the accounting policy has resulted in an
increase to the net loss for that period, and a decrease in net assets, of £1,177,389.

Profit and loss account

Unaudited

6 months to

31 May 2002

£
Loss brought forward (2,223,964)
Prior year adjustment (983,679)
As at 1 December restated (3,207,643)
Retained loss for the period (2,234,762)
Exchange difference (53,512)
Loss carried forward (5,495,917)

Investment

This represents GeneMedix investment in the 25:75 Joint Venture with Antibioticos.

Basis of preparation

The 6-month figures to 31 May 2003 and 31 May 2002 are unaudited. The comparative
figures for the year ended 30 November 2002 are not statutory accounts but are extracted
from the audited statutory accounts. The statutory accounts -for the year ended 30
November 2002 has been filed with the Registrar of Companies. They received an
ungualified audit report which did not contain a statement under $237(2) or S237(3) of the
Companies Act 1985. The interim report should be read in conjunction with the statutory
accounts for the year ended 30 November 2002.

The Directors estimate that cash and short term investments held at the date of approval of
the financial statements within the Group are not sufficient to continue funding the trading
activities of the Group for a further twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements. Accordingly, the Directors currently plan to secure additional funds, by raising
further finance or by entering into commercial agreements, which the Directors expect
would enable the Group to continue its activities for the foreseeable future. There is



uncertainty over the amount of funds that would be obtained and whether they would be
received within the expected timescale. However, the Directors believe that the Company
will be able to obtain such additional funds and therefore that it is appropriate that these
financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis. This basis of preparation
assumes that the Company and its subsidiaries will continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, the validity of which depends on GeneMedix plc being able to obtain
adequate funds to continue its activities. The Company is pursuing a number of initiatives,
which the Company expects to provide the opportunity to strengthen its cash position. The
financial statements do not include any adjustment that would result if the Company were
unsuccessful in raising adequate additional funds.

We were unable to pay a dividend in the period.

Further copies are available from the Group’s head office - Rosalind Franklin House,
Fordham Road, Newmarket, Suffolk, CB8 7XN.
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GeneMedix press release

Quarter 1 Results for the three months to 28 February 2003

GeneMedix plc {"GeneMedix” or “the Company”), the UK generic biopharmaceutical company with
operations in Europe and Asia and with joint London and Singapore Stock Exchange listings,
announces its Quarter 1 Results for the three months to 28 February 2003. GeneMedix is involved in
the development and manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology and
novel cell culture.

Key highlights for the period

B Collaboration with Antibicticos Group to acquire exclusive rights to additional proteins

B Formation of a joint venture with Antibioticos Group to construct a bacterial fermentation
facility in Spain

m  Cash balances at period end - £5.3 million

B Cost of operation for Group in line with expectation

Post period

m  Collaborative Agreement signed with Antares Pharma to utilise injection devices for the
delivery of proteins

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“GeneMedix has expanded its product pipeline and future manufacturing capability
through its collaboration with Antibioticos in addition to the significant progress we
continue to make with our development programmes.”

“We have also been actively progressing a number of commercial and corporate activities,
which we anticipate will strengthen our cash position over the coming months.”

29 May 2003
ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer
College Hiil Tel: 020 7457 2020

Nicholas Nelsen
Clare Warren



Chief Executive Officer's Statement

In the first quarter of the financial year, GeneMedix continued to make significant progress with its
product development programmes and infrastructure. We were also pleased to announce in February
that, via a collaboration with Antibioticos Spa of Milan, Italy, we have gained exclusive access to
three new cell lines for the production of interferon-beta, G-CSF and human growth hormone, which
currently have a worldwide market of US$ 4 billion. This now provides us with a portfolio of nine
proteins, in addition to the access we have to new inventions from our corporate partners at the
Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry and Cell Biology (“IBCB”). The Antibioticos deal also gives us
future access to additiona! microbial manufacturing capabilities by agreeing to construct a joint
venture facility in Spain, in which we will be the minority partner. We have also continued to work
closely with our partners, SkyePharma (LSE: SKP; Nasdaq: SKYE), in the development programme for
a slow release version of interferon-alfa.

Since the end of the reporting period, we have also announced a coliaboration with Antares Pharma,
inc (Nasdag: ANTR), through which Antares’ current and future injection devices wilt be used to
support our introduction of generic proteins into certain territories.

These developments fit in with our strategy to develop a range of high value therapeutic proteins
that are comparable to products already marketed. We aim to introduce them globally with a
particutar emphasis on the potentially lucrative European territories. Our approach is to construct
cost-effective manufacturing facilities, built and run to international pharmaceutical standards,
utilising technology developed by our corporate partners, IBCB. Our strategy is also to develop
innovative formulations of our portfolio products, allowing us to build sustainable growth in the
global marketplace.

Financial review

As we anticipated in our last preliminary statement, sales for GM-CSF in China were modest, and we
reiterate our strategy of focusing on the development of western registered products to obtain
premium pricing in the developing markets. Our losses and cash burn for the quarter were within
expectations, leaving us with a cash balance of £5.3 million at the end of the period.

Outlook

As also commented last February, the Directors believe that we shall be unable to fund our ongoing
and proposed activities from existing commercial activities, and would therefore be looking to attract
additional cash in-flows over the coming months to address the resulting funding shortfall. To this
end, we have been actively progressing a number of commercial and corporate activities, which we
anticipate will strengthen our cash position over the coming months.



Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
For the 3 months ended 28 February 2003

Notes
Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Research and development 1
Exceptional research and development 1

Total research and development costs

Total operating expenses

Operating loss
Interest receivable

interest payable

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Tax on loss on ordinary activities

Loss on ordinary activities after taxation

Equity minority interests

Loss for the period

Loss per share - basic and diluted

All of the results relate to continuing operations.

Consolidated Statement of Total Recagnised Gains and Losses
Fort the 3 months to 28 February 2003

Loss for the period

Exchange adjustments offset in reserves

Total gains and losses recognised for the periods
Prior year adjustment 1

Total gains and losses recognised for the periods

* See Note 1

3 months to 3 months to 12 months to
28 February 28 February 30 November
2003 2002 2002
(restated)*
£ £ £
21,977 58,897 155,566
(9,384) (18,701) (91,719)
12,593 40,196 63,847
(689,482) (741,503) (3,509,446)
(341,794) (293,545) (2,009,851)
- - (3,250,000)
(341,794) (293,545) (5,259,851)
(1,031,276) (1,035,048) (8,769,297)
(1,018,683) (994,852) (8,705,450)
26,533 112,178 229,641
(69,376) (1,178) (134,839)
(1,061,526) (883,852) (8,610,648)
(1,061,526) (883,852) (8,610,648)
24,305 20,920 138,003
(1,037,221) (862,932) (8,472,645)
(0.4p) (0.3p) 2.9p)
3 months to 3 months to 12 months to
28 February 28 February 30 November
2003 2002 2002
(restated)*
£ f £
(1,037,221) (862,932) (8,472,645)
(17,762) 17,855 (177,398)
(1,054,983) (845,077) (8,650,043)
- (983,679) (983,679)
(1,054,983) (1,828,756) (9,633,722)




)

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 28 February 2003

fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Stock

Debtors - due within one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Debenture — 5% 2 years convertible

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share premium account

Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders’ funds

Equity minority interests

Total capital employed

* See Note 1

Notes

3 months to 3 months to 12 months to
28 February 28 February 30 November
2003 2002 2002
(restated)*

£ £ £
4,042,239 4,358,622 4,121,335
7,444,004 4,867,813 7,095,090
11,486,243 9,226,435 11,216,425
197,997 142,051 146,402
1,029,412 469,380 788,695
5,267,851 10,963,809 6,583,428
6,495,260 11,575,240 7,518,525
(2.439,308) (900,988) (2,145,890)
4,055,952 10,674,252 5,372,635
15,542,195 19,900,687 16,589,060
(1.454,558) - (1,454,041)
(3.359,075) - (3,319,007)
(40,512) (157,182) (42,753)
10,688,050 19,743,505 11,773,259
2,901,028 2,897,045 2,801,028
20,223,904 20,211,001 20,223,904
(12,912,666) (4,052,720) (11,857,685)
10,212,266 19,055,326 11,267,247
475,784 688,179 506,012
10,688,050 19,743,505 11,773,259
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Cdnsolidated Cash Flow Statement

For three months ended 28 February 2003

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Capital expenditure

Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of liquid
resources and financing

Management of liquid resources

Financing

Increase in cash in the period

* See Note 1

Notes

3 months to 3 months to 12 months to
28 February 28 February 30 November
2003 2002 2002
(restated)*
£ £ f
(1,175,103) (1,188,045) (4,545,261)
18,227 120,231 169,846
(557,120) (1,072,761) (4,082,257)
(1,713,996) (2,140,575) (8,457,672)
2,119,933 1,960,589 6,287,145
235,481 256,498 2,206,907
641,418 76,512 36,380

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Outflow from

Operating Activities

Operating loss

Depreciation charge
Amortisation

Increase in stock

Increase in Debtors
(Decrease)Increase in Creditors

(Decrease)/increase in Provisions

Net cash outflow from operating activities

* See Note 1

3 months to 3 months to
28 February 28 February
2003 2002
(restated)*
£ £
{1,018,683) (994,852)
208,207 81,086
79,096 79,096
(51,596) (69,543)
(256,585) (56,047)
(133,301) (228,893)
(2,241) 1,108

(1,175,103)

(1,188,045)

12 months to
30 November
2002

£
(8,705,450)
515,689
3,566,382
(73,895)
(374,816)
640,150
(113,321)

(4,545,261)



Notes

1.

Prior period adjustment

The accounts reflect a prior period adjustment in relation to the accounting for development
expenditure. On commencing business the accounting policy of the Company was to write
such expenditure off, except where the Directors were satisfied as to the technical,
commercial and financial viability of individual projects. The application of this policy
resulted in £1,277,224 of capitalised development costs in the balance sheet of the
Company at 28 February 2002, to be amortised over the relevant period of the commercial
production. This policy is consistent with the requirement of SSAP13 'Accounting for
Research and Development'.

During the year ended 30 November 2002, management reviewed the policy relating to the
accounting for development expenditure, in accordance with FRS18 *Accounting Policies’, to
ensure that the policy remained appropriate to the Company's circumstances. The Board
reviewed the treatment of development costs by other similar companies and decided that
expensing development costs as they are incurred was the most appropriate treatment, and
the statutory accounts for the year ended 30 November 2002 were restated to reflect this
change in accounting policy. The comparative information presented for the quarter ended
28 February 2002 is therefore restated, and the change in the accounting policy has resuited
in an increase to the net loss for that period, and a decrease in net assets, of £293,545.

Profit and loss account

3 months to

28 February 2002

£
Loss brought forward (2,223,964)
Prior year adjustment (983,679)
As at 1 December restated (3,207,643)
Retained loss for the period (862,932)
Exchange difference 17,855
Loss carried forward (4,052,720)

Basis of preparation

The 3-month figures to 28 February 2003 and 28 February 2002 are unaudited. The
comparative figures for the year ended 30 November 2002 are not statutory accounts but
are extracted from the audited statutory accounts. The statutory accounts for the year
ended 30 November 2002 have not been filed with the Registrar of Companies. They
received an unqualified audit report which did not contain a statement under $237(2) or
$237(3) of the Companies Act 1985. The quarterly report should be read in conjunction
with the statutory accounts for the year ended 30 November 2002.

Going concern

The Directors estimate that cash and short term investments held at the date of approval of
the quarterly results within the Group are not sufficient to continue funding the trading
activities of the Group for a further twelve months from the date of approval of the quarterly
results. Accordingly, the Directors currently plan to secure additional funds, by raising
further finance cr by entering into commercial agreements, which the Directors expect
would enable the Group to continue its activities for the foreseeable future. There is
uncertainty over the amount of funds which would be obtained and whether they would be
received within the expected timescale. However, the Directors believe that the Company



will be able to obtain such additional funds and therefore that it is appropriate that these
quarterly results are prepared on the going concern basis. This basis of preparation assumes
that the Company and its subsidiaries will continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, the validity of which depends on GeneMedix plc being able to obtain
adequate funds to continue its activities and which the Directors expect wilt be concluded
within a few weeks of the date of the approval of the quarterly results. The quarterly results
do not include any adjustment that would result if the Company were unsuccessful in raising
adequate additional funds.

The Directors elected not to pay a dividend in the period.

Further copies are available from the Group's head office - Rosalind Franklin House,
Fordham Road, Newmarket, Suffolk, CB8 7XN.
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GeneMedix ___press release

GENEMEDIX PLC
Preliminary Results for the year ended 30 November 2002

GeneMedix plc (“GeneMedix” or “the Company”), the UK multi-sourced biopharmaceutical
company with operations in Europe and Asia and with joint London and Singapore Stock
Exchange listings, announces its preliminary results for the year ended 30 November 2002.
GeneMedix is involved in the development and manufacture of therapeutic proteins using
recombinant DNA technology and novel cell culture.

Highlights:

> Commencement of development of “second generation” proteins:
e Collaboration with SkyePharma plc to develop extended release formulation of
interferon-alpha for Hepatitis

» Post period - Collaboration with Antibioticos Group announced today:
s Exclusive rights to Interferon-beta, G-CSF and human growth hormone
with combined market size in excess of $4 billion
» Joint venture European manufacturing facility

> First international patent filing utilising technology licensed from the Shanghai Institute
of Biochemistry and Cell Biology

» Formal opening of Irish manufacturing facility
s Production of EPQ, for the treatment of anaemia, expected this year

> Sales of first product - GM-CSF in China
» Cash balances £6.6 million at period end — operational costs in fine with expectations

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“Over the coming year, we are looking to continue to push forward aggressively the
development of our product pipeline, especially with the new collaborations with SkyePharma
and Antibioticos, and putting our manufacturing capabilities in place. We are also looking to
secure commercial partners for our products in the key western markets.

“We are looking to strengthen our cash flow streams over the coming year by obtaining up-front
payments on commercial collaborations and licensing deals.”
26 February 2003

ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer

College 'el: 020 7457 2020
Nicholas
Clare W

b
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Chairman’s Statement
Operational Summary

In the 12 months to 30 November 2002, GeneMedix continued to make significant progress with
its product development programmes and its manufacturing and distribution infrastructure. We
completed the fit-out of a mammalian cell manufacturing plant in Ireland and finalised a Joint
Development Agreement with SkyePharma to produce a slow release Interferon-alpha important
for the treatment of Hepatitis B & C.

Moreover, continued progress was achieved in our development programmes for Erythropoietin
(EPQ), Interferon-alpha and synthetic human Insulin, The Company has filed three international
patents utilising technology licensed from our partner, the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry and
Cell Biology (IBCB), and made a patent application for a fast acting Insulin analogue. We
launched our first product, GM-CSF (Granulocyte Macrophage-Colony Stimulating Factor) under
the trade name Neustim*™ into the Chinese market

These developments fit in with our strategy to develop a range of high value therapeutic proteins
that are comparable to products already marketed, and bring them to the global market, with a
particular emphasis on the lucrative European territories. Our approach is to construct cost-
effective manufacturing facilities built and run to international pharmaceutical standards, utilising
technology developed by our corporate partners, IBCB. Qur strategy is also to develop “second
generation” products using innovative formulations of our portfolio products, to allow us to
build sustainable growth in the global marketplace.

We intend to address market opportunities and threats by developing a range of these “second
generation” proteins to compete with the new formulations being launched by the innovator
companies. We have already commenced this process with the Joint Development Agreement we
have in place with SkyePharma, to develop a slow release interferon-alpha and shall continue to
broaden our product portfolio by in-licensing additional proteins. It is also our intention to
participate in the establishment of additional joint venture manufacturing plants in Asia and
Europe to produce these products. Whilst these activities were not in our original business plan,
we believe that by developing these products we will be building a Company that has the ability
to meet the long term market needs, and has the potential to provide real benefits for the
shareholders.

Although GM-CSF has never been seen as a major product for the Company since its launch into
the Chinese market, we have seen a great deal of competition from the more popular G-CSF. We
have also witnessed significant price erosion for this product and some of the other
biopharmaceuticals in both the Chinese and Indian markets, due to oversupply of locally
produced product. We believe that the most effective way of obtaining premium pricing for this
product in most of these markets is to enter with a western registered version, although we are
still exploring opportunistic revenues in certain markets.

Manufacturing

The Company has constructed a state-of-the-art mammalian fermentation facility in Ireland,
which was formally opened in June 2002. Commissioning and validation procedures are well
underway and the process development of its first mammalian cell derived product,
Erythropoietin {(EPO), is nearing completion, ready for transfer into this facility in mid 2003.

We have also gained access to a microbial fermentation plant through our recently announced
collaboration with Antibiotices (see below).

We entered into an important Manufacturing Agreement with Gland Pharmaceuticals (Gland),
one of India’s leading suppliers of speciality pharmaceutical products. Under the Manufacturing
Agreement, Gland will use its specialised manufacturing operations to provide product in
presentations such as pre-filled syringes, initially for the Asian market but then for the global
market, as product approvals are granted. Current customers of Gland include Schering Plough
(India), Aventis (India) and several large Indian Pharma companies. Preparations for Gland to

Page 2 of 10



manufacture the Company’s products are well underway. Under an additional Sales and
Distribution Agreement with Gland we added India to the Company’s commercial network,
which already covered China and the ASEAN territories.

Product development

Product development on the Company’s other biopharmaceutical products from multiple sources
has continued to be a high priority for GeneMedix. The process development of Interferon-alpha-
2b for our own comparative product and for new molecule development, has progressed steadily
and we expect to announce significant steps forward in accessing an insulin facility to supply the
shortage of human insulin in Eastern territories.

It has always been the Company's stated objective to develop innovative formulations of its
recombinant proteins to allow it to compete more successfully against “second generation”
therapeutic proteins, especially in Europe and the US. To this end, in July 2002 the Company
announced a joint collaboration with SkyePharma (LSE: SKP; Nasdaq: SKYE) for the development
of an extended release formulation of interferon alpha-2b using SkyePharma’s proven
DepoFoam™ injectable drug delivery technology.

Therapeutic proteins are usually degraded rapidly inside the body. SkyePharma’s proven
DepoFoam™ extended release injectable technology, combined with GeneMedix' recombinant
interferon alpha-2b, has the possibility to deliver therapeutic doses of the protein in a controlied
manner for a period up to 28 days from a single injection. This would represent a considerable
benefit to patients with Hepatitis C whose current treatment may require injection of interferon
alpha-2b every few days. This collaboration is very exciting for GeneMedix, as the Company has
gained access to a project that has already shown promising early results, and uses a
combination of two proven technologies.

We are also aggressively pursuing our stated aim of adding additional therapeutic proteins to our

existing portfolio, and are looking to access additional manufacturing facilities in Europe and
Asia.

Reguiatory submissions

We have been in discussions with regulatory authorities in China, India and Malaysia, and have
established the regulatory requirements for gaining product approvals in these territories.

We are continuing to work proactively with the regulatory authorities and through the European
Generics Association (EGA) to establish the regulatory approval process for ocur products within
the European Union and have been formulating a robust clinical strategy that we believe will
provide scientific evidence that our products are comparable to those already marketed. Whilst
the European regulatory authorities have not yet provided a definitive process for the approval of
“biogenerics”, we strongly believe that the dossiers that we will submit will clearly demonstrate
comparability with the innovator product,

Post period event ~ Joint collaboration with Antibioticos

We also announced today that we have gained exclusive access through a collaboration with
Antibioticos Group of Milan, Italy, to three exciting new proteins, Interferon-beta, G-CSF and
human growth hormone, and will have a minority share in a European manufacturing facility.

Interferon-beta is widely used for the treatment of the “relapsing, remitting" form of Multiple
Sclerosis. This type is characterized by alternating acute episodes and partial or complete
recovery. Interferon-beta is produced using mammalian fermentation and market leaders include
Biogen, Serono and Schering AG. GeneMedix will use its expertise in process development of
mammalian cultures to produce an industrial scale process from the cell lines acquired.

Granulocyte Colony Stimulating Factor (G-CSF) is a potent stimulator of bone marrow cells,

especially those of neutrophil lineage, and may be marketed alongside Neustim {GeneMedix
GM-CSF) product. It is widely used in chemotherapy induced neutropenia caused by cancer
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treatment. The world-wide market is currently dominated by Amgen (filgrastim) and Chugai
(lenograstim).

Recombinant Human Growth Hormone (rhGH) is for the treatment of short stature in aduits and
children. Pharmacia, Lilly, Novo Nordisk and Serono are the main players in this market. The
global market for the three new products exceeds $4 billion.

Antibioticos and GeneMedix have formed a 75% / 25% Joint Venture and will be constructing a
state-of-the-art bacterial fermentation facility in Leon in Spain at a total investment of 25m. This
will be used for the contract manufacture of GeneMedix’'s bulk Interferon-alpha,. as well as the
manufacture and supply of bulk G-CSF and rhGH. Plant design has been largely completed and
construction will commence over the coming months.

GeneMedix will satisfy its 25% contribution by making capital contributions to the Joint Venture
totalling 6.25m in a number of equal instalments in the period from mid 2003 to early 2005,
GeneMedix will also issue 4% convertible loan notes convertible into between 24 million and 32
million ordinary GeneMedix shares in late 2003 and 2004 and will make agreed royalty payments
on the sales of its newly acquired molecules.

The bulk proteins will be supplied on an exclusive basis to GeneMedix, who will be responsible
for the secondary manufacture, regulatory submissions and distribution of finished product,
which it will do in conjunction with commercial partners

Financial Review

The Group's operating loss for the 12 months ended 30th November 2002 was £8,705,450. We
now have 15 employees in Ireland, with 18 at Head Office and 34 in China. Turnover for the
period, arising from initial sales of our first product, Neustim™, totalled £155,566 in the period.

We incurred £2,009,851 (2001 £783,578) of expenditure on development and clinical
programmes for our portfolio of comparative biologics. In addition to this, in order to gain access
to SkyePharma’s Depofoam™ technology, we issued a convertible loan note for a total value of
£3,250,000, convertible into between 8.3 and 11.2 million ordinary GeneMedix shares.

Expenditure was accelerated in the second quarter of 2002 to bring our principal EPO and
Interferon-alpha programmes closer to completion so as to ensure that material will be available
for clinical trials at the earliest opportunity.

Group cash balances at the end of the period were £6,583,428. To the end of the period we
had spent £4.25m on our EPO facility out of a total planned expenditure of £4.5m. We drew
down £2m in the period under a sale and lease back arrangement with a major Irish bank, which
has allowed us a deferment of this expenditure over a five year period.

Qur accounting policy for the Development of Technology Processes has historically been to
capitalise all amounts spent and amortise them over a ten year period once the products are in
commercial production. This reflects the quality of the underlying technology, the clearly
established commercial potentiai of multi-sourced biopharmaceutical products in the global
marketplace, and the fact that the value of our plant and machinery is greatly enhanced by the
quality industrial process. However, following a review of our accounting policies, we have
decided to simplify our approach to accounting for the cost of process development and expense
them in the accounting period in which they are incurred. As a result we have decided to write
off all such costs through the Profit and Loss Account. Under this revised policy, we have
expensed a total of £5,259,851 in the current financial period, with £983,679 incurred in
previous financial years, accounted for as a prior year adjustment. This in no way reflects any
impairment in the value of the technology, and means that we may move into profitability at an
earlier stage and operate at higher margins once our products have been launched.
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Outlook

QOver the coming year, we are looking to continue to push forward aggressively the development
of our product pipeline, especially with the new collaborations with SkyePharma and Antibioticos
and putting our manufacturing capabilities in place. We are also looking to secure commercial
partners for our products in the key western markets. We are looking to strengthen our cash
flow streams over the coming year by obtaining up-front payments on such commercial licensing
deals by broadening the reach of current ones. We are also seeking to use our current excess
capacity in our China facility for contract manufacturing to generate opportunistic revenues.

In order to maintain our aggressive plan to be one of the first players in the multi-sourced
biopharmaceuticals market, your Board believes that it will be necessary to secure finance over
the next 12 months in addition to the Group's existing cash balances and bank facilities,
especially to fund these new and exciting programmes. As previously indicated, we will look to
obtain additional finance through up-front and milestone payments from commercial
agreements for our existing development portfolio. Depending on the levels and timing of such
payments, we will also consider other sources of funding, potentially including equity financing.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

For the 12 months ended 30 November 2002

Notes 2002 2001
Unaudited Audited
(restated)
f f
Turnover 155,566 -
Cost of sales (91,719) -
Gross profit 63,847 -
Administrative expenses (3,509,446) (2,388,003)
Research and development costs (2,009,851) (783,578)
Exceptional research and development (3,250,000) -
Total research and development costs (5,259,851) (783,578)
Total operating expenses (8,769,297) (3,171,581)
Operating loss
Existing operations (8,705,450) (2,658,871)
Acquisitions - {512,710)
Loss before interest and taxation (8,705,450) (3,171,581)
interest receivable 229,641 798,823
interest payable (134,839) (15,432)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 4 (8,610,648) (2,388,190)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities - -
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation
(8,610,648) (2,388,190)
Minority interests 138,003 122,631
Loss for the year (8,472,645) (2,265,559)
Loss per share - basic and diluted (2.9p) (0.8p)

All of the resulis relate to continuing operations.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the 12 months to 30 November 2002

Loss for the financial year
(Loss) / gain on foreign currency translation

Total gains and losses recognised for the year
Prior year adjustment (see note 1)

Total gains and losses recognised since last annual report and
accounts

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 November 2002
Notes

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Stock :
Debtors — due within one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Debenture — 5% 2 years convertible
Provisions for liabilities and charges

Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capita!
Share premium account

Profit and loss account 4

Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests

Total capital employed
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2002 2001
Unaudited Audited
(restated)

f f
(8.472,645) (2,265,559)
(177,398) 117,063
(8,650,043) (2,148,496)
(983,679) -

(9,633,722)

(2,148,4396)

2002 2001
Unaudited Audited
(restated)
f f
4,121,335 4,437,717
7,095,090 3,876,141
11,216,425 8,313,858
146,402 72,507
788,695 398,875
6,583,428 12,846,638
7,518,525 13,318,020
(2,145,890} (872,253)
5,372,635 12,445,767
16,589,060 20,759,625
(1,454,041) -
(3,319,007) -
(42,753) (156,074)
11,773,259 20,603,551
2,901,028 2,897,045
20,223,904 20,211,001
(11,857,685) (3,207,643)
11,267,247 19,900,403
506,012 703,148
11,773,258 20,603,551
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the 12 months to 30 November 2002

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Capital expenditure

Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of liquid resources and
financing

Management of liquid resources

Financing

Increase / (decrease) in cash in the year

Note to cash flow

2002 2001
Unaudited Audited
(restated)
f f
(4,545,261) (3,230,011)
169,846 774,331
(4,082,257) (813,451)
- {6,088,597)
(8,457,672) (9,357,728)
6,287,145 (9,276,997)
2,206,907 1,876
36,380 (18,632,849)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Operating loss

Depreciation

Goodwill amortisation

Increase in stock

Increase / (decrease) in debtors

Increase / (decrease) in creditors

Decrease in provisions (NIC payable on share options)
Non-cash exceptional research and development

Net cash outflow from operating activities
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2002 2001
Unaudited Audited
(restated)

£ f
(8,705,450) (3,171,581)
515,690 201,346
316,382 290,017
(73,895) (66,656)
(374,816) (69,578)
640,149 (224,399)
(113,321) (189,160)
3,250,000 -
(4,545,261) (3,230,011)
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NOTES

1.

The preliminary financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP”) on the basis of the accounting policies set out
in the Group's 2001 annual report, expect for the item referred to below. The preliminary
financial statements are unaudited.

Basis of preparation ~ going concern

As set out in the Chairman’s statement, the increase in the number of products in our
portfolio and the new manufacturing facilities will increase the Group's requirement for
additional funds. Accordingly, the directors plan to raise further finance, at the appropriate
time, through the out-licensing of our products and, depending on the level and timing of
such payments, through cther sources of funding, potentially including further issues of
share capital. The directors are confident that such further funds will be available to meet the
requirements of the business for the foreseeable future. The financial information in this
preliminary statement is prepared on the going concern basis.

Prior year adjustment

The financial statements reflect a prior year adjustment in relation to the accounting for
development expenditure.  Since commencing business the accounting policy of the
Company has been to write such expenditure off, except where the Directors are satisfied as
to the technical, commercial and financial viability of individual projects. The application of
this policy resulted in £983,679 of capitalised development costs in the balance sheet of the
Company at 30 November 2001. This policy was consistent with the requirements of
SSAP13 - Accounting for Research and Development.

During the current year, management reviewed the policy relating to the accounting for
development expenditure, in accordance with FRS18 — Accounting Policies, to ensure that
the policy remains appropriate to the Company's circumstances. The Board has reviewed the
treatment of development costs by other similar companies and believes that expensing
development costs as they are incurred is the most appropriate treatment.

The change in the accounting policy resulted in the Company writing off the development
expenditure incurred during the current period of £5,259,851 (2001: restated - £783,578,
2000: restated - £200,101; 2001: net assets restated - £20,603,551; 2000: net assets
restated - £22,047,023). ‘

The 12-month figures to 30 November 2002 are unaudited. The comparative figures for the
year ended 30 November 2001 are not statutory accounts but are extracted from the
audited statutory accounts. The statutory accounts for the year ended 30 November 2001
have been filed with the Registrar of Companies. They received an unqualified audit report
which did not contain a statement under $237(2) or $237(5) of the Companies Act 1985.
This preliminary report should be read in conjunction with the statutory accounts for the year
ended 30 November 2001.

3. The directors elected not to pay a dividend in the period.
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4. Profit and loss account

12 months to
30 November

2002

f

Loss brought forward (2,223,964)
Prior year adjustment (983,679) .

As at 1* December restated (3,207,643)

Loss for the year (8,472,645)

Exchange difference (177,397)

Loss carried forward {11,857,685)

5. The loss per share is based on the loss of £8,472,645 (2001 £2,265,559) and the weighted
average number of shares in the period of 289,971,820(2001 - 289,693,591).

6. Further copies are available from the Group’'s head office — Rosalind Franklin House,
Fordham Road, Newmarket, CB8 7XN
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GeneMedix _press release

GENEMEDIX PLC
Quarter 3 Results for the nine months to 31 August 2002

GeneMedix plc (“GeneMedix” or “the: Company”), the UK generic
biopharmaceutical company with operations in Europe and Asia and with joint
London and Singapore Stock Exchange listings, announces its results for the 9
months to 31 August 2002. GeneMedix is involved in the development and
manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology and
novel cell culture.

Key highlights for the period

» Collaboration with SkyePharma plc to develop extended release
formulation of interferon-alpha for hepatitis

» Formal opening of Irish manufacturing facility

> Sales of first product — GM-CSF in China - continuing to progress
» Cash balances at period end — £7.8 million

> Cost of operation for Group at £2.1m - in line with expectation

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“GeneMedix has been highly active during the period, making considerable
progress in product development, in developing its manufacturing infrastructure
and in expanding its distribution network. The prospects for the final quarter of
the year are encouraging.”

19 November 2002
'ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Julian Attfield, Chief Financial Officer
College Hill ‘ Tel: 020 7457 2020

Nicholas Nelson
Clare Warren



Chairman’s Statement

In the third quarter of the financial year, GeneMedix continued to make progress
with its product development programmes and its manufacturing and
distribution infrastructure. We also signed a very exciting collaboration

agreement for an extended release formulation of interferon-alpha with
SkyePharma.

Our strategy is to develop a range of high value therapeutic proteins, that are
comparable to products already marketed, and bring them onto the global
market with a major emphasis on the potentially fucrative European market. We
also look to take advantage of our presence in Asia to market these products in
territories such as China, India and the ASEAN countries. Our approach is to
construct cost-effective manufacturing facilities, built and run to international
pharmaceutical standards utilising technology developed by our corporate
partners, the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry and Cell Biology. Our strategy is
also to develop innovative formulations of our portfolio products to allow us to
build sustainable growth in the global marketplace. We have made significant
progress towards all of these objectives during the quarter.

Firstly, we concluded the building of a state-of-the-art mammalian cell
manufacturing facility in Tullamore, Ireland. This facility, which was formally
opened in June 2002 by Mr Brian Cowan TD, the lIrish Foreign Minister, will
produce erythropoietin to international quality standards for worldwide sales.
Commissioning and validation procedures are currently underway, and
development of the manufacturing process is nearing completion. We anticipate
that the production process will be transferred into the plant early next year,
with commercial quantities being produced by the final quarter of 2003. We are
continuing to develop our clinical and regulatory programmes to enable us to
meet our targeted launch dates in 2005.

in July 2002 we announced a joint collaboration with SkyePharma (LSE: SKP;
Nasdaq: SKYE) for the development of an extended release formulation of
interferon alpha-2b using SkyePharma’s DepoFoam™ injectable drug delivery
technology. Therapeutic proteins, such as interferon alpha, are usually degraded
rapidly inside the body, and so patients commonly require frequent injections of
the protein. SkyePharma’'s DepoFoam™ extended release, injectable technology,
combined with GeneMedix’' recombinant interferon alpha-2b, has the potential
to deliver therapeutic doses of the protein in a controlled manner from a single
injection, for periods greatly exceeding currently available treatments. This would
represent a considerable benefit to patients with hepatitis C whose current
treatment may require injection of interferon alpha-2b every few days. This
collaboration is very exciting for GeneMedix, as the Company has gained access
to a project that has already shown promising early results, and uses a
combination of our two technologies.

Sales of GM-CSF in China have continued in line with our expectations, in this

our first year in the market. As we are now involved in the annual hospital

bidding process for certain major provinces, we would anticipate being able to

extend our distribution reach during 2003, which would allow us to increase our

sales revenues. The clinical study for GM-CSF in Malaysia is progressing well, and
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we are on course for launch in other Asian territories at the end of 2003 or early
2004.

The Company has also been highly active during the period and since period-end
in @ number of significant areas. We have been in discussion with a number of
potential commercial partners for our proteins in new territories, which should
allow us to increase global sales and give us access to some early milestone
payments. We are also seeking to gain access to complementary proteins to our
existing portfolio of products and fooking to expand our global manufacturing
base.

Financial Review

The running costs of the Head Office, and the facilities in China and [reland was
£2,112,648 for the period, which is in line with expectations. The Group
operating loss for the 9 months ended 31 August 2002 was £6,935,880, largely
due to the effects of two significant items in the Profit and Loss statement,
which are highlighted below.

Our accounting policy for the Development of Technology Processes has
historically been to capitalise all amounts spent and amortise them over a 10
year period once the products are in commercial production. This reflects the
quality of the underlying technology, the clearly established commercial potential
of biogeneric products in the global marketplace, and the fact that the value of
our plant and machinery is greatly enhanced by the quality industrial process.
However, following a review of our accounting policies, we have decided to
simplify our approach to accounting for the cost of process development and
expense them in the accounting period in which they are incurred. As a resuit we
have decided to write off all such costs through the Profit and Loss Account.
Under this revised policy, we have expensed a total of £1,649,113 in the current
financial period, with £983,679 incurred in previous financial years, accounted
for as a prior year adjustment. This in no way reflects any impairment in the
value of the technology, and means that we may move into profitability at an
earlier stage and operate at higher margins once our products have been
launched.

The remaining £3,250,000 of expenses represents technology acquired by way
of an Unsecured Loan Note, which was issued to SkyePharma. This Loan Note,
which carries a 5% coupon, is convertible at any time into between
approximately 8.3 million and 11.2 million new ordinary GeneMedix shares.
GeneMedix has the option to redeem the Note for cash in certain circumstances.
We have prudently written the whole £3,250,000 off in the Profit and Loss in
the current period to reflect the early stage of the development of this project
but, importantly, it does not have any effect on group cash balances. By means
of this agreement, we have gained access to SkyePharma's DepoFoam™
technology to co-develop with our interferon-alpha. In addition to the Loan
Note, SkyePharma will receive undisclosed milestones payable against progress
through clinical development. The two companies will assume equal shares of
further development and manufacturing costs and will also share potential
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milestones received and royalties from a third party on the anticipated out-

licensing and sales of the new molecule.

Total turnover for the period, arising from initial sales in China of our first

product, Neustim™, totalled £126,013 and remains modest for the moment.

Group cash balances at the end of the period were £7,859,487. To the end of
the period we had spent £4.0m on our EPO facility and the main investment in
the fixed plant is now complete. We also paid the first major instalment on a
freeze-dryer for installation into the fill/finish plant of our partners, Gland

Pharma in India.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
For the 9 months ended 31 August 2002

9 months to

31 August

2002

Note £

Turnover
Cost of sales

126,013
(50,132)

As restated
9 months to
31 August
2001

£

As restated
12 months to
30 November

2001
f

Gross profit 75,881

Administrative expenses (2,112,648)

(1,652,009)

(2,388,003)

Research and development 1 (1,649,113) (706,691) (783,578)
Exceptional research and development 1 (3,250,000) - -

Total research and development {(4,899,113) (706,691) (783,578)
Operating loss (6,935,880) (2,358,700) (3,171,581)
Investment income 299,787 658,535 798,823

Interest payable (62,646) (32,592) (15,432)
Loss on ordinary activities before (6,698,739) (1,732,757) (2,397,190)
taxation

Tax on loss on ordinary activities - - -

Loss on ordinary activities after (6,698,739) (1,732,757) (2,397,190)
taxation »

Minority interests 111,168 80,244 122,631

Retained loss for the period (6,587,571) (1,652,513) (2,274,559)
Loss per share — basic and diluted (2.3p) (0.3p) (0.9p)

All of the results relate to continuing operations.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the 9 months to 31 August 2002

As restated

As restated

9 months to 9 months to 12 months to

31 August 31 August 30 November

2002 2001 2001

Note £ f £
Retained loss for the period (6,587,571) (1,652,513) (2,274,559)
Prior year adjustment 1 (983,679) - -
Gain (loss) on foreign currency translation (192,554) 71,297 117,063

Total gains and losses recognised since

the last annual report (7,763,804) (1,581,216) (2,157,496)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 August 2002

Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Stock

Debtors — due within one year
Debtors — due after one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more
than one year

Provisions for liabilities and charges
Debenture — 5% 2 years convertible
Net assets

Share capital and reserves

Called-up share capital

Share premium account

Profit and joss account (see note 4)

Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests

Total capital employed

As restated As restated
31 August 31 August 30 November
2002 2001 2001
£ f f
4,200,097 4,516,813 4,437,717
6,646,502 3,064,870 3,876,141
10,846,932 7,581,683 8,313,858
140,491 34,119 72,507
720,945 422,500 398,875
488,303 - -
7,859,487 13,947,607 12,846,638
9,209,226 14,404,226 13,318,020
(1,722,813) (511,504) {872,253)
7,486,413 13,892,722 12,445,767
18,333,345 21,474,405 20,759,625
{(1,385,416) - -
(33,701) (276,443) (156,074)
(3,250,000) - -
13,664,228 21,197,962 20,603,551
2,901,028 2,897,045 2,897,045
20,223,904 20,211,001 20,211,001
(9,996,768) (2,640,363) (3,207,643)
13,128,164 20,467,683 19,900,403
536,064 730,279 703,148
13,664,228 21,197,962 20,603,551
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the 9 months ended 31 August 2002

Net cash outflow from operating
activities
{see note to cash flow)

Returns on investments and servicing of

finance

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of

liquid resources and financing
Management of liquid resources
Financing

(Decrease) in cash in period

Note to cash flow

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating loss

Depreciation charge

Goodwill amortisation
(Increase)/decrease stock
(Increase)/decrease debtors
Increase/(decrease) creditors
Increase/(decrease)} provision
Non-cash exceptional research and
development expenditure

Net cash outflow from operating
activities

As restated As restated
9 months to 9 months to 12 months to
31 August 31 August 30 November
2002 2001 2001
£ f f
(4,078,347) (2,533,179) (3,230,011)
316,698 526,065 774,331
(3,098,392) (176,342) (813,451)
- (6,072,934) (6,088,597)
(6,860,041) (8,256,390) (9,357,728)
4,884,995 (10,470,810) (9,276,997)
1,884,658 1,876 1,876
(90,388) (18,725,324) (18,632,849)

As restated

As restated

9 months to 9 months to 12 months to
31 August 2002 31 August 30 November
2001 2001

£ f f
{6,935,880) (2,358,700) (3,171,581)
294,226 121,761 201,346
237,287 210,922 290,017
(67,984) © (28,376) {66,656)
(1,020,709) 81,878 (69,578)
287,086 (491,873) (224,399)
(122,373) (68,791) (189,160)
3,250,000 - -
(4,078,347) (2,533,179) (3,230,011)
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NOTES

1.

The accounts reflect a prior year adjustment in relation to the accounting for
development expenditure. Since commencing business the accounting policy of the
Company has been to write such expenditure off, except where the Directors are
satisfied as to the technical, commercial and financial viability of individual projects.
The application of this policy resulted in £983,679 of capitalised development costs
in the balance sheet of the Company at 30 November 2001. This policy was

consistent with the requirements of SSAP13 - Accounting for Research and
Development.

During the current period, management reviewed the policy relating to the
accounting for development expenditure, in accordance with FRS18 — Accounting
Policies, to ensure that the policy remains appropriate to the Company's
circumstances. The Board has reviewed the treatment of development costs by
other similar companies and believes that expensing development costs as they are
incurred is the most appropriate treatment.

The change in the accounting policy resulted in the Company writing off the
development expenditure incurred during the current period of £4,899,113 (2001:
restated - £783,578, 2000: restated - £200,101; 2001: net assets restated -
£20,603,551; 2000: net assets restated - £22,047,023).

The 9-month figures to 31 August 2002 and 31 August 2001 are unaudited. The
comparative figures for the year ended 30 November 2001 are not statutory
accounts but are extracted from the audited statutory accounts. The statutory
accounts for the year ended 30 November 2001 have been filed with the Registrar
of Companies. They received an unqualified audit report which did not contain a
statement under S237(2) or S237(5) of the Companies Act 1985. The quarterly
report should be read in conjunction with the statutory accounts for the year ended
30 November 2001.

3. The directors elected not to pay a dividend in the period.

4. Profit and loss account

12 months to
31 August 2002

f
Retained loss brought forward (2,232,964)
Prior year adjustment (983,679)
As at 1* December restated (3,216,643)
Retained loss for the period (6,587,571)
Exchange difference (192,554)
Retained loss carried forward (9,996,768)

5. The loss per share is based on the retained loss of £6,587,571 (2001 - £2,274,559)

and the weighted average number of shares in the period of 296,013,290 (2001 -
295,419,087).

Further copies are available from the Group’s head office — Waterwitch House,
Exeter Road, Newmarket, Suffolk, CB8 8RX.
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GeneMedix press release

Interim Results for the six months to 31 May 2002

GeneMedix plc (“GeneMedix” or “the Company”), the UK generic
biopharmaceutical company with operations in Europe and Asia and with joint
London and Singapore Stock Exchange listings, announces its results for the 6
months to 31 May 2002. GeneMedix is involved in the development and
manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology and
novel cell culture.

Key highlights for the period include:

> First product sales made

> Sales and distribution agreements signed for India with Gland
Pharmaceuticals

» Manufacturing agreement signed with Gland, providing access to
specialised capabilities '

> New business unit reviewing technology developed by Shanghai Institute
of Biochemistry and Cell Biology

» Costs remain in line with expectations — operating loss for the period £1.3
million
» Cash balances at period end — £9.4 million

Post Period Events

» lIrish manufacturing facility formally opened ~ commissioning and
validation under way

» SkyePharma joint collaboration agreement signed
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“In the first half of the year, we have made further significant progress in
developing our global manufacturing and distribution infrastructure.  The
process development of EPO, our first mammalian cell derived product, is
nearing completion, ready for transfer into our new Irish manufacturing facility
over the coming months. We have also continued to make important advances
in the development of our other generic biopharmaceuticals, with process
development of generic Interferon-alpha-2b largely complete and the insulin
programme also progressing well.

“Overall we have continued to develop our outlined business strategy and the
Board is pleased with the progress.”

28 August 2002
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Chairman’s statement

In the first six months of the financial year, GeneMedix has made further

significant progress in developing its global manufacturing and distribution
infrastructure.

In the period, we launched the 150ug presentation of our first product, GM-CSF
(Granulocyte Macrophage-Colony Stimulating Factor), under the trademark
Neustim™, into the Chinese market. The latter half of the year will see the
Company expanding the number of regions in China where the product is
available to patients. GM-CSF stimulates the production of white blood cells and
is used in the treatment of cancer patients.

The Company concluded the building of its state-of-the-art mammalian
fermentation facility in lreland, which it formally opened in June 2002.
Commissioning and validation procedures are well underway and the process
development of its first mammalian cell derived product, Erythropoietin (EPO), is
nearing completion, ready for transfer into this facility over the coming months.
Toxicology studies using this EPO are scheduled to commence later this year.

We have also entered into important Sales and Distribution and Manufacturing
Agreements with Gland Pharmaceuticals (Gland), one of India‘s leading suppliers
of speciality pharmaceutical products. The Sales and Distribution Agreement
adds India to the Company's commercial network, which already covered China
and the ASEAN territories. Under the Manufacturing Agreement, Gland will use
its specialised manufacturing operations to provide product in presentations such
as pre-filled syringes, initially for the Asian market but then for the global
market, as product approvals are granted. Current customers of Gland include
Schering Plough (Iindia), Aventis (India) and several large Indian Pharma

companies. Preparations for Gland to manufacture the Company’s products are
well underway.

Product development on the Company’s other generic biopharmaceuticals has
continued rapidly. The process development of generic Interferon-alpha-2b is
largely complete and product will be available to commence clinical trials in the
next financial year. The Insulin programme is also progressing well.

The business strategy is based upon the setting up of cost-efficient
manufacturing plants using the Company’s proprietary high-yielding cell lines in
fiscally attractive territories, such as ireland, Malaysia, China and India. We are
currently working proactively with various regulatory authorities and through the
European Generics Association (EGA) regarding the regulatory approval process
for our products and to promote the acceptance of biogenerics on a worldwide
basis.

Concurrently, we are also setting up a global partner network to launch and
market our products and, as mentioned above, we have launched our first
product in China and signed agreements that will allow us to roll out our
products into the ASEAN territories and India. This is preparing the way to
penetrate the larger and more lucrative European market as and when it opens
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up to generic biopharmaceuticals. To this end, the process is well underway to
find a major distribution partner for Europe and other potential territories, such
as Canada and South America.

Post period event - Joint collaboration with SkyePharma

It has always been the Company's stated objective to develop innovative
formulations of its recombinant proteins to allow it to compete more successfully
against “second generation” therapeutic proteins, especially in Europe and the
US. To this end, in July 2002 the Company announced a joint collaboration with
SkyePharma (LSE: SKP; Nasdag: SKYE) for the development of an extended
release formulation of interferon alpha-2b using SkyePharma's proven
DepoFoam™ injectable drug delivery technology. Therapeutic proteins are
usually degraded rapidly inside the body. SkyePharma’s proven DepoFoam™
extended release, injectable technology, combined with GeneMedix'
recombinant interferon alpha-2b, has the possibility to deliver therapeutic doses
of the protein in a controlled manner for a period up to 28 days from a single
injection. This would represent a considerable benefit to patients with Hepatitis
C whose current treatment may require injection of interferon alpha-2b every
few days. This collaboration is very exciting for GeneMedix, as the Company has
gained access to a project that has already shown promising early results, and
uses a combination of two proven technologies.

Financial Review

The Group’s operating loss for the 6 months ended 31" May 2002 was
£1,344,562, after taking into account a charge for the amortisation of goodwill
of £158,191 (H1 2001: £1,134,477). Costs were in line with expectations, and
we now have 13 employees in Ireland, to go with the 18 at Head Office and 34
in China. Turnover for the period, arising from initial sales of our first product,
Neustim™, totalled £94,224 in the period.

In the 6 months to 31st May 2002, we incurred £1,177,389 (H1 2001:
£416,061) of expenditure on our development and clinical programmes, which
has been capitalised in accordance with our accounting policy. Included within
this figure are up-front payments of £400,000 that were made to book future
manufacturing capacity with our development collaborators. This expenditure
was accelerated in the second quarter of 2002 to bring our principal EPO and:
interferon-alpha programmes close to completion so as to ensure that material
will be available for clinical trials early in the next financial year. As a result of
these effects, we expect that levels of expenditure on all programmes will be
significantly lower in the third quarter of the year than they were in the second
quarter.

Group cash balances at the end of the period were £9,391,373. To the end of
the period we had spent £3.3m on our EPO facility out of a total planned
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expenditure of £4.4m. We drew down £1.1m in the period under a sale and
lease back arrangement with a major Irish bank, which will allow us to defer a
total of £2m of funding over a 5 year period.

Summary

We have made consistent progress towards achieving our aims in the period and
have continued to build upon this, especially following the SkyePharma
agreement. We have also continued to look for additional recombinant proteins
that would be complementary to our existing portfolio, and additional
manufacturing facilities for our products.

In addition, we are having on-going discussions to establish marketing
agreements in other key territories with significant pharmaceutical partners,
which will help to establish a global network for the marketing and distribution
of our products.

Finally, our newly established business unit is continuing to analyse the
technology that is coming out of the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry and Cell
Biology, our research partners in China, with a view to filing international
patents, identifying products which have the potential for us to develop with
partners, or out-licensing the technology.

Overall we have continued to develop our outlined business strategy and the

Board is pleased with the progress made towards our aim of becoming an
international generic biopharmaceutical company.
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
For the 6 months ended 31 May 2002

6 months to 6 months to 12 months to
31May 2002 31 May 2001 30 November
2001
f f f
Turnover 94,224 - -
Cost of sales (32,176) - -
Gross profit 62,048 - -
Administrative expenses (1,406,610) (1,134,477) (2,388,003)
Operating loss (1,344,562) (1,134,477) (2,388,003)
Investment income 217,306 488,032 798,823
Interest payable {13,824) (33,361) (15,432)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (1,141,080) (679,806) (1,604,612)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities - - -
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation (1,141,080) (679,806) (1,604,612)
Minority interests 83,707 50,426 122,631
Retained loss for the period (1,057,373) (629,380) (1,481,981)
Loss per share - basic and diluted (0.4p) (0.2p) (0.5p)

All of the results relate to continuing operations.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the 6 months to 31 May 2002

Retained loss for the period

Gain on foreign currency translation

Total gains and losses for the recognised
period

6 months to 6 months to 12 months to
31 May 2002 31 May 2001 30 November
2001

f f f
(1,057,373) {629,380) (1,481,981)
(53,512) 128,669 117,063
(1,110,885) (500,711) (1,364,918)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 May 2002

Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Goodwiill

Tangible fixed assets -

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than
one year

Other creditors

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests

Total capital employed

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the 6 months ended 31 May 2002

Net cash outflow from operating activities
(see note to cash flow)

Returns on investments and servicing of
finance

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of
liquid resources and financing
Management of liquid resources
Financing

increase / (Decrease) in cash in period

Page 7 of 8

31 May 2002 31 May 2001 30 November
2001
£ £ £
2,272,860 729,954 1,095,471
4,246,193 4,613,909 4,404,384
6,198,727 2,863,675 3,797,682
12,717,780 8,207,538 9,297,537
120,206 24,873 72,507
604,873 498,812 398,875
9,391,373 15,279,275 12,846,638
10,116,552 15,802,960 13,318,020
(1,504,476) (1,111,909) (872,253)
8,612,076 14,691,051 12,445,767
21,329,856 22,898,589 21,743,304
(838,889) - -
(99,280) (371,076) (156,074)
20,391,687 22,527,513 21,587,230
2,901,028 2,897,045 2,897,045
20,223,904 20,211,001 20,211,001
(3,334,849) (1,359,756) (2,223,964)
19,790,083 21,748,290 20,884,082
601,604 779,223 703,148
20,391,687 22,527,513 21,587,230
31 May 2002 31 May 2001 30 November
2001
£ f £
(17,649) (864,411) (2,446,433)
287,347 148,691 774,331
(3,682,469) (488,858) (1,597,029)
- (5,720,606) {6,088,597)
(3,412,771) (6,925,184) (9,357,728)
3,541,754 (11,035,315) (9,276,997)
(39,040) 1,876 1,876
89,943 (17,958,623) (18,632,849)




RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
31 May 2002 31 May 2001 30 November
2001
f f £
Operating loss (1,344,562) (1,134,477) (2,388,003)
Depreciation charge 180,822 52,620 201,346
Goodwill Amortisation 158,191 131,826 290,017
Decrease / (Increase} in stock (47,699) (18,994) (66,656)
{Increase) / Decrease in debtors (344,685) 505,681 (69,578)
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors 1,437,078 (426,909) (224,399)
Increase / (Decrease) in provision (NIC payable on
- share options) (56,794) 25,842 (189,160)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (17,649) (864,411) (2,446,433)

NOTES

1. The 6-month figures to 31 May 2002 and 31 May 2001 are unaudited. The
comparative figures for the year ended 30 November 2001 are not statutory

accounts but are extracted from the audited statutory accounts.

The statutory

accounts for the year ended 30 November 2001 have been filed with the Registrar
of Companies. They received an unqualified audit report which did not contain a
statement under S237(2) or S237(5) of the Companies Act 1985. The quarterly
report should be read in conjunction with the statutory accounts for the year ended

30 November 2001.

2. We were unable to pay a dividend in the period.

3. Further copies are available from the Group’s head office — Waterwitch House,

Exeter Road, Newmarket, Suffolk, CB8 8RX.

Page 8 of 8



GMX

GeneMedix press release

GENEMEDIX PLC
Results for Quarter ended 28 February 2002

GeneMedix plc, (“GeneMedix” or “the Company”), the UK generic biopharmaceutical company
with operations in Europe and Asia and with joint London and Singapore Stock Exchange
listings, announces its results for the 3 months to 28 February 2002. GeneMedix is involved in
the development and manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology

and novel cell culture.

Key highlights for the period:

» Continued development of global manufacturing and distribution infrastructure
Product development on schedule

>

» First product launched in China, initial sales made

> lrish plant construction progressing, mechanical completion expected June
>

Cash balances at period end £10.96 million; all projects remain within budget

Post period event:

> Manufacturing and distribution agreements signed to cover india

Dr Kim Tan, Chairman, GeneMedix commented:

“Product development on our range of generic biopharmaceuticals has moved on apace and we
expect to have several programmes substantially completed by the year end.

“We have to date established facilities in China and have manufacturing agreements in place in
Malaysia and india, and a plant under construction in Ireland. We continue to make significant
progress in setting up a global distribution network.

“The Group remains on course to meet its objectives and the Board is confident regarding the
future prospects of the Company. We have made substantial progress in establishing ourselves
as an international generic biopharmaceutical company.”

20 May 2002
ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive
College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020

Michael Padley
Clare Warren



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In the first 3 months of the financial year, GeneMedix plc has continued to develop its global
manufacturing and distribution infrastructure. Product development on our range of generic
biopharmaceuticals has moved on apace and we intend to have our EPO, Interferon-alpha and
Insulin production processes substantially complete by the end of the financial year, and ready
for additional clinical trials and technology transfer into the manufacturing facilities.

The business strategy is based upon the setting up of low-cost manufacturing plants using our
proprietary high-yielding cell lines in fiscally attractive territories, such as ireland, Malaysia,
China and India. To date we have established facilities in China, have manufacturing
agreements in place in Malaysia and India, and have a plant under construction in Ireland.

We are currently working with various regulatory authorities and setting up a global distribution
network to market our products. We have launched our first product in China, and have in
place agreements that will allow us to roll out our products into the ASEAN territories and India.
We also anticipate being able to address the South American and Eastern European markets in
the near future. This is preparing the way to penetrate the larger and more lucrative European
market as it opens up to generic biopharmaceuticals. Our facilities will manufacture to
international standards and we will have accumulated substantial clinical data prior to
marketing into Europe.

First quarter activity

In December 2001 we launched the 150ug presentation of our first product, GM-CSF
(Granulocyte Macrophage-Colony Stimulating Factor), under the trademark Neustim, into the
Chinese markets. We anticipate obtaining approvals for the 50ug and 75pg presentations over
the next few weeks, which will allow us to expand into other territories. GM-CSF stimulates the
production of white blood cells and is used for the treatment of cancer patients.

in Tullamore, Ireland, construction work on our mammalian cell facility for the production of
EPO continues to progress well and we are on target for mechanical completion by the end of
May 2002. We shall then be in a position to commence validation of the plant with a view to
being in commercial production in 2003. We will be formally opening the facility in late June
2002.

Post period developments

Since the period end we have expanded our worldwide commercial and manufacturing
network, which already covered China and ASEAN territories, into India. We announced at the
beginning of May that we have entered into two separate agreements with Gland
Pharmaceuticals (Gland), one of India’s leading supptiers of speciality pharmaceutical products.

Gland was established in Hyderabad in 1978 to specialise in the manufacture of sterile
injectable products and in 1996 formed a partnership with the Vetter Group, of Germany, to
deliver parenteral products (non-oral delivery) to the global market. It has a leadership position
in India with heparin, low molecular weight heparin and other niche products in the
cardiovascular and orthopaedic fields.

Under the Sales and Distribution Agreement, Gland has been appointed to be the exclusive
distributor within the territory, and will market and sell GeneMedix’s products throughout india.
Initial sales are expected in 2003.
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Under the Manufacturing Agreement, Gland will also provide product in presentations such as
pre-filled syringes, initially for the Asian market, but then for the global market as product
approvals are granted. Current customers of Gland include Schering Plough (India), Aventis
(India) and several large Indian Pharma companies.

GeneMedix is continuing discussions regarding other key territories with the view to
establishing marketing agreements with significant pharmaceutical partners. These deals will
help GeneMedix in the establishment of a global network for the distribution of its product
range.

Our newly established business unit is continuing to analyse the technology that is coming out
of the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry and Cell Biology, our research partners in China, with
a view to filing international patents, further developing products with partners, or out-licensing
the technology.

Financial Review

The Group’s operating loss for the 3 months ended 28 February 2002 was £701,307, after
taking into account a charge for the amortisation of goodwill of £52,820. Included within the
loss are the first profit and loss charges for our plant in Ireland and operating costs for our
Chinese plant, which is in full commercial production.

In the 3 months to 28" February 2002, we incurred £293,545 of expenditure on our
development and clinical programmes, which has been capitalised in accordance with our
accounting policy. These programmes have been accelerated in the second quarter, and our
clinical trial in Malaysia is just starting.

We currently have a headcount of 16 full time and 2 part-time staff in the head office, 34 in
China and 8 in Ireland. All costs remain in line with expectation.

Group cash balances at the end of the period were £10,963,809. To the end of the period we
had spent £1.9m on our EPO facility out of a total planned expenditure of £4.4m. We have also
signed a sale and lease back arrangement for the lrish plant with a major Irish bank. This will
allow us to receive a total of 2.8m of funding, which is repayable over the next 5 years. The
first draw down under this facility was made in April 2002 and will cover a substantial
proportion of the remaining capital expenditure in Ireland.

The Group remains on course to meet its objectives and the Board is confident regarding the
future prospects of the Company. We have made substantial progress in establishing ourselves
as an international generic biopharmaceutical company.

Dr Kim Tan, Chairman

20 May 2002
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
For the 3 months ended 28 February 2002

3 months to 3 months to 12 months to
28 February 2002 28 February 2001 30 November
2001
f f £
Turnover 58,867 - -
Cost of sales (18,701) - -
Gross profit 40,196 - -
Administrative expenses (740,395) (440,758) (2,555,191)
National Insurance Contributions payable on
unapproved share options (1,108) (9,223) 167,188
Operating loss (701,307) (449,981) (2,388,003)
Investment income 112,178 275,194 798,823
Interest payable (1,178) (9,452) (15,432)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (590,307) (184,239) (1,604,612)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities - - 122,631
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation (590,307) (184,239) (1,481,981)
Minority interests 20,920 16,145 -
Retained loss for the period (569,387) {168,094) (1,481,981)
Loss per share - basic and diluted (0.2p) (0.06p) {0.5p)

All of the results relate to continuing operations.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the 3 months to 28 February 2002

3 months to 3 months to 12 months to

28 February 2002 28 February 2001 30 November

2001

£ f f

Retained loss for the period (569,387) (168,094) (1,481,981)

Gain on foreign currency translation 17,855 84,931 117,063

Total gains and losses for the recognised (551,532) (83,163) (1,364,918)
period
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
For the 3 months ended 28 February 2002

Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests

Total capital employed

28 February 2002 28 February 2001

30 November

2001
f f £
1,389,016 446,838 1,095,471
4,325,289 4,693,005 4,404,384
4,789,356 2,794,180 3,797,682
10,503,661 7,934,023 8,297,537
142,051 5212 72,507
469,380 354,597 398,875
10,963,809 16,133,706 12,846,638
11,575,240 16,493,515 13,318,020
{900,988) (1,110,197) (872,253)
10,674,252 15,383,318 12,445,767
21,177,913 23,317,341 21,743,304
(157,182) (354,456) (156,074)
21,020,731 22,962,885 21,587,230
2,897,045 2,896,603 2,897,045
20,211,001 20,209,567 20,211,001
(2,775.,4%4) (942,209) (2,223,964)
20,332,552 22,163,961 20,884,082
688,179 798,924 703,148
21,020,731 22,962,885 21,587,230

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the 3 months ended 28 February 2002

Net cash outflow from operating activities
(see note to cash flow)

Returns on investments and servicing of
finance

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of
liquid resources and financing
Management of liquid resources
Financing

Increase / (Decrease) in cash in period

28 February 2002 28 February 2001
f

30 November 2001

f £
(894,501) (273,753) (2,446,433)
120,231 95,535 774,331
(1,366,305) (185,355) (1,597,029)
- (4,868,132) (6,088,597)
(2,140,575) (5,231,705) (9,357,728)
1,960,589 (12,050,000) (8,276,997)
256,498 (836,820) 1,876
76,512 (18,118,525) {(18,632,849)
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Note to cash flow

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
28 February 28 February 30 November
2002 2001 2001
£ f f
Operating loss (701,307) (449,981) (2,388,003)
Depreciation charge 81,086 19,402 201,346
Goodwill Amortisation 79,096 52,730 290,017
Decrease / (Increase) in stock (69,543) 564 (66,656)
(Increase) / Decrease in debtors (56,047) 111,006 (69,578)
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors (228,893) (16,697) (224,399)
Increase / (Decrease) in provision (NIC payable on '
share options) 1,108 9,223 (189,160)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (894,501) (273,753) (2,446,433)
NOTES

1. The quarterly figures to 28 February 2002 and 28 February 2001 are unaudited. The
comparative figures for the year ended 30 November 2001 are not statutory accounts but
are extracted from the audited statutory accounts. The statutory accounts for the year
ended 30 November 2001 have been filed with the Registrar of Companies. They received
an unqualified audit report which did not contain a statement under S237(2) or 5237(5) of
the Companies Act 1985. The quarterly report should be read in conjunction with the

statutory accounts for the year ended 30 November 2001.

2. We were unable to pay a dividend in the period.

3. Further copies are available from the Group's head office —~ Waterwitch House, Exeter Road,

Newmarket, Suffolk, CB8 8RX.
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GeneMedix press release

GeneMedix plc
Preliminary Results Announcement

A Year of Significant Progress — First Product Sales

GeneMedix plc, the UK biopharmaceutical company with joint London/Singapore Stock
Exchange listings, announces results for the year to 30 November 2001. GeneMedix is

involved in the development of primarily generic biopharmaceuticals through the manufacture
of therapeutic proteins using proprietary technologies.

Key highlights for the period include:

» Distribution agreements signed for China and Malaysia & ASEAN territories

e Manufacturing agreement signed with Hovid SDN BhD, one of Maiaysnas leading
pharmaceutical companies

s Five year agreement to access Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry and Celi Biology
technology

* New business function established to focus on the exploitation of licensed products
o [rish facility on schedule - commercial production 2003

e Al costs remain in line with expectations - Loss for the period £1.48 million

e (Cash Balances at Year End - £12.85 million

Key senior appointments completed

Post Period Events

e First product GM-CSF launched into the Chinese market - initial revenues Q1 2002
e Malaysian comparability trials approved

Dr Kim Tan, Chairman commented:

“We have made great strides towards our aim of becoming a global pharmaceutical products
company. Qur Head Office team of senior executives is now in place and all costs remain in
line with expectations. The business strategy is based upon establishing low-cost, high-quality
manufacturing facilities in lreland, Malaysia and China. Sales have commenced in China and
products will shortly be launched in the ASEAN territories and India. Following this we
anticipate entering the European markets.”

18 February 2002
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Chairman’s Statement

GeneMedix plc (‘GeneMedix' or 'the Company’) has made considerable commercial
progress in the development of its range of generic biopharmaceuticals, significantly
expanded the manufacturing base and, as a result, made great strides towards its aim of
becoming a global pharmaceutical products company.

The business strategy is based upon establishing low-cost, high-quality manufacturing
facilities in fiscally attractive territories such as Ireland, Malaysia and China with the key
goal of penetrating the lucrative European market when patent protection expires on
our product range, around 2004 and 2005. In the shorter term, we aim to launch our
products in China, the ASEAN territories, India and other regions where there is a clear
regulatory route to market. We are currently working with various regulatory
authorities and setting up distribution networks to achieve this goal. We are on target
to achieve both our short and long term objectives.

With our existing programmes, all is proceeding according to plan, but we continue to
explore any opportunities to expand our product range of biopharmaceuticals or to
accelerate our entry into international markets.

Operating Activities

We commenced the financial year with the first day of trading on the Singapore stock
Exchange (London trading had commenced a day earlier). Shortly afterwards we
received formal approval from the Shanghai Foreign Economics and Trade Committee to
acquire a 75% holding in a Chinese pharmaceutical company, now renamed as the
Shanghai GeneMedix Biotechnology Company Limited. We brought in a new
management team, up-graded a number of quality systems and, by June, had received
approval to manufacture Neustim™ (GM-CSF).

In May we signed a 20-year lease to take over and commence the fit-out of 21,000 sq ft
of manufacturing space in Tullamore, Ireland and in Jjuly we began installation of a
mammalian cell facility to manufacture erythropoietin. The fit-out of the facility is
progressing well and towards the end of the year we appointed the key operational
personnel, including the General Manager and the Head of Quality. We expect
mechanical completion of the facility by the second quarter 2002 with commercial
production commencing in 2003,

The fourth quarter saw us complete two distribution deals, a manufacturing agreement
and a five-year deal to access new technology from the Shanghai Institute of
Biochemistry and Cell Biology (IBCB).

We also completed a marketing and distribution deal in China and expanded our
distributor network into Beijing and Guangzhou.

In addition, we announced two separate agreements with Hovid SDN BhD (“Hovid"),
one of Malaysia’s leading pharmaceutical manufacturers. Hovid has a portfolio of over
100 ethical products and exports to over 30 countries worldwide. We see our close
collaboration with Hovid as giving us an opportunity to gain access to some potentially
very exciting markets.

Under a sales and distribution agreement, Hovid was appointed exclusively to distribute,
market and sell GeneMedix's products within Malaysia and other countries that make
up the Association of South East Asian Nations (ASEAN). 1t is anticipated the first sales
in the region will be in mid 2003.
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Under the manufacturing agreement, Hovid will perform vialling and packaging

operations for the Company’s first three products GM-CSF, EPO and interferon alpha,
ultimately for the global market.

In late September, we signed a five-year agreement with the Shanghai Institute of
Biochemistry and Cell Biology (IBCB), a leading institute of The Chinese Academy of
Sciences. In return for a royalty stream, we have been granted the right of first refusal
to the worldwide commercialisation rights (excluding China) of novel intellectual
property and technology know-how, generated by the IBCB. We have long been
impressed with the quality of the science in IBCB, and are excited about the potential
that this deal gives us, especially in terms of a new non-generic product stream. In
order to maximise the commercial potential of this deal, we have established a new
business unit to focus specifically on the exploitation of the licensed products.

Post period deveiopments

We were delighted to announce the launch in December 2001 of our first product, GM-
CSF, into the Chinese market under the GeneMedix brand name Neustim™. We will
expand our distribution network to other key regions of China and anticipate receiving
approvals for additional presentations of Neustim™ in the near future.

As previously stated, the build out of our Irish mammalian facility is on target and we
would anticipate being in commercial production in 2003.

We have also been very pro-active in working with the regulatory bodies in Europe to
establish the regulatory pathway for generic biologics in this region. Paul Edwards, our
Chief Executive Officer, has been elected to the board of the European Generics
Association (EGA) and John Greenwood, our Director of Regulatory Affairs, holds the
chairmanship of the biotechnology working group of the EGA. In addition, GeneMedix
is actively lobbying both EMEA and CPMP to establish the regulatory pathway and data
requirement necessary to register our products in Europe.

The Company has recently received Ethics committee approval in Malaysia to commence
comparability trials using Neustim™. The trials will commence in March 2002.

Management Appointments

We have continued with our policy of recruiting high quality, experienced senior
managers from the pharmaceutical industry. Appointments this year have included the
following people:

Dr Martin Comberbach, Director of Global Manufacturing :
Martin joined us from the UK biotechnology company Metris, after having spent 11
years with SmithKlineBeecham, most recently as Director of Manufacturing.

Paul Jennings, Director of Quality

Paul joined us from Aventis Pharma, where he had spent the past 19 years, most
recently as Director of Quality EMEA Region. Paul has considerable international
experience having worked in Africa, Asia and the Indian sub-continent as well as
spending time in France and Ireland.
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We have also appointed General Managers in Ireland and China, the Director of Sales
and Marketing in China and the Head of Quality (Ireland). With the recruitment of
these people we also acquired additional experience from a number of blue-chip
organisations including Johnson and Johnson, Wyeth, Genzyme and the Irish Medicines
Board.

Financial Review

The Group's retained loss for the year ended 30 November 2001 was £1,481,981, after
taking into account a charge for the amortisation of goodwill of £290,017, and a
reduction in provision on the National Insurance payable on the Company’s unapproved
share option scheme of £167,188. Group operating losses, excluding goodwill, were
£2,097,986 for the year, which included running costs of our Head Office, eleven
months of operating expenses from our subsidiary in China and some expenditure of a
non-capital nature in Ireland and Malaysia. All costs remain in line with expectations
and our Head Office team of senior executives is now in place. We currently have a

headcount of 16 full time and 2 part-timers in the Head Office, 38 in China and 6 in
freland.

We incurred £783,578 of expenditure on our development and clinical programmes
during the year, which we capitalised in accordance with our accounting policy.

During the year we received interest income on cash balances of £789,763. We were
delighted to be able to announce our first revenues in China shortly after the year end.

We invested heavily in the EPO facility in Ireland around the year end, and anticipate
that the total capital investment for the project, which will be mechanically complete
within 5 months, will be in the region of £4.4 million, which is in line with our original
estimates. This project has been operating within budgeted levels since its inception
and the capital cost will be offset by approximately £2 million of lease finance arranged
with a leading bank in lreland. Group cash balances at the end of November were
£12,846,638.

Summary

We have made significant progress in the year. We are successfully developing a range
of primarily generic biopharmaceuticals through the manufacture of therapeutic
proteins using proprietary technologies that we expect to be supplemented by non-
generic products following our agreement with the IBCB.

We now have our Head Office team in place, all projects remain within budget, we have
completed various distribution and manufacturing agreements and we have successfully
launched our first product into the Chinese market.

We look forward to making further progress in the current financial year towards
achieving our aim of being a global pharmaceutical products company.
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Consolidated profit & loss account

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

National insurance contributions payable on
unapproved share options

Operating loss

Investment income

Interest payable

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on loss on ordinary activities

Loss on ordinary activities after taxation
Minority interests

Retained loss for the period

Loss per share - basic and diluted

Notes 12 months to
30 November

12 months to
30 November

2001 2000

£ £
(2,555,191) (588,042)
167,188 (345,234)
(2,388,003} (933,276)
798,823 87,648
(15,432) -
(1,604,612) (845,628)
(1,604,612) (845,628)
122,631 -
{1,481,981) (845,628)
4 (0.5p) (0.3p)

All of the results relate to continuing operations.

Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses

12 months to
30 November

12 months to
30 November

2001 2000

£ £

Retained loss for the period (1,481,981) (845,628)
Gain on foreign currency translation 117,063 -
Total gains and losses for the recognised period (1,364,918) (845,628)
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Consolidated balance sheet

Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than
one year

Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share premium account

Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders’ funds
Minority equity interests

Total capital employed

30 November

30 November

2001 2000
£ £
1,095,471 311,893
4,404,384 -
3,797,682 83,418
9,297,537 395,311
72,507 -
398,875 482,894
12,846,638 22,201,546
13,318,020 22,684,440
(872,253) (487,393)
12,445,767 22,197,047
21,743,304 22,592,358
(156,074) (345,234)
21,587,230 22.247.124
2,897,045 2,896,603 -

20,211,001 20,209,567
(2,223,964) (859,046)
20,884,082 22,247,124
703,148 -
21,587,230 22,247,124
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Notes

Net cash outflow from operating activities 1
Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of
liquid resources and financing

Management of liquid resources
Financing

(Decrease)/increase in cash in period

Notes to cash flow:

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
outflow from operating activities
Operating loss

Depreciation charge

Goodwill amortisation

Increase in stock

Decrease / (increase) in debtors

(Decrease) / increase in creditors

(Decrease) / increase in provision (NIC payable
on share options)

Net cash outflow from operating activities
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12 months to 12 months to
30 November 30 November
2001 2000
£ £
(2,446,433) (1,006,492)
774,311 83,526
(1,597,029) (340,413)
(6,088,597) -
(9,357,748) (1,263,379)
(9,276,997) (3,350,000)
1,896 22,972,837
(18,632,849) 18,359,458

12 months to
30 November
2001

£

(2,388,003)
201,346
280,017

(66,656)
815
(294,792)

(189,160)

" 12 months to

30 November
2000
£

(933,276)
12,445

(478,772)
47,877

345,234

(2,446,433)

(1,006,492)
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Notes

1.

3.

4.

This statement, which was approved by the board on 5 February 2002,
includes the results of the Company and its subsidiary, Shanghai GeneMedix
Biotechnology Company Ltd, and has been prepared using the same

accounting policies as the statutory accounts for the year ended 30
November 2001.

. The preliminary figures for year ended 30 November 2001 are unaudited. The

comparative figures for the year ended 30 November 2000 are not statutory
accounts but are extracted from the audited statutory accounts. The
statutory accounts for the year ended 30 November 2000 have been filed
with the Registrar of Companies. They received an unqualified audit report
which did not contain a statement under $235, S237(2) or S237(5) of the
Companies Act 1985. This preliminary report should be read in conjunction
with the statutory accounts for the year ended 30 November 2001.

We were unable to pay a dividend in the period.
The basic earnings per share is calculated on the Group retained loss of

£1,481,981 and on a weighted average of 289,704,502 ordinary shares. There

is no dilutive effect in respect of share options issued under the Employee
Share Option scheme

Copies of this statement are available on the company website
www.genemedix.com
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GeneMedix __press release

GeneMedix plc

Quarter 3 Results
First product to be launched 2001

GeneMedix plc, the UK biopharmaceutical company with joint London/Singapore Stock
Exchange listings, announces results for the 9 months to 31 August 2001. GeneMedix
is involved in the development of primarily generic biopharmaceuticals through the
manufacture of therapeutic proteins using proprietary technologies.

Key highlights for the period include:

Product approval received for GM-CSF in China - initial sales expected 2001

Manufacturing plant in China in commercial production; design and
construction of Irish and Malaysian plants underway

All  development programmes progressing well; range of generic
pharmaceuticals established

Operating loss (excluding goodwill) of £1,441,087 for the period, in line with
expectations

Strong balance sheet, cash reserves £13,947,607

Post period events

Distribution agreement signed with Hovid to market and sell GM-CSF in the
Association of South East Asian Nations (ASEAN)

Distribution agreement signed with Shanghai Shenglongda Ltd to market GM-
CSFin China

Five year deal signed with the Institute of Biochemistry and Cell Biology, in
Shanghai, gives rights to commercialise novel IP and know-how

Dr Kim Tan, Chairman, commented:

“We continue to make considerable progress on the development, manufacture and
commercialisation of our growing product portfolio. All budgeted expenditure is fully
funded and we look forward to receiving our first revenues from sales in China over the
next few months.”

19 November 2001

ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive

College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020
Michael Padley

Clare Warren
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Chairman’s statement

In the first 9 months of the financial year, GeneMedix plc (“GeneMedix” or “the Company”) has
made considerable progress. We have continued to develop our range of generic
biopharmaceuticals, significantly expanded the manufacturing base, and as a result have made
great strides towards our aim of becoming a global pharmaceutical products company.

The business strategy is based upon the setting up of low-cost manufacturing plants using our
proprietary high-yielding cell lines in fiscally attractive territories, such as Ireland, Malaysia and
China. We are currently working with various regulatory authorities and setting up a distribution
network to faunch our products, firstly in China, followed by the ASEAN territories, India, South
America and Eastern Europe. This is preparing the way to penetrate the larger and lucrative
European market as and when it opens up to generic biopharmaceuticals.

Third quarter activity

In July 2001, we received marketing approval in China for our first product, GM-CSF
(Granulocyte Macrophage-Colony Stimulating Factor), and we have now commenced commercial
production of GM-CSF in our Shanghai facility. GM-CSF stimulates the production of white
blood cells and is used for the treatment of cancer patients. During the third quarter, we
continued to upgrade procedures and equipment at this facility as part of an on-going
pregramme to achieve international GMP standards there.

QOur development programmes for EPO (erythropoietin, Interferon alpha (Interferon-alpha-2b),
and Insulin continued to achieve good results during the period, with additional clinical studies
being commissioned next year on GM-CSF, EPO and Interferon alpha. As previously announced,
we have already completed bioequivalence studies for EPO and Interferon alpha.

In Tullamore, Ireland, construction work on our mammalian cell facility for the production of EPO
continued to progress well and we expect to be in commercial production in early 2003,

Post period developments

Since the period end we have signed two distribution deals and completed a five-year deal to
access new technology from the Institute of Biochemistry and Cell Biology in Shanghai.

We have completed a marketing and distribution deal with Shanghai Shengiongda Ltd (SLD), and
are making final preparations to launch our first product, GM-CSF, into the Chinese market
under the GeneMedix brand name Neustim. We anticipate that initial sales will be made by the
end of 2001.

We have also announced two separate agreements with Hovid SDN BhD (“Hovid"), one of
Malaysia's leading pharmaceutical manufacturers. Hovid has a portfolio of over 100 ethical
products and exports to over 30 countries worldwide.

Under a sales and distribution agreement, Hovid has been appointed exclusively to distribute,
market and sell GeneMedix's products within Malaysia and other countries that make up the
Association of South East Asian Nations (ASEAN). Hovid, working closely with GeneMedix, has
commenced the design of a purpose built, state-of-the-art manufacturing facility, and will
commence construction shortly. It is anticipated the first sales in the region from the plant will
be in early 2003.

Under the manufacturing agreement, Hovid will perform vialling and packaging operations for
the Company's first three products, GM-CSF, EPO and Interferon alpha, ultimately for the global
market.

There are also continuing discussions taking place in a number of key territories to establish

marketing agreements with significant pharmaceutical partners. The conclusion of these deals
will help GeneMedix to establish a global network for the distribution of its products.
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In late September, we signed a five-year agreement with the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry
and Cell Biology (IBCB), a leading institute of The Chinese Academy of Sciences. In return for a
royalty stream, we have been granted the first right of refusal to the worldwide
commercialisation rights (excluding China) of novel intellectual property and technology know-
how, generated by the IBCB. We have long been impressed with the quality of the science in
IBCB, and are excited about the potential that this deal gives us, especially in terms of a new
non-generic product stream. In order to maximise the commercial potential of this deal, we are
establishing a new business unit to focus specifically on the exploitation of the licensed products.

Adviser and management appointments

Due to the international focus that the Company is developing, it was felt by the board of
directors that we needed to have a combined corporate adviser and broker that complemented
this focus. It was for this reason that we entered into an engagement with Nomura International
plc in early November. | would like to express, on behalf of the Board, our thanks for the help
given to us by our former corporate adviser, insinger English Trust, and our former brokers,
Collins Stewart, during the early phase of the Company’s development.

There has been a continuing strengthening of the head office team, with the appointment of
Martin Comberbach as Director of Global Manufacturing. Martin has a PhD in biochemical
engineering and has 17 years’ international experience in large and small biotechnology
companies. He was formerly Director of Manufacturing with Metris Therapeutics, where he was
also responsible for re-focusing the company and raising additional funds from both UK and
European investors, Prior to this he worked in Belgium with SmithKline Beecham Biologicals,
developing manufacturing for paediatric and adult vaccines.

We are also pleased to announce the recruitment of Conor O'Dea as General Manager for our
operations in Tullamore. Conor joined us from Q-One Biotech in Glasgow, where he was most
recently Director of Manufacturing. He is a biochemist, with a masters degree in biotechnology,
and has worked for the last eleven years in biotechnology companies in the USA, Ireland and
Scotland, gaining valuable experience in biotechnology development, manufacturing and
technology transfer,

Financial Review

The Group’s retained loss for the 9 months ended 31 August 2001 was £945,822, after taking
into account a charge for the amortisation of goodwill of £210,922, and a reduction in provision
on the National Insurance payable on the Company’s unapproved share option scheme of
£68,791. Operating losses, excluding goodwill, were £1,441,087 for the 9 month period, which
included running costs of our head office, eight months of operating expenses from our
subsidiary in China and a small amount of non-capital expenditure in Ireland and Malaysia. All
costs remain in line with expectations and our head office team of senior executives is now in
place. We currently have a headcount of 16 full time and 2 part-time staff in the head office and
34 in China.

In the 9 months to 31 August 2001, we incurred £740,024 of expenditure on our development
and clinical programmes, which has been capitalised in accordance with our accounting policy.

We received interest income on cash balances of £658,535 in the 9 months to 31 August 2001
and are looking forward to our first revenues out of China over the next few months.

We are investing heavily now in the EPO facility in Ireland, and anticipate that the total capital

investment cver the next 9 months will be in the region of £4.4 million. Group cash balances at
the end of the period were £13,947,607.
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Consolidated profit & loss account

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

National insurance contributions payable
on unapproved share options
Operating loss

Investment income

Interest payable

Loss on ordinary activities before
Tax on loss on ordinary activities
Loss on ordinary activities after
Minority interests

Retained loss for the period
Loss per share - basic
Loss per share - diluted

All of the results relate to continuing operations.

Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses

Retained loss for the period
Gain on foreign currency translation

Total gains and losses for the recognised

Notes 9 months to 9 months 12 months
31 August 31 August 30

2001 2000 2000

£ £ £

(1,720,800) (396,050) (588,042)

68,791 (504,298) (345,234)

(1,652,009) (900,348) (933,276)

658,535 36,292 87,648

(32,592) - -

(1,026,066) (864,056) (845,628)
(1,026,066) (864,056) (845,628)

80,244 - -

{945,822) (864,056) (845,628)

4 (0.3p) (0.3p) (0.3p)
4 (0.3p) (0.3p) (0.3p)
9 monthsto 9 monthsto 12 months to

31 August 31 August 30 November

2001 2000 2000

£ £ £

(945,822) (864,056) (845,628)

71,297 - -
(874,525) (864,056) (845,628)
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Consolidated balance sheet

Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill

Tangible fixed assets
Investment

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share premium account

Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders’ funds
Minority equity interests

Total capital employed

30
31 August 31 August November
2001 2000 2000
£ £ £
1,018,584 33,333 311,893
4,483,480 - -
2,986,411 61,780 83,418
221 300,000 -
8,488,696 395,113 395,311
34,119 - -
422,279 88,676 482,894
13,947,607 3,872,468 22,201,546
14,404,005 3,961,144 22,684,440
(511,504) (108,525) (487,393)
13,892,501 3,852,619 22,197,047
22,381,197 4,247,732 22,592,358
(276,443) (504,298) (345,234)
22,104,754 3,743,434 22,247,124
2,897,045 891,460 2,896,603
20,211,001 3,729,448 20,209,567
(1,733,571) (877,474) (859,046)
21,374,475 3,743,434 22,247,124
730,279 - -
22,104,754 3,743,434 22,247,124
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Note

Net cash outflow from operating 1
Returns on investments and servicing of
finance

Capital expenditure and financial

Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of
liquid resources and financing
Management of liquid resources
Financing

(Decrease)/increase in cash in period

Notes to cashflow:

Reconciliation of operating loss to net
cash outflow from operating activities
Operating loss

Depreciation charge

Goodwill amortisation

Decrease in stock

Decrease/(increase) in debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors

Increase/ (decrease) in provision (NIC
payable on share options)

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Page 6 of 7

9 months 9 months 12 months
31 August 31 August 30
2001 2000 2000

£ £ £
(1,826,488) (779,698) (1,006,492)
526,065 36,292 83,526
(883,033) (363,789) (340,413)
(6,072,934) - -
(8,256,390) (1,107,195) (1,263,379)
(10,470,817 (3,859,583) (3,350,000)
1,876 4,487,575 22,972,837
(18,725,32 (479,203) 18,359,458
9 months 9 months 12 months
31 August 31 August 30
2001 2000 2000

£ £ £
(1,652,009) (900,348) (933,276)
121,761 2,009 12,445
210,922 - -
(28,376) - -
81,878 (88,676) (478,772)
(491,873) (296,981) 47,877
(68,791) 504,298 345,234
(1,826,488) (779,698) (1,006,492)




Notes

1.

This statement includes the results of the Company and its subsidiary,
Shanghai GeneMedix Biotechnology Company Ltd, and has been prepared
using the same accounting policies as the statutory accounts for the year
ended 30 November 2000.

The interim figures to 31 August 2001 are unaudited. The comparative
figures for the year ended 30 November 2000 are not statutory accounts but
are extracted from the audited statutory accounts. The statutory accounts
for the year ended 30 November 2000 have been filed with the Registrar of
Companies. They received an unqualified audit report which did not contain
a statement under S237(2) or $237(5) of the Companies Act 1985. The
interim report should be read in conjunction with the statutory accounts for
the year ended 30 November 2000.

We were unable to pay a dividend in the period.
The basic earnings per share is calculated on the Group retained loss of

£945,822 and on a weighted average of 289,704,502 ordinary shares. There

is no dilutive effect in respect of share options issued under the Employee
Share Option scheme

Copies of this statement are available on the company website
www.genemedix.com
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GeneMedix press release

GeneMedix plc
Interim Results for the six months to 31 May 2001

GeneMedix plc, the UK biopharmaceutical company with operations in Asia and
with joint London/Singapore Stock Exchange listings, announces results for the 6
months to 31 May 2001. GeneMedix is involved in the development and
manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology.

Key highlights for the period include:

o Commercial production of GM-CSF commenced in China

e Construction commenced on new complementary plant in Ireland

¢ Malaysian subsidiary established

» Management and marketing teams further strengthened

e Operating loss of £1,134,477 for the period, in line with expectations
» Strong balance sheet, cash reserves £15,279,275

Dr Kim Tan, Chairman commented:

“In the first six months of the financial year, GeneMedix plc has made steady
progress in developing its portfolio of generic biopharmaceutical products. The
Company has established a manufacturing base in China, commenced
construction of a second facility in Ireland, and started commercial production in
China of its initial product. We are on target to become a global pharmaceutical
products company.”

21 August 2001
ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive

College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020
Michael Padley
Clare Warren



Chairman’s statement

In the first six months of the financial year, GeneMedix plc has made steady progress in
developing its portfolio of generic biopharmaceutical products. The Company has
established a manufacturing base in China, commenced construction of a second facility
in Ireland, and started commercial production in China of its initial product. We are on
target to become a global pharmaceutical products company.

We have commenced commercial production, at our Chinese facility, of GM-CSF, used
in the treatment of patients with a low white blood cell count, and are in the process of
upgrading procedures and equipment with the goal of achieving international GMP
standards early next year. We have received product approval for the 150ug
presentation, and the supplementary requlatory approval for the other presentations
and the price approval process are expected to be completed within the next few
months.  The pre-launch activities have been gathering momentum, with the
appointment of a Director of Sales and Marketing in China and the establishment of a
marketing team with significant experience within western pharmaceutical companies in
China. In addition, advanced discussions are taking place with our Chinese distributors
regarding the marketing of the product.

We have completed bioequivalence trials for EPO and Interferon-alpha-2b, and the
development programmes for EPO, Interferon-alpha-2b and Insulin, as well as for EGF in
China, are all well advanced.

In May the Company announced approval from the Investment and Development
Agency (IDA) Ireland to set up a facility at Tullamore, County Offaly, for the
manufacture of EPO. The conceptual design study is complete, contractors have been
appointed and construction started. It is anticipated that commercial production will
have commenced within 18 months. This plant will be complementary to the Chinese
facility, both of which will manufacture to GMP standards.

A subsidiary to GeneMedix, named GeneMedix Biotech Malaysia Sdn Bhd has been set
up in Malaysia and we have submitted preliminary filing for our products there. This is
the first stage in our penetration into ASEAN territories and there are also continuing
discussions taking place to establish marketing agreements with significant local
partners in a number of other territories.

We have also continued to strengthen the Head Office team, with the appointment of
Paul Jennings as Quality Director. Paul has had nineteen years of international quality
management with Aventis Pharma International (formerly RPR and May & Baker).

Finance Review

The Group retained loss for the 6 months ended 31 May 2001 of £629,380, after a
charge for the amortisation of goodwill of £131,826, was in line with expectations.
Operating losses were £1,134,477 for the period, which included the running costs of
our Head Office and five months of operating expenses from our subsidiary in China.
All costs are in line with forecasts. So far this year we have received interest income on
cash balances of £488,032.

We have now completed the acquisition of our manufacturing facility in China for cash.
£670,000 of deferred consideration was not paid until the beginning of June. The
forecast total capital investment in Ireland over the next 12 months will be £4.4 million,
which we shall meet from existing resources.



Group cash balances at the end of the period were £15,279,275. During the first six
months we capitalised £325,709 of development expenditure, in keeping with our
accounting policy.

Summary

The Board is pleased with the steady progress made to date.

The plant in Ireland will offer a complementary range of products and is an essential
element in our drive to become a global pharmaceutical player. We look forward to

continuing the implementation of our strategy and ongoing development of our
product range.



Consolidated profit and loss account
For the six months ended 31% May 2001

6 months to 6 months to 12 months to
31 May 2001 31 May 2000 30 November 2000
£ £ £
Turnover i i i
Cost of sales - - -
Gross profit - - -
Administrative expenses (1,108,635) (173,063) (588,042)
National insurance contributions payable on
unapproved share options (25,842) (199,649) {345,234)
Operating loss (1,134,477 (372,712) (933,276)
Investment income 488,032 21,450 87,648
Interest payable (33,361) - -
Loss on ordinary activities before (679,806) (351,262) (845,628)
taxation
Tax on loss on ordinary activities - - -
Loss on ordinary activities after (679,806) (351,262) (845,628)
taxation
Minority interests 50,426 - -
Retained loss for the period {629,380) (351,262) (845,628)
Loss per share - basic ©.2p) ©.7p) (0.3p)
(0.2p) {0.1p) (0.3p)

Loss per share - diluted

All of the results relate to continuing operations.



Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses

For the six months to 31* May 2001

6 months to 6 months to 12 months to

31 May 2001 31 May 2000 30 November 2000

f f £

Retained loss for the period {629,380) (351,262) (845,628)
Gain on foreign currency translation 128,669 - -
Total gains and losses for the recognised (500,711) (351,262) (845,628)

period




Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31" May 2001

Fixed assets
Goodwill

intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets

Investment

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one

year

Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share premium account

Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders’ funds

Minority equity interests

Total capital employed

31 May 2001 31 May 2000 30 November
2000
£ f f
4,613,909 - -
729,954 33,333 311,893
2,863,675 3,013 83,418
227 - -
8,207,765 36,346 395,311
24,873 - -
498,585 23,539 482,894
15,279,275 1,110,441 22,201,546
15,802,733 1,133,980 22,684,440
(1,111,909) (487,393)
(83,949)

14,690,824 1,050,031 22,197,047
22,898,589 1,086,377 22,592,358
(371,076) (199,649) (345,234)
22,527,513 886,728 22,247,124
2,897,045 874,610 2,896,603
20,211,001 376,798 20,209,567
(1,359,756) (364,680) (859,046)
21,748,290 886,728 22,247,124
779,223 - -
22,527,513 886,728 22,247,124




Consolidated cash flow statement
For the six months ended 31* May 2001

Notes 31 May 2001 31 May 2000
f £
Net cash outflow from operating activities 1 (864,411) (117,907)
Returns on investments and servicing of 148,691 21,450
finance
Capital expenditure and financial investment (488,858) (3,265)
Acquisitions and disposals (5,720,606) -
Cash outflow before management of
liquid resources and financing (6,925,184) (99,722)
Management of liquid resources {11,035,315) -
Financing 1,876 718,075
(Decrease)/increase in cash in period (17,958,623) 618,353
Note to cash flow statement
31 May 2001 31 May 2000
£ f
1. Reconciliation of operating loss to net
cash outflow from operating activities
Operating loss (1,134,477) (372,712)
Depreciation charge 52,620 252
Goodwill Amortisation 131,826 -
Decrease in stock (18,994) -
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 546,588 (23,539)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (426,509) 78,443
Increase in provision {NIC payable on
unapproved share options 25,842 199,649
Exchange loss (40,907) -
Net cash outflow from operating activities (864,411) (117,907)

30 November
2000

£

(1,006,492)
83,526

(340,413)

(1,263,379)
(3,350,000)
22,972,837

18,359,458

30 November
2000
f

(933,276)
12,445

(478,772)
47,877

345,234

(1,006,492)



Notes

1.

This statement includes the results of the Company and its subsidiary,
Shanghai GeneMedix Biotechnology Company Ltd and has been prepared

using the same accounting policies as the statutory accounts for the year
ended 30 November 2000.

The interim figures to 31 May 2001 are unaudited. The interim figures to
31 May 2000 were audited for the purposes of the Listing Particulars of
GeneMedix plc dated 24 November 2000. The comparative figures for the
year ended 30th November 2000 are not statutory accounts but are
extracted from the audited statutory accounts. The statutory accounts for
the year ended 30th November 2000 have been filed with the Registrar of
Companies. They received an unqualified audit report which did not
contain a statement under 5237(2) or S237(5) of the Companies Act 1985.
The interim report should be read in conjunction with the statutory
accounts for the year ended 30th November 2000.

We were unable to pay a dividend in the period.

The basic earnings per share is calculated on the Group retained loss of
£629,380 and on a weighted average of 283,660,552 ordinary shares.

There is no dilutive effect in respect of share options issued under the
Employee Share Option scheme.

Copies of the Interim Statement will be sent to all shareholders shortly and
are available to the public from the Group's head office ~ Waterwitch
House, Exeter Road, Newmarket, Suffolk, CB8 8RX.
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GeneMedix press release

GeneMedix plc
Results for Quarter ended 28 February 2001

GeneMedix plc, the UK generic biopharmaceutical company with operations in Asia and
with joint London and Singapore Stock Exchange listings, announces results for the 3
months to 28 February 2001. GeneMedix is involved in the development and
manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology.

Key highlights for the period:

¢ Results in line with expectations

e Formal completion of the acquisition of 75% of the Shanghai Dongxin
Biotechnology Company from ShenglongDa, the commercialisation arm of the
Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry (now called Institute of Biochemistry and Cell
Biology)

¢ Bioequivalence studies for both EPO and Interferon-alpha-2b completed

» Human insulin development programme and process development for EGF in China
both well advanced

¢ Commercial manufacture of GM-CSF commenced for launch into China in next few
months

Dr Kim Tan, Chairman commented:

“The expenditure in the quarter reflects the increased process development activity and
the commencement of commercial production in the Shanghai manufacturing plant.

We remain confident that our commercial plans to establish marketing agreements in
territories outside China are progressing wefl, and are therefore optimistic that our
vision to create a high-quality biopharmaceutical products company is on track.”

17 May 2001
Enquiries:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive
College Hill Tel: 020 74572020

Michael Padley / Nicholas Nelson
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Chairman’s statement
For the 3 months ended 28 February 2001

The loss reported for the three months ended 28 February 2001 was in line with the
Board's expectations. The Company continues to meet the objectives set out in its
business plan. The expenditure in the quarter reflects the increased process
development activity and the commencement of commercial production in the Shanghai
manufacturing plant.

During this period, we received a business licence from the Shanghai Foreign Economics
and Trade Committee, completing the acquisition of 75% of the shares in Shanghai
Dongxin Biotechnology Company Limited, now renamed the Shanghai GeneMedix
Biotechnology Company Ltd (SGB). In January we appointed Thomas Cheng, formerly
General Manager with Messer Donghai, as General Manager of SGB. The facility is now
in commercial manufacture of GM-CSF, and we are putting in place a distribution
network, with which GeneMedix expects to launch product into the Chinese market
during the next few months.

The development programmes for EPO and interferon-alpha-2b are progressing well,
with bioequivalence studies completed for both products. We are underway with our
development programme for human insulin, and have made progress with the
programme for epidermal growth factor (EGF) in China. We are also currently on track
with our plans for the construction of a second manufacturing plant.

We remain confident that our commercial plans to establish marketing agreements in
territories outside China are progressing well, and are therefore optimistic that our
vision to create a high-quality biopharmaceutical products company is on track.

Finance Review

The group retained loss for the 3 months ended 28 February 2001 was £168,094, after
a charge for the amortisation of goodwill of £52,730. Operating losses were £449,981
for the period, which included the running costs of our head office and two months of
operating expenses from our subsidiary in China.

We received interest income on cash balances of £275,194, and had small amounts of
interest payable on loans in China, which have now been settled in full.

In addition we incurred £134,945 of development expenditure, which has been
capitalised in keeping with our accounting policy. The acquisition of SGB for a total cash
consideration of £5,611,147, of which £723,300 was deferred, was completed during

the period, and we made a further capital contribution into the subsidiary of
£1,494,865 to fund and develop commercial production.

Kim Tan
Chairman

17 May 2001

Consolidated profit & loss account
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For the 3 months ended 28 February 2001

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses -

National insurance contributions payable
on unapproved share options

Operating loss

Investment income

Interest payable

Loss on ordinary activities before
taxation

Tax on loss on ordinary activities
Loss on ordinary activities after
taxation

Minority interests

Retained loss for the period

Loss per share - basic

Loss per share — diluted

3 months to
28 February
2001
f

(440,752;)
(9,223)
(449,981)
275,194
(9,452)
(184,239)
(184,239)
16,145
(168,094)
(0.06p)

(0.06p)

All of the results relate to continuing operations.
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3 months to
28 February
2000

£

(44,617)

(44,617)

(44,617)

{(44,617)

(44,617)

(0.02p)

(0.02p)

12 months to
30 November
2000
f

(588,042)
(345,234)

(933,276)
87,648

(845,628)

(845,628)
(845,628)
(0.3p)

(0.3p)
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Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses

For the 3 months to 28 February 2001

3 months to
28 February 2001
£
Retained loss for the period (168,094)
Gain on foreign currency translation 84,931
Total gains and losses for the recognised (83,163)
period
Notes:

3 months to
28 February
2000

£

{44,617)

(44,617)

12 months to
30 November
2000

£

(845,628)

(845,628)

1. The quarterly figures to 28 February 2001 and 28 February 2000 are
unaudited. The comparative figures for the year ended 30 November 2000
are not statutory accounts but are extracted from the audited statutory
accounts. The statutory accounts for the year ended 30 November 2000

They received an

unqualified audit report which did not contain a statement under S237(2) or

S237(5) of the Companies Act 1985. The quarterly report should be read in

conjunction with the statutory accounts for the year ended 30 November

have been filed with the Registrar of Companies.

2000.

2. The Company were unable to pay a dividend in the period.

3. Further copies of this report are available from the Group's head office:

Waterwitch House, Exeter Road, Newmarket, Suffolk,CB8 8RX.
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Consolidated balance sheet

For the 3 months to 28 February 2001

Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Investment

Current assets

Stock

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year

Total assets less current
liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year

Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital

Share premium account
Profit and loss account
Equity shareholders’ funds

Minority equity interests

Total capital employed

As at

28 February 2001

£

5,139,843
2,793,957
223

7,934,023

5212
354,597
16,133,706
16,493,515
(1,110,197)
15,383,318

23,317,341

(354,456)

22,962,885

2,896,603
20,208,567
(942,209)

22,163,961
798,924

22,962,885
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As at

28 February 2000

£

33,333
2,577

35,910

9,652
1,164,024

1,173,676

(16,213)

1,157,463

1,193,373

1,193,373

874,610
376,798
(58,035)

1,193,373

1,193,373

As at

30 November
2000

f

311,893
83,418

385,31

482,894
22,201,546

22,684,440
(487,393)
22,197,047 -

22,592,358

(345,234)

22,247,124

2,896,603
20,209,567
(859,046}
22,247,124

22,247,124
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the 3 months ended 28 February 2001

Net cash outflow from operating
activities

Returns on investments and servicing of
finance

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Acquisitions and disposals

Cash outflow before management of
liquid resources and financing
Management of liquid resources
Financing

(Decrease)/increase in cash in period

Notes:

1. Reconciliation of operating ioss to net
cash outflow from operating activities

Operating loss

Depreciation charge

Goodwill Amortisation

Decrease in stock

Decrease/(increase) in debtors

{Decrease)/increase in creditors

Increase in provision (NIC payable on share

options)

Exchange loss

Net cash outflow from operating activities

3 months to 3 months to 12 months to
28 February 28 February 30 November
2001 2000 2000
f f f
(273,753) {43,562) (1,006,492}
95,535 - 83,526
(185,355) - (340,413)
(4,868,132) (2,577) -
(5,231,705} {46,139) (1,263,379)
(12,050,000) - (3,350,000)
(836,820) 718,075 22,872,837
(18,118,525) 671,936 18,359,458

3 months to 3 months to 12 months to

28 February 28 February 30 November

2001 2000 2000

f f f

(449,981) (44,617) (933,276)

19,403 - 12,445

52,730 - -

564 - -

151,373 (9,652) (478,772)

(16,697) 10,707 47,877

9,222 - 345,234

(40,367) - -

(273,753) (43,562)
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GeneMedix _press release

GeneMaedix plc

Preliminary Results for the year ended 30 November 2000

GeneMedix plc, the UK biogeneric pharmaceutical company with operations in Asia and
with joint London/Singapore Stock Exchange fistings, announces results for the 12
months to 30 November 2000. GeneMedix is involved in the development and
manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology.

Key highlights for the period include:

s On course to meet stated objectives of 7 products in commercial production within
5-6 years, with GM-CSF in production by end Q2 2001 and EPO and Interferon-
alpha 2b by end 2002

e Acquisition of 75% of the Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology company from
ShenglongDa, the commercialisation arm of the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry

e Admission to the Official List of the London Stock Exchange and the first life science
company to list on the Singapore Stock Exchange

e Cash burn and net loss for the year in line with expectations; sufficient working
capital available to implement business plan

o Board of Directors and management team strengthened

Dr Kim Tan, Chairman, commented:

“We view the year ahead with optimism as roll-out of the products commences and we
move closer to our vision of a high quality global biopharmaceutical products company.
I am excited to be involved with a company that has the potential to create real value
for shareholders whilst bringing affordable medicines to patient populations that have,
until now, remained untreated.”

Paul Edwards MBE, Chief Executive, commented:

“The past 12 months has been a period of intense evolution for GeneMedix. The move
to the London and Singapore Stock Exchanges places us on secure foundations and our
joint venture with the Shanghai Institute of Biotechnology puts the Company in a
unique position through providing exclusive access to its considerable resources and
modern, high quality manufacturing facilities.

“Preparations for the launch of our first product in China, GM-CSF are at an advanced
stage and nnsitive proaress is beinq made with our other products.”

16 February 2001



Enquiries:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive
College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020

Michael Padley / Nicholas Nelson

GeneMedix plc
Preliminary Statement of Results for the Year Ended 30 November 2000
Chairman’s Report

GeneMedix has undergone a period of rapid development during this financial year. This
has included three separate rounds of fund raising, commencement of trading on
London’s OFEX (from January to November), and most recently a dual listing on the
London Stock Exchange on 30 November and the Singapore Stock Exchange (SGX) on 1
December. GeneMedix is the first life science company to list on the SGX, an event that
has created considerable interest in South-East Asia.

During the year, we have recruited a strong and experienced team of senior managers,
extended the Board of Directors, negotiated the acquisition of a manufacturing
company in Shanghai, moved into new premises in Newmarket, Suffolk and progressed
the development of no fewer than 5 products.

Qur preliminary results show that the cash burn has been in line with expectations, and
reflects the Company’s ethos of utilising our cash resources prudently.

At the time of the listing we set out a detailed business plan. It involved commercial
production of our first product, GM-CSF, out of a facility in China by the end of the first
half of 2001. This was to be followed by the manufacture of EPO and Interferon-alpha
2b by the end of 2002, following the construction or acquisition of additional
manufacturing capacity, and the upgrading of the Shanghai facility to international
pharmaceutical standards. Initial distribution of these products was to be into China,
ASEAN territories, India and Eastern Europe.

The stated longer-term strategy was to have all 7 products in our portfolio
manufactured to international pharmaceutical standards and commercially available
within a 5-6 year time frame, to coincide with the loss of patent protection by the
branded products in the Western European markets. This would allow GeneMedix,
rapidly thereafter, to address these markets, by commencing the process of regulatory
approvals and the establishment of marketing collaborations.

Though it is still early days, we are well on course with the implementation of our plan.
We announced, in January 2001, the acquisition of 75% of the shares in Shanghai
Dongxin  Biotechnology Company Limited (SDB) from ShenglongDa, the
commercialisation arm of the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry. The new equity joint
venture was named Shanghai Genemedix Biotechnology Company Ltd (SGB). The total
purchase price was £5.3 million, with a further capital contribution of £1.4 million to be
made into the joint venture. The acquisition of this company provides us with a modern
high quality manufacturing facility, equipped with sterile manufacturing facilities for the
production of GM-CSF and Epidermal Growth Factor (EGF) to Chinese GMP standards.
Planned additional investment will allow us to upgrade the facility to meet with
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international pharmaceutical standards, and provide an additional process stream for the
production of Interferon-alpha 2b.

Preparations for the GM-CSF launch in China are currently at an advanced stage, as are
those for the construction of a second manufacturing plant. Positive progress has also
been made in the bioequivalence studies and product development for EPO and
Interferon-alpha 2b. The process development is under way for the manufacture of
Insulin and the programme to develop EGF in China is also progressing well. We are also
confident that the coming year will see us establish marketing agreements that will
broaden our markets into India, the ASEAN territories and Eastern Europe.

The Board was expanded during the year with the additions of Mr Paul Edwards as

Chief Executive in December 1999, Mr Gordon Mylchreest as Non-Executive Director in

January 2000, and Mr Julian Attfield as Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Fong Kwok Jen
as Non-Executive Director (Singapore), both in October 2000.

A strong UK management team has also been assembled during the year with broad
industry experience. Tony Gasson joined us early in the year as Technical Director and is
now resident in Shanghai. John Greenwood followed as Head of Regulatory Affairs
along with Richard Barker, as Head of Process Development. In July they were joined by
Jackie Turnbull as Head of Business Development and Sue Buchanan as Director of
Marketing in December 2000.There are now 10 UK staff with an additional 30
employees based at the Shanghai manufacturing facility.

We view the year ahead with much optimism and excitement as we begin to roll out our
products into the market place and progress our vision to create a high quality global
biopharmaceutical products company. We also feel very privileged to be involved in a
Company that not only has the potential to create real value for our shareholders, but
also has the ability to bring affordable medicines to patient populations that have, until
now, remained untreated.

Financial Highlights
There has been rapid financial development at the Company during the year.

In December 1999 and January 2000 we raised £1.12 million of private funding and had
our shares admitted to trading on OFEX, the off exchange market in London. This
valued the company at £11 million. The ordinary shares of £1 each were sub-divided
into 100 Ordinary Shares of 1p each. And we had a bonus issue of 4.9 new shares for
every existing share. We raised an additional £3.36 million from private and institutional
investors in July 2000 at which time we had a market capitalisation of £178 million.
There was a small issue of 5,000 shares under the Company unapproved share option
plan, before a further bonus issue of 2 new shares for every old share took place in
October 2000.

In November 2000 we placed 14.4 million shares in London and 7.8 million in Singapore
at £0.90, raising £20 million (£18.5 million after expenses) and achieving a full listing on
the London Stock Exchange on 30 November and in Singapore on 1 December 2000.
The market capitalisation at admission was £261 million. We were one of the few
companies to float successfully at this time of adverse market conditions in the
technology sectors.
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Results of Operations

A net loss for the year of £845,628 or 0.3p per share was in line with expectations. All
expenditure incurred related to the setting up of the infrastructure of our manufacturing
and distribution strategy. Included in this loss is £345,233 relating to the build up of a
provision for employer's National Insurance Contributions on the Company's share
option plan in accordance with current accounting practice. As long as it is material, the
on-going effects on our results of the movement in this provision will continue to be
highlighted separately, as it is a direct result of our policy to motivate and retain key
employees rather than being a direct part of our manufacturing strategy.

In addition we spent £278,560 on the process development and clinical studies of EPO
and Interferon- alpha 2b, which we aim to have in commercial production by the end of
2002. These costs are capitalised in line with Company policy.

Since its incorporation in November 1997 the Company has not generated any sales
revenue. There had been no significant expenses incurred in the period to 30 November
1999.

The Directors continue to be of the belief that, with the net proceeds from the Initial
Public Offering, we have sufficient working capital to implement the business plan as set
out in our prospectus of 24 November 2000.

Treasury policies and significant treasury transactions are reviewed and approved by the
Board. The Company’s aim is to secure returns in line with prevailing market rates while
minimising the risk of adverse foreign currency movements.

We were also pleased to appoint Mrs Sue Mason, a qualified Accountant and fluent

Mandarin speaker, as Group Financial Controller. She has already been a key figure in
the development of a system of internal financial control in China.
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Profit and Loss Account
For the Year Ended 30 November 2000

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
NIC payable on unapproved options

Operating loss
Finance income

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on loss on ordinary activities

Loss on ordinary activities after taxation,
being retained loss for the year

Loss per share — basic and fully diluted

There are no recognised gains or losses in the
current or prior periods other than those
included in the profit and loss account.

The Directors are unable to recommend any
dividend for the year (1999 - Nil).
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2000 1999
£ £
(588,042)  (13,923)
(345,234)
(933,276)  (13,923)
87,648 505
(845,628)  (13,418)
(845,628)  (13,418)
(0.3p) (0.01p)




Balance Sheet
At 30 November 2000

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Provisions for liabilities and charges

Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders’ funds
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2000 1999
£ £
311,893 33,333
83,418 -
395,311 33,333
482,894 -
22,201,546 492,088
22,684,440 492,088
(487,393)  (405,506)
22,197,047 86,582
22,592,358 119,915
(345,234) -
22,247,124 119,915
2,896,603 133,333
20,209,567 -
(859,046) (13,418)
22,247,124 119,915




Cash Flow Statement
For the Year Ended 30 November 2000

2000 1999

f £

Net cash outflow from operating activities (1,006,492) (8,417)

Returns on investments and servicing of finance 83,526 505

Capital expenditure (340,413) -

Cash outflow before management of liquid (1,263,379) (7,912)
resources and financing

Management of liquid resources (3,350,000) -

Financing 22,972,837 499,998

Increase in cash in the year 18,359,458 492,086

Accounting policies

This financial information has been prepared on a basis consistent with the
accounting policies set out in the prospectus issued on 24 November 2000.

Financial Statements

The preceding information does not constitute the Company's statutory financial
statements for the year ended 30 November 2000 within the meaning of section
240 of the Companies Act 1985 but is derived from those financial statements.
Statutory accounts for the previous financial year ended 30 November 1999 have
been delivered to the Registrar of Companies. The auditors report on those
accounts was unqualified and did not contain any statement under section 237
(2) or (3) of the Companies Act 1985.

The auditors have not reported on accounts for the year ended 30 November
2000, nor have any accounts been delivered to the Registrar of Companies. This
will occur after the Company’s Annual General Meeting.

The preliminary announcement was approved by the Board on 15 February
2001.
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GeneMedix press release

Interim Results
26 July 2000

GeneMedix plc (GMX), the biogeneric pharmaceutical company setting up
operations in Asia, announces its results for the six months to 31 May 2000.
GeneMedix is involved in the development and manufacture of therapeutic
proteins using recombinant DNA technology.

Key highlights for the period include:

* Performance in line with expectations
= Key management appointed

»  Work progressing well on the Company’s three lead products, initial production Q1
2001

= The granting of an exclusive worldwide licence to the US biotechnology company,
TranXenoGen Inc for use of its novel insulin precursor gene in transgenic applications

*  Admission to QFEX and £1.2 funding raising, in January

= Letter of Intent to acquire 75% of Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology Co Ltd - a Chinese
biopharmaceutical manufacturing company

Post period: Placing to raise £3.3 million.

Interim Results GeneMedix CEO, Paul Edwards, commented:

"The Company has come along way since inception and we are on track to
commence initial production in early 2001. The management team is in place
and the recently announced deal to acquire manufacturing facilities, close to our
research base at the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry, will give us our own
production facilities.

"We look to the future with confidence and the proposed move to the Full List
will further enhance the status of GeneMedix."

INTERIM REPORT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT - The performance for the three month period,
ending 31st May 2000, was in line with the Company's expectations. During this
period, the Company signed a Letter of intent with Shanghai ShengLongDa



Biotech (Group) Ltd, to purchase 75% of the ordinary shares in Shanghai
Dongxin Biotechnology Co Ltd, a Chinese biopharmaceutical manufacturing
company. The consideration for this acquisition has been agreed as £6.5 million,
which may be paid wholly in cash, or part in shares at the vendor's discretion.
The acquisition is expected to be completed by August / September 2000.
GeneMedix also continued to strengthen its senior management team, attracting
experienced pharmaceutical executives into the Company with the following key
management appointments having been made; Richard Barker (formerly Axis
Genetics and Genzyme) as Head of Development, John Greenwood (formerly
Protherics and CAMR) as Head of Quality and Regulatory Affairs and Jackie
Turnbull (formerly PA Consulting and Novo Nordisk) as Head of Business
Development.
Work is progressing well on the development and bioequivalence studies on the
Company's three lead products: Erythropoetin, for increasing red blood cells,
alpha-interferon for the treatment of hepatitis and GM-CSF, for increasing the
white blood cell count in patients undergoing cancer treatment. We anticipate
commencing the manufacture of GM-CSF in Q1 2001, being followed by alpha
interferon and Erythropoetin in Q4 2001.
We are pleased to report that the placing, after the period ended, of 1,680,000
new ordinary shares at £2 per share raising approximately £3.3 million (net of
expenses) was well received, particularly by new investors in Singapore. The
funds raised will be used to accelerate the expansion of the Company's
operations.

K. Tan - Chairman
EDITORS' NOTE
GeneMedix is involved in the development and manufacture of therapeutic
proteins using recombinant DNA technology. The Company will focus on high-
value biotechnology drugs that are either unpatented in certain geographical
areas with high market potential and/or are coming off patent in the next 2-5
years. Manufacturing and distribution of these products will be carried out by
joint-venture companies in Asia.

Profit and Loss Account 3 months 1031 May 6 ’“°“";i,g%3‘ May
£ £
Turnover - -
Development costs (72,209) (80,498)
Gross Loss (72,209) (80,498)
Administrative expenses ' (44,910) (81,238)



Loss an ordinary activities

Interest income

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Tax on {oss on ordinary activities

Loss on ordinary activities after tax being retained loss for the period

Loss per share - basic and diluted

(117,119)
21,450

(95,669)

(95,669)

(1.86p)

(161,736)
21,450

(140,286)

(140,286)

(2.73p)

All of the results relate to continuing operations. There were no recognised gains and losses,

other than the loss shown for the period, and therefore a statement of total recognised gains

and losses has not been included in these accounts.

Notes

The quarterly and six monthly figures to 31 May 2000 are unaudited and do not comprise

statutory accounts. The figures have been reviewed by Arthur Andersen, the company’s auditors.

Dividends were not paid in the period reported upon and no dividend is proposed.

Copies of this announcement are being posted to shareholders.
Balance Sheet As at 31 May 2000

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Total current assets less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Net assets

Share capital and reserves
Called-up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders' funds

31 May 2000

f

33,333
3,013

36,346

21,488
1,110,441

1,131,929
(70,571)

1,061,358

1,097,704

874,610
376,798
(153,704)

1,097,704



Cash Flow Statement

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Acquisitions and disposals

Returns on investment

Cash outflow before financing
Financing

Decrease/increase in cash for the quarter

Notes: 1. Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash outflow from operating activities

Loss before taxation
Add: Depreciation

Increase in debtors

Increase in creditors

Net cash outfiow from operating activities

Independent Review Report to GeneMedix Plc

Introduction

3 months to
31 May 2000

£
(74,345)
(688)
21,450

(53,583)

53,583

3 months to
31 May 2000

£
(117,119)
252

(116,867)
(11,836)
54,358

(74,345)

6 months to
31 May 2000

£
(117,907)
(3,265)
21,450

(99,722)
718,075

618,353

6 months to
31 May 2000

£
(161,736)
252

(161,484)
(21,488)
65,065

(117,907)

We have been instructed by the company to review the financial information set
out on pages 3 to 5 and we have read the other information contained in the
interim report and considered whether it contains any apparent misstatements or

material inconsistencies with the financial information.

Directors' responsibilities

The interim report, including the financial information contained therein, is the
responsibility of, and has been approved by, the directors. The directors are
responsible for preparing the interim report in accordance with the OFEX Code
of Best Practice ("the Code") and applicable United Kingdom accounting

- standards. The Code requires that the accounting policies and presentation
applied to the interim figures should be consistent with those applied in

preparing the preceding annual accounts except where any changes, and the

reasons for them, are disclosed.



Review work performed

We conducted our review in accordance with guidance contained in Bulletin
1999/4 issued in the United Kingdom by the Auditing Practices Board and with
our profession's ethical guidance. A review consists principally of making
enquiries of management and applying analytical procedures to the financial
information and underlying financial data and, based thereon, assessing whether
the accounting policies and presentation have been consistently applied unless
otherwise disclosed. A review excludes audit procedures such as tests of controls
and verification of assets, liabilities and transactions. It is substantially less in
scope than an audit performed in accordance with Auditing Standards and
therefore provides a lower level of assurance than an audit. Accordingly we do
not express an audit opinion on the financial information.

Review conclusion

On the basis of our review we are not aware of any material modifications that
should be made to the financial information as presented for the period ended
31 May 2000. |

Arthur Andersen
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Abbots House, Abbey Street, Reading, Berkshire RG1 3BD
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GeneMedix ____press release

First Quarter Trading
14 April 2000

GeneMedix plc (GMX), a biogeneric pharmaceutical company setting up
operations in Asia, announces its results for the three months to 29 January
2000. GeneMedix is involved in the development and manufacture of
therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology.

The performance for the three month period was in line with the Company's
expectations. During this quarter, the Company focussed on the completion of
its first global licensing deal with TranXenoGen Inc, which was announced on 1
March, as well as strengthening the Board and Senior Managemenf team, and
progressing the development of its two lead products. During the period, the
company also raised £1,118,075 in additional funding.

Key highlights include:

= Raising £1,118,057 in additional funding, and admission to OFEX

* The granting of an exclusive worldwide licence to the US biotechnology company,
TranXenoGen Inc for use of its novel insulin precursor gene in transgenic applications.
Under the terms of the agreement, GeneMedix will receive US$6M in milestone
payments, plus royalties on worldwide sales of the insulin product.

*  Paul Edwards MBE, the former VP and General Manager of Genzyme Corporation's UK
Operations and current Chairman of the UK Biolndustry Association's Manufacturing
Committee, was appointed Chief Executive Officer. Other key appointments included
that of Tony Gasson (formerly Wellcome and CAMR) as Operations Director, and Gordon
Mylchreest (former General Manager, CIGNA Direct Marketing and Credit Insurance) as
a non-executive Director.

= Work on the development and bioequivalence studies on the Company's two lead
products; Erythropoetin, for increasing red blood cells and alpha-interferon, for the

treatment of hepatitis; is on schedule and within budget.

GeneMedix CEO, Paul Edwards, commented: "We have made significant
progress in a short space of time. We have exciting technology under
development and the deal with TranXenoGen confirms the potential of the



Company. We expect to announce further deals in the not too distant future.
Overall, things are progressing well and we look to the future with confidence. "
Independent review report to GeneMedix Plc

(by Arthur Anderson - Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors)

We have been instructed by the company to review the financial information and
we have read the other information contained in the quarterly report and
considered whether it contains any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial information.

Directors’ responsibilities

The quarterly report, including the financial information contained therein, is the
responsibility of, and has been approved by, the directors. The directors are
responsible for preparing the quarterly report in accordance with the OFEX Code
of Best Practice ("the Code") and applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards. The Code requires that the accounting policies and presentation
applied to the interim figures should be consistent with those applied in
preparing the preceding annual accounts except where any changes, and the
reasons for them, are disclosed.

Review work performed

We conducted our review in accordance with guidance contained in Bulletin
1999/4 issued in the United Kingdom by the Auditing Practices Board and with
our profession's ethical guidance. A review consists principally of making
enquiries of management and applying analytical procedures to the financial
information and underlying financial data and, based thereon, assessing whether
the accounting policies and presentation have been consistently applied unless
otherwise disclosed. A review excludes audit procedures such as tests of controls
and verification of assets, liabilities and transactions. It is substantially less in
scope than an audit performed in accordance with Auditing Standards and
therefore provides a lower level of assurance than an audit. Accordingly we do
not express an audit opinion on the financial information.

Review conclusion - On the basis of our review we are not aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial information as
presented for the quarter ended 29 February 2000.



3 months to 29th Feb 2000

£
Turnover -~
Development Costs . (8,289)
Gross loss (8,289)
Administrative expenses (36,327)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (44,617)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities -
Loss on ordinary activities after tax being retained loss for the period 44,617)
Loss per share - basic and diluted ) (0.09p)

All of the results relate to continuing operations.

There were no recognised gains and losses, other than the loss shown for the
quarter, and therefore a statement of total recognised gains and losses has not
been included in these accounts.

Notes
1. The quarterly figures to 29 February 2000 are unaudited and do not comprise

statutory accounts. The quarterly figures have been reviewed by Arthur
Andersen, the company's auditors.

2. Dividends were not paid in the period reported upon and no dividend is
proposed.

Balance Sheet As at 29th February 2000 3 months to 29th Feb 2000
£
Fixed Assets : -
Intangible assets : 33,333
Tangible assets 2,577
35,910
Currant Assets
Debtors 9,652
Cash at bank and in hand 1,164,024
1,173,676
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year (16,213)
Total current assets less current liabilities 1,157,463

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year -



Net assets ’ ) 1,193,373

Share capital and reserves

Called up share capital 874,610
Share premium account 376,798
Profit and loss account . (58,035)
Equity shareholders' funds 1,193,373
Cash Flow For the quarter ended 29th February 2000 3 months to 29th Feb 2000

£
Net cash outflow from operating activities (43,562)
Acquisitions and disposals (2,577)
Cash outflow before financing (46,139)
Financing ' 718,075
Increase in cash for the quarter 671,936

NOTES: Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash outflow from operating
activities '

3 months to 29th Feb 2000

£
Operating loss (44,617
(increase) in debtors (9,652)
Increase in creditors 19,707
Net cash outflow from operating activities (43,562)

Approval and Risk Warnings:

The value of the Ordinary Shares in the Company may fluctuate in value in money terms and the

investor may not get back the whole of his investment.

OFEX is not a recognised or designated investment exchange. There is no
recognised market for ordinary shares in the Company and it may be difficult for
the investor to sell the investment or to obtain reliable information about its
value or the extent of the risks to which it is exposed.

This announcement is not intended to contain any offer or invitation to acquire
or deal in the shares of the Company. English Trust Company Limited has
approved this announcement for the purposes of Section 57 Financial Services
Act 1986. English Trust Company Limited is regulated by The Securities and
Futures Authority.



GeneMedix pic
For use at the Armual General Meeting to be held on 2 May 2001

f Proxy
TWe (Block letters please)

of

being (a) member(s) of GeneMedix pic hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting, or failing him’

As my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 2 May
at 11,30am at Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London ECTA 4D0 for the following purposes:
* Ifitis desired to appoint as proxy any other person, delete the Chairman of the meeting and insert the

name of your proxy; the alteration must be initialied

Qrdinary resolutions For Against

1. To receive the audited accounts of the Company

2. To approve the remuneration policy contained in the report on Directors’ remuneration

3. To reappoint Paul Edwards as a director

4. To reappoint Dr Hong-Hoi Ting as a director

5. To reappoint Julian Attfield as a director

6. To reappoint Gordon Myichreest as a director

7. To reappoint Mr Fong Kwok Jen as a director

8. To reappoint Dr Kim Tan as a director

- 9. To reappoint Arthur Andersen as the auditors of the Company

Ordinary resolution

10. That the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised, pursuant to Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985
{the "Act”). to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities (as defined for the purposes of Section 80(2) of the Act) up to
an aggregate nominal amount of £339,607 provided that this authority shall expire on the date being 15 months from the passing of this reso-
lution or. if earfier, at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Cormpany next following the passing of this resolution, save that the
Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might require refevant securities to be allotted after such expiry
and the Directors may allot relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if this authority had not expired and provided further
that this authority shall supersede and revoke any other earlier such authority.

)

Special resolution

That in substitution for ali existing authorities and subject to the passing of the resolution number 10 above, the Directors be and they are
hereby empowered pursuant to Section 95 of the Act to allot equity securities (as defined in Section 94(2} of the Act) for cash pursuant to the
general authority to allot relevant securities conferred by resolution 10 above as if the provisions of Section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to
any such allotment provided that this authority shall be fimited to:

Notes
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meating is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his
behalf, A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. To be effective, the instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is executed {or a notarially certified copy of such authority}
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for hotding the meeting. A form of proxy is
enclosed with this notice. Completion and return of the farm of praxy will not prectude shareholders from attending and voting in person at the
meeting.

3, Copies of alt Directors’ senvice contracts will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during norma! business hours
on any weekday {Saturdays and public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the meeting cioses and at the pface of the Annuat
General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to, and during, the meeting.

4. The register of Directors' interests maintained by the Company under Section 325 Companies Act 1985 shall be produced at the commence-
ment of the meeting and remain open and accessible during the continuance of the meeting to any person attending the meeting.

()

5. For the purpose of enabling the Company to determine which persons are entitled to attend or vote at the meeting, and how many votes
such persons may cast, a person must be entered on the Company's register of members not iess than 48 hours before the time fixed for the
meeting in order to have the right to attend or vote at the meeting.

6 In the case of joint holders the signature of any one holder will be sufficient but the names of all joint holders should be stated.
7 A member may appoint his or her own proxy in the space provided and such proxy need not be a member of the Company.
8 If the proxy is not mandated as to how ta vote, he or she may vote at his or her discretion.



GeneMedix plc

For use at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 16th May 2002
I/'We (Block letters please)

Proxy

Of

being (a) member(s) of GeneMedix plc hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting, or failing him*

As my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 16th May
at 10.30am at Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London ECIA 4DD for the following purposes:

*If it is desired to appoint as proxXy any other person, delete the Chairman or the mesting and insert the name of your proxy; the alteration
must be initialled

Ordinary resclutions For Against

1 To receive the andited accounts of the Company

2. To approve the remuneration policy contained in the report on Directors’ remuneration

3. To reappoint Paul Edwards as a director

4. To reappoint Julian Attfield as a director

5. To reappoint Arthur Andersen as the auditors of the company

6. To approve the adoption of a Revenue Approved Share Option Scheme

7. To grant the Directors the authority to allot unissued securities in the Company up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £965,682.

Special resolution

8. To grant the Directors authority to disapply statutory pre-emption rights

Notes

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his
behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the company.

2. To be effective, the instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is executed (or a notarially certified copy of such

authority) must be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting. A form

of proxy is enclosed with this notice. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude shareholders from attending and voting
in person at the meeting.

3. Copies of all Directors’ service contracts will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal business
hours on any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the meeting closes and at the place of the
Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to, and during, the meeting.

4. The register of Directors” interests maintained by the Company under Section 325 Companies Act 1985 shall be produced at the
commencement of the meeting and remain open and accessible during the continuance of the meeting to any person attending the meeting,

5. For the purpose of enabling the Company to determine which persons are entitled to attend or vote at the meeting, and how many votes
such persons may cast, a person must be entered on the Company’s register of members by 6.00p.m. on Tuesday 14th May 2002.

6 In the case of joint holders the signature of any one holder will be sufficient but the names of all joint holders should be stated.
7 A member may appoint his or her own proxy in the space provided and such proxy need not be a member of the Company.

8 If the proxy is not mandated as to how to vote, he or she may vote at his or her discretion.
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GeneMedix

Notice of Annual General Meeting
of
GeneMedix ple

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 10.30 a.m. on Thursday 16th May 2002 at
Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London ECTA 4DD for the following purposes:

—_

. To receive the audited accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 30 November 2001, the Directors' report and the
Auditors' report on those accounts.

2. To approve the remuneration policy contained in the report on Directors' remuneration for the year ended 30 November 2001.
3. To reappoint Paul Edwards, who is retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

4. To reappoint Julian Attfield, who is retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

s

To approve the adoption of a revenue approved Share Option Scheme in line with the Unapproved Scheme rules as circulated with the
listing particulars in November 2000, subject to the amendments required to achieve tax benefits for employees and employers up to
revenue approved limits.

6. To reappoint Arthur Andersen as the auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion
of the next general meeting of the Company at which audited accounts are laid and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions of which resolution 7 will be propased as an ordinary and resolution 8
as a special resolution.

7. That the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised, pursuant to Section 80 of the Companies Act
1985 (the "Act”), to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot relevant securities (as defined for the purposes of Section 80(2) of
the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £965,682 provided that this authority shall expire on the date being 15 months from
the passing of this resolution or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company next following the
passing of this resolution, save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might require
relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or
agreement as if this authority had not expired and provided further that this authority shall supersede and revoke any other earlier
such authority.

8. That in substitution for all existing authorities and subject to the passing of the resolution number 7 above, the Directors be and they
are hereby empowered pursuant to Section 95 of the Act to allot equity securities {(as defined in Section 94(2) of the Act) for cash
pursuant to the general authority to allot relevant securities conferred by resolution 7 above as if the provisions of Section 83(1) of
the Act did not apply to any such allotment provided that this authority shall be limited to:

a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with a rights or other pre-emptive issue in favour of holders of ordinary shares where
the equity securities respectively attributable to the interests of such shareholders on a fixed record date are proportionate (as nearly
as may be) to the respective numbers of shares held by them but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient to deal with any legal or practical problems under the faws of any overseas territory or the
requirements of any regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory or fractional entitlements; and

b) to the allotment of relevant shares (as defined in section 94 of the Act) in pursuance of a right already granted to subscribe for, or to
convert any securities into, relevant shares; and

¢) the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (a) above), of equity securities having, in the case of relevant shares, a nominal
amount or, in the case of other equity securities, giving the right to subscribe for or convert into relevant shares having, a nominal
sum not exceeding in aggregate the sum of £144,852.

and this authority shall (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company) expire on the date being 15 months from the passing of
this resolution or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company next following the passing of this
resolution, save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to
be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if this power had
not expired.

Dated 16th April 2002

By order of the Board
Julian Attfield
Secretary

Registered Office:
42-46 High Street
Esher

Surrey

KT10 9QY



Notes

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his behalf, A
proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. To be effective, the instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is executed (or a notarially certified copy of such authority) must
be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting. A form of proxy is enclosed with
this notice. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude shareholders from attending and voting in person at the meeting.

3. Copies of all Directors’ service contracts will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during norma! business hours on any
weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the meeting closes and at the place of the Annual General Meeting
for at least 15 minutes prior to, and during, the meeting.

4. The register of Directors' interests maintained by the Company under Section 325 Companies Act 1985 shall be produced at the commencement of the
meeting and remain open and accessible during the continuance of the meeting to any person attending the meeting.

5. For the purpose of enabling the Company to determine which persons are entitled to attend or vote at the meeting, and how many votes such persons
may cast, a person must be entered on the Company's register of members not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting in order to
have the right to attend or vote at the meeting.

Explanatory Notes

Resolution 1: Accounts

For each financial year the Directors are required to present the audited accounts, the Directors’ report and the Auditors’ report to the shareholders at a
general meeting.

Once the resolution to receive the accounts has been proposed, and before a vote is taken, the Chairman will invite questions from shareholders on the
accounts and any other matters relating to the Company's business,

Resolution 2: Directors’ remuneration policy

Shareholders are asked to vote on the remuneration policy for Directors. The policy is contained in the report on Directors’ remuneration on pages 12 to
13 of the report and accounts.

The Combined Code asks boards to consider each year whether the circumstances are such that shareholders should be invited at the Annual General
Meeting to vote to approve the remuneration policy for Directors. Your Directors consider that asking shareholders from time to time (but not necessarily
each year) to vote on the palicy facilitates accountability and transparency.

Resolutions 3 and 4: Reappointment of Directors

The Articles of Assaciation state that a proportion of the Directors must retire at each Annual General Meeting. Accordingly Paul Edwards and Julian
Attfield retire at this AGM and, being eligible offers themselves for re-election. Biographical details of the Directors and particulars of their service
contracts with the Company are set out in the report and accounts.

Resolution 6: Reappointment of auditors

At each Annual General Meeting the Company is required to appoint auditors to serve until such next meeting. The Company's present auditors, Arthur
Andersen, have said that they are willing to continue in office for a further year. Resolution 6 proposes their reappointment and that, in accardance with
normal practice, the Directors should be authorised to agree their fees.

Resolution 7 and 8: Allotment of Shares

-
Under the Companies Act 1985, the Directors of a company may only allot un-issued shares if authorised to do so. The Companies Act 1985 also
prevents allotments for cash, other than to existing shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings, unless the Directors are specifically authorised
to do so. This gives existing shareholders what are known as "pre-emption rights®, Passing resolutions 7 and 8 will extend the Directors’ flexibility to act
in the best interests of shareholders when opportunities arise to issue shares.

Under Resolution 7, the Directors will be able to issue new shares up to a nominal value of £365,682, which is equal to approximately one-third of the
issued share capital at 30th November 2001 together with an amount required to satisfy the Company's obligations to issue shares in respect of share
options aiready granted.

Under Resolution 8, the Directors will be able to issue shares without regard to statutory pre-emption rights in refation to the following:

1. for cash, up to a maximum amount of £144,852, representing about five per cent (5%} of the issued ordinary share capital at 30th November 2001; or
2. to existing holders of individual share options, as disclosed on pages 13 and 31 of this document, up to a maximum amount of £55,951; or

3.in a rights or other pre-emptive issue.

These arrangements are intended to ensure that the interests of existing shareholders are protected so that, for example, in the event of an issue of new
shares for cash to new shareholders, which is not a rights issue and which is not in respect of the exercise of existing option arrangements, the

proportionate interest of existing shareholders could not without their agreement be reduced by more than five per cent {5%].

The authorities sought by resolutions 7 and 8 will fast for 15 months or until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting whichever is the earlier.
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GENEMEDIX plc

Incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985 (as amended) with registered No. 3467317

PROXY FORM - ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Please read the notes before completing and signing this Notice.

L

IL

U

(@

()

Iv.

VI

We, The Central Depository (Pte) Limited, of 20 Cecil Street #06-03/08, Singapore Exchange, Singapore 049703, (“CDP™)
being a member of GENEMEDIX plc, hereby appoint :

or, failing him/her, the person or persons whose details are given in Part IIi(a) and (b), provided that such details have been
verified in Part VI by the affixing of the seal or signature of or on behalf of the person named in Part II, and on the basis
that such person or persons are authorised to vote in respect of the proportion of the shareholding referred to in Part II
shown in Part III or if no proportions are so shown, in respect of the whole of the said shareholding :-

NRIC/ Proportion of
Name Address Passport Shareholdings %
Number

and / or (delete as appropriate)

as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at
the offices of CMS Cameron McKenna, Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London, EC1A 4DD on 16 May 2002
commencing at 10.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof. The proxy is required to vote as indicated with an “X” on the
resolutions set out in the Notice of Meeting and summarized in Part IV. If no direction as to voting is given, the
proxy/proxies may vote or abstain at his/her/their discretion, as he/she/they will on any other matter arising at the Meeting.

No. Resolutions

For

Against

1. | To receive the accounts for the year ended 30 November 2001.

2. | To approve the remuneration policy contained in the report on Directors’
remuneration for the year ended 30 November 2001.

3. | To reappoint Paul Edwards as a director.

i 4. | To reappoint Julian Attfield as a director.

5. | To authorize the setting up of a Revenue Approved Employee Share Option

Scheme.

6. | To re-appoint Arthur Andersen as auditors and to authorise the directors to

fix their remuneration.

7. | To authorise the directors to issue shares

8. | To disapply statutory pre-emption rights

Dated this 18" dayof April 2002

The Central Depository (Pte) Limited

L}
Cy xee

Signature of Director

TO BE COMPLETED BY DIRECT ACCOUNT HOLDER(SYDEPOSITORY AGENT IF HE/SHE/IT WISHES TO

APPOINT A PROXY/PROXIES UNDER PART III

For Individuals : For Corporations :

Signature of Direct Account Holder | Signature of Director

Signature of Director/Secretary

Common‘Seal

IMPORTANT : PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF




Notes:

Part I

Part IV

Part VI

General :

1)

2)

1)

2)

A Direct Account Holder or a Depository Agent may appoint not more than two proxies, who
shall be natural persons, to attend and vote in his/her/its place as proxy for CDP in respect of
his/her/its shareholdings by completing Part III (a) and/or (b).

Where a Direct Account Holder is a corporation and wishes to be represented at the Meeting,

it must appoint a proxy/proxies to attend and vote at the Meeting in respect of its
shareholdings

A Direct Account Holder or a Depository Agent who wishes to appoint more than one proxy
must specify the proportion of the shareholdings (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to
be represented by each proxy. If no proportion of shareholdings, is specified, the proxy
whose name appears first shall be deemed to carry 100 per cent of the shareholding of
his/her/its appointer and the proxy whose name appears second shall be deemed to be
appointed in the alternate.

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate box against each resolution how you wish the
proxy to vote. If this Proxy Form is deposited without any indication as to how the
proxy/proxies will vote, the proxy/proxies may vote or abstain from voting at his/her/their
discretion.

This Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited by the Direct Account Holder or
Depository Agent at the office of the Singapore Share Transfer Agent, M & C Services
Private Limited, 138 Robinson Road #17-00, The Corporate Office, Singapore 068906,
Facsimile (65) 225-1452, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

If a Direct Account Holder or Depository Agent wishes to appoint a proxy/proxies, this
Proxy Form must be signed by the Direct Account Holder or Depository Agent or his/her/its
attorney duly authorised in writing. In the case of joint Direct Account Holders, all Joint
Direct Account Holders must sign this Proxy Form. If the Direct Account Holders or
Depository Agent is a corporation, this Proxy Form must be executed under its common seal
or under the hand of its attorney duly authorized in writing. The power of attorney or other
authority appointing the attorney or a notarially/duly certified copy thereof must be attached
to this Proxy Form if it is signed by an attorney.

The Company shall be entitled to reject a Proxy Form which is incomplete, improperly
completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from
the instructions of the appointor specified on this Proxy Form.
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GeneMedix plc

For use at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 16th May 2002
I/We (Block letters please)

Proxy

Oof

being (a) mermber(s) of GeneMedix plc hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting, or failing him*

As my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 16th May
at 10.30am at Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London ECIA 4DD for the following purposes:

*If it is desired to appoint as proxy any other person, delete the Chairman or the meeting and insert the name of your proxy; the alteration
must be initialled

Ordinary resolutions For Against

1 To receive the audited accounts of the Company

2. To approve the remuneration policy contained in the report on Directors’ remuneration

3. To reappoint Paul Edwards as a director

4. To reappoint Julian Attfield as a director

5. To reappoint Arthur Andersen as the auditors of the company

6. To approve the adoption of a Revenue Approved Share Option Scheme

aggregate nominal amount of £965,682.

7. To grant the Directors the authority to allot umissued securities in the Company up to an

Special resolution

8. To grant the Directors authority to disapply statutory pre-emption rights

Notes

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his
behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the company.

2. To be effective, the instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is executed (or a notarially certified copy of such
authority) must be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting. A form
of proxy is enclosed with this notice. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude shareholders from attending and voting
in person at the meeting.

3. Copies of all Directors’ service contracts will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal business
hours on any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the meeting closes and at the place of the
Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to, and during, the meeting.

4. The register of Directors’ interests maintained by the Company under Section 325 Companies Act 1985 shall be produced at the
commencement of the meeting and remain open and accessible during the continuance of the meeting to any person attending the meeting.

5. For the purpose of enabling the Company to determine which persons are entitled to attend or vote at the meeting, and how many votes
such persons may cast, a person must be entered on the Company’s register of members by 6.00p.m. on Tuesday 14th May 2002.

6 In the case of joint holders the signature of any one holder will be sufficient but the names of all joint holders should be stated.
7 A member may appoint his or her own proxy in the space provided and such proxy need not be a member of the Company.

8 If the proxy is not mandated as to how to vote, he or she may vote at his or her discretion.



(EIVLX Notice of Annual General Meeting

GeneMedix

of
GeneMedix plc

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 11.00 a.m. on Thursday 26th May
2003 at Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London EC1A 4DD for the following purposes:

1.

ftn

To receive the audited accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 30 November 2002, the Directors' report and
the Auditors' report on those accounts.

To approve the remuneration policy contained in the report on Directors' remuneration for the year ended 30 November
2002.

To reappoint Gordon Mylchreest, who is retiring by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and
being eligible, offers himself for re-election. '

. To reappoint Fong Kwok Jen, who is retiring by rotation in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association and being

eligible, offers himself for re-election.

-To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this
meeting until the conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company at which audited accounts are laid and to authorise
the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Dated 29th May 2003

By order of the Board
Julian Atffield
Secretary

Registered Office:
Rosalind Franklin House
Fordham Road
Newmarket

CB8 7XN



Notes

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his
behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. °

2. To be effective, the instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is executed (or a notarially certified copy of such authority)
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting. A form of proxy is
enclosed with this notice. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude shareholders from attending and voting in person at the
meeting.

3. Copies of all Directors' service contracts will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal business hours
on any weekday (Saturdays and public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the meeting closes and at the place of the Annual
General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to, and during, the meeting.

4. The register of Directors' interests maintained by the Company under Section 325 Companies Act 1985 shall be produced at the
commencement of the meeting and remain open and accessible during the continuance of the meeting to any person attending the meeting.

5. For the purpose of enabling the Company to determine which persons are entitled to attend or vote at the meeting, and how many votes such
persons may cast, a person must be entered on the Company's register of members by 8.00p.m. on Tuesday 24" June 2003.

Explanatory Notes to the 2003 AGM Notice dated 26" June 2003.
Resolution 1: Accounts

Far each financial year the Directors are required to present the audited accounts, the Directors' report and the Auditors’ report to the shareholders
at a general meeting.

Cince the resolution to receive the accounts has been proposed, and before a vote is taken, the Chairman will invite questions from shareholders
on the accounts and any other matters relating to the Company's business.

Fiesolution 2: Directors' remuneration policy

Shareholders are asked to vote on the remuneration policy for Directors. The policy is contained in the report on Directors’ remuneration on pages
14 to 15 of the report and accounts.

The Combined Code asks boards to consider each year whether the circumstances are such that shareholders should be invited at the Annual
Cieneral Meeting to vote to approve the remuneration policy for Directors. Your Directors consider that asking shareholders from time to time (but
not necessarily each year) to vote on the policy facilitates accountability and transparency. As the Company's financial year ends on 30"
Movember, the new remuneration regulations do not apply, but the Directors consider it appropriate that the shareholders should vote to approve
the remuneration policy.

Resolutions 3 and 4; Reappointment of Directors

The Articles of Association state that a proportion of the Directors must retire at each Annual General Meeting. Accordingly Gordon Mylchreest
and Fong Kwok Jen retire at this AGM and, being eligible offers themselves for re-election. Biographical details of the Directors and particulars of
their service contracts with the Company are set out in the report and accounts.

Resolution 5: Reappointment of auditors

At each Annual General Meeting the Company is required to appoint auditors to serve until such next meeting. The Company's present auditors,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have said that they are willing to continue in office for a further year. Resolution 5 proposes their reappointment
and that, in accordance with normal practice, the Directors should be authorised to agree their fees.
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GeneMedix plc

For use at the Annual General Meeting, to be held on 26 June 2003

"We [block letters please]

Proxy

of

being [a) member[s] of GeneMedix pic hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting, or failing him/her*

As myfour proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the €Company, to be held on 26 June 2003
at 2.00 pm at CMS Cameron McKenna, Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London EC1A 4DD for the following purposes:

*

If it is desired to appoint as proxy any other person, delete ‘the Chairman of the meeting’ and insert the name of your proxy;
the alteration must be initialled )

Ordinary resolutions ' For Against

To receive the audited accounts of the Company

To approve the remuneration policy contained in the report on Directors’ remuneration

To reappoint Fong Kwok Jen as a Director

1
2
3 To reappoint Gordon Mylchreest as a Director
4
5

To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the auditors 6f the Company

Notes

1

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and
vote on histher behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be effective, the instrument appointing a proxy and any authority under which it is executed {or a notarially certified copy of
such authority} must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding
the meeting. A form of proxy is enclosed with this notice. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude
shareholders from attending and voting in person at the meeting.

Copies of all Directors’ service contracts will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal
business hours on any weekday {Saturdays and public holidays excluded] from the date of this notice until the meeting closes,
and at the place of the Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to, and during, the meeting.

The register of Directors’ interests maintained by the Company under Section 325 Companies Act 1985 shall be produced at

the commencement of the meeting and remain open and accessible during the continuance of the meeting to any person
attending the meeting.

For the purpose of enabling the Company to determine which persons are entitled to attend or vote at the meeting, and how
many votes such persons may cast, a person must be entered on the Company's register of members by 6.00 pm on Tuesday
24 june 2003.

In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient but the names of all joint holders should be
stated.

A member may appoint hisfher own proxy in the space provided and such proxy need not be a member of the Company.

If the proxy is not mandated as to how to vote, he or she may vote at his’her discretion.
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R GENEMEDIX plc

Incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985 (as amended) with registered No. 3467317

o PROXY FORM - ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Please read the notes before completing and signing this Notice.

L We, The Central Depository (Pte) Limited, of 4 Shenton Way #02-01, SGX Centre 2, Singapore 068807, (“CDP”) being a
member of GENEMEDIX ple, hereby appoint :

11
i
1 or, failing himvher, the person or persons whose details are given in Part IIl(a) and (b), provided that such details have been
L verified in Part VI by the affixing of the seal or signature of or on behalf of the person named in Part II, and on the basis
; ) that such person or persons are authorised to vote in respect of the proportion of the shareholding referred to in Part II
1,*:i:".="3 shown in Part Il or if no proportions are so shown, in respect of the whole of the said sharcholding :-
o I NRIC/ Proportion of
Name Address Passport Shareholdings %
‘ Number
| @
‘ and / or (delete as appropriate)
(b)

as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at
the offices of CMS Cameron McKenna, Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London, EC1A 4DD on 26 June 2003
commencing at 2.00 pm. and at any adjournment thereof. The proxy is required to vote as indicated with an “X” on the
resolutions set out in the Notice of Meeting and summarized in Part IV. If no direction as to voting is given, the
proxy/proxies may vote or abstain at his/her/their discretion, as he/she/they will on any other matter arising at the Meeting.

IV. | No Resolutions For Against

1. | To receive the accounts for the year ended 30 November 2002.

2. | To approve the remuneration policy contained in the report on Directors’
remuneration for the year ended 30 November 2002.

3. | To reappoint Gordon Mylchreest as a director.

4. | To reappoint Fong Kwok Jen as a director.

5. | To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors and to authorise the directors to
fix their remuneration

Dated this 3rd dayof June 2003.

V.  The Central Depository (Pte) Limited

Q.(-‘

Signature of Director

IMPORTANT : PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

VI. | TO BE COMPLETED BY DIRECT ACCOUNT HOLDER(S)YDEPOSITORY AGENT IF HE/SHE/IT WISHES TO
APPOINT A PROXY/PROXIES UNDER PART 1II
For Individuals : . For Corporations :
: Signature of Direct Account Holder | Signature of Director _ Signature of Director/Secretary Common Seal
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Notes:

Part IO

Fart IV

Part VI

General :

1

2)

)

2)

A Direct Account Holder or a Depository Agent may appoint not more than two proxies,
who shall be natural persons, to attend and vote in his/her/its place as proxy for CDP in
respect of his/her/its shareholdings by completing Part III (a) and/or (b).

Where a Direct Account Holder is a corporation and wishes to be represented at the

Meeting, it must appoint a proxy/proxies to attend and vote at the Meeting in respect of its
shareholdings

A Direct Account Holder or a Depository Agent who wishes to appoint more than one
proxy must specify the proportion of the shareholdings (expressed as a percentage of the
whole) to be represented by each proxy. If no proportion of shareholdings, is specified, the
proxy whose name appears first shall be deemed to carry 100 per cent of the shareholding
of his/her/its appointer and the proxy whose name appears second shall be deemed to be
appointed in the alternate.

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate box against each resolution how you wish
the proxy to vote. If this Proxy Form is deposited without any indication as to how the
proxy/proxies will vote, the proxy/proxies may vote or abstain from voting at his/her/their
discretion.

This Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited by the Direct Account Holder or
Depository Agent at the office of the Singapore Share Transfer Agent, M & C Services
Private Limited, 138 Robinson Road #17-00, The Corporate Office, Singapore 068906,
Facsimile (65) 225-1452, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

If a Direct Account Holder or Depository Agent wishes to appoint a proxy/proxies, this
Proxy Form must be signed by the Direct Account Holder or Depository Agent or
his/her/its attorney duly authorised in writing. In the case of joint Direct Account Holders,
all Joint Direct Account Holders must sign this Proxy Form. If the Direct Account Holders
or Depository Agent is a corporation, this Proxy Form must be executed under its common
seal or under the hand of its attorney duly authorized in writing. The power of attorney or
other authority appointing the attorney or a notarially/duly certified copy thereof must be
attached to this Proxy Form if it is signed by an attorney.

The Company shall be entitled to reject a Proxy Form which is incomplete, improperly
completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable
from the instructions of the appointor specified on this Proxy Form.
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GeneMedix Appoints Bank of New York as its Depositary Bank for NASDAQ Listing

GeneMedix plc ("GeneMedix” or “the Company”), the UK biopharmaceutical company with
operations in Europe and Asia and with joint London and Singapore Stock Exchange listings, today
announces the first step of its plans to list on NASDAQ with the appointment of the Bank of New
York as its depositary bank for a Level One American Depositary Receipt program. The New York
based investment bank, Global Markets Capital Group, will manage the listing process. This is a
sponsored program, which minimises any financial outlay to the Company and will allow US investors
to directly purchase the Company’s shares.

Once the Level One program is declared effective by the US Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC), GeneMedix will prepare a Form 20-F for lodgement with the SEC as part of its next step of
achieving the more significant Level Two ADR program. A Level Two ADR program is a US listing
(with US GAAP and full SEC compliance). The listing will allow for GeneMedix ADRs to trade on the
fully automated, screen based Small Cap NASDAQ market. ’

Mr Paul Edwards, CEQ, GeneMedix, stated:

“The program will allow GeneMedix to access the very important US capital markets, where there is
tremendous investor interest in the emerging field of biogenerics.”

For the benefit of shareholders the following information is provided:

About American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

ADRs are commonly used to facilitate US investors investing in foreign companies not listed in the
USA. An ADR is created when a broker purchases the company’s shares on the home stock market
and delivers those to the depositary's local custodian bank, which then instructs the depositary bank,
The Bank of New York, to issue ADRs. ADRs may trade freely, just like any other security, in the US
Over-the-Counter (OTC) market.

GeneMedix Sponsored Level One American Depositary Receipts

GeneMedix has entered a Sponsored Level One ADR program, which is a convenient way to access
the US market. The company's Level One ADRs are traded in the US OTC market. The company does
not have to comply with US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) or full Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) disclosure. Essentially a Sponsored Level One ADR program allows non-
US companies to enjoy the benefits of a publicly traded security in the US without changing its
current reporting process.

US brokers may deal either directly in GeneMedix shares on the LSE or in ADRs in the OTC market.
Some US investors, particularly certain domestic mutual funds, are constrained from investing directly
in foreign securities and ADRs provide the opportunity for them to invest in LSE listed GeneMedix.

About GeneMedix

GeneMedix is a UK based biopharmaceutical company focused on the development of biogenerics,
or generic versions of currently marketed biopharmaceutical therapeutics, including erythropoietin
(EPO) for the treatment of anaemia, interferon beta for the treatment of multiple sclerosis,
recombinant insulin for the treatment of diabetes, and interferon aifa for the treatment of hepatitis C
and hepatitis B.



About Bank of New York

The Bank of New York Company (NYSE: BK) is a global leader in securities servicing for issuers,
investors and financial intermediaries. The Bank of New York Company plays an integral role in the
infrastructure of the capital markets, servicing securities in more than 100 markets worldwide. It
provides quality solutions through leading technology for global corporations, financial institutions,
asset managers, governments, non-profit organizations and individuals. Its principal subsidiary, The
Bank of New York, founded in 1784, is the oldest Bank in the United States and has a distinguished
history of serving clients around the world through its five primary businesses: Securities Servicing
and Global Payment Services, Private Client Services and Asset Management, Corporate Banking,
Global Market Services and Retail Banking.

About Global Markets Capital Group

Globa!l Markets Capital Group, LLC is an independent investment banking firm providing innovative
strategic advisory services and mergers and acquisitions expertise globally to public and private
companies. Through its advisory roles and its network of global companies active in Europe, Asia,
Australia and the US, the firm has assisted numerous international life sciences and emerging
technology companies in achieving their strategic goals.

11 February 2004

ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer

Global Markets Capital Group, LLC Tel: 1212 808 9700
Mark Saunders, President

Bankside Consultants Tel: 0207 444 4140
Michael Padley/Susan Scott

Further copies are available from the Group's head office — Rosalind Franklin House, Fordham Road,
Newmarket, Suffolk, CB8 7XN
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GeneMedix press release

GeneMedix appoints US [nvestment Bankers

GeneMedix plc ("GeneMedix” or “the Company”), the UK biopharmaceutical company with
operations in Europe and Asia and with joint London and Singapore Stock Exchange listings, today
announces that it has appointed the New York based Investment Bankers, Global Markets Capital
Group, LLC, to act as its strategic and corporate advisors-in the US. GeneMedix is involved in the
development and manufacture of generic and second-generation versions of therapeutic proteins
using recombinant DNA technology and novel cell culture.

Global Markets Capital Group will assist GeneMedix to develop its corporate activities and target
strategic US merger and acquisition initiatives. This will be supported by a programme of accessing
the US capital markets with a view to increasing shareholder value, broadening GeneMedix’'s
shareholder base and improving the Company’s financial position,

Mr Mark Saunders, President of Global Markets Capital Group, stated, “With over a quarter of all
new drugs approved since 2000 classed as biopharmaceuticals, approximately 500 candidate
biopharmaceuticals currently undergoing clinical evaluation, and pipelines in pharmaceutical
companies appearing to be under increasing pressure, we expect to see sustained and strong growth
within the biogenerics sector. We believe that GeneMedix is well positioned to take advantage of
these opportunities.”

Commenting on the appcintment, Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer said, “We have selected
Global Markets Capital due to their sector expertise and US contacts. The recent debate in the USA
regarding the route for licensing biogenerics has heightened the profile of the sector and we
therefore feel the time is right for GeneMedix to look at strategic opportunities in the USA and to
position itself to access this significant market as it opens up.”

Editor's Note

About GeneMedix

GeneMedix is a UK based biopharmaceutical company focused on the development of biogenerics,
or generic versions of currently marketed biopharmaceutical therapeutics, including erythropoietin
(EPQ) for the treatment of anaemia, recombinant insulin for the treatment of diabetes, and interferon
alfa for the treatment of hepatitis C and hepatitis B.

About Global Markets Capital Group

Global Markets Capital Group, LLC is an independent investment banking firm providing innovative
strategic advisory services and mergers and acquisitions expertise globally to public and private
companies. Through its advisory roles and its network of global companies active in Europe, Asia,
Australia and the US, the firm has assisted numerous international life sciences and emerging
technology companies in achieving their strategic goals.
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GeneMedix plc Tel: +44 1638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer

Global Markets Capital Group, LLC Tel: +1 212 808 9700
Mark Saunders, President
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Further copies are available from the Group's head office — Rosalind Franklin House, Fordham Road,
Newmarket, Suffolk, (B8 7XN
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drug discovery

GA-CSF~ used in the treatment of neutropenia in cytotoxic chemotherapy, acceleration of myeloid recovery following bane
marrow transplantation and neutropenia in patients treated with ganciclovir in AIDS-related eytomegalovirus retinitis

ble 1: Products in the pipel

ine

Interferon-fu]-2b

Intarferon alfa is currently used as a frontling treatment for hepatitis B and C, and in the treatment of cancer, most notably AIDS-related &8
Kaposi's sarcoma, hairy cell leukaemia, follicutar fymphomia, CML and lymph or fiver metastases of carcinoid tumour

Erythropoietin

Epoetin cc is indicated for the treatment of anaemia associated with chronic renal failure, anaemia associated with Retrovir- P
treated patients, chemotherapy-induced anaemia in non-myeloid malignancies and anaemia associated with surgical blood loss.

Insulin

Insulin is used in the treatment of Type | and Type Ii diabetes mellitus

Interferon —y

Ineferon-v is indicated for chronic granulomatous disease to reduce the frequency of serious infection

Interfeukin-2

Interleukin-2 is used in the treatment of cancer, notably renal cell carcinoma, metastatic melanoma, non-Hodgkin's lymphoma

and acute myeloid leukaemia
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1 oguess iowill depend on the
protein as 1o the size of the study, For
instnce a non-gly
product such as

ssafated icrobial
vauld prohably
be the pasiest one, whereas at the other

manufacturing chemist :

end o the scale bala-interferon, for
examplo, which s o glveosolated
mamnation praduct, will require a very
different study allogether”

The other thing that is very much
parl of GeneMaodix's strat is that
while there is o window for lirst gener-

ation gencrics, ‘what wo are seeing
from the innovatars is the second gen-
sration products, sach as Aranesp awd
peg-iterferon from Amgen
ring-Plough, which is why we
dlane u deal with SkyePharon 1o
dop o slow  pelease second
aenertion interferon-a, Thoese sucond
generation alleratives will still he

8 Tevminology

Nestropenin ~ Tleve e vartones topes o colls do the fdoowd Newtegaiiis
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vtk Negteepenie i o sedine o of o npler of tae

ot frergps vy
Hoie e eipeing g
Hirat, e e

el v s Afrewss evdics e 0TI o it e e e bt i

snumerﬁ ilglénd'

but when on the market we
hope they will be at least as good. i
not batter than anvthing already there,

“While its & bigaer target for us, the
downside is that it necds a fuli clinical
teial, althongh we hope itowill be o
shorter study, The goal at the end s

mizlans,

vhvionsly o very, very big market, and
EPQO, second goneralion a-interferon,
GOSE, and beta-inmerteran are primarily
AW,

Larnt denes,”

So. the broad strategy is to get the
cell Tines, build the plants 1o get the
produets, or cetain products in the first
wencration geaerics and hehind tha
bring oo the second  generation

products. It is also to lind commercial
partners, initiathy in Eorope, but long
term in the US and, where appropri-
ate, el them eaclior inte the Asian
market. as mentioned with insalin,
Al these prodocts show that
GenoMudix has o market-led strategy
‘W base our company around p

adts it age dhee Hest e af dhe e

oy add st b
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Hrug discovery

Apatural proteins and so we ave a
market-led  company  rather  than
therapy-led. stressed Edwards.

"With huge vatue markets available
wa decided to be specialist protein
manufacturers and we will manufac-
ture the proteins that have the brge
markets. Having said that. there are
therupy arcas that may he of interest,
such as oncalogy, so we do talk to the
praducers in those fields.’

second generation

One problem that GeneMedix needs to
avercome is the competition {from com-
panies that already have the primary
product and are converting those sales
b e

ond generation drngs. Probably (e

best examplye is Schoring-Plough, which The factory at
has converled somaething like 757% of its - Tullamore, Southern

imarket  in the  first genertion
w-interferon-2h product, Intron AL to the
second generation product, Peg-Tntron.

Iretand. inset pictures.
was butll with high
quality Hnes in a small,
hut highly flexible
where this happens thire is unlikelv oo plant

b any interest in a straight generics

market,” say

“This is soon Fkely to rise (o Q0% and

fahwards, although e
adids enigmaticallv. "We may take the
view that in major markets like the C1S,
it H!ﬂ)’ HHI‘\'\", sense,’

Realisticatly he is cancentrating on
the second  generation  markets in
CeneMedix’s  collaboration  with
Skyepharmi, *We are about dentifving
vehere the markets are, bt we are not
aboul marketing the product. We will
o that in partnerships there are

companiies oul Hiers swho are very goos)
a1 marketing, and ther

are certainly
come very clever generic companies,
wha have not gol hiolagics. so that
would make the perfect maeh)”

strong pipeline

The biogenerics market  still has
andd GenceMedix
taindy has the widest snge of
praducts in the pipeline, And as v also
has the planis: 'L wonld say we s
cirtainde one of the market leaders, if
not the market leader’. Edwards savs.

redatively i play

o1

Howaver, when s
GeneNMaedi sees itsell in

“We have 10 he
readistic i what we can achiever any-

market, he cantione

one who has 2 strategy 1o be the next
GSK s Taaling themselves, We have 1o
be focused on doing what we do well”

Bat he didn't rabe onl ajoint vanture
o evena merger with one or more athey
companies. possibiv a drug delivery
conpany with a number ol platforns or
‘O a deal-by-deal

r

I ZENCTICS COMpPany.

basis we'd be looking for quite a lot of

maney fram them, so it might ceach the
point. from both companies’ view. to
decide 10 go in tngether

“There are two wavs of continuing:
cither we build hilaterally, or we
become parl of a bigger company thit
already  has  Hacilities v place.”
However,  Edwards  stressed  that

GeneMedix does not have pretensions
towards big company status,

‘We will  pasition ourselves o
ntaximise our shaveholder potentisl,

and B0 we ore nccelerating o series of

second generitian products, that will
reguire funding. I vou are doiong this
helore there are products on the market,
vou wequire funding urgentlv, and the
ship.”
The guestion of funding s still
by wnanswered in the hiotech
industry. However, Edwards thinks
there may be si

mast fikedy way s through partine

ans ol an aplara. "Six 1o
nine manths ago, D would have besi
incredibly ploomy aboat the funding
sitiation in the hiopharm industeyv. bt

today | am loss so. s clearly still a
veerv, very tight market, but there is
more oplimism and a company like ours
benefits fromy having an Asian share-
holding bucause the market is not the
sarne as i Lendon ar New York: its not
as huovant as it has been, but there s still
money available. As we go forward. we
need 1o maximise the opportunities in
terms of licensing products. and be
creative in the use of oneechnology,”

major player
1 believe GeneMedix will he a major
payer in the market in five 1o ten vears’
time, What form we will be in at that
stage is debatalile.

‘We mav st be an independent
compaiy, but there will he mergers and
acquisitions in (the indostry. The growth
rate required to sustain the product
s cannot b done organically, so if

voirare a small company vou fatcl on ta
a bigger company, usuably under the
bigger  company's  organisation.’
Edwieds concludes.

‘However, the concept of what we
are trving 10 do — making generic
sions of first generation and secand
gencrdion protein based drogs - witl
his the cornerstone of whatever is done,
wrever it is done.

“The key thing is that untit vou have
the method of manufacture and e
proteins i your lund, vou cannat do
anvthing, And we have both” H

aned w
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GeneMedix press release

Letter of Intent signed with Penang Development Corporation to establish a

Biotechnology Company in Penang, Malaysia for the development, manufacture and
commercialisation of human insulin.

11 June 2003 - GeneMedix plc (LSE:GMX) and Penang Development Corporation (“PDC") today
announce the signing of a letter of intent (“Lol”) under which GeneMedix and PDC will work
together to set up a Company in Penang, Malaysia for the development, manufacture and
commercialisation of human insulin.

Under the Lol, GeneMedix would out-license its existing insulin know-how to a newly formed
Malaysian company. it will use its expertise in the development of biopharmaceuticals and in the
design, construction and operation of state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities, to construct a
facility built to international quality standards. The total anticipated investment of $34 miflion is
expected to be funded by a mixture of development loans, grants and an issue of equity in the
newly formed company to local investors. PDC will make land available, and assist in gaining
access to the development loans on attractive commercial terms and to grant funding. Both
parties will work together in bringing in local investors to the project, a process that is already
well underway.

GeneMedix will aut-license its insulin know-how to the newly formed company in return for an
up-front milestone payment and royaity fee payable on sales of bulk product. it is also intended
that GeneMedix will retain a majority shareholding in the new company. The development of
the full-scale industrial process will be completed by GeneMedix at its own expense and
transferred into the facility, which would be scheduled for completion in mid 2005.

Paul Edwards, GeneMedix’s Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“It has always been the Company'’s objective to set up an insulin company in South-East
Asia to provide insulin for the Asian markets, where demand for human insulin is
anticipated to increase rapidly. We believe that the collaboration with PDC will provide
GenelMedix with an exciting opportunity to develop this business in a region that is
well suited for biotechnology. We believe that this will create real value for our
shareholders.”

12 June 2003

ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663320
Pau! Edwards, Chief Executive Officer

Coliege Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020
Nicholas Nelson
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GeneMedix press release

Collaboration with Antares Pharma, Inc

GeneMedix plc (LSE: GMX) and Antares Pharma, Inc (Nasdag: ANTR) today announce
their intention to form a collaboration through which Antares Pharma’s current and
future injection devices would be used to support GeneMedix's introduction of generic
biopharmaceuticals in certain territories. Specifics of the biopharmaceutical products,
territories and financial terms of the collaboration were not disclosed.

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer of GeneMedix Plc, commented:

“As we have continued to add protein products to our portfolio, it has become clear
there will be advantages in being able to distinguish our products from those of our
competitors. It has already been proven in established markets, such as those for insulin
and human growth hormone, that device technology can be a differential advantage.
We believe that Antares Pharma’s device products will be well received by patients and
healthcare professionals as a less invasive way of delivering injectable products and will
help us to establish a strong market presence.”

Roger G Harrison, Chief Executive Officer and President of Antares Pharma,
commented:

“We are delighted with this collaboration. GeneMedix currently has an impressive
portfolio of biopharmaceuticals in development and one product already on the Asian
market. We believe that our needle-free and mini-needle technology will provide
competitive differentiation for some of GeneMedix's products and will help establish a
strong competitive position for GeneMedix in the markets they enter.”

25 March 2003

ENQUIRIES:

GeneMaedix plc Tel: +44 (0)1638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer

Antares Pharma, Inc ' Tel: +00 610 458 6200

Dr Roger Harrison, President & CEQC
Lawrence M Christian, CFO & Vice President - Finance

College Hill Tel: +44 (0)207 457 2020
Nicholas Nelson
Clare Warren

Page 1 of 2



Editors notes:

GeneMedix develops, manufactures and markets second generation biopharmaceuticals.
GeneMedix was founded through a collaboration with the Shanghai Institute of
Biochemistry and subsequently acquired rights to certain biopharmaceutical proteins
produced through recombinant DNA technology. The company now has worldwide
rights to certain high expression cell lines, has eight products in development and one
(GM-CSF) on the market. Additionally, GeneMedix is investing in manufacturing bases
around the world and intends to deliver high quality biopharmaceuticals to a global
health marketplace.

About Antares Pharma

Antares Pharma develops pharmaceutical delivery systems, including needle-free and
mini-needle injector systems and transdermal gel technologies. These delivery systems
improve both the efficiency of drug therapies and the patient’s quality of life. Antares
Pharma’s needle-free injection systems for the delivery of insulin and growth hormone
are currently available in more than 20 countries. In addition, Antares Pharma has
several products under development and is conducting ongoing research to create new
products that combine various elements of the Company’'s technology portfolio.
Antares Pharma has corporate headquarters in Exton, Pennsylvania, with research and
development facilities in Minneapolis, Minnesota, and Basel, Switzerland.

Page 2 of 2
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GeneMedix press release

Binding Heads of Terms signed with Antibioticos for the development and manufacture
of a range of biopharmaceuticals

25 February 2003 - Antibioticos Group and GeneMedix plc (LSE:GMX) today announce the
signing of binding Heads of Terms for a collaboration in which Antibioticos Group of Milan, ltaly,
provides GeneMedix with exclusive access to the cell lines and manufacturing methods for
Interferon-beta, Granulocyte Colony Stimulating Factor (G-CSF) and recombinant Growth
Hormone (rtHGH).

In addition, the parties have entered into a Joint Venture to construct a bacterial fermentation
facility, to be based in Spain, which will have the capability to produce GeneMedix's portfolio of
bulk microbial therapeutic proteins, to international GMP standards. The global market for the
three new products exceeds 4 billion US dollars, and we have already started discussions with a
number of potential marketing partners for these proteins.

Antibioticos and GeneMedix have entered into a 75% / 25% Joint Venture and will -be
constructing a state-of-the-art bacterial fermentation facility in Spain at a total investment of
€25m over the next two years. This will be used for the contract manufacture of GeneMedix's
bulk Interferon-alpha, as well as the manufacture and supply of bulk G-CSF and rHGH. Plant
design has been largely completed and construction wili commence in mid 2003.

GeneMedix will satisfy its 25% contribution to the total capital of the Joint Venture, totalling
€6.25m, by issuing loans to the Joint Venture that are payable in equal instalments from mid
2003 to early 2005. We shall also be issuing loan notes, convertible into between 24 and 32
million Ordinary GeneMedix shares in late 2003 and 2004, plus pay agreed royalties on sales.

The bulk protein will be supplied on an exclusive basis to GeneMedix, who will be responsible for
the secondary manufacture, regulatory submissions and distribution of finished product, which it
will do in conjunction with marketing partners.

Paul Edwards, GeneMedix’ Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“It has always been the Company's stated objective to acquire additional proteins that would be
complementary to our existing portfolio of products. We believe that the collaboration with
Antibioticos provides GeneMedix with a new manufacturing base and additional key therapeutic
proteins to our product pipeline targeted at the European market. The addition of these products
takes our portfolio to 9 biogenerics. We believe that this will create real value for our
shareholders, through the continued strengthening of our operational base and by providing the
potential for further sustainable growth for the Company.”

Carlo Frau, Antibioticos's Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“This deal represents our continued commitment to the production of higher value
pharmaceutical products. We believe that this collaboration with GeneMedix offers us the
opportunity to create real value in the field of generic biopharmaceuticals.”

2 February 2003

ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer

College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020
Nicholas Nelson
Clare Warren



JERNETE N S

Notes

The Antibioticos Group is a worldwide market leader in the development and production of
intermediates for the pharmaceutical industry.

Interferon-beta is widely used for the treatment of the “relapsing, remitting* form of Multiple
Sclerosis. This type is characterized by alternating acute episodes and partial or complete
recovery. Interferon-beta is produced using mammalian fermentation and market leaders include
Biogen, Serono and Schering AG. GeneMedix will use its expertise in process development of
mammalian cultures to produce an industrial scale process from the cell lines acquired.

Granulocyte Colony Stimulating Factor (G-CSF) is a potent stimulator of bone marrow cells,
especially those of neutrophil lineage, and may in future be marketed alongside Neustim
(GeneMedix's GM-CSF product). It is widely used in chemotherapy induced neutropenia caused
by cancer treatment. The worldwide market is currently dominated by Amgen (filgrastim) and
Chugai (lenograstim).

Recombinant Human Growth Hormone (rHGH) is used primarily for the treatment of short
stature in children. Pharmacia, Lilly, Novo Nordisk and Serono are the main players in this market.
In addition, Serono have an approval in the USA, under Orphan Drug status rules, for treatment
of wasting in AIDS patients.



Committee of the UK Biolndustry Association and has worked with the UK Department

of Trade and Industry advising on

PAUL EDWARDS is Chief Executive Officer of GeneMedix. He was
appointed to the post of CEO in 1999. He was formerly Vice
President and General Manager of Genzyme Corporation’s UK
operation, a company he joined in 1986. Previously he spent seven
years with Beecham Pharmaceuticals. Most recently he has
worked in management consultancy at Ruston Poole International.
Mr. Edwards is a former Chairman of the Manufacturing Advisory

issues related to the manufacture of

biopharmaceuticals. In 1997 he received an MBE for services to Biotechnology.

SECTOR - BIOPHARMACEUTICAL
(RAKE100) TWST: Can we set the foundation
with a quick introduction and historical sketch
of GeneMedix? '

Mr. Edwards: The company was founded
back in 1997 on the back of some exciting technol-
ogy at the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry. We
acquired a range of high yielding cell lines to enable
us to produce generic versions of the first generation
of therapeutic proteins — EPO, alpha interferon, in-
sulin, etc. We took that work back in-house and in
1999 raised our first serious money and put our man-
agement team together. By the end of 2000, we had
actually listed on the London and Singapore Stock
Exchange, had four products under development and
had acquired a manufacturing plant in China to
allow us to produce GM-CSF. 2001 was a pretty im-
portant year for us. We commenced building our sec-
ond manufacturing plant in Ireland and by the end of
the year we had actually got our first product GM-
CSF on to the market. As we moved into 2002, we
had commercial deals in place for sales and distribu-
tion of our products in China, in India and in South
East Asia. On top of our first two manufacturing

plants, we also signed secondary manufacturing
agreements for finished products in both Malaysia
and in India. Today, therefore we have our product in
the market. We have the second plant now mechani-
cally complete in Ireland to produce EPO. We are in
late stage development on EPO, interferon, with
GM-CSF obviously in the markets and also we have
the insulin under development. Throughout the next
6-12 months, we anticipate really getting ourselves
in position to get our products marketed in Europe
by signing a distribution agreement for the European
Union. We anticipate extending our product range in
terms of additional therapeutic proteins, but also we
anticipate looking to find partners to produce what
we call second generation product, a product similar
to the peg-interferon, for getting the long acting and
slow release versions of the proteins into the market.
So that’s very much where we are headed.

TWST: Can you elaborate on the busi-
ness model and the basis for the focus on the
Asian market? I believe last time we spoke the
Asian market was attractive because of expir-
ing or non-patent protected products as op-
posed to the US and European markets?
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Mr. Edwards: Our aim was to launch our
product first of all in China, which we have al-
ready done, and then follow that with the territo-
ries of South East Asia and India. The products
come off patent in Europe in about 2005 and really
that’s where we see the main thrust of our business
of bringing these products into the market. The
first market place will be in Asia, getting ourselves
experienced and generating cash there. Then, obvi-
ously the big play would be going into Europe and
then eventually into the USA. That’s also why we
are very keen on looking further ahead to the sec-
ond-generation products. We see companies like
Amgen and Shearing-Plough bringing out second
generation products such as Aronesp and peg-in-
terferon out and our strategy is very much to have
similar second generation products that are either
equal in their ability to treat patients or actually
better then the product already out there.

TWST: The facility in Ireland presum-
ably is providing a spring board into the
European market?

Mr. Edwards: Absolutely. We just had our
official opening in fact just last Monday. It’s also a
very strong message in the market. Generic
Biologics is a new area to be in and, as you have
said, they haven’t come off patent yet; there hasn’t
been a definitive pathway to market. So there are
lots of challenges, but very clearly if you are going
to bz a player in this market, you have to be very
bold. We have raised the money, we are building
plants and we are developing our products. It’s all
very well to have good ideas, but until you have
regulated products on the shelf you cannot get
thern into the market.

TWST: Do you plan any significant fur-
ther investments in your current facilities?

Mr. Edwards: Probably not in the short
terrn, as there has been a substantial investment

made that will meet our capacity requirements for
the next four to five years. But clearly if we want
to expand our capacity we will have to put addi-
tional money in. The Plants are designed so that it
becomes easy to build in additional capacity with-
out having to put huge costs in. The China facility
for example has one floor totally undeveloped. The
Irish facility has expansion space to the back and
we have also taken options on land nearby as well.

TWST: Is this a sparsely populated
space at present?

Mr. Edwards: It is. There are other people
looking into the European market, but because the
entry barriers are so high it is a lot smaller number
than let’s say the classic small molecule generics.

TWST: How do you see the company’s
strategic direction unfolding over the next two
or three years and what accomplishments will
make that time frame a success?

Mr. Edwards: If I look in three years time,
we would anticipate having three products into a
number of Asian markets and possibly also South
America. We would be looking therefore to have
GM-CSF, EPO and Interferon launched in markets
such as India, Malaysia, China and potentially
some in South America. I would anticipate that by
that time we would have further proteins under de-
velopment to broaden our product portfolio. I
would anticipate that we would certainly be in de-
velopment for at least one second generation prod-
uct. By that stage, I would anticipate, in addition to
the plant in China and India, that we would have
an additional microbial plant potentially built in
Europe and that we would be well advanced build-
ing an Insulin plant somewhere in Asia. By three
years time, I would like to think we would be close
to getting our first product regulated into Europe.

TWST: Let’s take a quick look at the
products you have mentioned, EPO, GM-CSF,
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alpha Interferon? To put it in layman’s terms,
what are their applications?

Mr. Edwards: EPO is used mainly for peo-
ple urndergoing kidney dialysis and it increases the
red blood cell count. People undergoing kidney
dialysis see their red blood cell count drastically re-
duced and EPO is given to counteract that effect and
thereby stabilizes the patient. It is also used in the
treatment of anemia. CSF, either GM-CSF or GCSF,
does a similar thing, but for white blood cells, which
is normally a problem experienced by people un-
dergoing chemotherapy. Chemotherapy tends to de-
stroy the white blood cells and as you know white
blood cells provide immunity to disease. So previ-
ously people may well not have even died from can-
cer, they may very well have died from secondary
infections because their immune system had been
damaged. GM-CSF and the G-CSF actually stimu-
late the body to replace the white blood cells thus
counteracting the effect of the chemotherapy. The
alpha Interferon is used in the treatment of hepatitis
B and hepatitis C, which are the major infections
around the world. And obviously the insulin is used
in the treatment of diabetes.

TWST: How did the selection process to
identify and target these specific markets un-
fold -- built-in expertise that leant itself readily
to these markets, or more a question of identi-
fying market opportunity first and foremost?

Mr. Edwards: We have a broad manufac-
turing expertise for biological proteins. So we have
ability to produce a series of recombinant proteins.
But we have let ourselves be very much market dri-
ven and have certainly looked at the market size and
when the products coming off patent. So, for in-
stance, the patent on EPO expires right to the end of
2004 in Europe and there is also a market size about
$5.3 billion. Put these two factors together and it
makes it a fairly attractive product. So, yes, this is a

market driven company. We match our skill set with
the market and if we can put those two things to-
gether then we will go after one of those products.

TWST: Is all of the R & D activity done
by the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry?

Mr. Edwards: The basic research and de-
velopment of the production of the cell lines comes
from our collaboration with the Shanghai Institute
of Biochemistry. In many ways that’s what hugely
differentiates us because other companies who
want to get into this area will have to start by look-
ing to license individual proteins. What we are
able to do is buy into a world class institute of bio-
science and get a whole portfolio of product out of
that relationship. It’s fairly unique. You can ask
yourself how many other leading institutes would
be working on generic proteins, but in China they
were doing just that. We also have a five-year deal
with the SIB whereby we have access to all novel
technology coming out of there. And we are filing
the PCTs ahead of international patent filing and
we believe that has the opportunity to create some
real value to the company. They also have a share
holding of something like 11% in the company and
therefore there is a mutual vested interest for us to
work very closely with them.

TWST: Putting this together, am I cor-
rect in thinking you should have fairly good
cost benefits?

Mr. Edwards: That’s right. Obviously
with regards to our research costs, we bought into
from the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry. With
regards to the development costs, obviously these
are not like full new drug programs so the devel-
opment cycle is a lot shorter. On top of that, by
having very high yielding cell lines our plants are
relatively small, low cost. We are also putting our
plants within areas where there is either a real cost
benefit or fiscal incentives. For instance in Ireland,
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we have taken advantage of the corporation tax
rate and then if we work with companies in India,
Malaysia and in our own plant in China we can
take advantage of the low labor costs.

TWST: Is the regulatory environment in
China — the SDA — a challenge?

Mr. Edwards: It’s changing. China is be-
coming far more Western or international in its ap-
proach to medicines. On a country by country
basis, we see various differences. But for biologi-
cal proteins there is actually a laid down procedure
for getting the products to market.

TWST: What’s GeneMedix’s approach
to market?

Mr. Edwards: When we go into the patient
market, in China, we are basically set up our own
small sales and marketing group, and we have
linked up with various distributors in various major
cities. But that really is the only country where we
have any serious plans of doing our own thing. In
India, we have joined forces with a company,
Gland Pharmaceuticals, who take sterile products
into the hospitals. And likewise we are working
with a generics company in Malaysia to open up
the whole South East Asian market. As we move
into Europe, the types of organizations we will look
to deal with are major suppliers of generic prod-
ucts; probably companies who haven’t got access
to biological proteins themselves, but would see
that that is a very good entry point to the higher
value end of the market. We will look to do a pretty
serious deal with a company that can cover most
major countries in Europe, if not all the major
countries in Europe. We will be the provider of the
products, they will carry out marketing and distrib-
ution of the product.

TWST: How do you stand from a finan-
cial aspect? What are the balance sheet high-
lights?

Mr. Edwards: From the annual general re-
port, we have something like GBP11 million in the
bank. That’s enough to see us through on our ini-
tial stated program of work. Clearly, as we go for-
ward, if there are opportunities to expand our
portfolio of products or bring in some very serious
second-generation products then we have to look
at the market and to our investors. If that does re-
quire further funding and that is the right thing to
do, then we wouldn’t shy away from it; although,
clearly there are a lots of ways of funding pro-
grams. That may well be done via partners; that
may well be done by issuing new stocks; and that
may well be done from our own resources.

TWST: What stands out to you as the
critical issue facing the company? Is there a
clearly definable hurdle?

Mr. Edwards: The key challenge is the
regulation of the products in the European mar-
kets. There is absolutely no question about that. I
have total confidence that they will be regulated.
In fact there is a legislation going through at the
moment, which is accepting the concept of a
generics, or second entry biological product. The
fear with any product, whether it be a new drug or
whether it be a generic version, is the speed of get-
ting it through the regulatory process. But we have
been very aggressive on that front anyway. We are
actively engaging the authorities and are actually
on the board of the European Generic Association
and we lobby through there as well. We are taking
quite a leading position in the whole concept to
getting the products to market.

TWST: Can you sketch a quick picture
of the management team and some of the im-
portant strengths and skill sets that they bring
to GeneMedix?

Mr. Edwards: We have got a pretty broad
team of people who have had experience of either
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building plants, getting products to market, and so
on. To name a few of the people, the Director of
Comrnercial Operations is Jackie Turnbull. Jackie
has worked in pharmaceutical consulting and prior
to that she has worked in licensing and business
development for major pharma companies such as
Novo Nordisk and Boehringer Ingelheim. Our
Director of Global Manufacturing, Martin
Comberbach, is very well known in the UK in the
world of manufacturing and he is formerly Director
of Manufacturing of Metris Therapeutics. Before
that he worked in Belgium with SmithKline
Beecham on their vaccine plants, where he was
very much in charge of getting those products
scaled up and into the market. Paul Jennings is our
Director of Quality and he comes directly to us
from Aventis Pharma where he spent something
like 19 years in various international posts. Richard
Barker, ex-Genzyme Corporation, was also a mem-
ber of the UK Manufacturing Advisory Committee
of the Biolndustry Association. He has also worked
with Axis Genetics, and again brings a huge
amount of experience to us. As does our Head of
Quality, John Greenwood. John is in his 50s and
has been Head of the Preclinical Development and
Regulatory Affairs with Protherics and also Head
of Regulatory Affairs at the Centre for Advanced
Microbiological Research. So you can see that we
have broﬁght in heavyweight people who have
worked in either big biotech or in the pharma in-
dustry. I think when people come to biotech com-
panies, they expect to be a very young management
team. We however have intentionally brought in a
lot of experience and people with track records, but
also people who are hungry to be part of the com-
pany and see us move from a very early stage to
reach what we see is our potential, which is to be a
leading global supplier of generic biopharmaceuti-
cals.

TWST: What are the daily issues cross-
ing your desk?

Mr. Edwards: We have set this vision of
how we want to see the company in five to six
years. We are developing the proteins, getting a
broad portfolio of products, having our own man-
ufacturing plants in place, having the products into
the market and also bringing the second generation
products through and the new technology out of
China. So we have this vision and the key issue is
to ensure that we are putting all the building blocks
in place. That means completing the commercial
deals, bringing the technology deal to bring second
generation products in place, having the plants
built, having them regulated by the authorities and
really making sure we are driving that business
forward and that we are taking the most aggressive
approach that we can. And, as I said before, there
are companies out there saying they have a couple
of cell lines and are thinking of doing this and
thinking of doing that. We have done the thinking.
We know the picture of what we want to achieve
and now it’s about aggressively driving that for-
ward and really going after your goal. Our aim is
to be a very major player and we are not going to
pull short of that.

TWST: How were you able to get the
head start? How did the pieces fall into place?

Mr. Edwards: It was partly due to our
Chairman and Founder being pretty foresighted
about it. That goes back to when the company
formed in 1997. He had actually worked with the
Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry to start build-
ing new cell lines in 1995. So that really goes back
something like seven years now, ten years ahead of
when the patents expire. And then it has really just
been a case being bold. We brought a management
team in quickly and we very quickly settled down
and worked out a road map of where we wanted to
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be and how we were going to get there. So, it re-
ally is just the case of someone getting those cell
lines, sitting down and actually getting on with it.

TWST: How well is this all understood
by the analyst and investment community?

Mr. Edwards: The UK analyst commu-
nity are starting to understand us because it is an
interesting space to be in and we are quite differ-
ent from a classic generics company, but also
quite different from the classic biotech company.
Interestingly enough the analyst that follow us
from our housebrokers, Francis Cloud from
Nomura, resides very much in the bioscience

group, but her expertise is also in generics. So she

has a foot in both camps and she is a Bioscientist
herself. And that’s really very much why we went
with that team.

TWST: What are some of the key ques-
tions you are being asked?

Mr. Edwards: The key questions that peo-
ple have to look at is the success of the Asian mar-
ket and what we are trying to explain to people is
the Asian market is a starting point, the western
market is very much our key goal. They need to
understand the way to market, what the regulatory
process is and what are the regulatory hurdles.
That is clearly an issue that arises. It is a very fair
question and it’s a question that should be asked
and it’s a question we are very happy to address.
Then there is the risk profile of the company and
again the risk profile is different. This is not a case
of whether these products will work. We know we
can make them work, we know we can make
thern. It is about speed to markets and how and
when they get regulated. And it’s how the patent
holders will respond to generics coming into the
market. Will they respond by cutting the prices,
will they do it by bring a second generation prod-
ucts into the market?

TWST: When you have a chance to sit
down with potential investors, what are the
three or four key points you give for them to
take a close look at GeneMedix’s stock?

Mr. Edwards: The key things are the
strength of science underpinned by our collaboration
with the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry, which is
a serious, serious scientific institute. The second is
the overall business model, how we are trying to roll-
out a series of products over the next three to five
years, but also how we are looking to second genera-
tion products and acquiring technology out of the
SIB. And third, I would ask people just to look at the
quality of the management team we have built around
us and I know everyone says that, but realistically we
have brought pretty heavyweight people in who have
made commitments to come and work with us, with
a view to being part of a real success story

TWST: Thank you. (DG)

PAUL EDWARDS
CEO
GeneMedix Plc
Waterwitch House
Exeter Road
Newmarket
Suffolk
CBS8 8RX
+44 1638 663320
+44 1638 663411 - FAX
e-mail: general enquiries: enquiries@gen-
emedix.com
e-mail: business development enquiries: j.turn-
bull@genemedix.com

Each Executive who is the featured subject of a
TWST Interview is offered the opportunity to include
a Corporate Profile or other highlight material to
be provided and sponsored by and for the company.
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Appointment

Steve Harris has been appointed as a non-executive Director of GeneMedix plc with
effect from 1 July 2002.

Mr Harris graduated with a Bachelors degree in Pharmacy in 1964, and was
admitted to membership of the Pharmaceutical Society of Great Britain in 1965,
being elected a Fellow of the Society in 2000.

His entire career has been spent in the pharmaceutical industry working with
multinational companies such as ICI Pharmaceutical Division (now part of
AstraZeneca), Merck Sharp and Dohme, Eli Lilly and Reckitt and Colman, as well as
start-up companies such as Gensia and Medeva. He resigned as a Director of
Medeva in 1995 to set up his own consultancy business and is also a non-executive
Director of several companies in the healthcare field.

Mr Harris is currently a director of Proteome Sciences plc, SkyePharma plc,
Microscience Ltd, Trigen Ltd, London Capital Ltd, Advanced Medical Solutions,
Prophilian plc and Sinclair Pharma Ltd. He has also been a Director of Ultramind Ltd
within the last five years.

Commenting on the appointment, Paul Edwards, the Chief Executive of GeneMedix
plc, said:

“We are delighted that Steve has accepted our offer to join us as a non-
executive Director. We feel that his knowledge of the sector and his
extensive experience will add real value to the workings of the board.”

There are no further matters to be disclosed pursuant to paragraph 16.4 of the
Listing Rules.

2 July 2002
ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: +44 (0) 1638 663320
Julian Attfield, Chief Financial Officer
College Hill Tel: +44 (0) 20 7457 2020

Nicholas Nelson
Clare Warren
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PRESS ANNOUNCEMENT - FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

SkyePharma and GeneMedix
Sign Interferon alpha-2b Development Agreement

LONDON, [July 2 2002] - SkyePharma PLC (LSE: SKP; Nasdag: SKYE) and GeneMedix plc (LSE:GMX)
today announce the signature of a Joint Agreement to develop an extended release formulation of
interferon alpha-2b using SkyePharma’s proven DepoFoam/&E injectable drug delivery technology.
Interferon alpha-2b is already accepted as a part of the standard therapy in the treatment of
Hepatitis C and Hepatitis B infection, and as an adjunct to chemotherapy in certain forms of cancer.

Paul Edwards, GeneMedix’ Chief Executive Officer, commented: “This Agreement is an important
milestone in the development of GeneMedix. Our stated objective is to develop innovative
formulations of our recombinant proteins, enabling us to compete more successfully, especially in
Europe and the USA. This deal with SkyePharma gives us access to an advanced project using proven
drug delivery technology.”

SkyePharma has already formulated interferon alpha-2b with its DepoFoam technology. Reflecting
this, and the value of the DepoFoam licensing rights, SkyePharma received from GeneMedix an initial
payment of US$5m. The payment was satisfied through the issue of an unsecured Note, carrying a
5% coupon, which is convertible at any time into between approximately 8.3 million and 11.2
million fully paid, ordinary GeneMedix shares. GeneMedix has the option to redeem the Note for
cash in certain circumstances. In addition, SkyePharma will receive undisclosed milestones payable
against progress through clinical development. The two companies will assume equal shares of
further development and manufacturing costs and will also share potential milestones received and
royalties from a third party on the eventual out-licensing and sales of the product.

Therapeutic proteins are easily degraded inside the body. SkyePharma‘’s proven DepoFoam™
extended release, injectable technology, combined with GeneMedix’ recombinant interferon aipha-
2b, has the possibility to deliver therapeutic doses of the protein in a controlled manner for a period
up to 28 days from a single injection. This would represent a considerable benefit to patients with
Hepatitis C whose current treatment may require injection of interferon alpha-2b every few days.

Michael Ashton, SkyePharma’s Chief Executive Officer, commented: "Extended-release formulations
of macromolecules, particularly proteins, create a substantial market opportunity believed to be
worth in excess of US$10 billion. We have several third-party development agreements already in
place and now intend to capitalise on our in-house expertise by specifically targeting deals where we
share the potential rewards. The synergy between GeneMedix’ expertise in the manufacture of
recombinant proteins and our extended release technologies presents an exciting prospect for many
such projects in the future.”

- ENDS-
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Enquiries:

GeneMedix plc +44 (0)1638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer

College Hill +44 (0)207 4572020
Clare Warren / Michael Padley

SkyePharma PLC +44 (0)207 491 1777

Michael Ashton, Chief Executive Officer

Valerie Tate, Head of Investor Relations

Sandra Haughton, US Investor Relations +1 (212) 753 5780

Buchanan Communications +44 (0)207 466 5000
Tim Anderson / Nicola How

Notes

SkyePharma PLC uses its world-leading drug delivery technology to develop easier-to-use and more
effective formulations of drugs. The majority of challenges faced in the formulation and delivery of
drugs can be addressed by one of the Company's proprietary technologies in the areas of oral,
injectable, inhaled and topical delivery, supported by enhanced solubilisation capabilities. For more
information, visit http:/Awww.skyepharma.com.

GeneMedix plc is establishing a portfolio of high quality, recombinant protein products to treat
both acute and chronic diseases by efficiently managing intellectual property, building a
manufacturing network and establishing long term collaborations with marketing partners to provide
those products at affordable prices on a global basis. Further information is available on
http:/Avww.genemedix.com.

Hepatitis C is one of the most serious forms of hepatitis, a major global disease that can lead to
serious complications including liver cancer. Less than 2% of the world’s estimated 170 million
chronically-infected Hepatitis C patients receive therapy. A new report (Decision Resources, Inc) finds
the market for Hepatitis C treatments “poised for dramatic growth”. The report forecasts that sales
of pharmaceuticals to treat Hepatitis C-infected patients will increase almost threefold between 2001
and 2011 in the major pharmaceutical markets (the United States, France, Germany, italy, Spain, the
United Kingdom, and Japan), growing from $1.7 billion in 2001 to a projected $6.6 billion in 2001.
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Dr K Tan

Further to the recent forced disposal of shares in K S Biomedix Holdings plc by Dr Kim Tan,
Chairman, to realise collateral that had been secured against loans by Merrill Lynch, the
directors of GeneMaedix plc note the sharp movement in the company’s share price.

The directors of GeneMedix plc would like to make it clear that there is no liability against Dr
Tan’s shareholding in GeneMedix and that the rumours of a similar disposal of Dr Tan's
shareholding in GeneMedix are inaccurate and untrue.

Dr Kim Tan, Chairman, commented:

“The sale of K S Biomedix shares was carried out in a closed period and not within my control. |
can confirm that all outstanding loans by Merrill Lynch have now been satisfied.

“I remain fully supportive of GeneMedix and have no plans to sell shares in the company.”
1 July 2002

ENQUIRIES:

College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020
Nicholas Nelson/Clare Warren
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GeneMedix plc
Opening of manufacturing facility and analysts’ meeting in Ireland

GeneMedix plc ("GeneMedix” or "the Company*), the UK based biopharmaceutical company, is
pleased to announce the opening ceremony of its state-of-the-art mammalian cell manufacturing
operation in Tullamore, Ireland, to produce recombinant Erythropoietin (EPO). Commissioning
and validation of the facility will now commence in preparation for commercial production,
which is expected to begin in mid 2003.

" The facility, which has been built by GeneMedix to meet international GMP standards, has been

completed on schedule and within budget. There are currently 11 GeneMedix staff to run the
facility and this is expected to rise to 30 when full-scale manufacture begins.

GeneMedix has taken a leading role in the provision of high quality manufacturing of therapeutic
proteins, which will provide cost-effective treatments for many patients on a global scale.
Erythropoietin manufactured in Tullamore will be sold firstly in the Asian markets, prior to launch
into Europe when the regulatory pathway has been established.

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive, commented:

“We are delighted that we have met our targets in completing the buifld of our Tullamore facility
on time and to budget, and have now established a strong operating and management team.
We see this as the first in @ number of key milestones we expect to complete this year: we plan
to expand our product range, further increase our manufacturing capabilities and conclude a
deal with a major European marketing partner. We are confident that this state-of-the-art
manufacturing plant will help to establish our position as a leading supplier of high quality, cost
effective generic biopharmaceuticals.”

GeneMedix has invited a number of analysts and investors to participate in the opening
ceremony, which commences today at 11.30 am in Tullamore.

No material new information will be disclosed at the opening.

24 June 2002
ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive
College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020

Michael Padley/Clare Warren
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GeneMedix plc and Gland Pharmaceuticals

Manufacturing and sales and distribution agreements signed with Gland Pharmaceuticals in India
GeneMedix plc (GMX or ‘the Company’), the UK-based biopharmaceutical company, announces
that it has entered into two separate agreements with Gland Pharmaceuticals (Gland}, one of
india’s leading suppliers of speciality pharmaceutical products.

The Company was established in Hyderabad in 1978 to specialise in the manufacture of sterile
injectable products and in 1996 formed a partnership with the Vetter Group, of Germany, to
deliver parenteral products (non-oral delivery) to the global market. The Company has a
leadership position in India with heparin, low molecular weight heparin and other niche products
in the cardiovascular and orthopaedic fields.

Under the Sales and Distribution Agreement, Gland has been appointed to be the exclusive
distributor, and will market and sell GeneMedix’s products throughout India. Initial sales are
expected in 2003.

Gland will also carry out, under the Manufacturing Agreement, specialised manufacturing
operations to provide product in presentations such as pre-filled syringes, initially for the Asian
market and for the global market as product approvals are granted. Current customers of Gland
include Schering Plough (India), Aventis (India) and several large Indian Pharma companies.

Paul Edwards, CEQ of GeneMedix, commented:

“This agreement builds upon our earlier one to supply the ASEAN territories. India is poised to
become an important player in the biopharmaceutical field and we are therefore delighted to be
working with an established, professional organisation such as Gland. We hope this arrangement
is the beginning of a long relationship between our two companies.

“This is a further step towards GeneMedix meeting the objectives laid down in our original

business plan. We continue to make progress and are confident regarding the future prospects
of the Group.”

Dr Ravi Penmetsa, Managing Director of Gland, said:
“It has been our stated aim to establish a relationship with a biotech company with global

aspirations. We feel that GeneMedix is an ideal partner for Gland as both our companies are
seeking to establish a strong and sustainable presence in the biotech marketplace.”

30 April 2002
ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer
College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020

Michael Padley
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GeneMedix plc and Gland Pharmaceuticals

Manufacturing and sales and distribution agreements signed with Gland Pharmaceuticals in India
GeneMedix plc (GMX cr ‘the Company’), the UK-based biopharmaceutical company, announces
that it has entered into two separate agreements with Gland Pharmaceuticals (Gland), one of
India’s leading suppliers of speciality pharmaceutical products.

The Company was established in Hyderabad in 1978 to specialise in the manufacture of sterile
injectable products and in 1996 formed a partnership with the Vetter Group, of Germany, to
deliver parenteral products (non-oral delivery) to the global market. The Company has a
leadership position in india with heparin, low molecular weight heparin and other niche products
in the cardiovascular and orthopaedic fields.

Under the Sales and Distribution Agreement, Gland has been appointed to be the exclusive
distributor, and will market and sell GeneMedix’s products throughout India. Initial sales are
expected in 2003.

Gland will also carry out, under the Manufacturing Agreement, specialised manufacturing
operations to provide product in presentations such as pre-filled syringes, initially for the Asian
market and for the global market as product approvals are granted. Current customers of Gland
include Schering Plough (India), Aventis (India} and several large Indian Pharma companies.

Paul Edwards, CEQ of GeneMedix, commented:

“This agreement builds upon our earlier one to supply the ASEAN territories. India is poised to
become an important player in the biopharmaceutical field and we are therefore delighted to be
working with an established, professional organisation such as Gland. We hope this arrangement
is the beginning of a long relationship between our two companies.

“This is a further step towards GeneMedix meeting the objectives laid down in our original

business pfan. We continue to make progress and are confident regarding the future prospects
of the Group.”

Dr Ravi Penmetsa, Managing Director of Gland, said:
“It has been our stated aim to establish a relationship with a biotech company with global

aspirations. We feel that GeneMedix is an ideal partner for Gland as both our companies are
seeking to establish a strong and sustainable presence in the biotech marketplace.”

30 April 2002
ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer
College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020

Michael Padley
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GeneMedix plc
First product sales made and development update

GeneMedix plc (‘GMX’), the UK-based biopharmaceutical products company, announces that it
has made the initial sales of its first product, GM-CSF (granulocyte macrophage-colony
stimulating factor) in China. Sales began in December 2001 under the product name Neustim.

Following consultation with the Malaysian National Pharmaceutical Central Bureau, a pivotal
clinical trial for Neustim has also been planned in Malaysia. It is anticipated that the regulatory
and ethics committee approval will allow commencement of trials within the next two to three
months, with completion in the third quarter of 2002. Approval in Malaysia will aliow the
company to market Neustim in the South-East Asian countries.

The plant under construction in Ireland, for the production of erythropoeitin, is on schedule, and
is anticipated to be complete in the second quarter of 2002, following which we will commence
the commissioning and validation of the facility.

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer of GeneMedix, commented:

‘The achievement of product sales prior to the end of 2001 is a significant milestone for
GeneMedix. Whilst our anticipated first year sales will be modest as we broaden our market
reach, this is nevertheless a key achievement for us. When viewed with our encouraging progress
in other parts of the world, including our clinical programme in Malaysia and the construction of
our manufacturing plant in Ireland, we are confident that we are moving towards our goal of
becoming a feading global provider of a range of high quality pharmaceutical proteins.’

16 January 2002
ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Julian Attfield, Chief Financial Officer
College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020

Michael Padley
Clare Warren
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GENEMEDIX PLC
China Distribution Agreement Signed

GeneMedix plc ("GMX"), the UK based biopharmaceutical company, announces that
it has signed an exclusive distribution agreement with Shanghai CAS Shenglongda
Biotech (Group) Ltd. (“SLD") to sell its first product, GM-CSF (Granulocyte
Macrophage-Colony Stimulating Factor), under the product name Neustim, into the
Chinese market.

SLD is a subsidiary of Shanghai Shuanglong (part of the Longtao Group, a
conglomerate listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). It has 16 subsidiaries and
affiliates directly involved in biotechnology and has established strong distribution
outlets, especially in the Shanghai area, as well as having extensive sales networks in
Eastern, Central and Southern China. SLD currently employ over 100 people directly
involved in sales and marketing.

Pau!l Edwards, the Chief Executive Officer of GeneMedix, commented:

“This is an important agreement for us, as it provides us with the ability to enter the
Chinese market with a partner who is already known to us, who understands the
complex requirements of doing business in China and has an established network
in place to support a product launch.

The choice of partner was very important us as it is another step in achieving our

goal of becoming a leading global provider of a range of high quality
pharmaceutical proteins.”

9 November 2001

ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive

College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020
Michael Padley
Clare Warren
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GENEMEDIX PLC
Appointment of Financial Advisor and Corporate Broker
Notification of Results for the 3rd Quarter to 31 August 2001

GeneMedix plc, the UK based biopharmaceutical company, announces that it
has appointed Nomura International plc as its financial advisor and corporate
broker with immediate effect.

GeneMedix plc would like to thank their former financial advisor Insinger English
Trust and corporate broker Collins Stewart for their support and advice, both of
which have made a significant contribution to the progress of the Group to date.
The Company will be announcing results for the 3rd Quarter ended 31 August
2001on Monday 19 November 2001.

2 November 2001

ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive

Nomura Tel: 020 7521 2000
Charles Spicer

College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020
Michael Padley
Clare Warren
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GENEMEDIX PLC
Malaysian Manufacturing and
Sales & Distribution Agreements signed

GeneMedix plc (GMX or “the Company"), the UK based biopharmaceutical company, announces
that it has entered into two separate agreements with Hovid SDN BhD (“Hovid"), one of
Malaysia‘s leading pharmaceutical manufacturers. Hovid was founded in 1945 in ipoh, Malaysia,
and is active in the development and manufacturing of pharmaceutical specialities, drug delivery
systems and phytonutrient products. Currently employing approximately 400 people, Hovid

has a portfolio of over 100 ethical products, and exports to over 30 countries worldwide

Under the Sales and Distribution Agreement, Hovid has been appointed exclusively to distribute,
market and sell GeneMedix’s products within Malaysia and other countries that make up the
Association of Scuth East Asian Nations (ASEAN).

Hovid will also carry out, under the Manufacturing Agreement, vialling and packaging operations
for the Company's first three products, namely Granulocyte macrophage-colony stimulating
factor (GM-CSF), Erythropoietin (EPO) and alphainterferon. Hovid will commence the design and
build of a purpose built, state-of-the-art manufacturing facility immediately. It is anticipated that
the plant will be completed in late 2002 with the first sales in the region expected in early 2003.

Paul Edwards, CEO of GeneMedix, commented:

“These agreements are consistent with our business plan under which we steadily extend the
number of territories in which we market our products. We are therefore delighted to be
entering the ASEAN region, with such a high quality and highly respected partner as Hovid.
Hovid can also meet our requirement for a fill/finish operation within the region that will allow us
to produce high quality product for the global market.

The Company continues to make progress and we remain confident that we will succeed in
meeting our business objectives.”

David Ho, Managing Director of Hovid, said:

“We are delighted to be entering into these agreements with GeneMedix. We believe that the
range of products in the GMX portfolio, coupled with our manufacturing, quality and marketing
skills, will provide both our companies with the opportunity to provide high quality affordable
medicines to patients across the region.”

16 October 2001
ENQUIRIES:
GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive
College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020

Michael Padley
Clare Warren
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GeneMedix plc
Commercialisation agreement with the Institute of Biochemistry and Cell Biology

GeneMedix plc (GMX or “the Company”), the UK based biopharmaceutical company, announces
that it has entered into a five year agreement with the Shanghai institute of Biochemistry and
Cell Biology (IBCB), a leading Institute of The Chinese Academy of Sciences. Under the
agreement GeneMedix will be granted the first right of refusal to the worldwide
commerdialisation rights (excluding China) of novel intellectual property and technology know-
how, generated by the IBCB. In return for the worldwide licence for a particular invention, GMX
is required to pay a percentage of all net commercialization revenues it receives in respect of
licensed IP and/or any products.

in order to maximise the commercial potential of this technology, GMX is establishing a new
business unit to focus specifically on the exploitation of the licensed products. The Company's
non-executive Chairman, Dr Kim Tan, has agreed to work with the business unit on a
consultancy basis, to advise on the commercialisation routes for novel inventions.

Paul Edwards, CEO of GeneMedix, commented:

“This is an exciting extension of our relationship with our partners in China. The agreement gives
GMX access to a broader base of technology from this world-class Institute further strengthening
our technology base and thus our potential for significant out-licensing opportunities.”

Professor Li Bo-Liang, Director of the IBCB, said:

“We are delighted to strengthen our links with GeneMedix, and feel sure that this agreement will
help us to commercialise our high quality research in the international arena.”

27 September 2001

ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663 320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive

College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020
Michael Padley/Clare Warren

NOTES FOR EDITORS:

The Shanghai institute of Biochemistry and Cell Biology was formed by a merger of the Shanghai
Institute of Biochemistry (SIB) and the Shanghai Institute of Cell Biclogy (SICB). This enlarged
institution boasts 55 independent research groups and several prestigious labs including the State
Key Laboratory of Molecular Biology, the Max-Planck Guest Laboratory and the Open Laboratory
of Molecular Cell Biology. The IBCB has a staff of over 500, with the majority of personnel
engaged directly in research. Many of the doctorates from the Institute choose to continue their
postdoctoral research overseas, resulting in over 400 alumni currently carrying out research or
working in the USA.



i ‘. '

GMX

GeneMedix ____press release

First product approval / Director of Sales and Marketing (China)
appointed

19 July 2001

GeneMedix plc ("GMX" or "the Company"), the UK based biopharmaceutical
company, has received approval from the Chinese State Drug Administration
(SDA) to sell granulocyte macrophage colony stimulating factor (GM-CSF). The

initial product presentation will be a 150ug pack, followed by 50ug and 75ug
packs.

Recombinant human GM-CSF, generated through recombinant DNA technology
using E.coli, is used in the treatment of neutropenia or low white blood cell
count, which is induced by chemotherapy associated with cancer, bone marrow
transplants and AIDS-related disorders.

It is anticipated that the supplementary regulatory approval for the additional
product presentations and the price approval process will be completed within
the next few months. The products will be sold under the GeneMedix brand
name Neustim. The market size for colony stimulating factors in China is
estimated to be in the region of $25 million per year and this is currently
increasing at a rate in excess of 20% per annum.

The Company aiso announces that it has appointed Dr He Huaming as Director
of Sales and Marketing (China). Dr He, a qualified medical doctor, was previously
employed in a number of commercial roles at MSD (China) and Wyeth-Lederle
Pharmaceutical Ltd. His most recent role was Group Product Manager, China
and Hong Kong, responsible for antibiotics and oncolytics.

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer of GeneMedix, commented:

" Receiving marketing approval from the SDA is extremely good news, as it puts
us in a position to launch our first product into the Chinese market. We are
currently in full-scale product manufacture, and are moving ahead with our pre-
launch activities. We are delighted to have attracted someone of the quality of
Dr He, who will play a pivotal role in the success of GeneMedix in China.



The news of this marketing approval is a very significant step in the evolution of
GeneMedix, as it will move us from being a development company into an
income generating pharmaceutical products company.”
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New Biotechnology Manufacturing Plant Tanaiste Statement

23 May 2001

New Biotechnology Manufacturing Plant
Tanaiste (Deputy Prime Minister) Statement

Tanaiste and Minister for Enterprise, Trade and Employment, Mary Harney TD
welcomed the announcement today (Wednesday 23 May 2001) by GeneMedix
plc that it is to establish its European manufacturing centre, incorporating
development and technical support capability, in Tullamore, following the
conclusion of discussions with IDA Ireland. The project will involve investment of

7.2 million and is expected to create up to 30 jobs during the initial start-up
phase.

The Tanaiste said:

“This further expansion of the biotechnology sector in Ireland is excellent news
and GeneMedix adds a key internationally recognised name from the sector,
strengthening the base of biotechnology companies here. Ireland has been the
lead centre in Europe for the pharmaceuticals industry over the last decade and
the current IDA Ireland strategy is to consolidate this position through securing
key investment in the biotechnology sector in the years ahead. It is great that
Tullamore has attracted the GeneMedix investment because it puts the town on
the map as a centre for this most advanced and high-skilled industry."

GeneMedix is a well-recognised company in the UK, which is poised to take
advantage of new emerging opportunities in both Far Eastern and European
markets for specialised biotechnology-based pharmaceutical products. The initial
activity in Tullamore will involve the installation of a state of the art mammalian
cell-manufacturing facility for the production of Erythropoietin, a product that
the company plans to bring to the market over the next 2 to 3 years.
Erythropoietin is used for the treatment of anaemia, particularly in patients with
chronic renal failure.



The Tanaiste, in welcoming this news, said that she had pushed hard for action
in Tullamore and was pleased with the progreés being made and with the work
of the local task force under the Chairmanship of County Manager, Niall
Sweeney. She also noted that the IDA was making solid progress on developing
a cluster of quality industries in the healthcare sector in the region and that
GeneMedix would be joining other leading names such as Tyco, Boston Scientific
and Isotron in the emerging international healthcare sector around Tullamore.

GeneMedix plc was established in 1997 to research and develop low-cost, high-
value, proteins. Since its flotation on 30 November 2000 on the London Stock
Exchange and 1 December 2000 in Singapore, the company has continued to
recruit leading pharmaceutical and biotechnology experts to increase its
management and research strengths. Although only in the early stages of
commercialisation GeneMedix has already raised net proceeds of 37 million
from its IPO and two private placings last year. The Company's first
manufacturing facility is in China, with Tullamore being its second facility.
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Second Manufacturing Plant In Ireland
23 May 2001

GeneMedix plc announces its intention to build second manufacturing plant in
Ireland. Investment of £4.4 million.

GeneMedix plc ("GMX" or “"the Company"), the UK based biopharmaceutical
company, has received approval from the Investment and Development Agency
(IDA) Ireland to acquire a 15 year lease on a 20,000 sq ft advanced
manufacturing building in Tullamore, Co Offaly, Ireland. GMX has already
completed a conceptual design study to install a state-of-the-art mammalian cell
manufacturing operation to produce recombinant Erythropoietin, a product that
the Company plans to bring to market within the next 2 years.

The Company also announces that it has appointed IDC as the managing
engineers to oversee the entire installation project. Following the design stage,
installation work is scheduled to commence in Q3 2001, with mechanical
completion expected in Q3, 2002. It is anticipated that commercial manufacture
will commence in early 2003, following validation and regulatory submissions.

The project will involve investment of £4.4 million ( 7.2m) and is expected to
create up to 30 jobs during the initial start-up phase. The project will be funded
from existing resources.

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive of GeneMedix, commented:

"This mammalian cell facility will complement the microbial fermentation plant
we already have in Shanghai. We will then have manufacturing facilities on two
continents that will have the capabilities to produce a range of products to
international pharmaceutical standards. We chose Ireland for our second
manufacturing facility for a number of reasons which included the fiscal
incentives, the existing patent situation, the strong pharmaceutical infrastructure
within the Republic of Ireland and the access to major international markets. It
should also be acknowledged that the on-going support offered by the
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Investment and Development Agency Ireland, was also a major factor in our
decision making process".

Tanaiste and Minister for Enterprise, Trade and Employment, Mary Harney TDA,
said:

" We are delighted that a company with world leading technology has chosen
Ireland as its European base. This further expansion of the biotechnology sector
in Ireland is excellent news and GeneMedix adds a key internationally recognised
name from the sector, strengthening the base of biotechnology companies
here."

IDC is an employee-owned Engineering and Construction Compahy. With 18
offices around the world, it specializes in supporting clients in the
Pharmaceutical, Microelectronics and Food/Consumer Products industries. The
IDC Dublin office was incorporated in 1991 and has subsequently executed
projects for a wide variety of clients both within the Republic and throughout
Europe. This office has handled new and retrofit, large and small projects.
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Block and Option Listing
13 March 2001

GeneMedix plc (the "Company") announces that it has made a block application
for the admission to listing of up to 500,000 ordinary shares of 1p each
("Ordinary Shares") that may be issued upon exercise of options granted under
the GeneMedix Employee Individual Option Agreements.

The Company has also received notice today of the exercise of an employee
option, and has allotted 44, 250 Ordinary Shares, subject to admission to listing.
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Acquisition of Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology

4 January 2001

GeneMedix plc (GMX), the UK biogeneric pharmaceutical company, announced
today that its conditional agreement with the Shanghai Shenlongda Biotech
(Group) Ltd (SLD), to acquire 75% of the shares in one of its subsidiaries, the
Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology Co Ltd (SDB), had been formally approved with
a business licence having been issued by the Shanghai Foreign Economics and
Trade Committee. Full details of the agreement are contained in the Listing
Particulars dated 24 November 2000. The company will be renamed The
Shanghai GeneMedix Biotechnology Company Limited.

A Board of Directors has been appointed to SDB consisting of Paul Edwards (CEO
of GMX) as Chairman, Dr Hong Hoi Ting (co-founder and board member of
GMX), Tony Gasson (Technical Director of GMX) and Fang Yongsheng (SLD).
Tony Gasson will be located in Shanghai, to act as Executive Director, overseeing
the Chinese Operations.

Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology Co Ltd is a biopharmaceutical company, based
in the high technology business park in the Pudong district of Shanghai. The
facility is fitted with state-of-the-art sterile manufacturing equipment, and has
recently undergone a successful regulatory inspection from the Chinese
authorities.

it currently manufactures recombinant human GM-CSF, a treatment for patients
with a low white blood cell count, induced by chemotherapy associated with
cancer and AIDS related disorders, and has the expansion capacity to introduce
other products currently being developed by GMX.

New Appointment

GMX has also announced the appointment of Thomas Cheng as General
Manager of SDB. Thomas joins GMX from Messer Donghai Co Ltd, a joint



venture company set up to provide food grade CO2, where he held the position
of General Manager. Thomas had previously held senior positions with Johnson
and Johnson (China) Ltd.

Commenting on the Business Licence approval, Paul Edwards, Chief Executive
Officer of GeneMedix plc said:

"We are delighted that we have been granted a business licence from the
Chinese authorities, giving us the go-ahead for the joint venture. We anticipate
our first product launch from this facility in the first half of this year, and we
have already commissioned an engineering scoping study for the expansion of
the plant, to allow further products to be produced to international
pharmaceutical standards.

It is important that we establish an experienced management team to run the
Chinese facility, and as such we are delighted that Thomas Cheng has agreed to
join GeneMedix, and that Tony Gasson has accepted a position of Executive
Director on the board of SDB, and will be taking up residence in Shanghai.

The establishment of this Chinese joint venture is just the first step in achieving
our business objectives. We now have four products (GM-CSF, alpha-interferon,
erythropoietin and epidermal growth factor) undergoing either process validation
or late stage process development, and anticipate having all four products on the
market within the next 24-30 months. This will commence with GM-CSF later
this year. We are also in discussions regarding the establishment of other
manufacturing operations, which will allow us to achieve our goal of being a
global supplier of biogenerics."

Biographies

Mr Tony Gasson BSc, MSc, MA, MiBiol, FRSC

Aged 63, Tony has held various senior positions at Wellcome Laboratories for 27
years. Other roles have included Head of Quality Management at Public Health
Laboratory Service, Centre for Applied Microbiological Research and Industrial
Specialist for Courtaulds Engineering. In recent years he has been involved in the
construction and validation of pharmaceutical facilities in international locations,
including China, Poland, Egypt, India and the UK.

Mr Thomas Cheng BSc, MBA
Aged 39, Thomas graduated in Engineering from Shanghai University. He
commenced his career with the Shanghai Medical instruments Co, before joining



Johnson and Johnson (China) in 1988. His various roles included the setting up
and operating of a GMP standard plant in Shanghai and the project coordination
between China and the UK. In 1999, he joined Messer Donghai Co Ltd as
General Manager, establishing a joint venture to produce food grade CO2. He
obtained his MBA in 1997 from the China Europe International Business School,
and is fluent in English and Mandarin.
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Placing of 22,277,778 Ordinary Shares of 1p each at a price of 90p to raise
£20 million

27 November 2000

GeneMedix plc, a biogeneric pharmaceutical company involved in the
development, manufacture, and marketing of generic versions of branded
therapeutic proteins, using recombinant DNA technology, announces the details
of its fundraising and confirms its Listing on the London and Singapore Stock
Exchanges.

»  Placing to raise £20 million

»  Market capitalisation £260.7 million, at Listing

= Shares in issue following the Placing 289,660,252

*  Proceeds to part finance acquisition of Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology Company, to
develop additional facilities and for additional working capital

= Growth Market - focusing on large market, high value, non patented protein products

The Company is to raise approximately £20 million through a Placing of 22.2
million Ordinary Shares at 90p each, valuing the Company at £260.7 million.
Dealings in the shares are expected to commence in London on Thursday 30
November 2000 and in Singapore on Friday 1 December. The Financial Advisor
and Sponsor in London is English Trust Company Limited, UK Broker to the UK
Placing is Collins Stewart Limited. The Singapore Manager and Placing Agent is
Overseas Union Bank Limited and the Singapore Co-ordinator is Millennium
Securities Pte Limited.

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive, commented: "We believe the dual Listing will
raise the Company's profile within the market place and allow us to expand the
sales and operational teams. We are making significant progress and expect to

market the first, in what is currently a range of seven products, in China in early
2001."
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Listing on the London Stock Exchange and Mainboard of the Singapore
Exchange

First Life Sciences Company to list in Singapore
22nd November 2000

GeneMedix plc (GMX), the UK biogeneric pharmaceutical company, announces
that it is to apply to list on the London & Singapore Stock Exchanges. UK-based
GeneMedix plc is set to become the first Life Sciences company to list on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST).

GeneMedix is a biogeneric pharmaceutical company involved in the
development, manufacture, and marketing of generic versions of branded
therapeutic proteins, using recombinant DNA technology. The Company is
seeking a primary listing on the London Stock Exchange and, concurrently, a
secondary listing on the Singapore SGX-ST. In conjunction with the listings, the

Company will be placing with investors in Singapore and UK to raise funds for its
expansion plans.

GeneMedix’s shares have been traded since January 2000 on London'’s OFEX,
the off-exchange trading facility. At its suspension price of £1.22 (ex-bonus) on
18 September 2000, the Company commanded a market valuation of
approximately £300 million.

GeneMedix was founded by Dr Tan and Dr H H Ting in November 1997. The
principal activity of the Company is the development, manufacture and
marketing of generic versions of branded therapeutic proteins, using
recombinant DNA technology. These proteins are produced by inserting the gene
that codes for the particular protein into a bacterium, yeast or mammalian cell.
The bacterium, yeast or mammalian cell is then grown in fermenters to produce
the protein.

GeneMedix has established collaborations with the internationally renowned
Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry, a flagship of Chinese biochemical research.
The Company has targeted a number of large market value proteins that are
either not patent protected in certain territories or have patents expiring in the
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next 5 to 10 years. These products are intended to be marketed initially in Asia
as GeneMedix brands before they are expanded into other markets, including
Eastern Europe. Its first product, granulocyte macrophage-colony stimulating
factor ("GM-CSF"), has been granted a new drug certificate in The People's
Republic of China (China) and is scheduled for market launch in China in early
2001. Other products scheduled for manufacture in 2002 are Erythropoietin
("EPQ") for increasing red blood cells in cancer patients and Interferon-alpha for
the treatment of hepatitis.

GeneMedix has entered into an agreement to acquire a 75% shareholding in
Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology Company Limited, a Chinese
biopharmaceutical' manufacturing company. It intends to upgrade this facility to
Western Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) standards. It also has a medium-
term plan to establish other manufacturing facilities, to Western GMP standards,
over the next 12-24 months in other countries to produce a range of products
for sale into the global market place.

Highly-Experienced Management Team

GeneMedix has assembled a senior management team of highly experienced
executives, including the following:

Dr Kim Tan, a Malaysian-born scientist, is one of Britain's best-known and most
respected biotechnology entrepreneurs. In the UK Sunday Times in March this
year, Dr Tan was listed amongst the UK Top 10 entrepreneurs in the
pharmaceuticals and biotechnology sectors. He is the co-founder of GeneMedix
plc, founder and director of KS Biomedix (listed on the London Stock Exchange)
and the non-executive Chairman of TranXenoGen, a company he helped bring
to London's Alternative Investment Market (AIM) earlier this year.

Mr Paul Edwards MBE, Chief Executive Officer, has many years of experience in
the biopharmaceutical industry and was formerly the General Manager of
Genzyme Corporation's UK Operations. He is the former Chairman of the
Manufacturing Advisory Committee of the UK Biolndustry Association and has
acted as an adviser to the UK government's Department of Trade and Industry,
advising on issues relating to the manufacture of biopharmaceuticals. In 1997,
he was appointed as a Member of the Order of the British Empire (MBE) for
services to biotechnology.



Dr H H Ting, Marketing Director (Asia), a co-founder of GeneMedix, is based
predominantly in China, where he has in the past acquired significant experience
in the Life Sciences. In his previous appointments, he worked for Amersham
International plc in Hongkong, as a regional manager in charge of its Life Science
business in the Far East and South East Asia, and as country manager for China.
He has been consulting in China for multi-national corporations like Johnson &
Johnson (China) and Westinghouse Electric Corporation, since the 1980s.

Market

The market for recombinant protein products or protein-based medicines has
proven to be significant. There are now a number of protein products that have
exceeded the US$1 billion annual sales total. The portfolio of products being
developed by GeneMedix includes many of these "blockbusters”.

Use of Proceeds from the IPO

The proceeds of the Placings in the UK and Singapore are intended, in part, to
finance the acquisition of and development of the facilities of Shanghai Dongxin
Biotechnology Company Limited, and construct or acquire further facilities for
the manufacture of proteins and for working capital including marketing and
product development costs.

Dr Kim Tan, Non-Executive Chairman of GeneMedix, commented: "We decided
to list GeneMedix in Singapore, as well as London, in view of the strong
Government support for the Life Sciences sector.

"The Singapore Government's recent commitment to set aside $2 billion for the
development of the Life Sciences is extremely encouraging and will go a long
way towards creating a vibrant industry here. This should give Singapore a
headstart and position it to become a centre for the Life Sciences in this region."
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Extraordinary General Meeting & Suspension of Dealing
Move to Official List

18 September 2000

GeneMedix plc (GMX), the UK biogeneric pharmaceutical company, announces
that it is to apply to list on the London & Singapore Stock Exchanges and as a
result has today requested that its shares be suspended on OFEX. This
suspension is expected to continue until listing occurs.

Since the Company will be undertaking a major marketing exercise both to raise
its profile and to raise further funds, the Directors consider that additional non-
public information about the Company will become circulated prior to the
publication of the listing particulars. Therefore the Directors have requested an
immediate suspension of dealing in the shares of the Company on OFEX.

As announced at the time of issue of the interim accounts for the period ending
31 May 2000 the Directors intend to apply for the Company's shares to be
admitted to the UK Official List of the London Stock Exchange. It is intended that
at the same time application will be made for a listing on the Singapore Stock
Exchange.

The Company also intends taking this opportunity to raise further capital to fund
its future growth and the acquisition of 75% of the ordinary shares in Shanghai
Dongxin Biotechnology Co Ltd, which owns a Chinese biopharmaceutical
manufacturing facility, which was announced with the interim results.

A number of changes will be required to the Company's Articles of Association
and to the share structure to enable the listing applications to proceed and
shareholder approval is required for these changes. For this purpose an
explanatory circular has been posted to shareholders today which includes a
notice convening an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company to be held
10.00 am on Monday 16 October 2000 at the office of CMS Cameron
McKenna, Mitre House, 160 Aldersgate Street, London, EC1A 4DD.



GVIX

GeneMedix press release

£6.5 million acquisition of Chinese biopharmaceutical company
£3.3 million placing

24 July 2000

ACQUISITION

GeneMedix PLC (GMX), the UK biogeneric pharmaceutical company, announced
today that it had signed a Letter of Intent with Shanghai Shenglonda Biotech
(Group) Ltd, to acquire 75% of the ordinary shares in one of its subsidiaries, the
Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology Co Ltd.

Shanghai Dongxin Biotechnology Co Ltd is a biopharmaceutical company, based
in the high technology business park in the Pudong district of Shanghai. The
facility is fitted out with state-of-the-art sterile manufacturing equipment, and
has recently undergone a successful regulatory inspection from the Chinese
authorities. It currently manufactures recombinant human GM-CSF, a treatment
for patients with a low White Blood Cell (WBC) count, induced by chemotherapy
associated with cancer and AIDS related disorders, and has the expansion
capacity to introduce other products currently being developed by GeneMedix.

GMX expect that completion of the acquisition will take some 3 months allowing
for the period necessary to obtain regulatory approvals in China. The
consideration for the acquisition has been agreed as £6.5 million, which may be
paid wholly in cash or part in shares at the vendors' discretion.

Following completion GMX will have an excellent manufacturing facility in
China, close to the research base at the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry. The
plant will allow the Company to manufacture a range of products, initially for
the Chinese market. However systems will be put in place that will meet with

international regulatory standards, and allow GMX to address a wider market
place.

PLACING

GMX also announces that it has conditionally placed 1,680,000 new ordinary
shares at £2 per share raising approximately £3.3 million (net of expenses) for
the Company. The funds raised by this placing will be used to accelerate and
expand the operations of GMX, both in the UK and in the Far East.
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GeneMedix CEO, Paul Edwards, commented: "We have made significant
progress in the period and we are hopeful of concluding the acquisition within
the next 2-3 months. We will then have an excellent manufacturing facility in
China, close to our research base at the Shanghai Institute of Biochemistry. This
plant will allow us to manufacture a range of products, initially for the Asian
market. However we intend to put systems in place that will meet with
international regulatory standards, and allow us to address a wider market place.
We are pleased with the support we have received from investors to our placing
and are particularly pleased with the interest and enthusiasm we have met in
Singapore. To enhance the status of GMX we are considering seeking a full
listing, which will, in addition, broaden the base of possible investors. Whilst the
Board cannot set a precise timetable for this we are hopeful that a listing will be
achieved this year."

Approval and Risk Warnings:
Ordinary Shares in the Company may fluctuate in value in money terms and the
investor may not get back the whole of that which he has invested.

OFEX is not a recognised or designated investment exchange. There is no
recognised market for ordinary shares in the Company and it may be difficult for
the investor to sell the investment or to obtain reliable information about its
value or the extent of the risks to which it is exposed.

This announcement is not intended to contain any offer or invitation to acquire
shares in the Company. To the extent, if at all, that this announcement
constitutes an investment advertisement, English Trust Company Limited has
approved this announcement for the purposes of Section 57 Financial Services
Act 1986. English Trust Company Limited is regulated by The Securities and
Futures Authority.

[EDITORS' NOTE only in the release for the press. GeneMedix is involved in the
development and manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA
technology. The Company will focus on high-value biotechnology drugs that are
either unpatented in certain geographical areas with high market potential
and/or are coming off patent in the next 2-5 years. Manufacturing and

distribution of these products will be carried out by joint-venture companies in
Asia.]
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GeneMedix in Global Licensing Deal with TranXenoGen Inc

1 March 2000

GeneMedix plc (GMX), the UK biogeneric pharmaceutical company, announced
today that it has entered into an agreement to license its novel insulin precursor
gene, a product of its gene technology, to US biotechnology company
TranXenoGen Inc (TXG). GMX is involved in the development and manufacture
of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology. The company has
completed several stages of its development work and is setting up operations in
Asia to manufacture its products for the treatment of hepatitis, cancer and
kidney dialysis patients.

TXG has developed a novel sperm-mediated transgenics technology for
producing human proteins in the albumen of chickens’ eggs. This second-
generation transgenics technology will be used to produce insulin for use in the
treatment of diabetes.

The incidence of patients with diabetes worldwide is projected to increase from
125 million in 1994 to 300 million by 2025 due to rising obesity, the “western
diet" and the ageing population. The global diabetes market was valued at
US$5.2bn in 1994.

TXG's innovative technology will enable the economic manufacture of large
quantities of the therapeutic protein and leave it well placed to supply insulin to
this rapidly growing market.

GMX has granted an exclusive worldwide license to TXG for use of its novel
insulin precursor gene in transgenic applications. Under the terms of the
agreement, GMX will receive US$6m in milestone payments plus royalties on

. worldwide sales of the insulin product. The majority of the value of the milestone

payments relate to product approval.

Commenting on this announcement, GMX CEO Paul Edwards said:
"TranXenoGen has an exciting platform technology for producing large
quantities of human proteins in eggs. We are therefore delighted to be



collaborating on this project, which may also pave the way for other further
opportunities. This is the first completed deal since the Company joined OFEX in
January."
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Negotiations for product licensing
28 February 2000

GeneMedix plc (GMX), the biogeneric pharmaceutical company setting up
operations in Asia, announces that it is in negotiations for the licensing of one
product out of its gene technology range. This will be the first deal since the
Company joined Ofex in January. GMX is involved in the development and
manufacture of therapeutic proteins using recombinant DNA technology. It is
expected a further announcement will be made shortly.
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Trading commenced on OFEX
25 January 2000

GeneMedix plc (GMX), a biogeneric pharmaceutical company setting up
operations in Asia, announces that its shares have today commenced trading on
OFEX. GMX is involved in the development and manufacture of therapeutic
proteins using recombinant DNA technology. The Company will focus on high-
value biotechnology drugs that are either unpatented in certain geographical
areas with high market potential and/or are coming off patent in the next 2-5
years. lts first products, EPO for increasing red blood cells and Alpha-interferon
for the treatment of hepatitis, are scheduled for product registration Q4 2000.
Other products scheduled for registration in 2001 include GM-CSF for increasing
white blood cells, Gamma-interferon for cancer and Insulin for treatment of
diabetes. Manufacturing and distribution of these products will be carried out by
joint-venture companies in Asia.

The Company has appointed Paul Edwards, former VP and GM of Genzyme
Corporation's UK operation, as its Chief Executive Officer. The non-executive
Chairman is Dr Kim Tan, Founder CEO of KS Biomedix Holdings plc, who is also
the controlling shareholder.

Commenting on this announcement, Non-executive Chairman, Dr Kim Tan, says:
“We are delighted to have a market for the Company's shares. Trading on OFEX
represents the first step in the company's corporate development.”

The biotech drugs in GeneMedix's portfolio are expensive to manufacture. Using
improved technology and utilising the lower costs in Asia, we believe that these
essential medicines can be manufactured and distributed more economically
making them affordable to a larger segment of the Asian population.
GeneMedix has an opportunity to be a significant player in the Asian market."
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GeneMedix plc
(Adopted in substitution for and to the exclusion of all existing ari._
by a special resolution passed on 2000)
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
1. Definitions and interpretation
1.1 In these Articles, the following words and expressions have the meanings set opposite.
them:-

"Act": the Companies Act 1985

"these Articles": these articles of association as originally adopted or as
altered from time to time '

"Auditors": the audltors of the Company for the time being or, in the case of
joint auditors, any one of them

"Board"; the board of Directors from time to time of thebCompany or those
Directors present at a duly convened meeting of the Directors at which a
quorum is present

“cash memorandum account": an account so designated by the Operator of
the relevant system concermned

"clear days": in relation to the period of a notice, that period excluding the day

when the notice is given or deemed to be given and the day for which it is given
or on which it is to take effect

51624944.03
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"Director”; a director for the time being of the Company

“Depository": the Central Depository (Pte) Limited of Singapore, or any other
corporation approved as a depository company or corporation for the purposes
of the Singapore Companies Act (Cap. 50), which as a bare trustee operates
the Central Depository System in Slngapore for the holding and transfer of -
book-entry securities

“holder": in relation to shares, the member whose name is entered in the
Register as the holder of the shares

“London Stock Exchange": the London Stock Exchange plic
"member”; a member of the Company

"Office”: the registered office of the Company

"Official List": the official list of the UK Listing Authority;

"Operator”: a person approved by the Treasury under these Regulations as
Operator of a relevant system;

"Operator - instruction”: a properly authenticated dematerialised instruction
attributable to an Operator;

"paid up": paid up or credited as paid up

"person entitied by transmission™: a person entitled to a share in
consequence cof the death or bankruptcy of a member or of any other event
giving rise to its transmission by operation of law and whose name is entered in
the Register in respect of the share

"recognised clearing house": a recognised clearing house within the
meaning of the Financial Services Act 1986 acting in relation to a recognised
investment exchange

“recognised investment exchange": a recognised investment exchange -
within the meaning of the Financial Services Act 1986

"Register”: the register of members of the Company
"Regulations"; the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 1995

"relevant system": the computer-based system, and procedures, which
enable title to units of a security to be evidenced and transferred without a
written instrument, and which facilitate supplementary and incidental matters in
accordance with the Regulations

"Seal": the common seal of the Company or any official seal kept by the
Company pursuant to the Statutes

: -2.
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1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

"Secretary”: the secretary of the Company or any other person appointed to
perform the duties of the secretary of the Company, including a joint, assistant
or deputy secretary and any person appointed to perform the duties of secretary
temporarily or in any particular case

"Statutes”: every statute (including any statutory instrument, order, regulation

or subordinate fegislation made under it) for the time being in force concerming
companies and affecting the Company, including the Regulations

“system’s rules”: the rules, regulations, procedures, facilities and
requirements of the relevant system concerned

"transfer instruction”: a properly authenticated dematerialised instruction on
a relevant system in accordance with the Regulations in such form, in such
manner and from such person as the Directors may determine

"UK Listing Authority”: the Financial Services Authority acting in its capacity
as the competent authority for the purposes of Part IV of the Financial Services
Act 1986 and in the exercise of its functions in respect of the admission to the
Official List otherwise than in accordance with Part IV of that Act

"United Kingdom": Great Britain and Northern Ireland

The expressions "debenture” and "debenture holder” include "debenture stock® and
"debenture stockholder”.

References to writing include any method of reproducing or representing words ina
legible and non-transitory form.

Heferences to a document being executed include references to its being executed
under hand or under seal or by any other method.

Unless the context otherwise requires, any words or expressions defined in the Statutes

bear the same meaning in these Articles (or any part of these Articles) as the
meaning in force at the date of the adoption of these Articles (or that part), save
that the word "company” shall include any body corporate

Except where the contrary is stated, a reference to a statute or a statutory provision .

includes any amendment or re-enactment of it.

Words importing the singular number only include the plural and vice versa. Words
importing the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter gender. Wards
importing persons include corporations.

References to a meetmg shall not be taken as requiring more than one person to be
present if any quorum requirement can be satisfied by one person.

References 10 any security as being in certificated form or uncertificated form refer,

respectively, to that security being a certificated unit of a security or an

uncettificated unit of a security.
r -5-
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Headings are inserted for convenience only and shall not affect the construction of
these Articles.

Table A excluded

None of the regulations contained in Table A in the Schedule to the Companies
(Tables A to F) Regulations 1985 or any other Statute shall apply as regulations
or articles of the Company. '

Form of resolutions

A special or extraordinary resolution shall be effective for any purpose for which
an ordinary resolution is expressed to be required under the Statutes or these
Atticles and a special resolution shall be effective for any purpose for which an -
extraordinary resolution is expressed to be required.

SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital

At the date of adoption of these Articles, the authorised share capital of the
Company is £6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 shares of 1 penny each.

Rights attached to shares .

Subject to the Statutes and without prejudice to any rights attached to any
existing shares, any share may be issued with such rights or restrictions as the
Company may by ordinary resolution determine (or, .in the absence of any such
determination or in so far as such ordinary resolution does not make specific
provision, as the Board may determine).

Redeemable shares
Subject to the Statutes and without prejudice to any rights attached to any

existing shares, shares may be issued which are to be redeemed or which are -
liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or of the holder on such

“terms and in such manner as may be provided for by these Articles.

Unissued shares

~ Subject to the. Statutes and these Articles, the Board may offer, allot, grant

options over, or otherwise dispose of unissued shares or rights to subscribe for,
or to convert any security into, such shares to such persons and on such terms .
as they think fit.
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8. Payment of commissions _ .

The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions and brokerage |
conferred or permitted by the Statutes. Subject to the Statutes, any such
commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or by the allotment (or an
option to call for the allotment) of fully or partly paid shares or partly in one way -
and partly the other. : :

9. Trusts not recognised

Except as required by law, no person shall be recognised by the Compariy as
holding any share upon any trust and the Company shall not be bound by or
recognise (except as otherwise provided by these Articies or by law or under an
order of a court of competent jurisdiction) any interest in any share except an
absolute right to the whole of the share in the holder.

10. Variation of rights

' |

10.1  Subject to the Statutes, all or any of the rights attached to any class may (unless ‘
otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) be varied i
or abrogated with the written consent of the holders of three-fourths in nominal . |
value of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of an extraordinary f
resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that |
class. The provisions of the Statutes and of these Articles relating to general
meetings shall mutatis mutandis apply to any such separate meeting and to any
meeting of the holders of shares of a class held otherwise than in connection
with the variation or abrogation of the rights attached to shares of that class,
except that: (a) the necessary quorum shall be two persons between them
holding or representing by proxy not less than one-third in nominal amount of
the issued shares of that class or, at any adjourned meeting of holders of
shares of that class at which such & quorum is not present, shall be any holder
of shares of that class who is present in person or by proxy whatever the
number of shares held by him; (b) any holder of shares of that class present in
person or by proxy may demand a poll; and (¢) every holder of shares of that
class shall on a poll have one vote in respect of every share of that class held
by him.

10.2  The provisions of this Article shall apply to the variation or abrogation of the special
rights attached to some only of the shares of any class (and to any meeting of
the holders of such shares held otherwise than in connection with the variation
or abrogation of those rights) as if each group of shares of the class differently
treated formed a separate class. )

11. Matters not constituting a variation of rights

The rights attached to any share or class of shares shall not, unless otherwise

-5-
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11.2

12.

124

12.2

13.

14.

expressly provided by its terms of issue, be deemed to be varied, abrogated or
breached by:

the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu with it; or

the purchase or redemption by the Company of any of its own shares (whether of that

or any other class).

CERTIFICATES

Right to certificates

Except as otherwise provided in these Articles, every person whose name is entered i in

the Register as a holder of shares in the Company shall be entitled, within the
time specified by the Statutes and without payment, to one certificate for ali the
shares of each class registered in his name. Upon a transfer of part of the

shares of any class registered in his name, every holder shall be entitled without

payment to one certificate for the balance in certificated form of his holding.
Upon request and upon payment, for every cettificate after the first, of such
reasonable sum (if any) as the Board may determine, every holder shali be
entitled to receive several certificates for certificated shares of one class

- registered in his name (subject to surrender for cancellation of any existing

certificate representing such shares). Every holder shall be entitled to receive
one certificate in substitution for several-cettificates for certificated shares of
one class registered in his name upon surrender to the Company of all the
share certificates representing such shares,

Subject as provided in the preceding part of this Article, the Company shall not be
bound to issue more than one certificate in respect of shares registered in the
names of two or more persons and delivery of a cettificate to one joint holder
shall be a sufficient delivery to all of them.

Execution of certificates

Every certificate for share or loan capital or other securities of the Company
(other than letters of allotment, scrip certificates or similar documents) shall be
issued under the Seal (or in such other manner as the Board, having regard to
the terms of issue, the Statutes and the regulations of the UK Listing Authority,

- may authorise) and each share certificate shall specify the shares to which it

relates, the distinguishing number (if any) of the shares and the amount paid up
on the shares. The Board may determine, either generally or in relation to any

" particular case, that any signature on any certificate need not be autographic

but may be applied by some mechanical or other means, or printed on the
certificate, or that certificates need not be signed. .

Replacement certificates

51624944.03
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"15.1  Unless otherwise determined by the Board and permitted by the Regulations, the -

If a share certificate for certificated shares is worn out, defaced or damaged
then, upon its surrender to the Company, it shall be replaced free of charge. If
a share certificate for certificated shares is or is alleged to have been lost or
destroyed it may be replaced without fee but on such terms (if any) as to
evidence and indemnity and to payment of any exceptional out-of-pocket
"expenses of the Company in investigating such evidence and preparing such
indemnity as the Board thinks fit. The Company shall be entitled to treat an
application for a replacement certificate made by one of joint holders as being
made on behalf of all the holders concermed. -

15. Uncenrtificated securities

Company shall not issue and no person shall be entitied to receive a certificate
in respect of any share or other security issued by the Company for so long as it
is in uncertificated form. ‘ ”

15.2  Conversion of securities in certificated form into uncertificated form, and vice versa, may
be made in such manner as the Board may, in its absolute discretion, think fit
{subject always to the Regulations and the facilities and requirements of the
relevant system).

15.3  All registers of holders relating to securities issued by the Company will be maintained
as required by the Regulations and by the rules of the relevant system and will
distinguish between securities held in uncertificated form and securities held in
certificated form. Unless the Board shall otherwise determine, holdings of the

- same holder or joint holders in certificated form shall be treated as separate
from the same person or persons' holdings in uncertificated form, but a class of
securities shall not be treated as two classes by virtue only of the fact that it
comprises securities in certificated form and securities in uncertificated form
(even if, as a result of any provision of these Articles or the Regulations,
securities are treated differently according to whether they are in certificated or
uncertificated form).

15.4  No certificate will normally be issued in respect of securities held by a recognised
clearing house or a nominee of a recognised clearing house or of a recognised
_investment exchange. '

LIEN

16. Company's lien

The Company shall have a first and paramount lien on every share (not being a
fully paid share) for all monies (whether presently payable or not) called or
payable at a fixed time in respect of that share. The Company's lien on a share
shall extend to any amount payable in respect of it. The Board may at any time
resolve that any share shali be wholly or in part exempt from this Article.

-7-
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18.

19.

20.

Enforcing lien by sale after notice

The Company may sell, in such manner as the Board determines, any shares
on which the Company has a lien if a sum in respect of which the lien exists is
presently payable and is not paid within 14 clear days after a notice has been

“given to the holder of the share or the person entitled by transmission to his
share, demanding payment and statmg that if the notice is not complied with the

shares will be sold.

Manner of sale

To give effect to a sale, the Board may authorise and instruct some person
(which may include the holder of shares concerned):- .

(i)  inthe case of shares held in certificated form to execute an instrument of
transfer of the shares soid; and

(i) in the case of shares held in uncertificated form, subject to the system's
rules, to send a transfer instruction, and/or to take other steps as may be
necessary, to give effect to such a sale in accordance with the
Regulations;

in each case to, or in accordance with the directions of, the purchaser and a
transfer of certificated shares in this way will be valid even if in respect of any of
the shares no certificate accompanies the instrument of transfer. The

‘- transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money

and his title to the shares shall not be affected by any lrregulanty or invalidity of
the proceedings in reference to the sale.

Application of sale proceeds

The net proceeds of the sale, after payment of the costs, shall be applied in or
towards payment of so much of the sum for which the lien exists as is presently
payable, and any residue shall (in the case of shares held in certificated form,

“upon surrender to the Company for cancellation of the certificate for the shares

sold and in the case of shares held in uncertificated form, within a reasonable
time following receipt by the Company of the net proceeds of sale and subject in
each such case to a like lien for any moneys not presently payable as existed
upon the shares before the sale) be paid to the person entitled to the shares
immediately before the sale.

CALLS ON SHARES

Calis

Subject to the terms of issue, the Board may from time to time make calls upon

-8-
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the members in respect of any money unpaid on their shares (whether in
respect of the nominal amount or by way of premium). Each member shall
{subject to receiving at least 14 clear days' notice specifying when and where
payment is to be made) pay to the Company as required by the notice the
amount called on his shares. A call may be made payable by instalments. A"

call may, at any time before receipt by the Company of any sum due underthe

call, be revoked in whole or in part and payment of a call may be postponed in
whole or in part, as the Board may determine. A person upon whomacallis
made shall remain liable for ali calls made upon him notwithstanding the
subsequent transfer of the shares in respect of which the call was made.

21, Time of call
A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of
the Board authorising the call was passed.
22. Liability of joint holders
The joint holders of a share shall be jomtly and severally liable to pay all calls in
respect of the share.
23. Interest
If a call remains unpaid after it has become due and payable, the person from
whom it is due and payable shall pay all costs, charges and expenses that the
Company may have incurred by reason of such non-payment, together with
interest on the amount unpaid from the day it became due and payable until the
day it is paid at the rate fixed by the terms of issue of the share or in the notice
of the call or, if no rate is fixed, at the appropriate rate (as defined by the Act)
but the Board may waive payment of the interest wholly or in part.
24. Sums due on allotment or by way of instalment treated as calls
An amount payable in respect of a share on allotment or at any fixed date,
whether in respect of the nominal amount of the share or by way of premium or
as an instalment of a call, shall be deemed to be a call and, if it is not paid these
Articles shall apply as if that amount had become due and payable by virtue of a’
call.
25. Power to differentiate
Subject to the terms of issue, the Board may, on the issue of shares,
" differentiate between the allottees or holders in the amount of calls to be paid
and the times of payment.
. - 9 -
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26.

27.

28.

29,

Advance payment of calls

The Board may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member willing to advance them
all or any part of the moneys unpaid and uncalled upon the shares held by him
and may pay interest upon.the moneys so advanced (to the extent such
moneys exceed the amount of the calls due and payable upon the shares in -

respect of which they have been advanced) at such rate (not exceeding 15 per . _,

cent. per annum unless the Company by ordinary resoltition otherwise directs)
as the Board may determine. A payment in advance of calls shall extinguish, to
the extent of it, the liability upon the shares in respect of which it is advanced.

FORFEITURE OF SHARES

Notice if call not paid

If a call or instalment of a call remains unpaid after it has become due and
payable, the Board may at any time serve a notice on the holder requiring
payment of so much of the call or instaiment as remains unpaid together with
any interest which may have accrued thereon and any costs, charges and
expenses incurred by the Company by reason of such non-payment. The
notice shall name a further day (not being less than 14 clear days from the date
of the notice) on or before which, and the place where the payment required by
the notice is to be made and shall state that if the notice is not complied with the
shares in respect of which the call was made or instalment is payable will be

liable to be forfeited. The Board may accept the surrender of any share liable to -

be forfeited and, in such case, references in these Articles to forfeiture shall
include surrender.

Forfeiture if notice not complied with

If any notice served under the immediately preceding Article (Notice if call not
paid) is not complied with, any share in respect of which the notice was given
may, before payment of all calls or instaiments and interest due in respect of it
is made, be forfeited by (and with effect from the time of the passing of) a

- resolution of the Board that such share be forfeited. The forfeiture shall include
-all dividends declared and other moneys payable in respect of the forfeited

shares and not paid before the forfeiture.

Notice of forfeiture

When any share has been forfeited, notice of the forfeiture shall be served upon -

the person who was, before the forfeiture, the holder of the share, but a
forfeiture shall not be invalidated by any failure to give such notice. An entry of

‘such notice and an entry of the forfeiture with the date thereof shall forthwith be

made in the Register in respect of such share. However, no forfeiture shall be
invalidated by any omission to make such entries as aforesaid.

-10 -
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30.

31.

32

Sale of forfeited share

Until cancelled in accordance with the Statutes, a forfeited share shall be

- deemed to be the property of the Company and may be sold, re-allotted or-

otherwise disposed of either to the person who was the holder before the
forfeiture or to any other person upon such terms and in such manner as the
Board thinks fit. To give effectto a sale or other dlsposal the Board may:-

iy inthe case of shares held in certificated form, authorise a person to
execute an instrument of transfer; and

(ii) inthe case of shares held in uncertificated form, authorise and instruct a

- person (which may include the holder prior to the forfeiture of the shares
concerned), subject to the system's rules, to send a transfer instruction,
and/or take other such steps as may be necessary, to give effect to such a
sale or other disposal in accordance with the Regulations,

to the designated transferee (and a transfer of certificated shares in this way will

- be valid even if in respect of any of the shares no certificate accompanies the
- instrument of transfer). The Company may receive any consideration given for

thie share on its disposal and may register the transferee as holder of the share.
At any time before a sale, re-allotment or other disposition, the forfeiture may be
cancelled on such terms as the Board thinks fit.

Arrears to be paid notwithstanding forfeiture

-A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in

respect of the forfeited shares and, in the case of shares held in certificated
form, shall surrender to the Company for cancellation the certificate for the
forfeited shares but in all cases shall remain liable to the Company for all*
moneys which at the date of forfeiture were presently payable by him to the
Company in respect of those shares with interest thereon from the date of
forfeiture until payment at such rate (not exceeding 15 per cent. per annum) as
the Board may determine. The Board may waive payment wholly or in part and
the Board may enforce payment without any allowance for the value of the
shares at the time of forfelture or for any consideration received on their
disposal.

Statutory declaration and validity of sale

A statutory declaration by a Director or the Secretary that a share has been
forfeited on a specified date shall be conclusive evidence of the facts stated in it
as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share. The declaration shall
(subject to the completion of any formalities necessary to effect a transfer)
constitute a good title to the share and the person to whom the share is
disposed of shall be registered as the holder of the share and shall be
discharged from all calls made prior to such disposition and shall not be bound

-11 -
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- 33.1

33.2

33.3

33.4

34.

to see to the application of the consideration (if any), nor shall his title to the
share be affected by any irregularity in or invalidity of the proceedings in
reference to the forfeiture, sale, re-allotment or other disposal of the share.

UNTRACED SHAREHOLDERS

Power to sell shares of untraced shareholders

The Company shall be entitled to sell at the best price reasonably obtainable
any shares of a holder or any shares to which a person is entitied by
transmlssmn if in respect of those shares:-

for a period of at least 12 years (the- quahfymg period"}, no cheque, warrant or other
financial instrument or payment.sent by the Company in the manner authorised

by these Articles has been cashed; the Company has paid at least three

dividends; and no dividend has been claimed;

the Company has at the expiration of the qualifying period given notice of its intention to
sell such shares by two advertisements, one in-a national newspaper published -

“in the United Kingdom and the other in a newspaper circulating in the area in

which the last known address of the holder or the address at which service of
notices may be effected in the manner authorised by these Atticles is located,;

so far as the Board is aware, the Company has not during the qualifying period or the
period of three months after the date of such advertisements (or the later of the

two dates if they are published on different dates) and prior to the exercise of

the power of sale received any commumcat:on from the holder or person

entitled by transmission; and : :

if any part of the share capital of the Company is admitted to the Official List of the UK

Listing Authority, the Company has given notice in writing to the UK Listing
Authonty of its intention to sell such share.

Manner of sale and creation of debt in respect of net proceeds

" To give effect to any such salé,‘the Board may authorise and instruct a person:-.‘

(i) in the case of shares held in certificated form, to execute an instrument of
transfer of the shares; and '

(i) in the case of shares held in uncertificated form, subject to the system's
. rules, to send a transfer instruction, and take such other steps as may be
necessary, to give effect to such a.transfer in accordance with the
Regulations,

and such instrument of transfer or transfer instruction and the taking of other
steps as may be necessary in accordance with the Regulations as aforesaid
shall be as effective as if they had been executed by the holder of, or person

-12-
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-35.1  Subject to such of the restrictions of these Articles as may be applicable, a member:

entitled by transmission to, the shares. The transfer of certificated shares in
this way will be valid-even if in respect of any of the shares no certificate
accompanies the instrument of transfer. The transferee shall not be bound to
see to the application of the purchase money and his title shall not be affected
by any irregularity in, or invalidity of, the proceedings relating to the sale. The
net-proceeds of sale shall belong to-the Company which shall be indebted to the
former holder or person entitled by transmission for an amount equal to such
proceeds and shall enter the name of such former member or other person in

" the books of the Company as a creditor for such amount.: No trust shall be
created in respect of the debt, no interest shall be payable in respect of it and
the Company shalt not be required to account for any moneys earned on the net
proceeds, which may be employed in the business of the' Company or otherwise
invested as the Board thinks fit. .

' TRANSFER OF SHARES
35. Form and execution of transfer

may transfer all or any of his shares, in the case of shares held in certificated
form, by an instrument of transfer in any usual form or in any other form which
the Board may approve o, in the case of shares held in uncertificated form, in
accordance with the Regulations and the system's rules and otherwise in such
manner as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine. An instrument
of transter shall be executed by or on behalf of the transferor and (unless the
share is fully paid) by or on behalf of the transferee. Subject to the Statutes, the
transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of the share until the name of
the transferee is entered in the Register in respect of it.

35.2  Subject to the Statutes and notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles, the
Board shall have power to implement any arrangements it may think fit to
enable:- '

35.2.1 title to any securities of the Company to be evidenced and transferred without a
written instrument in accordance with the Regulations and the facilities
and requirements of the relevant system concerned; and

35.2.2 "rights attaching to such securities to be exercised notwithstanding that such
securities are held in uncertificated form where, in the Board's opinion,
these Articles do not otherwise allow or provide for such exercise.

36. Right to refuse reglstrahon of partly paid share

Subject to the Statutes, the Board may refuse to register the transfer of a share
which is not fully paid without giving any reason for so doing provided that,
where any such shares are admitted to the Official List of the UK Listing
Authority, such discretion may not be exercised in such a way as to prevent
‘dealings in the shares of that class from taking place on an open and proper
-13-
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38.

39.

40.-
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- Other rights to refuse registration

The Board may also refuse to,_registerthé transfer of a share:-

in the case of shares held in certificated form, if it is not lodged, duly stémped (if

necessary), at the Office or at such other place as the Board may appoint and
accompanied by the certificate for the shares to which it relates (where a
certificate has been issued in respect of the shares and these Articles do not
provide for such a transfer to be valid without production of the certificate)
and/or such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the
right of the transferor to make the transfer;

if itis not in respect of one class of share only;
if it is not in favour of four or fewer transferees;
if it is in favour of a minor, bankrupt or persoh of mental ill health;

without prejudice to the foregoing, in the case of shares held in uncertificated form, in -
any other circumstances permitted by the Regulations and/or the system's
rules; or

where the Board is obliged or entitled to refuse to do so as a result of any failure to
comply with a notice under section 212 of the Act.

Notice of refusal

* If the Board refuses to register a transfer it shall, in the case of shares held in

certificated form, within two months after the date on which the transfer was
lodged and in the case of shares held in uncertificated form, within two months
after the date on which the relevant Operator-instruction was received by or on
behalf of the Company, send to the transferee notice of the refusal.

‘Suspension of registration

The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such

periods (not exceeding 30 days in any calendar year) as the Board may
determine but if the Company is a participating issuer within the meaning of the
Regulations the Register will not be closed without the prior consent of the
Operator of the relevant system.

No fee for registration

No fee shall be charged for the registration of any transfer or document relatmg
to or affecting the title to any share.
-14 -
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42,

43.

44.

45.

Retention of documents

Any instrument of transfer which is registered may be retained by the Company,
but any instrument of transfer which the Board refuses to register shall be
retumed to the person lodging it when notice of the refusal is given.

Other Registers

Subject to the Statutes, the Company may keep an overseas, local or other
register in any place, and the Board may make and vary such regulations as it

may think fit concerning the keeping of that register.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

Transmission on death

If a member dies, the survivor or survivors where he was a joint hoider, and his
personal representatives where he was a sole holder or the only survivor of joint
holders shall be the only persons recognised by the Company as having any
title to his shares; but nothing contained in this Article shall release the estate of
a deceased member from any liability in respect of any share solely or jointly
held by him.

Election by person entitled by transmission
Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or

bankruptcy of a member or of any other event giving rise to its transmission by
operation of law may, upon such evidence being produced as the Board may

" require and subject (where relevant) to the system's rules, elect either to

become the holder of the share or to have some person nominated by him
registered as the transferee. If he elects to become the holder, he shall give
notice to the Company to that effect. If he eiects to have another person
registered, he shall, subject (where relevant) to the system's rules, effect or
procure a transfer of the share in favour of that person. All the provisions of
these Articles relating to the transfer of shares shall apply to the notice or
instrument of transfer as if the death or bankruptcy of the member or other
event giving rise to the transmission had not occurred and the notice or
instrument of transfer was an instrument of transfer executed by the member.

Rights in respect of the share -

A person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or v
bankruptcy of a member or of any other event giving rise to its transmission by
operation of law shall have the same rights to which he would be entitled if he
were the holder of that share, except that he shall not be entitled in respect of it
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46.

46.1

46.2

46.3

46.4

47.

48.

to attend or vote at any general meeting of the Company or at any separate
meeting of the holders of any class of shares in the Company until he is
registered as the holder of the share. The Board may at any time give notice to
such person requiring him to elect either to become the holder of the share or to
transfer the share and if the notice is not complied with within 60 clear days

_from the date of the notice, the Board may withhold payment of al!l dividends

and other moneys payable in respect of the share until he complies with the
notice. ' '

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

Increase, consolidation, sub-division and cancellation

The Company may by ordinary rés’olu_tion:- _

_increase its share capital by new shares of such amount as the resolution prescribes;

consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its

existing shares;

subject to the Statutes, sub-divide its shares, or any of them, into shares of smaller .
amount and the resolution may determine that, as between the shares resuiting

from the sub-division, any of them may have any preference or advantage or

have such qualified or deferred rights or be subject to any restrictions as

compared with the others; and

cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been
taken, or agreed to be taken, by any person and diminish the amount of its
share capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled. ‘

Fractions

Whenever as a result of a consolidation, division or sub-division of shares any
member would become entitled to fractions of a share, the Board may deal with
the fractions as it thinks fit and, in particular, may sell the shares representing
the fractions to any person (including, subject to the Statutes, the Company)
and may distribute the net proceeds of sale in due proportion among those -
members save for amounts of £3.00 or less, which shall be retained for the

“benefit of the Company. To give effect 16 any such sale, the Board may
authorise and instruct a person to take such steps as may be necessary
(subject, in the case of shares held in uncertificated form, to the system's rules)
to transfer or deliver the shares to, or in accordance with the directions of, the
purchaser. The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the
purchase money and his title shall not be affected by any irregularity in, or
invalidity of, the proceedings relating to the sale. -

Reduction of capital
-16 -
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49.2

50.

51.

52.

53.

Subject to the Statutes, the Company may by special resolution reduce its
share capital, any capital redemption reserve.and any share premium account
or other undistributable reserve in any manner. .

. STOCK

Conversion of shares into stock

The Company may by ordinary resolution convert-any fully paid up shares into stock
and re-convert any stock into fully paid up shares of any denomination.

- Any such resolution to convert shares of a particular class into stock which does not
-expressly disapply this paragraph of this Article shalii (notwithstanding any other
‘terms of the resolution) operate automatically to convert shares of that class

which subsequently become fully-paid into stock on the same basis, but not if
the stock initially created by the resolution has been re-converted into shares of
any denomination.

Transfér of stock

Stock may be transferred in accardance with these Articles which, prior to
conversion, applied to the shares from which the stock arose or as near thereto
as circumstances allow, but the Board may from time to time fix the minimum
amount of stock which is transferable (which minimum amount shall not exceed
the nominal amount of the shares from which the stock arose), in which case
stock may be transferred in the sum of the minimum amount or a multiple of it.

Rights attaching to stock

A holder of stock shall, according to the amount of the stock held by him, have
the same rights (including voting rights) as if he held the shares from which the.
stock arose, but no such rights (except participation in dividends and in assets
on a winding-up) shall be conferred by an amount of stock which would not, if
existing in shares, have conferred those rights.

Articles applicable to stock
The provisions of these Articles appiicable to paid up shares shall apply to
stock, and the word "share” shall include “stock" and "member" and "holder"

shall include "stockholder”.

PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES

Purchase of own shares

-17 -
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54.

b5.

56.

57.

57.1

- Subject to the Statutes and to any rights conferred on the holders of any class
- - of shares, the Company may purchase all or.any of its shares of any class

(including any redeemable shares). The Company may not purchase any of its
shares unless the purchase has been sanctioned (at the time that authority for a
market purchase is given or an off-market purchase contract is approved) by

- such resolution of the Company as may be required by the Statutes and by an
‘extraordinary resolution passed at a separate general meeting (or meetings if
- there is more than one class) of the holders of any shares which entitle the

hoiders to convert them into equity share capital of the Company. Neither the
Company nor the Board shall be required to select the shares to be purchased
rateably or in any particular manner as between the holders of shares of the

- same class or as between them and the holders of shares of any other class or

in accordance with the rights as to dividends or capital attached to any class of
shares. ' .

* GENERAL MEETINGS

Annual general meetings

Subject to the réquirements of the Statutes, annual general meetings shall be
held at such time and place as the Board may determine.

Extraordinary general meetings

Any general meeting of the Company other than an annual general meeting
shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Cdnvening an extraordinary general meeting

The Board may convene an extraordinary general meeting whenever it thinks fit
and shall do so on requisition in accordance with the Statutes.

- NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Length of notice period

- An annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting convened for
- the passing of a special resolution or a resolution appointing a person as a

director shall be convened by at least 21 clear days' notice.  All other
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened by at least 14 clear days'
notice. Notwithstanding that a meeting of the Company is convened by shorter
notice than that specified in this Article, it shall be deemed to have been
properly convened if it is so agreed:-

in the case of an annual general meeting, by all the members entitied to attend and vote

at the mesting; and
-18 -
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57.2°

58.

59.

60.

51624944.03

- to attend and vote at the meeting, being a majority together holding not less

and to the Directors and Auditors. The Board may determine that members
“entitled to receive such notices are those members entered on the Register at
- the close of business on a day determined by the Board (provided that it is not

 notice or instrument of proxy by, any person entitled to receive either or both

- meeting on the day, at the time or in the place specified in the notice calling the. -

in the case of any other meeting, by a majority in number of the members having a right

than 95 per cent. in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

Subject to these Atticles and to any restrictions imposed on any shares, the
notice shall be given to all the members, to all persons entitled by transmission

more than 21 days before the day that the notices are sent).

Contents of notices

Every notice calling a general meeting specify the place, the day and the time of
the meeting and the general nature of the business to be transacted. In the
case of an annual general meeting, the notice shall also specify the meeting as
such. A notice convening a meeting to pass a special or extraordinary
resolution shall contain a statement to that effect. In every notice calling a
meeting of the Company there shall appear with reasonable prominence a
statement that a member entitled to attend and vote is entitied to appoint one or
more proxies to attend and vote in his stead and that a proxy need not be a
member. Every such notice shall also state the place where instruments of
proxy are to be deposited if the Board determines that place to be other than
the Office.

Omission or non-receipt of notice

The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting or 1o send an instrument of
proxy with a notice (where required by these Articles) to, or the non-receipt of a

shall not invalidate the proceedings at that meeting.

Change of date, time or place ‘of meeting-
If for any reason the Board considers it impractical or undesirable to hold a

meeting it can change the date, time and p(ace of the meeting (or whichever it

requires), and may do so more than once in relation to the same mesting. The

Board will, insofar as it is practicable, announce by advertisement in at least

one newspaper with a national circulation the date, time and place of the

meeting as changed, but it shall not be necessary to restate the business of the’
meeting in that announcemerit.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS
-19-
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61.

62.

63.
63.1

63.2

64.

Quorum

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum is
present when the meeting proceeds to business, but the absence of a quorum
shall not preclude the choice or appointment of a chairman of the meeting,
which shall not be treated as part of the business of the meeting. Save as
otherwise provided by these Articles, two members present in person or by
proxy and entitled to vote shall be a quorum for all purposes.

Procedure if quorum not present

if within five minutes (or such longer time not exceeding one hour as the
chairman of the meeting may decide to wait) after the time appointed for the
commencement of the meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting shall (if
requisitioned in accordance with the Statutes) be dissolved or (in any other
case) stand adjourned to such other day (not being less than ten nor more than
28 days later) and at such time and place as the chairman of the meeting may
decide and at such adjourned meeting one member present in person or by
proxy (whatever the number of shares held by him) shall be a quorum. The
Company shall give not less than seven clear days' notice in writing of any

‘meeting adjourned through want of a quorum -and the notice shall state that one

member present in person or by proxy (whatever the number of shares held by
him) shali be a quorum.

Chairman of general meeting

The chairman {if any) of the Board or, in his absence, the deputy chairman (if any) shall
preside as chairman at every general meeting. If there is no such chairman or

deputy chairman, or if at any meeting neither the chairman nor a deputy

chairman is present within five minutes after the time appointed for the

commencement of the meeting, or if neither of them is willing to act as

" chairman, the Directors present shall choose one of their number to act, or if

one Director only is present he shall preside as chairman, if willing to act. if no
Director is present, or if each of the Directors present declines to take the chair,
the persons present and entitled to vote shall elect one of their number to be
chairman. ‘ ‘

The chairman of the meeting may invite any person to attend and speak at any general
meeting of the Company whom he considers to be equipped by knowledge or
experience of the Company's business to assist in the deliberations of the

meeting. ' . :

Directors’ right to attend and speak

Each Director shall be entitled to attend and to speak at any general meeting of
the Company and at any separate general meeting of the holders of any class

-20-
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65.

65.1

65.2

65.3

65.4

66.

of shares or debentures in the Company.

Meeting at more than one place and/or in a series of rooms

A general meeting or adjourned meeting may be held at more than one place. The ,

- notice of meeting will specify the place at which the chairman will be present

{the "Principal Place™) and a letter. accompanying the notice will specify any
other place(s) at which the meeting will be held simultaneously (but any failure
to do this will not invalidate the notice of mesting).

A general:meeting or adjourned meeting will be held in one room or a series of rooms at
the place specified in the notice of meeting or any other place at which the
meeting is to be held s»multaneously

If the meeting is held in more than one place and/or in a-series of rooms, it will net be
validly held unless all persons entitled to attend and speak at the meeting are
able:

65.3.1 if excluded from the Principal Place or the room in which the chairman is
present, to attend at one of the other places or rooms; and

65.3.2 to communicate with one another audio visually throughout the meeting.

The Board may make such arrangements as it thinks fit for simultaneous
attendance and participation at the meeting and may vary any such
arrangements or make new arrangements. Arrangements may be notified in
advance or at the meeting by whatever means the Board thinks appropriate to
the circumstances. Each person entitled to attend the meetmg will be bound by
the arrangements made by the Board.

Where a meeting is held in more than one place and/or a series of rooms, then for the

- purpose of these Articles the meeting shall consist of all those persons entitled

to attend and participate in the meetmg who attend at any of the places or
rooms.

Security arrangements

The Board may direct that members or proxies wishing to attend any general
meeting should submit to such searches or other security arrangements or
restrictions as the Board shall consider appropriate in the circumstances and
shall be entitled in its absolute discretion to refuse entry to such general

" meeting to any member or proxy who fails to submit to such searches or to
" otherwise comply with such security arrangements or restrictions. If a member

or proxy has gained entry to a general meeting and refuses to comply with any
such security arrangements or restrictions or disrupts the proper and orderly
conduct of the general meeting, the chairman of the meeting may at any time

~ without the consent of the general meeting require such member or proxy to

leave or be removed from the mesting.
-1 .
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68. Adjournments -

The chairman of the meeting may at any time without the consent of the
meeting adjourn any meeting (whether or not it has commenced or a quorum'is
present) either indefinitely or to such tlme and piace as he may decide if it
appears to him that:-

68.1  the members w;shlng 1o attend cannot be convemently accommodated in the place
appointed for the meeting;

68.2 - the conduct of persons present prevents or is likely to prevent, the orderiy continuation. | -
of business; or oo !

68.3 - an adjournment is otherwnse necessary so that the business of the meetlng may be
properly conducted. :

In addition, the chairman of the meeting may at any time with the consent of
any meeting at which a quorum is present (and shall if so directed by the
meeting) adjourn the meeting either indefinitely or to such time and place as he
may decide. When a meeting is adjourned indefinitely the time and place for
the adjourned meeting shall be fixed by the Board.

No business shall be transacted at'any adjourned meeting except business
which might properly have been transacted at the meeting had the adjournment
not taken place.

69. Notice of adjourned meeting

If a meeting is adjourned indefinitely or for 30 days or more or for lack of a
quorum, at least seven clear days' notice in writing specifying the place, the day
and the time of the adjourned meeting shali be given, but it shall not be
necessary to specify in the notice the nature of the business to be transacted at
the adjourned meeting. Otherwise, it shall not be necessary to give notice of an
adjourned meeting.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

70. Method of voting

" Atany general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be
"decided on a show of hands unless before or on the declaration of the result of
the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll a poll is
duly demanded. Subject to the Statutes, a poll may be demanded by:-

70.1  the chairman of the meeting;
70.2 ° atleast five members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the meeting;

-0
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70.3

- 70.4

71.

72.

73.

any member or members present in person or by proxy and representing in aggregate
at least one-tenth of the total voting rights of alf the members having the right to
attend and vote at the meeting; or

any member or members present in person or by proxy and holding shares conferring a
right to attend and vote at the meeting, being shares on which an aggregate

sum has been paid up equal to not less. than one-tenth of the total sum paid up

on all the shares conferring that right.

Unless a poll is'so demanded and the demand is not withdrawn,‘ a declaration

by the chairman of the meeting that a resolution has been carried or caried
* unanimously or by a particular majority or not carried by a particular majority or

lost and an entry to that effect in the minutes of the meeting shall be conclusive.
evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportlon of the votes
recorded in favour of or against such resolution. :

Votes of members

Subiject to any rights or restrictions attached to any shares and to any other
provisions of these Articles, on a show of hands every member who is present
in person and every proxy appointed by the Depository who is present shall
have one vote and on a poll every member shall have one vote for every share
of which he is the holder. If the notice of the meeting has specified a time.
(which is not more than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting) by which
a person must be entered on the Register in order to have the right to attend
and vote at the meeting, no person registered after that time shall be eligible to
attend and vote at the meeting by right of that registration, even if-present at the
meeting. References in these Articles to members present in person shall be
construed accordingly.

Votes of joint holders -

In the case of joint holders of a share the vote of the senior who tenders a vote,
whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of
the other joint holders; and seniority shall be determined by the order in Wthh
the names of the holders stand in the-Register.

Corporations acting by representatives

A corporation which is a member may by resolution of its directors or other
govemning body authorise such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative . -
at any general meeting of the Company or of any class of members of the
Company. The person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same
powers (other than the power to appoint a proxy) on behalf of the corporation
which he represents as that corporation could exercise if it were an individual
member of the Company and such corporation shall for the purposes of these
Articles be deemed to be present in person at any such meeting if a person so
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authorised is present at that meeting.

74.  Votes of member suffering incapacity

A member in respect of whom an order has been made by any competent court *
or official on the ground that he is or may be suffering from mental disorder or is
otherwise incapable of managing his affairs may vote, whether on a show of
hands or on a poll, by any person authorised in such circumstances to do so on
his behalf and that person may vote on a polt by proxy. Evidence to the
satisfaction of the Board of the authority of the person claiming to exercise the
right to vote shall be deposited at the Office, or at such other place as is
specified in accordance with these Articles for the deposit of instruments of
proxy, not later than the last time at which an instrument of proxy should have
been delivered in order to be valid for use at that meeting or on the holding of
that poll. :

75. No right to vote where sums overdue on shares

z

No member shall, unless the Board otherwise decides, vote at any general *
meeting or at any separate meeting of holders of any class of shares in the ]
‘Company, either in person or by proxy, or exercise any other right or privilege 1
as a member in respect of any share in the Company held by him unless all |
moneys presently payable by him in respect of that share have been paid. ‘
1

|

|

76. Votes on a poll

On a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy. A member entitled :
to more than one vote on a poll need not use all his votes or cast all the votes i
he uses in the same way. :

The demand for a poll may, before the earlier of the close of the meeting and
the taking of the poll, be withdrawn but-only with the consent of the chairman of
the meeting and, if a demand is withdrawn, any other members entitled to
demand a poll may do so. If a demand is withdrawn, it shall not be taken to |
have invalidated the result of a show of hands declared before the demand was G
made. If a poll is demanded before the declaration of the result of a show of ;
1
[

!
77.  Rightto withdraw demand forapoll ’ !1
i

hands and the demand is duly withdrawn, the meeting shall continue as if the
demand had not been made.

78. Procedure if poll demanded

If a poliis duly demanded, it shall be taken in such manner as the chairman of
the meeting directs and he may appoint scrutineers (who need not be
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79.

80.

81.
81.1

members) and fix a time and place for declaring the result of the poll. The
result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which

the poll was demanded.

When poll to be taken

A poll demanded on the election of a chairman of the meeting or on a question

.of adjournment shall be taken forthwith. A poll demanded on any other

question shall be taken either forthwith or on such date (being not more than 30
days after the poll is demanded) and at such time and place and in such
manner or by such means as the chairman of the meeting directs. No notice
need be given of a poll not taken immediately if the time and place at which it is
to be taken are announced at the meeting at which it is demanded. In any other
case, at least seven clear days' notice shall be given specifying the time and
place at which the poll is to be taken. The result of the poll shall be deemed to
be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded.

Continuance of other business after poll demanded

The demand for a poll shall not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the
transaction of any business other than the question on which the poll was

demanded.

VSuspensidn of rights for non-disclosure of interest

If a member, or any other person appearing o be interested in shares held by that

member, has been given a notice under section 212 of the Act (a "Disclosure
Notice") and has failed in relation to any shares (the "default shares”) to give
the Company the information required by such notice within 14 days of the
date of such notice, then at any time after the expiry of such period the Board
may, in its absolute discretion, by notice (a “Defauit Notice") direct to such
member that: :

81.1.1 the member shall not be entitled in respect of the default shares to be present

or to vote (either in person or by representative or proxy) at any
. general meeting or at any separate meeting of the holders of any class
of shares or on any poll; and

81.1.2 where the default shares represent at least 0.25 per cent. of the issued shares

of the Company or the class in question, the Default Notice may
additionally direct that:

(a) any dividend (including shares issued in lieu of dividends) or other

monies payable in respect of the default shares shall be -
withheld by the Company, which shall not have any obligation
to pay interest on it; and

-25.
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.81.3 Any new shares in the Company issued in nght of any default share shall also be

-81.7  Inthis Atrticle:

(b) no transfer, other than an excepted transfer, of any shares held by the
member shall be registered unless the member is not himself
in default as regards supplying the information required and
the transfer is of part only of the member's holding and when
lodged for registration is accompanied by a certificate from the
member in a form satisfactory to the Board that after due and
careful enquiry the member is satisfied that no person in
default as regards supplying such information is interested in
any of the shares the subject of the transfer.

81.2 The Company shall send a copy of any Default Noticé to each other person appearing
‘to be interested in the default shares, but failure to do so, or the non-receipt of
a copy by any such person shall not mvahdate such notice.

subject to such notice, and the Board may make any right to an allotment of
the new shares subject to restrictions corresponding to those which will apply
to those shares by reason of the Default Notice when such shares are issued.

81.4  Any member on whom a Default Notice has been served may at any time request the
Company to give in writing the reason why the Default Notice has been served,
or why it remains uncancelled, and within 14 days of receipt of such a request
the Company shall give that information accordingly. .

81.5 Where any sanctions imposed under this Article apply in relation to any shares, they
shall cease to have effect seven days after the earlier of (a) receipt by the
Board of notice that such shares are the subject of an excepted transfer and
(b) due compliance, to the satisfaction of the Board, with the Disclosure Notice.
The Company may at any time at its discretion cancel or suspend any Default
Notice or exclude any shares from it. Where any Default Notice is cancelled or
ceases to have effect, any dividends and other monies withheld by reason of
that notice shall be paid without interest to the person who would but for the
notice have been entitled to them or as.he may direct.

81.6  This Article is in addition to, and shall not in any way prejudice or affect, the statutory .
: rights of the Company arising from any failure by any person to give any
information required by a Disclosure Notice within the time specified init. For
the purpose of this Article, a Disclosure Notice may require any information to
‘be given before the expiry of 14 days from the date of the notice.

81.7.1 an "excepted transfer’ means

(@) a transfer pursuant to acceptance of a takeover offer (as defined in
section 428 of the Act);

(b) a transferin con_sequenbe of a sale of the entire interest in the shares
the subject of the transfer on a recognised investment

- 26 -
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exchange oron any other stock exchange outside the United
Kingdom on which shares in the Company of that description
are normally traded; or

{d} a transfer which is shown to the satisfaction of the Board to be made in
consequence of a sale of such an entire interest otherwise
than on any such stock exchange to a person who is not
connected (within the meaning of section 346 of the Act) with
the relevant member or with a person appearing to be
interested in the shares the subject of the transfer;

81.7.2 a "person appearing to be interested” in any shares means any person named .

in a response to a Disclosure Notice as being so interested or shown in - i

any register kept by the Company under the Act as so interested or, . L

_taking into account any response or failure to respond to such notice or '

to any other statutory notice or any other relevant information, any e for

person whom the Company has reasonable cause to believe is so '
interested; and

81.7.3 references to a person having failed to give the Company the information
required by a Disclosure Notice, or being in default as regards
supplying such information, include (without limitation) (i) references to
his having failed or refused to give all or any part of it and (i)
references to his having given information which he knows to be faise
in a material particular or his having recklessly given information which
is false in a material pamcular

82, ' Chairman's césting vote

In the case of an equality of votes at a.general meeting, whether on a show of
hands or on a poll, the chairman of the meeting shall be entitied to a casting
vote in addition to any other vote he may have.

‘83, _ P‘roposal or amendment of resolutio_n

A resolution proposed by the chairman of the meeting does not need to be . Sl s
seconded. In the case of a resolution duly proposed as an extraordinary or b
special resolution, no amendment to that resofution (other than an amendment
to correct a patent error) may be considered or voted upon. Inthe caseofa -~
resolution duly proposed as an ordinary resolution no amendment to that i
. resolution (other than an amendment to correct a patent error) may be

= _ considered or voted upon unless at least 48 hours prior to the time appointed .
g for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which such ordinary resolution
is to be proposed, notice in writing of the terms of the amendment and of the |
intention to move the amendment has been lodged at the Office or the
chairman of the meeting in his absolute discretion dectdes that it may be
considered and voted upon.-

-27.
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84.

85.

85.1

85.2

85.3

'86.

87.

87.1.

Amendment of resolution ruled out of order

if an amendment is proposed to any resolution under consideration which the

“chairman of the meeting rules out of order, the proceedings on the substantive

resolution shall not be invalidated by any error in such ruling.

Objections or errors in voting
If:-

any objection shall be raised to the quali‘fication of any voter;

any votes have been counted which ought not to have been counted or which might .

have been rejected; or
any votes are not counted which ought to have been counted

the objection or error shall not vitiate the decision of the meeting or adjourned

‘meeting on any resolution unless it is raised or pointed out at the meeting or, as

the case may be, the adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given
or tendered or at which the error occurs. Any objection or error shall be referred
to the chairman of the meeting and shall only vitiate the decision of the meeting
on any resolution if the chairman of the meeting decides that the same may
have affected the decision of the meeting. The decision of the chairman of the
meeting on such matters shall be conclusive.

PROXIES

Execution of an instrument of proxy

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the
appointor or of his attorney authorised in writing or, if the appointorisa
corporation, either under its seal or under the hand of an officer, attorney or

-other person authorised to sign it. In the case of an instrument of proxy

purporting to be signed on behalf of a corporation by an officer of that
corporation, it shall be assumed, unless the contrary is shown, that such officer
‘was duly authorised to sign that instrument on behalf of that corporation without
further evidence of that authorisation. :

Times for deposit of an instrument of proxy

The instrument appoiming a proxy and the power of attomey or other authority

(if any) under which it is signed, or a copy of such authority certified notanally or

in some other way approved by the Board, shall:

be deposited at the Office or at such other place within the United Kingdom asis .

-28 -
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87.3

87.4

88.
88.1

88.2

-88.3

specified in the notice convening the meeting or in any instrument of proxy sent
out by the Company in relation to the meeting not less than 48 hours before the
time of the holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person
named in the instrument proposes to vote; or

in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after it is demanded, be deposited as
aforesaid after the poll has been demanded and not less than 24 hours before
the time appointed for the taking of the poll; or

where the poll is not taken forthwith but is taken not more than 48 hours after it was
demanded, be deposited at the meeting at which the poll was demanded to the
chairman of the meeting or to any Director,

and an instrument of proxy which is not so delivered shall be invalid. When two .
or more valid but differing instruments of proxy are delivered in respect of the
same share for use at the same meeting, the one which is last delivered
(regardiess of its date or of the date of execution) shall be treated as replacing
the others as regards that share; if the Company is unable to determine which
was last delivered, none of them shall be treated as valid in respect of that
share. Delivery of an instrument appointing a proxy shall not preclude a
member from attending and voting in person at the meeting or poll concerned.

Form of proxy

An instrument of proxy shall be in any usual form or any other form which the Board
may approve and may relate to more than one meeting. The Board may, if it

thinks fit but subject to the Statutes, send out with the notice of any meeting

forms of instrument of proxy for use at the meeting. The instrument of proxy

shall be deemed to include the right to demand or join in demanding a poll and
(except 1o the extent that the instrument comprises instructions to vote in a
particular way) to vote or abstain as the proxy thinks fit on any business

- properly dealt with at the meeting, including a vote on.any amendment of a

resolution put to the meeting or on any motion to adjourn. The proxy shall,
unless the contrary is stated in it, be as valid for any adjournment of the meeting
as for the meeting to which it relates.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A member may appoint more than
.one proxy to attend on the same occasion. If a member appoints more than

one person 1o act as his proxy, the instrument appointing each proxy shall

specify the shares held by the member in respect of which each such proxyisto .
vote and no member may appoint more than one proxy (save in the alternate) to .
vote in respect of any one share held by that member,

A proxy (other than a proxy appointed by the Depository) may not speak at any meeting
. except with the permission of the chairman of the meeting. A proxy appointed

in respect of any share held by the Depository may speak at any meeting at
which the duly appointed representative of the Depository would be entitled to
attend and vote by right of that share.
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89,

90.

91.

o2

93,

94,

Validity of proxy

A vote given or poll demanded by proxy or by the duly authorised representative
of a corporation shall be valid, notwithstanding the previous determination of the
authority of the person voting or demanding a poll unless notice in writing of

such determination was received by the Company at the Office (or at such other -

place in the United Kingdom as was specified for the delivery of instruments of
proxy in the notice convening the meeiing or adjourned meeting or other
accompanying document) not later than the last time at which an instrument of
proxy should have been delivered in order to be valid for use at the meeting or
on the holding of the poll at which the vote was given or the poll demanded.

Maximum validity of proxy

An instrument of proxy shall cease to be valid after the expiration of 12 months

- from the date of its execution except that it will remain valid after that for the _
purposes of a poll or an adjourned meeting if the meeting at which the poll was

demanded or the adjournment moved was held within the 12 month period.

DIRECTORS

Number of Directors

Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution of the Company, the _
number of Directors (disregarding alternate directors) shall not be less than two
but shall not be subject to any maximum number.

No shareholding qualification for Directors

No shareholding qualification for Diréct_ors shall be required.

_ BEMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Ordinary remuneration

~ Each of the Directors shall be paid afee for his services at such rate as may

from time to time be determined by the Board or by a committee authorised by
the Board provided that the aggregate of such fees (excluding any amounts

payabie under any other provision of these Articles) shall not exceed £150,000
per annum or such higher amount as the Company by ordinary resolution may

~ determine from time fo time. Such fee shall be deemed to accrue from day to

day.

.Expenses
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The Directors may be paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly
incurred by them in the conduct of the Company's business performing their
duties as Directors including all such expenses incurred in connection with
attending and returning from meetings of the Board or any committee of the
Board or general meetings or separate meetings of the holders of any class of
shares or debentures of the Company or otherwise in connection with the
business of the Company. .

Extra remuneration

Any Director who is appointed to any executive office or who serves on any
committee or who devotes special attention to the business of the Company or
goes or resides abroad for any purposes of the Company shall (unless the -
Company by ordinary resolution determines otherwise) receive such :
remuneration or extra remuneration by way of salary, commission, participation
in profits or otherwise as the Board or any committee authorised by the Board
may determine in addition to or in lieu of any remuneration paid to, or provided
for, such Director by or pursuant to any other of these Articles.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Appointment, removal and resignation

Any Director (other than an alternate Director) may,'by notice in writing
delivered to the Secretary at the Office or in any other manner approved by the:

-Board, appoint any person to be his alternate and may revoke any such

appointment. If the alternate Director is not already a Director, the appointment,
unless previously approved by the Board, shall have effect only upon and
subject to its being so approved. Any appointment of an altemate will only have
effect once the person who is to be appointed has consented to act. If his
appointor so requests, an alternate Director shall (subject to his giving to the
Company an address for service within the United Kingdom) be entitled to
receive notice of all meetings of the Board or of committees of the Board of
which his appointor is a member, to attend and vote and be counted in the
quorum as a Director at any such meeting at which his appointor is not
personally present, and generally, in the absence of his appointor, at the . -
meeting to exercise and discharge all the functions, powers and duties of his
appointor as a Director and for the. purposes of the proceedings at the meeting,

.. these Articles shall apply as if he were a Director. A Director present ata

meeting of the Board or committee of the Board and appointed alternate for'.
another Director shall have an additional vote for each of his appointors absent
from such meeting (but shall count as one only for the purpose of determining
whether a quorum is present). Execution by an alternate Director of any

document (including, without limitation, any deed) on behalf of the Company or

any resolution in writing of the Board or a committee of the Board shall, unless
the notice of his appointment provides to the contrary, be as effective as

execution by his appointor. An altermate Director shall cease to be an alternate -
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Director if he resigns or if for any reason his appointment is revoked or if his
appointor ceases to be a Director; but, if a Director retires by rotation or
otherwise but is reappointed or deemed to have been reappointed at the
meeting at which he retires, any appointment of an alternate Director made by
him which was in force immediately prior to his retirement shall continue after
his reappointment as if he had not retired. The appointment of an alternate
Director shall be revoked on the happening of any event which, if he were a

. Director, would cause him to vacate such office under these Articles. All

appointments and revocations of appointments and resignations of alternate
Directors shall be in writing and left at the Office or delivered at a meetmg of the
Board, orin any other manner approved by the Board.

Alternate to be responsible for his own acts and remuneration of alternate

An alterate Director shall be deemed an officer of the Company and shall be
subject to these Articles relating to Directors (except as regards power to
appoint an alternate and remuneration) and an alternate Director shall not be
deemed the agent of his appointor and shall alone be responsible to the
Company for his acts and defaults. An alternate Director may contract and be
interested in and benefit from contracts or arrangements or transactions and be
paid expenses and indemnified to the same extent as if he were a Director but,
save 1o the extent that his appointor directs the payment to him of part or all of
the remuneration which would otherwise be payable to his appointor, he shall
not be entitled to any remuneration from the Company for acting in that
capacity.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

" Executive Directors

The Board or any comimittee authorised by the Board may from time to time appoint one

or more of its body to hold any employment or executive office with the
Company (including that of a managing director) for such period (subject to the
Statutes) and on such other terms as the Board or any committee authorised by -
the Board may decide and may revoke or terminate any appointment so made.

'Any revocation or termination of the appointment shall be without prejudice to

any claim for damages that the Director may have against the Company or that

" the Company may have against the Director for any breach of any contract of
. service between him and the Company. A Director so appointed may be paid

such remuneration (whether by way of salary, commission, participation in
profits or otherwise) in such manner as the Board or any committee authorised
by the Board may decide and either in addmon toorin place of his ordinary
remuneration as a Director.

The Board may from time to time appoint any person to any office or employment
having a descriptive designation or title including the word "director” or attach to
any existing office or employment with the Company such a designation or title
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and may at any time determine any such appointment or the use of any such
designation or title. The inclusion of the word “director” in the designation or
title of any such office or employment with the Company shall not imply that the
holder of the office is a director of the Company nor shall such holder thereby
be empowered in any respect to act as a director of the Company or be deemed
to be a director for any of the purposes of the Statutes or these Articles.

POWERS AND.DUTlES OF DIRECTORS

General powers of ’the',C(_')mpany vested in the Board

Subject to the Statutes, the Memorandum of Association of the Company and

these Articles and to any directions given by the Company in general meeting

by special resolution, the business of the Company shall be managed by the

Board which may exercise all the powers of the Company. No alteration of the .
Memorandum of Association or the Company’s articles (including these Articles)

and no such special resolution shall invalidate any prior act of the Board which
would have been valid if that alteration had not been made or that resolution
had not been passed. The powers given by this Article shall not be limited by
any special power given to the Board by any other Article.

DELEGATION OF DIRECTORS' POWERS

Agents

The Board may, by power of attorney or otherwise, appoint any person to be the
agent of the Company on such terms (including terms as to remuneration) and
subject to such conditions as it may decide and may delegate to any person so
appointed any of its powers, authorities and discretions (with power to sub-
delegate). The Board may remove any person so appointed and may revoke or

vary the delegation but no person dealing.in good faith and without notice of the -

revocation or variation shall be affected by it. The power to delegate contained
in this Article shall be effective in relation to the powers, authorities and
discretions of the Board generally and shali not be limited by the fact that in -
certain Articles, but not in others, express reference is made to particular
powers, authorities or discretions being exercised by the Board or by committee
authorised by the Board

Delegation to individual Directors

The Board may entrust to and confer upon a Director any of its powers,
authorities and discretions (with power to sub-delegate) upon such terms
(subject to the Statutes) and subject to such conditions and with such
restrictions as it may decide and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of its
own powers, authorities and discretions. The Board may from time to time . .
revoke or vary all or any of them but no person dealing in good faith and without
notice of the revocation or variation shall be affected by it. The power to
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delegate contained in this Article shall be effective in relation to the powers,
authorities and discretions of the Board generally and shall not be limited by the
fact that in certain Articles, but not in others, express reference is made to
particular powers, authorities or discretions being exercised by the Board or by
a committee authorised by the Board.

Delegation to committees

The Board may delegate any of its powers, authorities and discretions (with power to
sub-delegate) to any committee consisting of such person or persons as it
thinks fit (whether a member-or members of its body or not) provided that the -
majority of the members of the committee are Directors. Subject to any
restriction on sub-delegation imposed by the Board, any committee so formed’
may exercise its power to sub-delegate by sub-delegating to any person or
persons (whether or not a member or members of the Board or of the
committee). Subject to any regulations imposed on it by the Board, the
proceedings of any committee consisting of two or more members shall be
govemed by the provisions in these Articles for regulating proceedings of the
Board so far as applicable except that no meeting of that committee shall be
quorate for the purpose of exercising any of its powers, authorities or
discretions unless a majority of the committee present at the meeting are
Directors. A member of a committee shall be paid such remuneration (if any) in
such manner as the Board may decide, and, in the case of a Director, either in
addition to or in place of his ordinary remuneration as a Director.

The power to delegate contained in this Article shall be effective in relation to the
powers, authorities and discretions of the Board generally and shall not be

. limited by the fact that in certain Articles, but not in others, express reference is
-made to particular powers, authorities or discretions being exercised by the

Board or by a committee authorised by the Board.

Power to establish local boards etc

The Béard may:

establish any divisional,vdépartmental, regional, local or area boards, divisionsor

managing agencies for introducing, conducting or managing all or any of the
business or affairs of the Company, either in the United Kingdom or elsewhere;

make regulations for the proceedings and activities of any such establishment (but so

that otherwise its proceedings shall be governed by those of these Articles
which regulate proceedings of the Board to the extent that they are capable of

applying to it);

appoint any persons (whether Directors or not) as regional directors, local directors,
divisional directors, area directors, advisory directors, managers or agents or to
serve in any other capacity in connection wnth any such establishment, and
may fix their remuneration;
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delegate to any such establishment and to any such appointee (including anyone
appointed before this Article was adopted) any of the powers, authorities and -
discretions vested in the Board, with powerto sub-delegate;

authorise any such appointees to fill any vacancies in any such establishment and to
act notwithstanding vacancies,

provided that any such appomtment or delegation shall be made upon such
terms and subject to such conditions as the Board may think fit, and the Board
may remove any persons so appointed, and may revoke, suspend or vary any
such delegation but this shall not affect the position of any person dealingin
good faith who has not had notice that the Board has done so. No such
appointee shall be a Director as such or be entitled to be present at any
meeting of thé Board (except at the request of the Board and, if present at such
request, he shall not be entitied to vote at that meeting) or have power under
the terms of this Article to enter into any contract or transact any business on
behalf of the Company except to the extent (if any) specifically authorised by
the Board.

SPECIFIC POWERS

Provision for employees

The Board may exercise any power conferred by the Statutes to make provision
for the benefit of persons employed or formerly employed by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries in connection with the cessation or the transfertoany

‘person of the whole or part of the undertakmg of the Company or that

subsidiary.

Borrowing Powers

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to
mortgage or charge all or any part of the undertaking, property and assets -
(present and future) and uncalled capital of the Company and, subject to the
Statutes, to issue debentures and other securities, whether outright or as

collateral security, for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company or of any :

third parfty

The Board shall restrict the borrowings of the Company and exercise all voting and
“other rights or powers of control exercisable by the Company in relation to its
subsidiary undertakings (if any) so as to secure (but as regards subsidiary
undertakings only in so far as by the exercise of such rights or powers of control
the Board can secure) that the aggregate principal amount from time to time '
outstanding of all borrowings by the Group (exclusive of borrowings owing by

one member of the Group to another member of the Group) shall not at any -

time without the previous sanction of an ordinary resolution of the Company
exceed an amount equal to three times the Adjusted Capital and Reserves.
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105.3  For the purposes of this Article:-
-105.3.1 "the Adjusted Capital and Reserves" means the aggregate of:-

(a) the amount paid up on the issued share capital of the Company;

(b) the amounts standing to the credit of the capital and revenue reserves
of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (including any
share premium account, capital redemption reserve, reserves
arising on a revaluation of fixed assets or on consolidation and
any credit balance on profit and loss account); and

{c)  the amounts, so far as attnbutable to the Company or a subsidiary
undertaking, standing to the credit of investment grants
equalisation account, deferred regional development grants

equalisation account or any other equallsatlon account of a
similar nature;

as shown by the then latest audited balance sheet but after:-

(&) excluding (so far as not aiready excluded) any sums set aside for
taxation;
{e) making such adjustments as may be appropriate to reflect any variation

in the amount of the paid up share capital or reserves since the
date of the relevant audited balance sheet and any variation in
the amounts attributable to the interest of the Company in the
share capital of any subsidiary undertaking and so that for this
purpose if any issue or proposed issue of shares by a member
of the Group for cash has been underwritten then such shares
shall be deemed {o have been issued and the amount (including
any premium) of the subscription monies payable in respect
thereof (not being monies payable later than six months after
the date of allotment) shall to the extent so underwritten be
deemed to have been paid up on the date when the issue of
such shares was underwritten (or, if such underwriting was

. condltlonal on the - date when it became unconditional); and

4] making such adjustments as may be appropriate in respect of any.
distribution declared, recommended or made by any member of
the Group (otherwise than to a member of the Group) out of
profits earned up to and including the date of the audited -

balance sheet of the Group to the extent that such distribution is
~not provided for in such balance sheet;

(@) deductin:g the amount of any debit balance on profit and loss account
- . existing at the date of the relevant audited balance sheet to the

" extent that a deduction has not already been made on that
account; ’
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105.3.2 "borrowings" include not only items referred to as borrowings in the audited .
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deducting any amounts shown as attributable to minority interests;

adding back sums equivalent to the amount of goodwill arising on .
acquisitions of companies and businesses remaining part of the
Group at the date of calculation and which, at that date, had

been written off against share capital and reserves in

accordance with United Kingdom accounting practice; and

making such other (if any) adjustments as the Auditors after
consultation with the Board may consider appropriate.

balance sheet but also the following, except in so far as otherwise taken

into account:-

(a)

(b)

{c)

the nominal amount of any issued share capital and the principal
amount of any debentures or borrowed moneys of any person,
the beneficial interest in which is not for the time being owned

by a member of the Group, and the payment or repayment of

-which is the subject of a guarantee or indemnity by a member of

the Group or is secured on the assets of any member of the
Group;

the outstanding amount raised by acceptances by any bank or
accepting house under any acceptance credit opened on behalf
of and in favour of any member of the Group, not being
acceptances of trade bills for the purchase of goods or services
in the ordinary course of business;

the pﬁncipal arnount of any debenture (whether secured or unsecured)
~ of a member of the Grouip, which debenture is owned otherwise

than by another member of the Group Provided that where the

~ amount raised by the Company or any of its subsidiary

undertakings by the issue of any debentures, debenture stocks,
Joan stocks, bonds, notes or other indebtedness is less than the
nominal or principal amount thereof (including for these
purposes any fixed or minimum premium payable on final
redemption or repayment but disregarding the expenses of any
such issue) the amount to be treated as monies borrowed for
the purpose of this Article shall, so long as the nominal or

~ principal amount of such monies borrowed is not presently due
"and payable, be the nominal or principal amount thereof

(fogether with any fixed or minimum premium payable on final
redemption or repayment) but after deducting therefrom the
unexpired portion of any discount applied to such amount in the
audited balance sheet of the Group. Any references in this
Article to debentures or monies borrowed or the nominal or
principal amount thereof shall, accordingly, be read subject to
this sub-paragraph ;
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the principal amount of any preference share capital of any subsidiary
undertaking owned otherwise than by a member of the Group;

any fixed or minimum premium payable on the repayrhent of any
borrowing or deemed borrowing; and

the capital value of any financial lease required to be capitalised and
treated as a liability in the audited balance sheet by any '
applicable accounting standard {as defined in section 256 of the
Act) from time to time in force,

but do not include:-

@
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monies borrowed by‘a membef of theGroup for the purpose of repaying |

the whole or any part of any borrowings of such member of the
Group or any other member of the Group for the time being
outstanding and so to be applied within six months of being so
borrowed, pending their apphcatxon for such purpose within
such period;

monies borrowed by a member of the Group for the purpose of
financing any contract in respect of which any part of the price
receivable by that member or any other member of the Group is
guaranteed or insured by the Export Credits Guarantee
Department, or by any other govemmental department or
agency fulfilling a similar function, up to an amount equal to that
part of the price receivable under the contract which is so
guaranteed or insured;

for a period of twelve months from the date upon which a company
becomes a member of the Group, an amount equal to the

monies borrowed by such company outstanding at the date

when it becomes such a.member provided always that monies

-borrowed by the Group (including monies otherwise excluded

by the application of this sub-paragraph) must not exceed an
amount e’qual tofive times the Adjusted Capital and Reserves;

~ an amount equal to the mmonty proportion of monies borrowed by a

panly owned subsudlary of the Group (after excluding any
monies borrowed owing between members of the Group)
except to the extent that such monies borrowed are guaranteed
by the Company or any wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of
the Company. For these purposes the minority proportion shall
be the proportion of the issued equity share capital of such
partly.owned subsidiary which is not for the time being
beneficially owned within the Group. Monies borrowed by a
member of the Group from a partly owned subsidiary of the
Group which would fall to be excluded as being monies
borrowed owing between members of the Group shall
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nevertheless be included to the extent of an amount equal to :
such minority proportion of such monies borrowed; and o

U] sums advanced or paid to any member of the Group (or its agents or
nominee) by customers of any member of the Group as

unexpended customer receipts or progress payments pursuant |

to any contract between such customer and a member of the 1

Group in relation thereto; : ;

|

provided that, in calculating borrowings under this Article there shall be
credited (subject, in the case of any item held or deposited by a partly
owned subsidiary undertaking, to the exclusion of a proportion thereof’
equal to the proportion of the issued equity share capital of the parlly -

- owned subsidiary undertaking which is not attributable to the Company
or any subsidiary undertaking of the Company) against the amount of
any monies borrowed the aggregate of:-

(i) . cashin hand of the Group; and

(i) cash deposits and the balance on each current account of the Group -
with banks in the United Kingdom and/or elsewhere if the
remittance of the cash to the United Kingdom is not prohibited
by any law, regulation, treaty or official directive; and

(fii) the amount of all assets ("short term assets") as might be included in
"Investments - short term loans and deposits™ in a consolidated
balance sheet of the Group prepared as at the date of the
relevant calculation in accordance with the principles with which
the then latest audited balance sheet was produced' and

(iv) the amount of any cash or short term assets securing the repayment by
" the Group of any amount borrowed by the Group deposned or
otherwise placed with the trustee or snmllar entity in respect of
the- relevant borrowmg, and

105.3.3 where the aggregate prrnorpal amount of borrowings required to be taken into ' : A
account for the purposes of this Article on any pamcular date is being . Fe
ascertamed = o

(a)  monies borrowed by the Company or any subsidiary undertaking
expressed in.or calculated by reference to a currency other than
sterling shall be converted into sterhng by reference to the rate
of exchange used forthe conversion of such currency in
preparation of the: audited balance sheet which forms the basis
“of the calculation of the Adjusted Capital and Reserves or, if
such calculation did not involve the relevant currency, by
reference to the rate of exchange or approximate rate of
.exchange ruling as at the date of the aforesaid audited balance .
sheet as the Auditors may consider appropriate for this _ ST
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purpose; and

)] if under the terms of any borrowing or as the result of any exchange
cover scheme, forward currency contract, option or other
arrangement, the amount of money that would be required to
discharge the principal amount of such borrowing in full if it fell
to be repaid (at-the option of the Company or by reason of
default) on-such date is less than the amount that would

" otherwise be taken into account in respect of such borrowing for
the purpose of this Article, the amount of such borrowing to be
taken into account for the purpose of this Article shall be such
lesser amount

105.3.4 "audited balance sheet" means the audtted balance sheet of the Company
prepared for the purposes of the Statutes or, if an audited consolidated
balance sheet of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (with
such exceptions as may be permitted in the case of a consolidated
balance sheet prepared for the purposes of the Statutes) has been
prepared for those purposes for the same financial year, means that
audited consolidated balance shegt in which event all references to
reserves and profit and loss account shall be deemed to be references
to consolidated reserves and consolidated profit and loss account
respectively and there shall be excluded any amounts attributable to
outside interests in subsidiary undertakings;

105.3.5 the Company may from time to time change the accounting convention on
which the audited balance sheet is based, provided that any new
convention adopted complies with the requirements of the Statutes; if
the Company should prepare its main audited balance sheet on the
basis of one such convention, buta supplementary audited balance

- sheet or statement on the basis of another, the main audited balance
sheet shall be taken as the audlted balance sheet for the purposes of
this Article;

105.3.6 no amount shall be taken into account more than once in the same calculation;
and -

105.3.7 "the Group" means the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (if any) other
than those subsidiary undertakings authorised or required to be
excluded from consolidation'in the Companys group accounts pursuant
to section 229 of the Act :

The certificate or report of the‘ Audltorsas to the amount of the Adjusted Capital and -

-‘Reserves or borrowings orthat the limit imposed by this Article has not been or

will not in any particular circumstances be exceeded shall be conclusive and
binding on all concerned. -Nevertheless the Board may.act in reliance on a
bona fide estimate of the amount of the Adjusted Capital and Reserves at any

- time and if in consequence the limit contained in this Article is inadvertently

exceeded an amount of borrowings equal to the excess may be disregarded
-40 -
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until the expiration of three months after the date on which by reason of a
certificate or report of the Auditors or otherwise the Board became aware that
such a situation has or may have arisen.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no lender or other person dealing with the Company
shall be concerned to see or inquire whether the limit imposed by this Article is
observed and no borrowing incurred or security given in excess of such limit

shall be invalid or ineffectual, except in the case of express notice to the lender -
or the recipient of the security at the time when the borrowing was incurred or -

the security given that the limit imposed by this Article had been or was thereby
exceeded. - :

APPOINTMENT, RETIREME‘NT-AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Number to retire by rotation

Subject to the second paragraph of this Article, at every annual general meeting one- . -
third of the Directors or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not exceeding one-third (unless there are fewer than
three Directors, in which case one of those Directors) shall retire. Subject to the
Statutes and these Articles, the Directors to retire by rotation on each occasion
(both as to number and identity) shall be determined by the compaosition of the
Board at start of business on the date of the notice convening the annual

general meeting and shall comprise: first, any Director who wishes to retire and
not to offer himself for re-election; and secondly, those who have been longest

in office since their last appointment or reappointment (but as between persons
who became or were last reappointed Directors on the same day, those to retire
shall be determined by lot or as the Directors concerned may agree among
themselves). No Director shall be required to retire or be relieved from retiring

by reason of any change in the number or identity of the Directors after that time .
on the date of the notice but before the close of the meeting.

in addition, any Director not otherwise required to retire at an annual general meeting
shall do so unless he was appointed or re-appointed as a Director at either of
the last two annual general meetings before that meeting. -

Position of Retiring Director

Subject to these Articles, the Company at the meeting at which a Director
retires may fill the vacated office and, in default, the retiring Director shall, if
willing to act, be deemed to have been reappointed unless at the meeting it is
resolved not to fill the vacancy or unless a resolution for the reappointment of
the Director is put to the meeting and lost. If he is not reappointed or deemed to
be reappointed, he shall retain office until the meeting appoints someone in his
place or, if it does not do so, until the end of the meeting. :

Eligibility for appointment as a Director
-41 -
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No person other than a Director retiring, whether by rotation or otherwise, shall
be appointed or reappointed a Director at any general meeting unless:-

he is recommended by the Board; or

not less than seven nor more than 42 clear'days before the day appbinted for the

‘meeting, notice executed by a member qualified to vote at the meeting (not

being the person to be proposed) has been delivered to the Office of the
intention to propose that person.for appointment or reappointment stating the
particulars which would, if he were so appointed or reappointed, be required to
be included in the Company's register of Directors together with notice executed
by that person of his willingness to be appointed or reappointed.

Power of the Company to appoint Directors

Subject to these Articles, the Company may by ordinary resolution appoint any
person who is willing to act to be a Director, either to fill a vacancy on or as an
addition to the existing Board, but so that the total number of Directors shall not
at any time exceed any maximum number fixed by or in accordance with these
Articles. A resolution for the appointment of two or more persons as Directors
by a single resolution shall be void unless a resolution that it shall be so
proposed has first been agreed to by the meeting without any vote being given
against it.

Power of the Board to appoint Directors

"~ Without prejudice to the power of the Company in general meeting under these -

Atticles to appoint any person‘to be a Director, the Board may appoint a person
who is willing to act to be a Director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition to
the existing Board, but so that the total number of Directors shall not at any time
exceed any maximum number fixed by or in accordance with these Articles.

~Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following annual .

general meeting and shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors

- or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at the meeting. ifnot

111,

reappointed at such annual general meeting, he shall vacate office at the
conclusion of the meeting.

Company's power to remove a Director and appoint another in his place

In addition to any power conferred by the Statutes, the Company may by an

* ordinary resolution remove any Director before the expiration of his period of

- reappointed a Director.

office and may, subject to these Atticles, by ordinary resofution appoint another .
person who is willing to act to be a Director in his place.” Any person so
appointed shall be treated, for the purposes of determining the time at which he
or any other Director is to retire, as if he had become a Director on the day on
which the person in whose place he is appointed was last appointed or
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112.6
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Vacation of office by Directors

Without prejudice to the provisions for retirement by rotation or otherwise

_contained in these Articles, the office of a Director shall be vacated if:-

he resigns his offlce by notice delivered to the Office or tendered at a meetlng of the -
Board; ‘

he becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his credxtors
generally;

he is or has bean suffering from mental ill health or becomes a patient for any purpose
of any statute relating to mental health and the Board resolves that his office is'
vacated; ,

without the permission of the Board, he is absent from meetings of the Board for six
consecutive months (whether or not an altemate appomted by him attends) and
'the Board resolves that his office is vacated;

he ceases to be a Director by virtue of the Statutes or is prohibited by law from being a
Director or is removed from office under these Articles;

his resignation is requested by all other Directors (provided those Directors are not less
than three in number) by notice delivered to the Office or tendered at a meeting

of the Board and, for this purpose, like notices each signed by a Director shall

be as effective as a single notice signed by all the Directors; or

his contract of service asa Dlrector explres or is terminated without being renewed
within 14 days.

Director not to retire on account of age

" No person shall be disqualified from being appointed a Director, and no Director . :

shall be required to-vacate that office, by reason only of the fact thathe has -
attained the age of 70 years or any other age nor shall it be necessary by
reason of his age to give special notice under the Statutes of any resolution. .- ..
Where the Board convenes any general meeting of the Company at which (to .
the knowledge of the Board) a Director will be proposed for appointment or

‘reappointment who will have attained the age of 70 years or more at the date

for which the meeting is convened, the Board shall give notice of his age in
years in the notice convening the meeting or in any document accompanying
the notice, but the accidental omission to do'so shall not invalidate any
proceedings, or any appomtment or reappointment of that Dlrector at that

meetlng

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
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Contracts between a Director and the Company or a company in which the
Company is interested

A Director who, to his knowledge, is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested
in a contract with the Company shall declare the nature of his interest at the

~ meeting of the Board at which the question of entering into the contract isfirst

taken intc consideration if he knows his interest then exists or, in any other
case, at the first meeting of the Board after he knows that he is or has become

. sointerested. A general notice to the Board by a Director to the effect that: - -

114.1.1 he is a member of a specified company or firm and is to be regarded as
interested in any contract which may after the date of the notice be
made with. that company or firm; or :

114.1.2 he is to be regarded as interested in any contract which may after the date of
the notice be made with a specified person who is connected with him,

shall be deemed to be a sufficient declaration of interest under this Article in
relation to any such contract.

Subject to the Statutes, and provided that a Director has disclosed to the Board the

nature and extent of his material interest, that Dlrector notwithstanding his
office:-

114.2.1 may hold any other office or place of profit with the Company (except that of
Auditor) in conjunction with the office of Director and may act by himself-
or through his firm in a professional capacity for the Company
(otherwise than as-Auditor) and in either such case on such terms as to
remuneration (whether by way of salary, commission, participation in
profits or otherwise) and otherwise as the Board may determine; any
such remuneration shall be either in addition to or in lieu of any
remuneration provided for, by or pursuant to any other Article;

L 114.2.2 may be-a party to or othelwlse interested in, any contract with the Company or

ln which the Company is otherwuse interested,;

. 114.2.3maybea director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to any contract

with, or otherwise interested in, any body corporate promoted by the
Company or in which the Company is otherwise interested or as regards
which the Company has any powers of appointment; and -

- 114.2.4shall not, by reason of his office, be accountable to the Company for any. - -

114.3

" remuneration or benefit which he derives from any such office or

- employment or from any such contract or from any interest in such body
corporate and no such office, employment or contract shall be liable to
be avoided on the ground of any such interest or benefit.

The Board may cause ahy voting pdwér conferred by the shares in any other company

held or owned by the Company or any power of appointment to be exercised-in
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such manner in all respects as it thinks fit, including the exercise of either of
such powers in favour of a resolution appointing the Directors, or any of them,
to be directors or officers of the other company, or in favour of the payment of
remuneration to the directors or officers of the other company.

1145 Save as otherwise provided by these Articles, a Director shall not vote on, or be

counted in the quorum in relation to, any resolution of the Board or of a

committee of the Board conceming any matter in which he has to his

~ knowledge, directly or indirectly, an interest (other than his interest in shares or
debentures or other securities of, or otherwise in or through, the Company) or

~duty which (together with any interest of a person connected with him within the
meaning of section 346 of the Act) is material and, if he shall do so, his vote

shall not be counted. . A Director shall be entitled to vote on.and be counted in

the quorum in respect of any resolution concerning any of the following

matters:-

114.5.1 the giving to him of any guarantee, security or indemnity in respect of money
lent or obligations incurred by him or by any other person at the request
of or for the benefit of, the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings;

114.5.2 the giving by the Company of any guarantee, security or indemnity to a third
party in respect of a debt or obligation of the Company or any of its
subsidiary undertakings for which he himself has assumed responsibility
in whole or in part and whether alone or jointly with others under a
guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of security;

114.5.3 his subscribing or agreeing to subscribe for, or purchasing or agreeing to
purchase, any shares, debentures or other securities of the Company or
any of its subsidiary undertakings as a holder of securities, or his being,
or intending to become, a participant in the underwriting or sub-
underwriting of an offer of any such shares, debentures, or other
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiary undenakmgs for
subscription, purchase or: exchange

114.5.4 any contract concemmg any company not being a company in which the -
Director owns one per cent. or more {as defined in this Article), in which

- he is interested, directly or indirectly, and whether as an officer,
shareholder, creditor or otherwise;

114.5.5 any arrangement for the benefit of employees of the Company or any of its
subsidiary undertakings under which he benefits in a similar manner as
the employees and which does not accord to any Director as such any
privilege or advantage not accorded to the employees to whom the
arrangement relates; and

114.5.6 any contract concerning any insurance which the Company is empowered to
purchase or maintain for, or for the benefit of, any Directors or for
persons who include Directors.
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1147

114.8

114.9

114.10 References in this Article to a contract include references to any proposed contractand -

11411 |

A Director shall not vote on, or be counted in the quorum in relation to, any resolution of
the Board concerning his own appointment, or the settlement or variation of the
terms or the termination of his own appointment, as the holder of any office or
place of profit with the Company or any company in which the Company is
interested but, where proposals are under consideration concerning the
appointment, or the settlement or variation of the terms or the termination of the
appointment, of two or more Directors to offices or places of profit with the
Company or any company in which the Company is interested, a separate
resolution may be put in relation to each Director and in that case each of the
Directors concerned shall be entitled to vote on and be counted in the quorum

in relation to each resolution which does not concem either: (a) his own _
appointment or the settlement or variation of the terms or the termination of his
own appointment; or (b) the appointment of another Director to an office or
place of profit with-a company in which the Company is interested and in which-
the Director seeking to vote or be counted in the quorum is interested by virtue
of owning of one per cent. or more (as defined in this Article). :

_A company shall be deemed to be a company in which a Director owns one per cent. or -

more if and so long as he is directly or indirectly the holder of or beneficially
interested in one per cent. or more of any class of the equity share capital of
such company or of the voting rights available to members of such company.
For this purpose, there shall be disregarded any shares held by a Director as
bare or custodian trustee and in which he has no beneficial interest, any shares
comprised in a trust in which the Director's interest is in reversion or remainder
(if and so long as some other person is entitled to receive the income from such
trust) and any shares comprised in an authorised unit trust scheme in which the
Director is interested only as a unit holder.

Where a company in which a Director owns one per cent. or more is materially
interested in a contract, he shall also be deemed to be materially interested in
that contract. -

For the purposes of this Article, an interest of a person who is, for any purpose of the :
Statutes (excluding any statutory modification thereof not in-force when this

Article becomes binding on the Company), connected (which word shall have

the meaning given to it by section 346 of the Act) with a Director shall be treated

- as an interest of the Director and, in relation to an alternate director, an interest
.of his appointor shall be treated as an interest of the alternate director wnthout

prejudice to any interest which the alternate director has otherwise.

to any transaction or arrangement whether or not constituting a contract.

If any quesuon shall arise at any meetmg of the Board as to the matenallty of the
interest of a Director (other than the chairman of the meeting) or as to the
entitlement of any Director (other than the chairman of the meeting) to vote or

be counted in the quorum.and the question is not resolved by his voluntarily
agreeing to abstain from voting or not to be counted in the quorum, the question
shall be referred to the chairman of the meeting and his ruling in relation to the
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Director.concerned shall be conclusive except in a case where the nature or
extent of his interest (so far as it is known to the Dlrector) has not been fairly
disclosed to the Board. If any question shall arise in respect of the chairman of
the meeting, the question shall be decided by resolution of the Board (for which
purpose the chairman shall be counted in the quorum but shall not vote on the
matter) and the resolution shall be conclusive except in a case where the nature
or extent of the interest of the chairman of the meeting (so faras it is known to
him) has not been falrly d|sclosed to the Board.

DIRECTORS' GRATUITIES AND PENSIONS

-Directors' gratuities and pensions .‘

The Board or any éommittee authbris_ed by the Board may exercise all the

~ powers of the Company to provide benefits, whether by the payment of -

gratuities, pensions, annuities, allowances, bonuses or by insurance or
otherwise, for any Director or former Director who holds or who has held but no-
longer holds any executive office, other office, place of profit or employment

with the Company or with any body corporate which is or has been a subsidiary -

undertaking of the Company or a predecessor in business of the Company or of
any such subsidiary undertaking, and for any member of his family (including a
spouse and a former spouse) or any person who is or was dependent on him,
and may (as well before as after he ceases to hold such office, place of profit or
employment) establish, maintain, support, subscribe to and contribute to any
scheme trust or fund for the benefit of all or any such persons and pay
premiums for the purchase or provision of any such benefits. The Board or any
committee authorised by the Board may procure any of these matters to be

done by the Company either alone or in conjunction with any other person. No

Director or former Director shall be accountable to the Company or the

"~ members for any benefit provided pursuant to this Article and the receipt of any*
such benefit shall not disqualify any person from being or becoming a Director.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board may mest fof the despatch of business, adjourn and otherwise
regulate its meetings as it thinks fit. A Director may, and the Secretary on the -
requisition of a Director shall, convene a meeting of the Board.

- Notice of Board meetmgs

Notice of a Board meetlng shall be deemed to be properly given to a Director if
it is given to him personally or by word of mouth or sent in writing to him at his
last known address or any other address given by him to the Company for this
purpose. A Director absent or intending to be absent from the United Kingdom

may request the Board that notices of Board meetings shall during his absence
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~ be sent in writing to him at an address given by him to the Company for this
purpose, but such notices need not be given-any earlier than notices given to
Directors not so absent and in the absence of any such request it shall not be
necessary to give notice of a Board meeting to any Director who is for the time

being absent from the United Kingdom. A Director may waive notice of any
meeting either before or after the meeting.

Voting

Questions arising at a meeting shall be decided by‘a majority of votes. Inthe
case of an equality of votes, the chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

Quorum -

‘The quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the Board may be
fixed by the Board and unless so fixed at any other number shall be two.
Subject to these Articles, any Director who ceases to be a Director at a Board
meeting may continue to be present and to act as a Director and be counted in
the quorum until the termination of the Board meeting if no other Director
objects and if otherwise a quorum of Directors would not be present.

Board vacancies below minimum number

The continuing Directors or a sole continuing Director may act notwithstanding
any vacancies on the Board, but, if the number of Directors is less than the
minimum number fixed by or in accordance with these Articles, the continuing
Directors or Director may act only for the purpose of filling vacancies on the:
Board or of convening-a general meeting of the Company. If there are no
‘Directors or Director able or willing to act, then any two members may call a
general meeting of the Company for the purpose of appointing Directors.

Appointment of chairman

The Board may appoint a Director to be the chairman of the Board and may at

any time remove him from that office. Unless he is unwilling to do so, the
Director so appointed shall preside at every meeting of the Board at which he is
present. But if there is no Director holding that office, or if the Director holding it
is unwilling to preside or is not present within five minutes after the time

appointed for the meeting, the Directors present may appoint one of their
number to be chairman of the meeting.

Competence of the Board

A meeting of the Board at which é quorum is present shall be competent to

exercise all powers, authorities and discretions for the time being vested in or
, v . 8. _
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exercisable by the Board.

Participation in meetings by telephone

All or any of the members of the Board or of any committee of the Board may
participate in a meeting of the Board or that committee by means of a

conference telephone or any communication equipment which allows all

persons participating in the meeting to hear and speak to each other. A person
so participating shall be deemed to be present in person at the meeting and

shall be entitled to vote or be counted in a quorum accordingly. Such a meeting
shall be deemed to take place where the largest group of those participating is
assembled, or, if there is no such group, where the chairman of the meetingis
and shall be deemed to be a meeting even if there is only one person physically
present where it is deemed to take place.

Written resolutions

A resolution in writing signed by all the Directors entitled to receive notice of a
meeting of the Board (if that number is sufficient to constitute a quorum) or by

all the members of a committee of the Board shall be as valid and effectual as if
it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or that committee duly convened
and held and may be contained in one document (or in several documents in all
substantial respects in like form) each signed by one or more of the Directors or
members of that committee. Any such document may be constituted by letter,
facsimile or otherwise as the Board may from time to time resolve.

Company books

‘The Board shall cause minutes to be made i in books kept for the purpose of
recording:-

all appointments of officers made by the Board;

all proceedihgs at meetings of the Company, of the holders of any class of shares in the "

Company and of the Board and of committees of the Board, including the

names of the Directors or members of a committee of the Board present at
each such meeting.

Subject to the Statutes, any such minutes if pUrponing to be signed by the
chairman of the meeting at which the appointments were made or proceedings -

- held or by the chairman of the next succeeding meeting, shall be sufficient

evidence of the facts therein stated without any further proof.

Validity of acts of the Board or a committee

All acts done by the Board or by a committee of the Board, or by a person
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acting as a Director or member of a committee of the Board shall,
notwithstanding that it is afterwards discovered that there was some defect in
the appointment of any Director, member of a committee of the Board, or

person acting as a Director, or that any of them were disqualified from holding

office, or had.vacated office, or were not entitled to vote, be as valid as if each
such person had been duly appointed and was qualified and had continued to
be a Director or member of the committee and had been entitled to vote.

- COMPANY SECRETARY.

Appointment and removal of Company Secretary

Subjébt to the Slatuteé, the Secretéfy shaﬂ be appbinted by the Board at such
remuneration and upon such terms as it thinks fit. 1f thought fit, two or more

persons may be appointed as joint Secretaries with the power to act jointly and
.severally. Any Secretary so appointed may be removed by the Board.

The Board may from time to time appoint an assistant or deputy secretary who, during -

such time as there may be no Secretary or ho Secretary capable of acting, may
act as Secretary and do any act authorised or required by these Articles or by
law to be done by the Secretary. The signature of any document as Secretary
by such assistant or deputy secretary shall be conclusive evidence (without

- invalidating that signature for any purpose) that at the time of signature there

was no Secretary or no Secretary capable of acting.

THE SEAL

Use of seal

- The Seal shall only be .used'by the éuthority of the Board or of a committee

authorised by the Board in that behalf. The Board or any such committee may

" determine who shall sign any instrument to which the Seal is affixed and unless .

otherwise so determined it shall be signed by one Director and the Secretary or

by two Directors, and any instrument to which an official seal is applied need .. - -

not, unless the Board for the time being otherwise decides or the law otherwise
requires, be signed by any person.

Execution as a deed without sealing ‘

Where the Statuteé S0 permit, any instrument éigned by one Director and the
Secretary or by two Directors and expressed to be executed by the Company
shall have the same effect as if executed under the Seal, provided that no

~ instrument shall be so signed which makes it clear on its face that it is intended

by the person or persons making it to have effect as a deed without the

authority of the Board or of a committee authorised by the Board in that behalf.
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Official seal

The Company may exercise the powers conferred by the Statutes with regard to
having an official seal for use abroad, and such powers shall be vested in the
Board.

DIVIDENDS

. Company may declare dividends

Subject to the Statutes, the Company may by ordinary resolution declare
dividends in accordance with the respective rights of the members, but no
dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board. Subject to the
Statutes, any determination by the Board of the amount of profits at any tlme
available for distribution shall be conclusive. .

Board may pay interim dividends and fiXed dividends
Subject to the Statutes, the Board may pay interim dividends if it appears to the

Board that they are justified by the financial position of the Company. If the
share capital of the Company is divided into different classes, the Board may

pay interim dividends on shares which confer deferred or non-preferred rights to -

dividends as well as on shares which confer preferential or special rights to
dividends, but no intetim dividend shall be paid on shares camying deferred or
non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any preferential dividend is in
arrears. The Board may also pay at intervals settled by it any dividend payabie
at a fixed date if it appears to the Board that the financial position of the

Company justifies the payment. If the Board acts in good faith, it shall not incur

any liability to the holders of shares conferring preferred rights for any loss

- which they may suffer by reason of the lawful payment of an interim dividend ori

any shares having deferred or non-preferred rights.

Calculation and currency of dividends

Except in so far as the rights attaching to any share otherwise provide, all
dividends shall'be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up on the

~shares on which the dividend is paid, but (for the purposes of this Article only) .. -

no amount paid up on a share in advance of calls shall be treated as paid up on
the share. All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the
amounts paid up on the shares during any portion or.portions of the period in
respect of which the dividend is paid; but; if any share is issued on terms

providing that it shall rank for dividend as from a particular date, that share shall

rank for dividend accordingly. Dividends may be declared or paid in any

“currency and the Board may agree with any member that dividends which may

at any time or from time to time be declared or become due on his shares in
one currency shall be paid or satisfied in another, and may agree the basis of
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conversion to be applied and how and when the amount to be paid in the other
currency shall be calculated and paid and for the Company or any other person
to bear any costs involved.

Waiver of dividends

The waiver in whole or in part of any dividend on any share by any document
(whether or not under seal) shall be effective only if such document is signed by
the relevant member (or the person becoming entitled by transmission to the
share) and delivered to the Company and if or to the extent that it is accepted
as such or acted upon by the Company.

- Non-cash dividends

A general meeting declaring a dividend may, upon the recommendation of the
Board, by ordinary resolution direct that it shall be satisfied wholly or partly by
the distribution of assets and, in particular, of paid-up shares or debentures of
any other company and, where any difficulty arises concemning such distribution,
the Board may settle it as the Board thinks expedient and in particular may
issue fractional certificates or, subject to the Statutes and, in the case of shares
held in uncertificated form, the system's rules, authorise and instruct any person
to sell and transfer any fractions or may ignore fractions altogether, and may fix

- the value for distribution of any assets and may determine that cash shall be

paid to any member upon the basis of the value so fixed in order to secure
equality of distribution and may vest any assets to be distributed in trustees as

' the Board may consider expedient.

- 136.

1136.1

136.2

Scrip dividends

Subject to the Statutes, the Board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution
of the Company, offer the holders of ordinary shares (subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the Board may consider necessary or expedient in
relation to any legal or practical problems under the laws of any overseas
territory or the requ;rements of any regulatory body or stock exchange) the right
to elect to receive new ordinary shares, credited as fully paid, instead of cash

~ for all or part (as determined by the Board) of the dividend specified by the
_ »ordmary resolution. The following prowsnons shall apply:-

an ordinary resolution may specify a pamcular dividend or dividends (whether or not’

already declared), or may specify all or any dividends declared within a
specified period, but such period may not end later than the fifth anniversary of

'the date of the meetlng at which the ordinary resolution is passed

the basis of allotment to each holder of ordinary shares shall be such number of new
ordinary shares credited as fully paid as have a value as nearly as possible

" equal to (but not greater than) the amount of the dividend (disregarding any tax

credit) which he has elected to forego. For this purpose, the “value” of an
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ordinary share shall be deemed to be whichever is the greater of its nominal
value and the average of the middle market quotations for the Company's
ordinary shares on the London Stock Exchange as derived from the Daily
Official List of the London Stock Exchange on the day on which the shares are’
first quoted "ex" the relevant dividend and the four subsequent dealing days or
in such other manner as may be determined by or in accordance with the
ordinary resolution. A certificate or report by the Auditors as to the amount of

the value in respect of any dividend shall be conclusive evidence of that
amount;

136.4 no fraction of an ordinary share shall be allotted and if any holder of ordinary shares"

would otherwise be entitled to fractions of a share, the Board may deal with the
frac'nons as it thinks fit;

136.5 the Board shall not proceed with any election unless the Company has sufficient
unissued shares authorised for issue and sufficient reserves or funds which

may be. capitalised to give effect to the election following the Board's
determmatlon of the basis of allotment

136.6 on or as soon as practicable after announcing that the Board is to declare or
recommend any dividend, the Board, if it intends to offer an election for that
dividend, shall also announce that intention and having determined the basis of
ailotment, shall notify the holders of ordinary shares (other than any in relation
to whom an election mandate in accordance with this Article is subsisting) in
writing of the right of election offered to them, and shall send with, or following,
such notification, forms of election and shall specify the procedure to be
followed and place at which, and the latest date and time by which, duly
completed forms of election must be lodged in order to be effective;

136.7 the dividend (or that part of the dividend in respect of which a right of election has been
offered) shall not be payabie on ordinary shares in respect of which an election
has been duly made (the "elected shares”) and instead additional ordinary

. shares shall be allotted to the holders of the elected shares on the basis of
allotment so determined. For such purpose, the Board shall capitalise, out of
any amount standing to the credit of any reserve or fund (including the profit =~
and loss account), whether or not the same is available for distribution, as the
Board may determine, a sum equal to the aggregate nominal amount of the
additional ordinary shares to be allotted on that basis and apply it in paying up
in full the appropriate number of unissued ordinary shares for allotment and
distribution to the holders of the elected shares on that basis;

136.8 the additional ordlnary shares so allotted shall-be allotted as of the record date for the
dividend for which the right of election has been offered and shall rank pari
passu in all respects with the fully paid ordinary shares then in issue except that
they will not rank for the dividend or other distribution entitlement in respect of
which they have been issued. Unless the Board otherwise determines (and

- subject always to the Regulations and the system's rules), the ordinary shares
- so allotted shall be issued as shares in certificated form (where the ordinary
shares in respect of which they have been allotted were in certificated form at
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: 137.1 Wlthout prejudice to the generallty of the immediately preceding Article (Scnp

the Scrip Record Time) or as shares in uncertificated form (where the ordinary
shares in respect of which they have been allotted were in uncertificated form at
the Scrip Record Time) provided that if the Company is unable under the
system's rules to issue ordinary shares in uncertificated form to any person,

~ . such shares shall be issued as shares in certificated form. For these purposes, .
the "Scrip Record Time" means such time on the record date for determining
the entitiements of members to make elections as described in this Article, or

- on such other date as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine.

136.10 The Board may establish or vary a procedure for election mandates whereby a holder of
ordinary shares may elect conceming future rights of election offered to that
holder under this Article until the election mandate is revoked following that
procedure. .

136.11 The Board may exclude-from any offer any holders of ordinary shares if it beheves that
" itis necessary or expedient to do so in relation to any legal or practical
problems under the laws of, or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock

exchange or other authority in, any territory or that for any other reason the offer
should not be made to them.

137. Enhanced scrip dividends

dividends), the Board may, in respect of any cash dividend or other distribution
(or any part thereof) declared or payable in relation to any financial year or
period of the Company, offer to each holder of ordmary shares the right to elect.
to receive new ordinary shares, credited as fully paid, in respect of the whole or
‘part of the ordinary shares held by them instead of such cash dividend, on any
basis described in that Article but so that the entitlement of each holder of -
ordinary shares to such new ordinary shares shall be determined by the Board
-such that the value (determined on the basis decided on by the Board) of the
new ordinary shares concemned may exceed the cash amount that such holders
of ordinary shares would otherwise have received by way of dividend and, in .
respect of such offer, that Article shall take effect subject to this Article. Any ~
‘offer made under this Article shall be.an alternative to any offer made under that.
Article in respect of a particular cash dividend (but shall form part of any plan
which is in operation thereunder)

137:2 . Any exercise by the Board of the powers granted to the Board by thls Amcle shall be '

subject to a special resolution approving the exercise of such powers in respect
of the dividend in question or in respect of any dividends or other distributions
* declared or payabie in respect of a specmed financial year or period of the -
Company which include the dividend in question but such year or period. may .

“not end later than the conclusion of the annual general meeting next following
- the date of the meeting at which such resolution is passed. No further sanction
shall be required under the immediately preceding Article (Scrip dividends) in
respect of an exercise of powers by the Board under this Article and any
authonty granted under this Article shall not preclude the granting to the Board
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138.

139.

140.

140.1

140.2

1140.3

of a separate authority under that Article.

Right to deduct amounts due on shares from dividends
The Board may deduct from any dividend or other moneys payable in respect of -

a share to a member all sums of money (if any) presently payable by him to the
Company on account of calls or otherwise in respect of shares of the Company.

No interest on dividends

“ No dividend or other moneys payable in respect of a share shall bear lnterest o

against the Company unless otherwise prowded by the rights attached to the
share v

Payment prbcedure :

All dividends and interest shall belong and be paid {subject to any lien of the Cempany} :

to those members whose names shall be on the Register at the date at which
such dividend shall be declared or at the date on which such interest shall be
payable respectively, or at such other date as the Company by ordinary

resolution or the Board may determine notwnhstandmg any subsequent transfer
or fransrnission of shares ,

The Company may pay any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash in
respect of shares by direct debit, bank transfer, cheque, dividend warrant,

money order or by any other method (including by electronic means) as the
Board may consider appropnate

Every such cheque, warrant or order shall be made payable to the person to '.w'_hom it is

. sent, or to such other person as the holder or the joint holders may in writing

140.4

1405

51624944.03

direct, and may be sent by post or equrvalent means of delivery directed to the

: registered address of the holder or, in the case of joint holders, to the reglstered |

address of the joint holder whose name stands first in the Register, or to such
person and to such address as the holder or joint holders may in writing direct.

Every such payment made by drrect debit or bank transfer shall be made to the holder

or )omt holders or to or through such other person as the holder or joint holders.
may in writing direct.. '

In respect of shares in uncertrflcated form;, where the Company is authorised to do so
by or'on behalf of the holder or joint holdérs in such manner as the Board shall

from time to time consider sufficient, the Company may-pay any such dividend,
interest or other monies by means of the relevant system. Every such payment

shall be made in such manner as may be consistent with the system's rules

and, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, may include the

sending by the Company or by any person on its behalf of an instruction to the
Operator of the relevant system to credit the cash memorandum account of the
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holder or joint holders or, if permitted by the Company, of such person as the
holder or joint holders may in writing direct.

140.7 The Company shall not be responsible for any loss of any such cheque, warrant or
order and any payment made in any manner permitted by these Articles shall
be at the sole risk of the holder or joint holders. Without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing, if any such cheque, warrant or order has been, or is
alleged to have been, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Board may, on request of-
. the person entitled thereto, issue a replacement cheque, warrant or order
subject to compliance with such conditions as to evidence and indemnity and -

the payment of out of pocket expenses of the Gompany in connection with the
request as the Board may think ﬁt

140.8 Theissue of such cheque, warrant or order the collection of funds from or transfer of -
“funds by a bank in accordance with such direct debit or bank transfer or, in
respect of shares in uncertificated form, the making of payment in accordance
with the system's rules, shall be a good discharge to the Company.

141.  Receipt by joint holders

If several persons are registered as joint holders of any share, any one of them

may give effectual receipts for any dividend or other moneys payable in respect
of the share.

142. = Where payment of dividends need not be made

The Company may cease to send any cheque or warrant through the post or to
effect payment by any other means for any dividend or other monies payable in
respect of a share which is normally paid in that manner on that share ifin -
respect of at least two consecutive dividends payable on that share payment,
‘through no fault of the Company, has not been effected (or, following one such
occasion, reasonable enquiries have failed to establish any new address of the .

- holder) but, subject to these Articles, the Company shall recommence payments =
in respect of dividends or other monies payable on that share by that means if
the holder or person entitled by transmission claims the arrears of dividend and
does not instruct the Company to pay future dividends in some other way.

143. Unclaﬁned dividends o

All dividends, interest or other sums payable unclaimed for one year after '
having been declared may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board
.. -for the benefit of the Company until claimed. The retention by the Company of,
" or payment into a separate account of,-any unclaimed dividend or other monies
payable on ar in respect of a share into a separate account shall not constitute
the Company a trustee in respect of it. Any dividend or interest unclaimed after
a period of 12 years from the date when it was declared or became due for -
- payment shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.
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CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS

Capitalisation of profits

Upon the recommendation of the Board, the Company may pass an ordinary resolution :

to the effect that it is desirable to capitalise all or any part of any undivided
profits of the Company not required for paying any preferential dividend
(whether or not they are available for distribution) or all or any part of any sum
standing to the credit of any reserve or fund (whether or not available for
distribution). :

144.2 The Board may appropriate the sum resolved to be capitalised to the members who

144.3

144.4

145,

would have been entitled to it if it were distributed by way of dividend and in the
same proportions and apply such sum on their behalf either in or towards
paying up the amounts, if any, for the time being unpaid on any shares held by
them respectively, or (subject to approval by ordinary resolution and to any -

" subsisting special rights previously conferred on any shares or class of shares)

in paying up in full unissued shares of any class (but not redeemable shares) or
debentures of the Company of a nominal amount equal to that sum, and allot
the shares or debentures credited as fully paid to those members, or as they
may direct, in those proportions, or partly in one way and partly in the other; but
for the purposes of this Articie the share premium account, the capital
redemption reserve, and any reserve or fund representing profits which are not
available for distribution may only be applied in paylng up in full unissued
shares of the Company.

The Board may authorise any person to enter on behalf of all the members concemed
into an agreement with the Company providing for the allotment to them

_respectively, credited as fully paid, of any shares or debentures to which they

are entitled upon such capitalisation and any matters incidental thereto, any
agreement made under such authority being binding on all such members

if any dnffnculty arises concermng any dlstnbutnon of any capltahsed reserve or fund the
Board may subject to the Statutes and, in the case of shares held in
uncertificated form, the system’s rules, settle it as the Board considers

- éexpedient and in particular may issue fractional certificates, authorise any -

person to sell and transtfer any fractions or resolve that the distribution should
be made as nearly as practicable in the correct proportion or may ignore
fractions altogether, and may determine that cash payments shall be made to
any members in order to adjust the rights of all parties as the Board considers
expedient.

AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS

Authentication of documents

Any director or the Secretafy or any person appointed by the Board for the

‘purpose shall have power to authenticate any documents affecting the
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constitution of the Company and any resolutions passed by the Company or the
Board or any committee and any books, records, documents and accounts
relating to the business of the Company and to certify copies or extracts as true
copies or extracts. A document purporting to be a copy of a resolution, or an
extract from the minutes of a meeting, of the Company, the Board or any
committee which is certified as such in accordance with this Article shall be
conclusive evidence in favour of all persons dealing with the Company upon the
faith of such document that such resolution has been duly passed or, as the
case may be, that such minute or extract is a true and accurate record of
proceedings at a duly constituted meeting. -

' RECORD DATES

Power to choose record date

- . Notwithstanding any other prov.ieion of these Articles, the Company or the

147.

148,

Board may fix, subject to the Statutes, any date as the record date for any
dividend, distribution, allotment or issue and such record date may be on or at
any time before or after any date on which the dividend, distribution, allotment .
or issue is declared, paid or made. -

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECORDS

Records to be kept

The Board shall cause accounting records to be kept sufficient to give a true
and fair view of the Company’s state of affairs and to comply with the Statutes.

Copy of accounts to be sent to members

A pnnted copy of every profit and loss account and balance sheet mcludmg aII
documents required by law to be annexed to the balance sheet which is to be -

"'laid before the Company in general meeting, together with copies of the

Directors' and of the Auditors' reports (or such other documents which may be
required or permitted by law to be sent in their place) shall not less than 21

clea’r'days before the date of the meeting be sent to every member (whether or " '

not he is entitled to receive notices of general meetings of the Company) andto
every holder of debentures of the Company (whether or not he is so entitled),
and to the Auditors provided that if the Company is permitted by law to send to
any member, to any holder of debentures of the Company or to the Auditors

any summary financial statement in place of all or any of such profit and loss
account and balance sheet or other documents, this Article shall impose no.
greater obligation on the Company than that imposed by law; but this Article
shall not require a copy of those documents to be sent to any member or holder
of debentures of whose address the Company is unaware or to more than one
of the joint holders of any shares or debentures. .
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149.

150.

150.1

150.2

Inspection of records

No member in his capacity as a member shall have any right of inspecting any
record, book or document of any description belonging to the Company except
as conferred by the Statutes or authorised by the Board or by ordinary
resolution of the Company.

Destruction of documents

The Company may destroy -

150.1.1 any instrument of transfer of shares and any other document on the basis of .

which an entry is made in the Reglster at any time after the exptraﬂon
of six years from the date of registration;

150.1.2 any instruction conceming the payment of dividends or other monies’in respect
of any share or any notification of change of name or address, at any
time after the expiration of two years from the date the instruction or
notification was recorded; and

150.1.3 any share certificate which has been cancelled, at any time after the expiration
of one year from the date of cancellation;

provided that the Company may destroy any such type of document after such
shorter period as the Board may determine if a copy of such document is
retained on microfilm or by other similar means and is not destroyed earlier than

the original might otherwise have been destroyed in accordance with this
Article.

It shall conclusively be presumed in favour of the Comp'any that every instrument of _ |
transfer so- destroyed. was a valid and effective instrument duly and properly

registered and that every share certificate so destroyed was a valid and

effective document duly.and properly cancelled and that every other documentv |
so destroyed was a valid and effective document in accordance with its

. particulars recorded in the books or records of the Company provided that :-

150.2.1 this Article shall apply only to the destruction of a document in good faith and o

without express notice that its retention was relevant to any claim
(regardiess of the parties to the claim);

150.2.2 nothing contamed in this Article shall be construed as imposing upon the

Company any liability in respect of the destruction of any such
document earlier than the times referred to in this Article or in any case
where the conditions of this Article are not fuffilled; and

150.2.3 references in this Artlcte to the destruction of any document or thing include _
references to its dlsposal in-any manner.
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151.

152,

153.

154.

NOTICES

Notices must be in writing

Any notice to be given to or by any person pursuant to these Articles shall be in

writing except that a notice calling a meeting of'the, Board need not be in writing.

Service of notice

Any notice or other document (including a share certificate) may be served on
or delivered to a member by the Company either personally or by sending it by

post in a prepaid envelope addressed to the member at his registered address -
or by so addressing the envelope and leaving it at that address or by any other

means authorised in writing by the member concerned. In the case of joint
holders of a share, all notices or other documents shall be served on or .
delivered to the joint holder whose name stands first in the Register in respect
of the joint holding and such service or delivery shall for all purposes be .
deemed sufficient service on or delivery to all the joint holders. A member

whose registered address is not within the United Kingdom and who gives to the

Company an address within the United Kingdom at which notices or other
documents may be served on or delivered to him shall be entitled to have
notices or other documents served on or delivered to him at that address, but

otherwise no such member shall be entitled to receive any notice or other
documents from the Company.

When notice deemed served

Any notice or other document, if sent by the Company by post, shall be deemed

to have been served or delivered on the day following that on which it was putin . .

“the post and, in proving service or delivery, it shall be sufficient to prove that the

notice or document was properly addressed, prepaid and put in the post or duly .
given to delivery agents.. Any notice or other document not sent by post but left . .
" by the Company at a registered address shall be deemed to have been served -

or delivered on the-day it was so left.-Any notice or other document served or

. delivered by the Company by any other means authorised in writing by the
“member.concerned shall be deemed to have been served when the Company

has carried out the action it has been authorised to take for that purpose. Any
notice or other document to be given by the Company by advertisement shall be -

deemed to have b‘een served on the day on which the advertisement appears.

Service of notice on person'entitled by transmission

Where a person is entltled by transmission to a-share, any notice or other -

. document shall be served upon or delivered to him by the Company, as if he

were the holder of that share and the address noted in the Register were his
registered address. Otherwise, any notice or other document served on or
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delivered to any member pursuant to these Articles shall, notwithstanding that
the member is then dead or bankrupt or that any other event giving rise to the
transmission of the share by operation of law has occurred and whether or not
the Company has notice of the death, bankruptcy or other event, be deemed to

have been properly served or delivered in respect of any share registered in the,
name of that member as sole or joint holder.

- 155.  Record date for service

Any notice or other document may be served or delivered by the Company by
reference to the Register as it stands at any time not more than 15 days before
the date of service or delivery. No change in the Register after that time shall

_invalidate that service or delivery. Where any notice or other document is -
served on or delivered to any person in respect of a share in accordance with
these Artlcles no person deriving any title or interest in that share shall be
entitled to any further service or delivery of that notice or document.

156.  Loss of entitlement to receive notices

It on two consecutive occasions notices or other documents have been sent to
any member at his registered address or his address for the service of notices
but have been returned undelivered, such member shall not from then on be
entitled to receive notices or other documents from the Company until he has

communicated with the Company and supplied to the Company in writing a new
address within the United Kingdom for the service of notices.

157.  Notice when post not available

'157.2.1 If at any time postal services within the United Kingdom are suspended or
curtailed so that the Company is unable effectively to convene a general
meeting or a meeting of the holders of any class of shares in its.capital
by notice sent through the post, any such meeting may be convened by
a notice advertised in at least one newspaper with a national circulation

~ and in that event the notice shall be deemed to have been served on all
members and persons entitled by transmission, who are entitled to have
notice of the meeting served upon them, on the day when the
advertisement has appeared in at least one such paper. If at least six
clear days prior to the meeting the giving of notices by post to
addresses throughout the United Kingdom has, in the Board's opinion,
become practicable, the Company shall send confirmatory copies of the
notice by post to the persons entltled to rece:ve them.

157.2.2 At any time that postal services within the United Kingdom are suspended or |

curtailed, any other document considered by the Board to be capable of
communication by advertisement shall, if advertised in at least one such
newspaper, be deemed to have been notified to all members and
persons entitled by transmission.
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158.2

WINDING-UP

‘ Distribution in kind .

If the Company commences ii'quid'ation the liquidator may, with the sanction of

a special resolution of the Company and any other sanction required by the
Statutes:-

divide among the members in kind the whole or any part of the assets of the Co}mpény
(whether the assets are of the same kind or not) and may, for that purpose,

- value any assets and determine how the division shall be carried out as -

" between the members or different classes of members or othen/vlse as the
resolutlon may provide; or .

vest the whole or any part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the beneflt of
the contributories as the liquidator, with the like sanction, shall determine,

but no member shall be compelled to accept any assets upon which thereisa
liability. Any such resolution may provide for and sanction a distribution of any
specific assets amongst different classes of members otherwise than in
accordance with their existing rights, but each member shall in that event have

- aright of dissent and other ancillary rights in the same way as if the resolution

159.

160. .

were a special resolution passed in accordance with the Insolvency Act 1986."

Power of sale
The power of sale of the liquidator shall include a power to sell wholly or partly »

for shares or debentures or other obligations of another company, either then

already constituted or about to be constituted, for the purpose of carrying out
the sale. ,

INDEMNITY

.Officer's 'indemnity

h Subject to the Statutes, the Company may mdemmfy any Director or other

officer against any liability. Subject to those provisions, but without prejudice o
any indemnity to which the person ¢oncerned may otherwise be entitled, every =
Director or other officer of the Company and the Auditors shall be indemnified

- out of the assets of the Company against any liability incurred by him as a

Director, other officer of the Company or as Auditor in defending any .
proceedings (whether civil or criminal) in which judgment is given in his favour

- or he is acquitted or which are otherwise disposed of without any finding or

admission of any material guilt or breach of duty or breach of trust on his part or
in connection with any appllcatlon under the Statutes in which relief is granted

- to him by the court.
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Power to insure

Subject to the Statutes, and without prejudice to the preceding Article (Officer's
indemnity), the Board may purchase and maintain insurance at the expense of

~ the Company for the benefit of any person who is or was at any time a Director

or other officer or employee of the Company or of any subsidiary undertaking of
the Company or in which the Company has an interest (whether direct or
indirect) or who is or was at any time a trustee of any pension fund or employee
benefits trust in which any employee of the Company or of any such subsidiary:
undertaking is or has been interested, indemnifying such person against any -.
liability which may attach to him or loss or.expenditure which he may incurin .
relation to.anything done or alleged to have been done oromitted to be done.as

_a Director, officer, employee or trustee.
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPOBATIONA
OF A PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

- | | Company No. 3467317

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that
GENE MEDIX PLC |

is this day incorporated under the Companies Act 1985 as a public

company and that the company-is limited.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff, the 18th November 1997

2. &, %avg&

R. C. EDWARDS

For the Registrar of Companies

COMPANIES HOUSE

HONNRA
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~ under the name of

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
ON CHANGE OF NAME

Company No. 3467317

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifives that.
GENE MEDIX PLC

having by speCial resolution changed its name, is now incorporated

GENEMEDIX PLC

Given at Companies House, London, the 16th October 2000

COMPANIES HOUSE




CERTIFICATE THAT A PUBLIC COMPANY

IS ENTITLED TO DO BUSINESS AND BORROW

Company No. 3467317

I hereby certify that the provisions of section
117(1) of the Companies Act 1985 have been
- complied with in relation to

GENE MEDIX PLC

and that the company is entitled to do business and borrow

* Given under my hand at Companies House, Cardiff the ISth October 1999

G

An Authorised Officer




(]

)

0

i

GeneMedix press release

Placing of new shares for cash

GeneMedix plc ("GeneMedix” or “the Company"), the UK multi-sourced biopharmaceutical
company with operations in Europe and Asia and with joint London and Singapore Stock
Exchange listings, announces that, in response to investor demand, it is raising approximately
£1.5 million before expenses through a placing for cash of 8,983,003 new ordinary shares. The
new shares, which represent approximately 3 per cent of GeneMedix’s issued share capital prior
to the placing, have been placed with a number of investors in Singapore and Malaysia at a
placing price of 16.65 pence per share. The placing price represents a discount of approximately
10 per cent to the closing middle market price on London Stock Exchange on 11 June 2003.

Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer, commented:

“As we announced today in a separate press release, we have signed a letter of intent to
establish a new company in Malaysia to develop and commercialise our insulin know-how. As
part of this venture, local investors in Malaysia and Singapore were contacted to secure equity
financing for the new company. Some of these investors expressed an interest in investing
directly in GeneMedix, and this placing provides them with the opportunity to secure a valuable
shareholding in GeneMedix.

The new shares will, when issued and fully paid, rank pari passu with the existing issued
GeneMedix shares. Application will be made today to the UK Listing Authority for the new
shares to be admitted to the Official List. Application will also be made to the London Stock
Exchange for the new shares to be admitted to trading on its market for listing securities. It is
expected that admission to listing of such securities will become effective, and dealings on the
London Stock Exchange will commence, on 24 June 2003 and shortly thereafter in Singapore.

12 june 2002
ENQUIRIES:

GeneMedix plc Tel: 01638 663320
Paul Edwards, Chief Executive Officer

College Hill Tel: 020 7457 2020
Nicholas Nelson
Clare Warren
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Examtis PLoeine WAEMD LAND UM, GeneMedix plc
Rosalind Franklin House
Fordham Road
Newmarket
Suffolk CB8 7XN

Tel: +44(0) 1638 663320
Fax: +44 (0) 1638 663411

enquiries@genemedix.com
www.genemedix.com

Strictly Private and Confidential

TH Group

For the attention of:
By fax: «Fax»
Dear Sirs,
GENEMEDIX PLC (“"THE COMPANY")

Placing (“Placing”) of 8,983,003 new ordinary shares of 1 pence each (“New Ordinary Shares”)
at 15.65 pence per New Ordinary Share (the “Placing Price”)

Placing participation being offered to you of 3,003,003 shares.

All of these shares are being offered to you at 16.65 pence per new share, corresponding to a total value
for vour placing participation of £ 500,000.00

ACTION TO BE TAKEN AND TIMETABLE

e Sign and return Letter of Confirmation and Settlement Schedule to today,
13 June 2003 or at the latest by 12.00 p.m. tomorrow, 14 June 2003

e« Trade date: 14 June 2003
o Deadline for you to input instructions into CREST (if applicable): 8.00pm on 17 June 2003

s Expected date of Admission: 24 June 2003

o Settlement date: 24 June 2003

Placing

We enclose a draft announcement of the Company (which is subject to amendment, updating and
completion) in connection with, and giving details, of the Placing. It is expected that a document in
substantially the same form as the announcement will be published on or about 12 June 2003.

The: New Ordinary Shares are being placed for cash at the Placing Price for the account of the Company.



Adrr;is:sion to the Official List and Dealings

- Applications are to be made to the United Kingdom Listing Authority and the London Stock Exchange for the

New Ordinary Shares to be admitted to the Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange
("Admission”) and it is expected that Admission will become effective and dealings in the New Ordinary
Shares will commence on the London Stock Exchange on 24 June 2003. Trading on Singapore Exchange for
shares transferred into CDP will commence on 25 June 2003.

It is expected that members’ CREST stock accounts for the New Ordinary Shares agreed to be issued in
uncertificated form will be credited on 24 June 2003 (unless the Company exercises its right to issue the
New QOrdinary Shares in certificated form). Otherwise, definitive certificates for the New Ordinary Shares
will, where appropriate, be despatched not later than 24 June 2003. Pending receipt of definitive certificates,
transfers will be certified against the relevant register.

Placing Participation Offer

The New Ordinary Shares will, when issued and fully paid, rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company. The New Ordinary Shares wili be issued free from all liens, charges and
encumbrances and will be in registered form.

Conditions and Termination

On receipt by us of a completed Letter of Confirmation and Settlement Schedule, your commitment to us to
subscribe for the number of New Ordinary Shares comprising your Placing Participation will become binding
on you. Your commitment will then be absolutely irrevocable and not terminable by you in any
circumstances. However, we may terminate your commitment at any time in our absolute discretion prior
to the release of the Announcement and we shall have no liability to you in relation to the exercise of such
discretion. The Placing and your Placing Participation are also conditional upon Admission.

Settlement of your Placing Participation

The New Ordinary Shares that you acquire pursuant to the Placing will be delivered in either certificated or
uncertificated form (i.e. within CREST) depending upon the preference you express in the Letter of
Confirmation and Settlement Schedule,

Where you choose delivery in uncertificated form (i.e. through CREST) delivery will be made against
payment. In order to enable instructions to be successfully matched in CREST, the relevant details are as
follows:

(a) CREST participant ID of GeneMedix: GMXG
(b) Trade date: 12 June 2003
(c) Settlement date: 24 June 2003

(d) Deadline for you to input instructions into CREST: 8.00pm on 17 June 2003

Where you choose delivery of the New Ordinary Shares in certificated form, payment for the full amount due
(on the basis of the Placing Price) will be required for value no later than 12.00pm on 24 June 2004, The
amounts due to us should be remitted by CHAPS (Electronic Funds Transfer) direct to our account at HSBC,
Guildford, Surrey, GU1 3YU , sort code 40 22 26, swift MIDLGB22 for the account of GeneMedix plc, account

nurnber 32071223 and quoting reference “"GMXINS". Delivery of the New Ordinary Shares will be free of
payment.

Where you choose delivery of the New Ordinary Shares in certificated form, or where you have not matched
your CREST instructions to our participant ID by the above date, we will deliver definitive certificates to you
for New Ordinary Shares, by first class post and at your risk, by 30 June 2003 or such later date as may be
determined by GeneMedix if Admission does not occur on 24 June 2003.

In the event that the Placing is terminated, the Placing will not proceed and any funds delivered to us

pursuant to this letter will be returned to you without interest (in our absolute discretion as to manner,
terms and timing) at your risk.



7. Representations and Warranties

GeneMedix plc represents and warrants that the shares upon allotment and issuance will

(a) Dbe in issued in accordance with the Company’s articles of Association, and all necessary authorisations
from the Company’s Directors and Members in general meeting have been obtained.

(b} have all necessary permissions have been obtained to list and deal the shares on the London Stock
Exchange and Singapore Exchange. '

Governing Law

This Ietter (and any dispute, controversy, proceedings or claim of whatever nature arising out of or in any
way relating to this letter or the formation of any contract or agreement in connection with it) shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with English law.

Submission to Jurisdiction

In relation to any action or proceedings to enforce the terms of this letter or arising out of or in connection
with it ("Proceedings”), you hereby irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English Courts and
waive any objection to Proceedings in such courts on the grounds of venue or on the grounds that the
Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum.

It is also acknowledged that this placing is subject to the Placee obtaining the necessary approvals from
Bank Negara.

Action to be taken

To confirm acceptance of your Placing Participation offered to you pursuant to the terms of this
letter:

(a) telephone ...ccciiiircncncnnenonnn s ON oo, @S SO0N as possible; and

(b) ' sign the attached Letter of Confirmation and Settlement Schedule of your Placing
Participation as soon as possible, and send it by facsimile 10 .....coccevvicciiiicinniiae. ORN

esevataseencesanrararan «{with the origina! to follow by hand or by first class post) so as to arrive
no later than 18 June 2003

Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of
GeneMedix plc



Registered in England No 03467317
Registered Office:

Rosalind frankfin House, fordham Road
Newmarket CB8 7XN, England

LETTER OF CONFIRMATION
To: GeneMedix plc
Rosalind Franklin House
Fordham Road v
Newmarket ;
England
CB8 &XN
For the attention of: Mr Julian Attfield *
Fax number: 0044 1638 663411
Our reference: GMXINS
Total placing participation of .icceeccssacarerercaenses Shares.

All of these shares are being offered at 16.65 pence per new share, corresponding to a total
value of £ ciccecrererrsncrncanancs

Dear Sirs,
GENEMEDIX PLC (THE "COMPANY")

Placing (“Placing”) of 8,983,003 new ordinary shares of 1 pence each (“"New Ordinary Shares)
at 156.65 pence per New Ordinary Share (the “Placing Price”)

We refer to your letter dated 13 June 2003 (the "Placing Letter”) regarding the Placing and hereby confirm

our acceptance of our Placing Participation set out in the box above on the terms and subject to the
condiitions set out in the Placing Letter.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, we irrevocably undertake:

(a) if taking the New Ordinary Shares in uncertificated form (i.e. through CREST), to comply with the

deadlines and instructions set out in the Placing Letter to ensure a successful matching of instructions in
CREST; or

(b) if taking physical delivery of the New Ordinary Shares in certificated form, to make payment by CHAPS
(Electronic Funds Transfer) direct to your account at , HSBC, Guildford, Surrey, GU1 3YU , sort code 40
22 26, for the account of GeneMedix plc, account number 32071223 for the account of Nomura
International pl¢, account number 40673358 and quoting reference "GMXINS” for the full amount due
(on the basis of the Placing Price) for value by not later than 24 June 2003,

SIgned: e
for and on behalf of
«Institution»
L E T o TSP POSItioN: .o
Date: .. 2003 0

Contact telephone number for Settlement purposes.........ccccoeevii s .
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SCHEDULE 3A

APPLICATION FOR ADMISSION OF SECURITIES TO THE OFFICIAL

LIST
(SHARES AND DEBT SECURITIES)

This form of application for admission of securities to the Official List should be suitably adapted for an issuer
which is not a public limited company. Please note that admission to the Official List will be simultaneous with
admission to trading on a Recognised Investment Exchange (RIE). You will need to complete a separate
application form to apply for trading on the RIE.

To: UK Listing Authority 19 June 2003

Details of securities to be listed

GENEMEDIX PLC (“the issuer”) hereby applies for the securities detailed below to be admitted to the Official
List of the UK Listing Authority subject to the listing rules of the UK Listing Authority.

Share capital

Authorised Denomination Issued and paid up (inclusive
of present issue)
600,000,000 in 1p Ordinary Shares 299,085,755
in
in
£® ‘ £®

(Please include in brackets those shares listed under block listing procedures but not yet allotted)

Debt securities

Nominal value Redemption date Coupon

N/A

£

Please specify where the issuer is listed and the nature of the listing

Primary London Stock Exchange

Secondary Singapore Stock Exchange

CANacumants and Sattinacti attfisl My NanimeanteiFindraicinmiSinaanara nlaninmQrhadide 4 Annlinatinn fnr Admiceinn nf Sactditiee tn tha Official t it dne
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April 2002 Schedule 34

Please specify on which RIEs the issuer has applied to have its securities traded

London Stock Exchange

Amounts and descriptions of securities for which application is now being made (include distinctive numbers if
any)

8,983,003 Ordinary Shares of 1p each

Type of issue for which application is being made

Placing

Confirmation

We acknowledge our obligations under the listing rules and the legal implications of listing under the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000. Accordingly we confirm that;

(@) all the conditions for listing in the listing rules which are required to be fulfilled prior to application
have been fulfilled in relation to the issuer and the securities for the admission of which application is now made;

) all information required to be included in the prospectus* has been included therein, or, if the final
version has not yet been submitted (or approved), will be included therein before it is so submitted; and

© all the documents and information required to be included in the application have been or will be
supplied in accordance with the listing rules and all other requirements of the UK Listing Authority in respect of
the application have been or will be complied with.

We undertake to comply with the listing rules from time to time of the UK Listing Authority so far as applicable
to the issuer.

We undertake to lodge with you the declaration required pursuant to paragraph 7.8(i) of the listing rules of the
UK Listing Authority in due course.

Signed

Director or secretary or other duly authorised officer for and on behalf of

Name of issuer GENEMEDIX PLC

To be completed in all cases
Application to be heard on: 23 June 2003
Admission expected to be effective on: 24 June 2003

Name(s) of contact(s) at issuer regarding the
Application Julian Attfield

Telephone number; 01638 675115




April 2002

Schedule 34

. AN

and ],

tn tha OWfnial | et Ao




